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3.8 IT
2016 2017
2016
2017
2016 12 25.0 2017 12 24.7
31.2 DNB
19.7
DNB
2017
10
2
2018
2017 C )

2017 250,000
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2016 25.9 16.4
2016 12.7

¢ 5 2017 2016
8,578 7,941
1,549 1,480
10,127 9,421
(4,106) (3,876)
6,021 5,545
@ 2
(413) (1,088)
14 6
5,621 4,465
4,216 3,348

)
276.8 258.2
205.6 177.3
)

16.4 12.7
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2016 4.7
2016
IT 2016 6.0
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0.15 0.42 2017
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2017
10 1 DNB
2016
2017 2016
(
12,682 13,182
4,897 5,255
17,579 18,437
(7.,086) (6.828)
10,493 11,609
20 23
(1,800) (6,715)
(19) 8
8,694 4,925
6,260 3,599
)
478.8 530.5
375.2 375.8
)
7.7 4.3
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2
2016 9.7 2016 2017 21.3
13.9 2016 0.2
2016 2017 14.2
5.1
2016 0.02 2017 1.2
2016 6.8
2016 3.8 2016 12
51
2016
2017 0.38 0.89
0.23 2017 0.63
2017
20.0
2017 12 11.9
DNB
2018
2017 2016
( )
(76) 28
2,453 2,976

2,377 3,004
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)
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(2018 6 20 )
) ) )
182,556,480
(2018 6 20 )
)
100 182,556,480
- 182,556,480 _
(@) (@) ( )| ( )
2017 9 30 (586,630) 182,556,480 (58,663,000) 18,255,648,000
() 2017 3 Vipps 58,663,000
586,630
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DNB
DNB 100 2018 3 31
DNB 20

« ) )
/ 553,792 34.3
DNB 130,001 8.1
95,193 5.9
30,411 1.9
29,592 1.8
28,021 1.7
22,332 1.4
20,814 1.3
18,043 1.1
16,704 1.0
MFS 15,730 1.0
KLP 14,725 0.9
DNB 13,547 0.8
SAFE 13,284 0.8
12,665 0.8
12,138 0.8
11,986 0.7
11,942 0.7
11,753 0.7
Nordea 10,781 0.7
1,073,451 66.6
539,223 33.4
1,612,674 100.0
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- DNB
2017 50
2018 4 3.5
2018 6 5
2017 2016 14,789
18,910
DNB 14,933
871 ( ) 15,804
12,600 (
) 16,800 ( ) DNB
DNB
14,900
2,300 DNB
25 ( ) 19
10S
2017 12 31 20.6 Tier 1
16.2 23.0 Tier 1
17.7
4 3
2 1
2 2
2018 4 10
2017
1,438,116
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2017 12 31
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016

35,163 37,126 17 54,399 52,887
(11,555)  (12,709) 17 (18,485)  (18,369)

23,608 24,416 17 35,914 34,517

6,739 7,340 19 9,228 8,628
(2,924) (3,296) 19 (3,344) (2,994)

8,834 5,942 20 4,513 6,506

35 (112) 1,189
143 (35)

5,837 6,325 1,997 2,023

18,486 16,312 12,425 15,316

42,004 40,728 48,339 49,833
(9,248) (9,639) 21 (11,561)  (11,206)
(6,118) (6,904) 22 (7,899) (7,207)
(2,050) (2,318) 23 (2,469) (2,103)
(17,417)  (18,860) (21,928)  (20,516)

24,677 21,867 26,410 29,317
14 2,047 735 (19)
(4,679) (1,937) 9, 10 (2,428) (7,424)

20,012 21,978 24,718 21,874
(5,223) (3,068) 25 (4,903) (3,964)

(©) 4

14,789 18,910 19,813 17,914

14,193 17,972 18,876 17,319

595 938 Tierl 938 595

14,789 18,910 19,813 17,914

80.75 103.34 / 108.27 97.81

1
(0.01) 0.02
1
80.75 103.34 108.28 97.79
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2016 2017 2017 2016
468,371 494,518 17 724,595 704,455
(153,913)  (169,284) 17 (246,220)  (244,675)
314,459 325,221 17 478,374 459,766
89,763 97,769 19 122,917 114,925
(38,948)  (43,903) 19 (44,542)  (39,880)
117,669 79,147 20 60,113 86,660
35 (1,492) 15,837
1,905 (466)
77,749 84,249 26,600 26,946
246,234 217,276 165,501 204,009
560,692 542,497 643,875 663,776
(123,183) (128,391) 21 (153,993)  (149,264)
(81,492)  (91,961) 22 (105,215)  (95,997)
(27,306)  (30,876) 23 (32,887)  (28,012)
(231,994) (251,215) (292,081) (273,273)
328,608 291,268 351,781 390,502
186 27,266 9,790 (253)
(62,324)  (25,801) 9, 10 (32,341)  (98,888)
266,560 292,747 329,244 291,362
(69,570)  (40,866) 25 (65,308)  (52,800)
13) 53
196,989 251,881 263,909 238,614
189,051 239,387 251,428 230,689
7,925 12,494 Tierl 12,494 7,925
196,989 251,881 263,909 238,614
1,075.59  1,376.49 / 1,442.16  1,302.83
1 (0.13) 0.27
1
1,075.59  1,376.49 1,442.29  1,302.56
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
14,789 18,910 19,813 17,914
(166) (120) (107) (179)
(166) (120) (107) (179)
(135) 53 1,182 (6,478)
D (1,303) 43)
(515) 4,346
D 886
2 160 25)
2 (855)
(135) 53 410 (3,054)
(301) 67 303 (3,233)
14,487 18,843 20,117 14,680
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
196,989 251,881 263,909 238,614
(2,211) (1,598) (1,425) (2,384)
(2,211) (1,598) (1,425) (2,384)
(1,798) 706 15,744 (86,287)
D (17,356) (573)
(6,860) 57,889
1) 11,802
2) 2,131 (333)
2 (11,389)
(1,798) 706 5,461  (40,679)
(4,009) (892) 4,036  (43,064)
192,967 250,989 267,958 195,538
1) 2017 1,307
1,224
338
2) DNB VisaNorge Visa Europe 2016
31 Visa Europe 855
2016 Visalnc Visa Europe
1,128
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DNB DNB

2016 2017 2017 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
207,934 151,147 26, 27, 28 151,595 208,263
549,093 580,973 6,7,26,27,28 237,849 174,908
690,060 730,782 6,7,26,27,28 1,531,345 1,492,268
223,360 261,994 26, 28, 30 257,029 217,887
5,178 6,310 26, 28, 30, 31 7,303 6,200
170,317 146,953 15, 26, 28 132,649 157,957
12,760 9,613 26, 27, 33 9,613 12,760
34 990 1,175
995 9,007 35 11,176 3,570
118,233 115,142 36 0 )
3,598 3,515 37 3,756 3,981
1,882 8,415 25 757 1,392
7,034 7,842 38 7,911 7,117
52,541
13,462 22,092 40 7,888 8,255
2,003,906 2,053,787 2,359,860 2,348,272
338,731 332,798 26, 27, 28 222,501 211,606
920,664 956,525 26, 27, 28, 41 980,374 945,694
181,794 179,534 15, 26, 28 112,020 130,990
336,941 326,171 26, 27, 28, 42 782,127 767,750
4 3,765 25 4,702 8,847
56 74 25 847 2,382
23,893 51,103 26, 44 19,304 15,781
41,243
1,916 1,652 1,766 2,038
2,454 2,906 24 2,995 2,516
29,347 29,538 26, 27, 28, 43 29,538 29,347
1,835,802 1,884,067 2,156,175 2,158,194
18,314 18,256 18,256 18,314
19,895 19,895 20,611 20,611
15,952 16,159 Tier 16,159 15,952
113,942 115,411 148,660 135,200
168,104 169,720 45 203,685 190,078
2,003,906 2,053,787 2,359,860 2,348,272
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2016 2017 2017 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2,769,681 2,013,278 26, 27, 28 2,019,245 2,774,063
7,313,919 7,738,560 6,7,26,27,28 3,168,149 2,329,775
9,191,599 9,734,016 6,7,26, 27,28 20,397,515 19,877,010
2,975,155 3,489,760 26, 28, 30 3,423,626 2,902,255
68,971 84,049 26, 28, 30, 31 97,276 82,584
2,268,622 1,957,414 15, 26, 28 1,766,885 2,103,987
169,963 128,045 26, 27, 33 128,045 169,963
34 13,187 15,651
13,253 119,973 35 148,864 47,552
1,574,864 1,533,691 36 0 )
47,925 46,820 37 50,030 53,027
25,068 112,088 25 10,083 18,541
93,693 104,455 38 105,375 94,798
699,846
179,314 294,265 40 105,068 109,957
26,692,028 27,356,443 31,433,335 31,278,983
4,511,897 4,432,869 26, 27, 28 2,963,713 2,818,592
12,263,244 12,740,913 26, 27, 28, 41 13,058,582 12,596,644
2,421,496 2,391,393 15, 26, 28 1,492,106 1,744,787
4,488,054 4,344,598 26, 27, 28, 42 10,417,932 10,226,430
53 50,150 25 62,631 117,842
746 986 25 11,282 31,728
318,255 680,692 26, 44 257,129 210,203
549,357
25,521 22,005 23,523 27,146
32,687 38,708 24 39,893 33,513
390,902 393,446 26, 27, 28, 43 393,446 390,902
24,452,883 25,095,772 28,720,251 28,747,144
243,942 243,170 243,170 243,942
265,001 265,001 274,539 274,539
212,481 215,238 Tier 215,238 212,481
1,517,707 1,537,275 1,980,151 1,800,864
2,239,145 2,260,670 45 2,713,084 2,531,839
26,692,028 27,356,443 31,433,335 31,278,983
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DNB
Tier
2015 12 31 18,314 19,895 8,353 (459) 652 104,777 151,533
595 14,193 14,789
( ) (166) (135) (301)
595 (166) (135) 14,193 14,487
Tier 7,520 (43) 7,477
Tier (505) (505)
(11) 11
6 ®)
195 195
DNB
2016 (9,284) (9,284)
DNB
2016 4,200 4,200
2016 12 31 18,314 19,895 15,952 (619) 517 114,045 168,104
938 17,972 18,910
( ) (120) 53 (67)
938 (120) 53 17,972 18,843
Vipps AS (59) (641) (700)
Tier (724) (724)
) 7
2 2
DNB
2017 (15,804)  (15,804)
2017 12 31 18,256 19,895 16,159 (739) 570 115,580 169,720
DNB
Tier D 1 1)
2015 12 31 18,314 20,611 8,353 (479) 18,289 (11,848) 120,171 173,412
595 17,319 17,914
( ) (179) (6,521) 4,346 (880) (3,233)
595 (179) (6,521) 4,346 16,438 14,680
Tier 7,520 (43) 7,477
Tier (505) (505)
11) 11
16 (16)
AGDL 13 13
DNB
2015 (5,000) (5,000)
2016 12 31 18,314 20,611 15,952 (641) 11,768 (7,502) 131,575 190,078
938 18,876 19,813
( ) (107) (121) 371 160 303
938 107) (121) 371 19,036 20,117
Vipps AS (59) (641) (700)
Tier (724) (724)
) 7
DNB
2016 (5,084) (5,084)
2017 12 31 18,256 20,611 16,159 (748) 11,647 (7,131) 144,892 203,685
1) ocl
2016 12 31 1,015 (712) 304
2017
291 (174) 117
(1,307) 886 421)
2017 12 31 0 0 0
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DNB
Tier
2015 12 31 243,942 265,001 111,262 (6,114) 8,685 1,395,630 2,018,420
7,925 189,051 196,989
( ) (2,211)  (1,798) (4,009)
7,925 (2,211)  (1,798) 189,051 192,967
Tier 100,166 (573) 99,594
Tier (6,727) (6,727)
147) 147
80 (80)
2,597 2,597
DNB
2016 (123,663) (123,663)
DNB
2016 55,944 55,944
2016 12 31 243,942 265,001 212,481 (8,245) 6,886 1,519,079 2,239,145
12,494 239,387 251,881
( ) (1,598) 706 (892)
12,494 (1,598) 706 239,387 250,989
Vipps AS (786) (8,538)  (9,324)
Tier (9,644) (9,644)
(93) 93
27 27
DNB
2017 (210,509)  (210,509)
2017 12 31 243,170 265,001 215,238 (9,843) 7,592 1,539,526 2,260,670
DNB
Tier D 1) 1)
2015 12 31 243,942 274,539 111,262 (6,380) 243,609 (157,815) 1,600,678 2,309,848
7,925 230,689 238,614
( ) (2,384) (86,860) 57,889  (11,722)  (43,064)
7,925 (2,384) (86,860) 57,889 218,954 195,538
Tier 100,166 (573) 99,594
Tier (6,727) (6,727)
147) 147
213 (213)
AGDL 173 173
DNB
2015 (66,600)  (66,600)
2016 12 31 243,942 274,539 212,481 (8,538) 156,750 (99,927) 1,752,579 2,531,839
12,494 251,428 263,909
( ) (1,425)  (1,612) 4,942 2,131 4,036
12,494 (1,425) (1,612) 4,942 253,560 267,958
Vipps AS (786) (8,538)  (9,324)
Tier (9,644) (9,644)
93) 93
DNB
2016 (67,719)  (67,719)
2017 12 31 243,170 274,539 215,238 (9,963) 155,138 (94,985) 1,929,961 2,713,084
1)) ocl
2016 12 31 13,520 (9,484) 4,049
2017
3,876 ,318) 1,558
(17,409) 11,802 (5,608)
2017 12 31 0 0 0
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(1,193) (39,831) (36,193) (35,187)
26,974 27,604 47,789 47,420
37,498 36,940 34,723 40,724
(5,219) (5,346) (4,425) (3,711)
144,571 (28,516) / (40,214) 163,235
3,774 5,074 2,449 1,261
(1,975) (3,058) (2,428) (1,661)
(8,655) (21,783) / (20,381) 4,076
4,327 4,521 4,394 4,271
3,998 3,920 6,035 5,757
(15,995) (16,322) (19,505) (19,014)
(1,268) (1,897) (10,004) (1,455)
8,563 5,289 6,282 8,327
195,401 (33,406) (31,478) 214,042
(1,627) (1,010) (2,274) (1,529)
/ 382 (605)
861 1,210 20 861
(3,700) (3,728) (675)
57 347 7 66
(4,408) (3,181) (2,470) (1,206)
8,943,961 1,788,376 ( 2 ) 1,849,030 8,995,908
(8,935,044) (1,804,568) ( 2 ) (1,856,373) (9,000,786)
(6,238) (5,926) (13,853) (16,016)
738 10,106 ( 43 ) 10,106 738
[©) (10,544) ( 43 ) (10,544) [©)
(920) (780) (784) (923)
7,520 Tier 7,520
(516) (724) Tier (724) (516)
(6,942) (4,018) (5,318) (6,849)
2,555 (28,080) (28,459) (20,928)
(1,663) 6,082 5,436 (312)
191,884 (58,584) (56,971) 191,596
19,884 211,768 214,790 23,194
(3,768)
191,884 (58,584) (56,971) 191,596
211,768 153,184 W) 154,051 214,790
207,934 151,147 151,595 211,908
3,835 2,036 ) 2,456 2,881
1
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2016 2017 2017 2016
(15,891)  (530,549) (482,091)  (468,691)
359,294 367,685 636,549 631,634
499,473 492,041 462,510 542,444
(69,517) (71,209) (58,941) (49,431)
1,925,686 (379,833) (535,650) 2,174,290
50,270 67,586 32,621 16,797
(26,307) (40,733) (32,341) (22,125)
(115,285)  (290,150) (271,475) 54,292
57,636 60,220 58,528 56,890
53,253 52,214 80,386 76,683
(213,053)  (217,409) (259,807)  (253,266)
(16,890) (25,268) (133,253) (19,381)
114,059 70,449 83,676 110,916
2,602,741 (444,968) (419,287) 2,851,039
(21,672) (13,453) (30,290) (20,366)
5,088 (8,059)
11,469 16,117 1,199 11,469
(49,284) (49,657) (8,991)
759 4,622 93 879
(58,715) (42,371) (32,900) (16,064)
119,133,561 23,821,168 42 24,629,080 119,825,495
(119,014,786) (24,036,846) ( 2 ) (24,726,888) (119,890,470)
(83,090) (78,934) (184,522)  (213,333)
9,830 134,612 43 134,612 9,830
(40)  (140,446) 43 (140,446) (40)
(12,254) (10,390) (10,443) (12,294)
100,166 Tier 100,166
(6,873) (9,644) Tier (9,644) (6,873)
(92,467) (53,520) (70,836) (91,229)
34,033 (374,026) (379,074)  (278,761)
(22,151) 81,012 72,408 (4,156)
2,555,895 (780,339) (758,854) 2,552,059
264,855 2,820,750 2,861,003 308,944
(50,190)
2,555,895 (780,339) (758,854) 2,552,059
2,820,750 2,040,411 ) 2,051,959 2,861,003
2,769,681 2,013,278 2,019,245 2,822,615
51,082 27,120 D 32,714 38,375
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2
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2015
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37
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DNB

DNB

14

15

16
2017 IASB

IFRS 9
2014 7 IASB IFRS 9

2018 1 1 IAS 39
IFRS 9 49
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IFRS 15
IFRS 15 2014 5 IASB
5 IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS
IFRS 9
IFRS 15 IFRS 9
IFRS 15 2018 1 1 2016 9 EU
2018
IFRS 16
2016 1 IASB IFRS 16
IFRS 16 2017 10 EU 2019 1 1
IT
2019
17
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DNB 2017 10 1 Nordea
DNB 2016 9 3
DNB Finans 2017 1 1
DNB Finans
DNB Finans
DNB
Finans
DNB Finans 2016

DNB
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FICC
DNB
DNB
Tierl
11
DNB
DNB
1)

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
13,336 12,758 8,578 7,941 12,682 13,182 (76) 28 1,394 609 35,914 34,517
3,716 3,631 1,549 1,480 4,897 5,255 2,453 2,976 (190) 1,974 12,425 15,316
17,051 16,389 10,127 9,421 17,579 18,437 2,377 3,004 1,204 2,582 48,339 49,833
(7,626) (7,910) (3,420) (3,152) (6,360) (6,103)  (501)  (547) (1,554)  (699) (19,460) (18,413)
(106) (70)  (686)  (724)  (727)  (724) (&) (1)  (949)  (583) (2,469) (2,103)
(7,731) (7,980) (4,106) (3,876) (7,086) (6,828)  (502)  (548) (2,503) (1,283) (21,928) (20,516)
9,320 8,409 6,021 5,545 10,493 11,609 1,876 2,455  (1,299) 1,300 26,410 29,317

0 0 () 2 20 23 716 (44) 735 (19)

2) (207) 379 (413) (1,088) (1,800) (6,715) ®) 0 (2,428) (7,424)
14 6 (19) 8 4 14

9,113 8,788 5,621 4,465 8,694 4,925 1,876 2,455 (587) 1,241 24,718 21,874

(2,278) (2,197) (1,405) (1,116) (2,434) (1,330) (431) (614) 1,646 1,293  (4,903) (3,964)

Q) 0 3 Q) 2 @) 4

6,835 6,590 4,216 3,348 6,260 3,599 1,444 1,841 1,059 2,536 19,813 17,914
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DNB
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1)2) 747 706 291 266 410 500 39 30 45 @ 1,531 1,492
0 52 53
21 26 12 10 82 135 1,269 1,240 (556) (608) 829 803
768 732 303 276 492 635 1,308 1,270 (512) (565) 2,360 2,348
1)2) 403 397 207 190 326 379 44 14 0 (34) 980 946
41 41
327 298 71 60 94 172 1,257 1,249 (573) (608) 1,176 1,171
730 696 277 249 419 551 1,302 1,263 (572) (601) 2,156 2,158
3) 38 37 26 26 73 84 6 7 61 36 204 190
768 732 303 276 492 635 1,308 1,270 (512) (565) 2,360 2,348
1) DNB 2017 10 1 Nordea
2016 8
2016 12 31 2016 12
31
2)
2016 11 5
DNB DNB 2016
4 2.6 4.5
DNB DNB DNB
DNB
3)
_ I [l 2017
Tierl 16.0 2016 17.2
DNB
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
1) 45.3 48.7 40.5 41.1 40.3 37.0 21.1 18.3 45.4 41.2
12 31 2) 54.0 56.3 70.9 71.3 79.5 75.9 64.0 63.4
3) 18.1 17.6 16.4 12.7 7.7 4.3 21.1 25.4 10.5 10.3
1
2
3
[ [l
IT
IT
DNB
Vipps AS DNB 105 2017 3
754
DNB Vipps AS 52
Vipps AS
DNB DNB 49.9
7 3 DNB
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DNB
2017 2016
671 190
(78) @)
( 20 ) 81 61
716 44
( 20 ) (366) 436
(20 ) (672) (542)
(112) 1,190
185 34
4 (¢T))
21 ) (281) (136)
IT 74 205
Cresco (502)
(307) (137)
(587) 1,241
DNB
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
6,095 7,863 29,818 26,654 35,914 34,517
2,408 2,687 10,017 12,629 12,425 15,316
8,504 10,550 39,835 39,283 48,339 49,833
DNB
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
207 224 1,325 1,268 1,531 1,492
243 314 2,117 2,034 2,360 2,348
32 35 66 63 98 99

17
19
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3
DNB Tierl CET1
10
2017 CET1 152
DNB 16.1
80
2017 DNB CET1 16.2 20.6
15.7 20.0 2017 1,015
1,041
2017 DNB CET1 17.7 191
2017 23.0 24.8
2017 DNB
CET1 16.6 185
2017 DNB CET1
21.4 24.0
CET1
Tierl CET1 2017 6 30
3
2 1 DNB
6
CRR 429 2015 1 18
2017 6.9 7.1 DNB
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EU CRD CRR
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

168,104 169,720 203,685 190,078
183 (181)
(15,574) (15,574) (15,574) (15,574)
(284) (439) Tierl (439) (284)
152,246 153,708 Tierl 187,856 174,039
(2,900) (2,404) (2,559) (2,951)
(224) (584) (454) (482)
(699) (1,110) (1,984) (946)
(15,804) (5,084)
(6) (951) IRB (1,915) (153)
479) (449) (AVA) (720) (786)
107 123 123 (90)
(580) (481) (DVA) (113) (159)
147,467 147,851 Tierl 164,431 163,388
17,471 15,574 Tierl 15,574 17,471
164,938 163,425  Tierl 180,005 180,860
5,602 5,361 5,361 5,602
21,249 23,897 23,897 21,249
26,851 29,258  Tier2 29,258 26,851
191,789 192,683 209,263 207,711
773,244 835,986 1,014,683 1,040,888
61,860 66,879 81,175 83,271
19.1 17.7 Tierl ) 16.2 15.7
21.3 19.5  Tierl 17.7 17.4
24.8 23.0 20.6 20.0
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IRB
DNB IRB Finanstilsynet
DNB
EAD1)
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
IRB
716,183 581,120 54.9 319,273 25,542 23,407
SL 10,551 9,615 51.5 4,948 396 311
100,735 100,735 24.5 24,677 1,974 1,593
99,660 85,663 25.5 21,812 1,745 1,901
9,613 9,613 81.4 7,827 626 937
IRB 936,742 786,746 48.1 378,536 30,283 28,150
84,822 53,137 0.1 74 6 6
596,082 412,768 22.9 94,629 7,570 6,194
102,578 81,346 93.1 75,735 6,059 6,009
8,187 7,661 39.2 3,004 240 210
102,158 35,316 74.5 26,300 2,104 2,018
124,991 124,991 100.2 125,224 10,018 9,639
16,076 16,076 147.6 23,725 1,898 820
1,034,894 731,294 a7.7 348,692 27,895 24,896
1,971,636 1,518,040 47.9 727,228 58,178 53,045
20,253 1,620 1,855
262 21 25
23 2 6
CVA 11,098 888 974
31,637 2,531 2,860
77,122 6,170 5,955
835,986 66,879 61,860
835,986 66,879 61,860
1) EAD
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DNB
EAD1)

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

IRB

964,724 790,118 55.7 439,960 35,197 32,619

sL 11,582 10,645 53.3 5,676 454 356

748,668 748,668 22.1 165,245 13,220 12,465

99,660 85,663 25.5 21,812 1,745 1,901

9,613 9,613 81.4 7,827 626 937

IRB 1,834,246 1,644,706 38.9 640,519 51,241 48,279

107,116 76,481 0.1 74 6 7

286,838 142,630 29.0 41,400 3,312 2,243

174,572 141,048 87.0 122,703 9,816 8,799

58,925 56,340 49.0 27,588 2,207 1,805

117,871 47,773 77.0 36,765 2,941 2,939

8,049 8,048 102.9 8,281 662 703

M

10,880 10,880 58.9 6,410 513 859

764,251 483,198 50.3 243,221 19,458 17,395

2,598,497 2,127,905 41.5 883,739 70,699 65,674

13,997 1,120 1,169

262 21 25

23 2 6

CVA 5,867 469 493

20,150 1,612 1,692

89,234 7,139 6,675

993,123 79,450 74,042

2) 21,560 1,725 9,229

1,014,683 81,175 83,271

13 EAD

I 80
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AA
DNB

° DNB

DNB 3

DNB
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DNB
16

DNB

DNB 6

DNB
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DNB
2017 16
DNB
DNB
DNB
DNB 99.9

2017 99.97
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48

DNB
2017 12 31

Y

150,157
580,973 192,707 39
730,782 264,653 62,769 219,991

271,607
146,953 1,753 95,973

21,630
1,902,102 264,653 257,229 316,003
83,291 9,995 185 36,808
488,943 18,444 218 50,764

4,103
576,338 28,439 403 87,572
2,478,440 293,092 257,631 403,575

DNB
2016 12 31

1

206,982
549,093 153,938 23
690,060 240,109 49,187 217,055

236,120
170,317 919 123991

12,726
1,865,298 240,109 204,044 341,069
88,679 8,543 162 33410
479,792 16,278 2 51,777

3,861
572,332 24,821 255 85,187
2,437,630 264,930 204,299 426,256
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DNB
2017 12 31
1
150,569
237,849 192,707 39
1,531,345 925,151 63,698 297,158
266,642
132,649 1,753 95,368
7,361
2,326,415 925,151 258,158 392,565
86,832 9,999 185 36,952
589,623 85,699 218 76,721
4,170
680,625 95,697 403 113,673
3,007,040 1,020,848 258,560 506,238
DNB
2016 12 31
1)
207,279
174,908 153,938 23
1,492,268 885,859 50,295 330,159
230,647
157,957 919 123,972
7,414
2,270,472 885,859 205,152 454,153
92,012 8,753 162 33,708
606,122 79,219 @ 78,869
3,985 18
702,119 87,972 255 112,595
2,972,591 973,831 205,407 566,748
1)
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2017 12 31
° 3,251
DNB OECD
[ ]
°
[ ]
°
° 111,669 DNB
DNB
6 7
8 11
DNB

DNB
IRBA IRB
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PD
10
DNB 1)
1 0.01 0.10 Aaa A3 AAA A-
2 0.10 0.25 Baal Baa2 BBB+ BBB
3 0.25 0.50 Baa3 BBB-
4 0.50 0.75 Bal BB+
5 0.75 125 Ba2 BB
6 1.25 2.00
7 2.00 3.00 Ba3 BB-
8 3.00 5.00 Bl B+
9 5.00 8.00 B2 B
10 8.00 B3, CaalC B-, CCC/IC
1) DNB 1 10
DNB
1 4 418,622 57,110 321,435 797,167
5 7 193,767 12,899 50,734 257,400
8 10 64,129 9,015 12,021 85,164
22,048 1,885 1514 25,447
2016 12 31 D 698,565 80,909 385,703 1,165,178
1 4 471,799 50,560 316,374 838,734
5 7 195,270 17,877 51,057 264,204
8 10 52,415 6,291 8,333 67,039
18,691 1,582 1,382 21,655
2017 12 31 Y 738,175 76,309 377,146 1,191,631
1)
1
2017 2016
0.28 0.33
1)
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DNB
1 4 1,016,937 58,948 469,223 1,545,108
5 7 367,157 14,091 70,838 452,086
8 10 88,700 9,946 29,563 128,209
30,551 1,903 1,702 34,156
2016 12 31 1) 1,503,345 84,889 571,326 2,159,559
1 4 1,088,520 51,680 456,684 1,596,884
5 7 356,199 18,830 68,609 443,637
8 10 71,687 6,903 24,784 103,374
24,454 1,586 1,523 27,564
2017 12 31 1) 1,540,860 78,998 551,600 2,171,458
1)
)
2017 2016
0.23 0.27
1)
DNB
DNB
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DNB

DNB

DNB

DNB DNB
CRD IV 2017 37
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DNB
DNB
8
DNB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
/ /
10 29 694 2,410 723 1,933
30 59 470 452 442 423
60 89 23 173 11 159
90 113 2,747 213 1,474
1,300 5,782 1,389 3,989
DNB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
/ /
10 29 765 8,579 753 7,210
30 59 496 1,121 467 1,149
60 89 34 349 14 430
90 130 3,503 222 3,265
1,425 13,552 1,456 12,054
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33

DNB

oTC
DNB

CSA
CSA
CSA DNB
FRA LCH
DNB
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
50 28 11 1,122 2,330
1 0 3 217
1
1) (1,087)
(23) (11) (382) (335)
(©))
168 w
28 18 12 31 911 1,122
1) 2016
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
20,959 17,185 55,373 69,487
20,959 17,185 55,373 69,487
91 56 D 88 121
(94) (35) D (33) (111)
1)
2016 12 144 2017 65
2017
80 2016
45 2017 12
281 2017
2016 12
310 2017 410
DNB
2017 2016
317 2017 12 600
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6
2017 12 31 NB

165,452 196 157,486 323,134
44,617 10,075 14,546 69,238
159,381 4,387 33,835 197,604
45,837 18,169 29473 93,479
64,787 5758 33,588 104,133
33,111 4,443 20,538 58,002
16,080 5,027 8,517 29,624
36,629 8,429 13,206 58,263
56,904 10,110 32,737 99,751
20,137 7,545 15,941 43,623
17,238 139 5,032 22,409
5,787 365 887 7,039
4,632 43 876 5,551
13,439 168 5677 19,284
48,847 947 4,808 54,602
732,878 75,801 377,146 1,185,826
(2,096) (2,096)
(404) (404)

730,782 75,398 377,146 1,183,326
580,973 7,490 111,797 700,261
580,973 7,490 111,797 700,261

2016 12 31 DNB
137,962 225 178,953 317,140
50,542 9,623 14,768 74,934
148,661 2,860 26,599 178,120
46,439 22,897 32,202 101,628
64,094 5471 21,176 90,741
32,238 4,484 21,965 58,687
20,763 3,964 9,161 33,888
38,927 9,703 15,419 64,049
47,964 12,724 28,932 89,619
26,726 6,709 17,179 50,614
15,323 199 5,835 21,358
5,713 409 1,853 7,975
4,616 58 1,067 5,741
12,051 159 5,875 18,085
40,829 898 4,628 46,354
692,848 80,383 385,703 1,158,934
(2,787) (2,787)
(446) (446)
690,060 79,937 385,703 1,155,701
549,089 8,296 94,089 651,474
4 4
549,003 8,296 94,089 651,478
EU NACE Rev.2
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2017 12 31 DNB
778,167 216 224,399 1,002,781
78314 10,135 28,454 116,902
198,453 4,387 33,775 236,616
76,051 18,596 59,998 154,645
90,512 5,946 44,396 140,855
39,521 4,667 26,055 70,242
22,599 5,792 28,927 57,319
59,740 8,741 28,454 96,935
60,573 10,482 34,068 105,123
25,601 7,859 22,058 55,518
20,390 139 5,546 26,074
7,389 365 1,219 8973
4,867 43 1,912 6,822
15,895 168 8,759 24,822
56,428 952 3,581 60,961
1,534,502 78,488 551,600 2,164,589
(3.157) (3.157)
(408) (408)
1,531,345 78,079 551,600 2,161,024
237,849 8,344 38,023 284,216
237,849 8,344 38,023 284,216

2016 12 31 ) DNB
731,134 272 241,774 973,179
106,148 9,871 34,523 150,542
189,796 2,888 26,910 219,594
77,520 23413 68,529 169,462
87,293 5,688 31,325 124,305
38,442 4,928 28,283 71,652
29,074 5,034 33,219 67,327
62,638 9,885 27,711 100,234
52,221 13332 31,553 97,105
31,179 7,186 24,014 62,378
16,979 202 6,484 23,664
7,451 420 2,178 10,049
4,869 60 2,212 7141
14,213 279 9,732 24,224
47,795 903 2,879 51,577
1,496,749 84,360 571,326 2,152,434
(4,481) (4,481)
(455) (455)
1,492,268 83,904 571,326 2,147,498
174,897 7,653 34,79 217,347
11 1
174,908 7,653 34,796 217,357

1)
EU NACE Rev.2
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2017 12 31 DNB
149,675 207,458 11,560 269,732 638,425
203,123 2 16,767 87,550 307,443
104,520 76 8,042 38,137 150,775
116,334 95 7,390 36,077 159,896
573,652 207,631 43,760 431,497 1,256,539
61,503 67,696 6,610 21,898 157,707
1,150 125,681 3,299 2,099 132,229
56,423 100,389 5,427 23,549 185,788
738 10,169 202 57 11,256
860 920 1,002 86 2,866
120,674 304,855 16,629 47,689 489,847
1,163 41,776 13,066 3,023 59,028
i) 14,557 1 4,103 3,323 21,984
10,543 1,448 1,865 1,432 15,288
26,263 43,225 19,035 7,778 96,300
1 771 11,555 675 82 13,083
1,060 62 2 1,124
5,122 13,391 1,194 818 20,526
6,953 25,008 1,870 902 34,733
732 241 1,708 103 2,785
1 4,604 13 290 975 5,883
732,878 580,973 83,291 488,943 1,886,086
(2,096) (2,096)
(404) (404)
730,782 580,973 82,888 488,943 1,883,587

1)
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2016 12 31 DNB
140,910 201,607 11,519 256,544 610,580
183,345 484 18,864 94,431 297,123
96,868 4 8,583 43525 148,980
108,627 107 6,984 34,925 150,645
529,750 202,202 45,950 429,425 1,207,328
53,188 38,473 6,354 11,097 109,112
3,278 112,999 2,485 2,817 121,579
55,244 89,269 5,260 22,491 172,264
721 10,101 208 68 11,098
703 15,631 1,090 44 17,469
113,134 266,473 15,397 36,517 431,520
2,790 53,551 14,959 6,077 77,377
) 17,149 86 3,904 2,364 23,503
14,526 1,565 2,288 1,815 20,194
34,465 55,202 21,151 10,256 121,074
i) 1,742 17,686 1,021 592 21,041
1,609 37 2 1,648
5,833 6,674 2,765 1,575 16,847
9,184 24,397 3,785 2,169 39,535
854 500 2,002 35 3,391
1 4532 27 393 1,391 6,343
691,919 548,801 88,679 479,792 1,809,191
(2,787) (2,787)
929 202 (446) 775
690,060 549,093 88,233 479,792 1,807,179

1)
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2017 12 31 DNB
312,107 8,240 11,554 209,690 541,590
504,438 2 16,767 120,203 641,411
198,797 0 8,059 49,110 255,966
209,590 95 7,390 44,501 261,577
1,224,932 8,337 43,770 423,505 1,700,544
91,342 27,478 6,611 49,932 175,364
18,766 87,287 4,127 15,762 125,942
80,423 97,592 5,793 34,223 218,030
17,593 29 1,535 2,468 21,625
1,201 922 1,002 253 3,378
209,325 213,308 19,069 102,637 544,340
32,625 963 14,138 48,770 96,496
i) 20,968 1 4,104 4,878 29,950
13,582 1,448 1,868 3,731 20,629
67,175 2,411 20,110 57,379 147,075
1 4,243 85 675 184 5,187
1,588 62 3 1,653
5,888 13,391 1,196 1,205 21,680
11,719 13,538 1,871 1,391 28,520
5,910 241 1,708 982 8,841
1 15,441 13 303 3,728 19,485
1,534,502 237,849 86,832 589,623 2,448,805
(3,157) (3,157)
(408) (408)
1,531,345 237,849 86,423 589,623 2,445,240

1)
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2016 12 31 D DNB
288,216 6,935 11,494 211,067 517,712
477,693 484 18,864 124,944 621,985
191,155 10 8,588 53,872 253,625
201,374 107 6,984 42,930 251,396
1,158,437 7,536 45,932 432,814 1,644,719
82,005 5173 6,355 34,497 128,030
17,936 68,518 2,519 16,360 105,334
84,426 82,333 5,635 31,587 203,981
16,444 323 813 2,355 19,935
968 885 1,425 5,483 8,760
201,779 157,232 16,747 90,282 466,040
43,688 1,090 16,953 67,207 128,938
2) 26,269 86 3,904 3,629 33,887
18,128 1,569 2,291 4,697 26,685
88,085 2,745 23,148 75,533 189,510
2 8,680 39 1,021 217 9,957
2,525 37 180 2,742
6,674 6,614 2,766 1,988 18,042
17,880 6,690 3,787 2,386 30,742
9,964 500 2,002 552 13,018
2) 18,634 27 397 4,556 23,614
1,494,779 174,729 92,012 606,122 2,367,643
(4,481) (4,481)
1,970 179 (455) 1,694
1,492,268 174,908 91,557 606,122 2,364,855
1)
2)
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1) 2)

DNB

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

1,937 1,871 (578) (797) 1,358 1,074
1,848 3517 (946)  (1,436) 902 2,081
1,206 1,787 (518) (564) 688 1,223
1,972 3,586 (862)  (1,181) 1,110 2,405
936 1,453 (469) (682) 467 771
2,158 1,098 (761) (370) 1,397 728
3,805 4,368 (1,038) (744) 2,767 3,625
2,166 3,341 (554)  (1,203) 1,612 2,138
952 1,178 (400) (488) 552 691
1,596 23 (867) (13) 730 10
27 61 (16) (16) 11 a4
43 49 (24) 22) 24 27
68 50 (30) (28) 37 22
0 0 0 0
2 6 o) @) 1 4
18721 22,389 (7064)  (7547) 11657 14,843
18721 22,389 (7064)  (7547) 11657 14,843
1,920 1,953 1,920 1,953
20640 24,342 (7064)  (7547) 13576 16,796
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

2,724 3,898 (695)  (1,617) 2,029 2,281
2787 4,995 (1407)  (2.247) 1,381 2,748
1,220 2,760 (531) (934) 689 1,826
2,892 5,800 (1L112)  (1,814) 1,780 3,986

047 1,508 (@77 (712) 469 797
2177 1,255 (779) (465) 1,398 790
3,805 4,368 (1,038) (744) 2,767 3,625

144/386



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

3334 5,528 (1391) (1623 1,943 3,905
1,049 1,446 (494) (697), 556 749
2571 539 (1,228) (154) 1,343 386
27 61 (16) (16) 1 44
48 104 (24) (43) 24 61
68 157 @3y (50) 38 107
0 0 © 0 0
2 29 @ (10) 1 19
23652 32,450 (9224) (11,126) 14427 21323
23652 32450 (9224) (11,126 14427 21323
2,840 4,320 2,840 4,320
26491 36,770 (9.224) (11,126) 17267 25644
1)
EU
NACE Rev.2
2) 2016 DNB 2016 8
2016 12
2,256
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DNB
2017 2016
1) 1
(1,312) (1,312 (873) (873
(2,964) (218) (3182 (3,839) (420) (4,260)
(4,276) (218) (4,494) 4713 (420) (5,133)
1515 212 1,727 540 74 614
2 155 155 957 957
(2,606) ®) (2612 (3,216) (346) (3,562)
675 675 (1,117) (1,117)
(1,931) ® (1,937) (4333 (346) (4679
2371 54 2,425 1,278 1,278
DNB
2017 2016
1) 1
(1,662) (1,662) (1,359) (1,359)
(4,227) (218) (4,445) (5,490) (420) (5,910)
(5,889) (218) (6,106) (6,849) (420) (7,269)
1,950 212 2,162 013 76 990
2 249 249 999 999
(3,690) (6) (3,696) (4,937) (344) (5,280)
1,268 1,268 (2149 (2144)
(2,422 (6) (2/428) (7,080) (344) (7.424)
3232 54 3,286 2,803 2,803
1)
2) 2016

Lindorff Capital AS
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DNB
2017 2016
1)

(560) 269 106 (185) (581) 32 910 361
(582) 164 12 (406) (1,000) 52 12 (936)
(152) 187 13 49 (144) 74 12 (57)
(274) 362 5 % (891) 123 1 (768)
373 228 2 (143) (338) 149 1 (187)
(885) 114 1 (769) (128) 42 8 (78
(435) 84 (352) (716) 0 (716)
(355) 209 6 (139) (1,011) 16 3 (992)
(125) 99 3 (23) (297) 42 2 (253)

(738) 0 5 (733) @) 52 6 56
2 3 0 2 (10) 1 0 9

(9) 4 1 @ @ 5 1 5

(4 1 0 ® (13) 24 0 11
()] (0) ) 0 (©]
(1) 1 0 0 (€] 0 0 (6]
(4,494) 1,727 155 (2,612) (5133) 614 957 (3,562)
675 (1,117)
(4,499 1,727 155 (1,987) (5133 614 957 (4,679)
(218) 212 () (420) 74 (346)

DNB
2017 2016
1)

(715) 401 174 (140) (845) 210 942 308
(782 294 12 (476) (1,555) 52 12 (1,491)
(176) 203 23 50 (227) 180 14 (33)
(308) 487 6 186 (1,258) 153 2 (1,104)
(387) 233 11 (143) (344) 158 5 (181)
(896) 122 2 (772) (145) 53 10 (82
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(435) 84 (352) (819) 0 (819)
(1,33) 216 11 (1,104) (1,554 38 4 (1512
(132) 102 4 (26) (325) 55 4 (266)
(926) 2 5 (920) (148) 52 6 (90)
©)] 3 0 2 (10) 1 0 9
©) 5 1 (4 (7 7 1 1
7 8 1 1 (30) 27 0 ©)
0) (0) 0) 0 (0)
@ 2 0 0 2 2 0 1
(6,106) 2,162 249 (3,696) (7,269) 990 999 (5,280)
1,268 (2,144)
(6,106) 2,162 249 (2,428) (7,269) 990 999 (7.:424)
(218) 212 (6) (420) 76 (344)
1) 2016
Lindorff Capital AS
EU NACE Rev.2
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DNB
2017 2016
11 (9,808) (526)  (10,334) (6,779) (176)  (6,955)
(1,620) (105)  (1,726) (2,833) (403)  (3,236)
(1,344) (112)  (1,456) (1,006) (17 (1,023)
1,515 212 1,727 540 74 614
2,371 54 2,425 1,278 1,278
675 675 (1,117) (1,117)
(441) (30) (470) 111 (4 107
12 31 (8,652) (508)  (9,160) (9,808) (526)  (10,334)
(6,151) (508)  (6,658) (6,646) (526)  (7,173)
(406) (406) (374) (374)
(2,096) (2,096) (2,787) (2,787)
DNB
2017 2016
11 (13,541) (529)  (14,070) (11,664) (181)  (11,845)
(1,855) (105)  (1,960) (4,012) (403) (4,415
(2.173) (112)  (2,285) (1,478) (17  (1,495)
1,765 212 1,977 913 76 990
3,232 54 3,286 2,803 2,803
1,271 1,271 (2,144) (2,144)
1,649 1,649
(568) (30) (598) 392 (4 388
12 31 (11,870) (511)  (12,381) (13,541) (529) (14,070
(8,234) (511)  (8,745) (8,566) (529)  (9,095)
(480) (480) (494) (494)
(3,157) (3,157) (4,481) (4,481)
12

149/386



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB
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2017 7.6
2016 5.7
DNB
85
14 1
1 DNB
DNB
DNB
12 31
DNB 1
1 3 1
1 3 1 5 5

2017 12 31
392 117 350 175 194 94
51 47 52 23 53 77
42 117 48 7 2 129
3 6 10 1 2 3
33 14 6 27 5 21
17 20 13 7 12 46

2016 12 31
494 152 227 765 653 227
91 14 357 19 82 179
72 3 32 2 20 22
2 38 11 6 1 55
15 6 36 33 22 28
8 15 35 9 16 55

1)
DNB
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12 31
15
30
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1,071 1,212 1,213 1,068
(320) 140 140 (316)
an 52 52 (16)
20 7 7 19
20 (13) (13) 20
14 4 4 14
6 9 9 6
121 165 165 122
914 1575 1575 916

15

FRA
DNB
oTC
oTC

DNB

°
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e FRA
°
°
DNB
°
oTC
1
DNB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
FRA 1,000,324 219 263 868,943 415 363
3,215,991 68,653 64,064 3,110,072 85,127 78,776
orc 49,133 597 591 46,508 757 725
orc
4,274,448 69,469 64,918 4,025,522 86,299 79,864
24,027 6,736 5,614 79,463 2,689 1,125
1,258,893 29,322 66,873 1,699,372 41,217 60,058
orc 25,929 1,454 1,158 32,597 533 330
1,308,849 37,512 73,645 1,811,431 44,439 61,513
4,928 2,068 1,291 2,057 2,156 1,528
orc 1,321 164 2 2,104 163 2
orc 6,249 2,232 1,313 4,161 2,319 1,530
523 0 732 0
3423 126 91 4573 106 77
3,946 126 91 5,305 106 77
10,195 2,359 1,405 9,466 2,425 1,607
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33,235 2,669 2,334 30,682 3,542 2,738
33,235 2,669 2,334 30,682 3,542 2,738
34,944 37,232 33,612 36,072

5,626,727 146,953 179,534 5,877,101 170,317 181,794

133,849 8,606 1,210 151,044 10,795 1,189
8,056 738 10,033 541
551 471 762 648
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DNB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
FRA 1,009,324 219 263 868,943 415 363
2,830,178 66,054 9,011 2,777,620 83,109 39,906
oTC 49,133 597 591 45,882 757 725
oTC 57 8 8
3,888,693 66,879 9,873 3,692,446 84,280 40,994
27,695 6,798 5,630 80,958 2,717 1,126
889,154 17,775 54,584 1,349,007 30,891 48,470
oTC 25,929 1,454 1,158 32,597 533 330
942,778 26,027 61,373 1,462,562 34,141 49,926
4,928 2,068 1,291 2,057 2,156 1,528
oTC 1,336 344 22 2,104 163 2
oTC 6,264 2,412 1,314 4,161 2,319 1,530
523 0 732 0
3,423 126 91 4,573 106 7
3,946 126 91 5,305 106 7
10,210 2,538 1,405 9,466 2,425 1,607
33,235 2,669 2,334 30,473 3,541 2,707
33,235 2,669 2,334 30,473 3,541 2,707
34,537 37,035 33,570 35,756

4,874,916 132,649 112,020 5,194,946 157,957 130,990

466,911 26,331 3,265 453,134 33,038 2,195
- 25,781 2,794 32,275 1,546
- 551 471 762 648
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DNB

2017 672
2016 542

DNB
DNB
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DNB
DNB
2017 12 64.0 63.4 DNB
2017 12 130.9
2017
2016 2017
2017
2017
DNB
2017 2017 1
2017
ECB
2017 11 ECB
2017 2016
MREL
2017 2016
2017 DNB
2017
LCR 100
12 EUR LCR 191 usb LCR
137 NOK LCR 93 LCR 117
2017 12

4.0 3.9 DNB 5
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2017 12 31 n DNB
1 3 1
1 1 5 5

151,145 151,145
239,408 82,409 36,706 216,254 6,163 580,941
200,050 65,949 44,986 207,952 214,685 (209%) 731525
62,294 7,268 17,288 153,903 21,077 261,831
54 9,559 9,613
130,459 130,459
2,042 11 2,053
652,897 157,669 98,980 578,174 251,485 128362 1,867,566
178,782 50,026 68,326 26,668 332,803
956,493 956,493
79,948 49,699 50,040 133,902 7,083 320,671
458 3,836 177 4471
29,456 29,456
1,215,681 112,561 118,543 160,570 36,539 1,643,894
682,189 398,787 240,397 574,143 324,822 2,220,338
680,003 399,407 244,379 596,830 334,168 2,254,787
277 1,023 (866) 3,497 (107) 3,824
2,463 403 (4,848) (19,190) (9.453) (30,625)

2016 12 31 n DNB

1 3 1

1 1 5 5
207,923 1 207,934
203,711 79,263 18,369 240,115 7,567 549,024
159,952 81,835 61,872 199,950 189,983 (2787) 690,805
4,242 10,100 36,264 152,121 21,035 223,762
928 11,831 12,760
124,406 124,406
3217 3,217
575,828 174,416 116,515 593,113 230,416 121,619 1,811,908
223,275 49,225 41,800 24,402 2 338,705
920,557 920,557
61,024 63,692 64,251 121,902 18,499 329,368
1574 3,602 264 5,440
10,898 17,467 738 29,102
1,206,430 127,417 106,315 163,771 19,239 1,623,172
477,590 228,576 289,363 574,751 342,803 1,913,083
473,816 230,783 285,192 586,500 356,709 1,933,001
187 1,474 (911) 4,190 805 5745
3,961 (733) 3,260 (7,559) (13,101) (14,173)
2017 2016
12 31 12 31

317,499 323,827
98,075 97,495
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2017 12 31 n DNB
1 3 1

1 1 5 5
151,593 151,593
99,095 75,078 38,440 17,556 7,671 237,839
269,464 75,703 56,070 274,360 859,859 (3157) 1,532,298
64,131 7,268 18,996 157,433 21,077 268,905
54 9,559 9,613
18,479 18,479
2,042 11 2,053
584,282 160,091 113,506 449,414 898,166 15322 2,220,781
76,437 63,038 68,308 14,699 222,482
980,342 980,342
98,491 71,585 77,254 419,121 95,779 762,230
458 4,136 195 4,789
29,456 29,456
1,155,729 138,759 145,757 433,820 125,235 1,999,299
663,489 376,719 216,187 383,071 213,472 1,852,938
661,310 378,009 221,220 393,222 213,788 1,867,549
818 2,103 3,205 19,652 9,787 35,565
2,997 813 (1,828) 9,501 9,471 20,954

2016 12 31 n DNB

1 3 1

1 1 5 5
208,252 11 208,263
120,011 42,484 5,270 7,116 174,881
180,074 92,243 79,533 321,266 824,516 (4481) 1,493,151
5,225 9,087 32,070 151,198 20,676 218,257
928 11,831 12,760
9,770 9,770
3217 3,217
513,563 147,031 116,884 480,508 857,024 5280 2,120,300
137,015 23535 22,922 28,125 211,597
945,587 945,587
73913 61,765 104,186 401,819 99,232 740,915
1574 3,890 275 5,739
10,898 17,467 738 29,102
1,158,089 100,088 127,383 447,410 99,969 1,932,940
458,963 224,167 247,951 388,303 231,798 1,551,182
456,644 226,589 248,396 404,368 238,077 1,574,076
1,074 2,357 3434 20,229 9,296 36,390
3,393 (65) 2,989 4,164 3,017 13,49
2017 2016

12 31 12 31

1 388,560 390,001
1 208,950 216,295
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DNB
2017 2016
1) 1)

3,363 1,948 5311 2,074 1,804 3,879

816 22,909 23,724 730 22,657 23,387

5 839 844 10 612 622

4,123 4,123 4,457 4,457

157 157 173 173

1 281 282 1 258 260

(1,945) 4628 2,683 (2,331) 4,715 2,385

6,363 30,763 37,126 4,942 30,221 35,163
(2,829) (273) (3,102) (1,958) (180) (2,138)
(799) (6,389) (7,187) (567) (5,805) (6,373)
(2,247) (1,546) (3.792) (1.822) (1,860) (3,683)
(75) (374) (449) (35) (493) (529)
(548) (548) (638) (638)

2 2,845 (476) 2,369 2,385 (581) 1,804
(3,105) (9,604) (12,709) (1,997) (9,558) (11,555)

3,258 21,158 24,416 2,944 20,663 23,608

DNB
2017 2016
1) 1)

2,287 426 2,712 1,105 234 1,339

2,164 42,861 45,025 2,556 42,179 44,735

4 1,169 1,172 1 909 911

3,999 3,999 4,405 4,405

157 157 173 173

2 298 300 5 289 294

(1,939) 2,973 1,033 (2,327) 3,356 1,029

6,516 47,883 54,399 5,746 47,141 52,887
(2212) (254) (2,465) (1,542) (163) (1,705)
(799) (6,772) (7,571) (567) (6,135) (6,703)
(3,759) (7,381) (11,139) (3,502) (8,883) (12,385)
(75) (377 (452) (35) (496) (532)
(637) (637) (768) (768)

2 3873 (94) 3,779 3,893 (7 3,722

161/386

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

(2970)  (15515)  (18485) (L753)  (16616) (18,369

3,546 32,368 35,914 3,992 30,525 34,517

1)
2)
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DNB
()W

2017 2016 2017 2016
0.60 0.42 885,039 926,269
3.44 348 713,568 690,265
1.92 2.04 215,068 217,986
0.80 0.54 386,765 392,710
071 0.64 1,007,971 995,959
115 0.96 330,519 383,150

DNB
()W

2017 2016 2017 2016
051 0.23 531,989 579,604
3.04 3.01 1,519,425 1,514,319
1.90 2,04 210,336 216,417
0.88 0.60 280,012 284,899
0.73 0.64 1,033,519 1,044,615
1.45 1.48 770,705 834,669

1)
DNB DNB

2016 2017 2017 2016
3,451 3,728 3,960 3,731
342 376 421 406
319 357 378 344
573 689 789 616
575 612 820 767
23 19 19 23
494 438 453 491
372 396 416 397
1,150 1,121
589 727 822 732
6,739 7,340 9,228 8,628
(1,754) (2,079) (2,109) (1,795)
(15) 12) 12) (15)
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(170) (180) (183) @172)
@173) (148) (150) (176)
73) (135) (135) @73)
) 49) (49) G7)
87 D) 13) (26)
(114) (116) (116) 114)
(481) (506) 577) (567)
(2.924) (3.296) (3.344) (2.994)
3,815 4,044 5,884 5,634
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20
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
8,231 5,322 3,266 7,897
(1,112) (283) (294) (1,185)
440 89 92 440
52 @) (40) 55
47 235 182 71
7,658 5,286 3,206 7,278
74 26 152 (465)
(568) (368) (349) (629)
761 32) 26 (79)
36 150 93 52
302 (224) (78) (1,121)
(2,788) (3,475) (9,750) (4,245)
0 0 w ()
2,985 3,398 10,149 3,867
196 an D2 397 (380)
554 884 909 595
124 74 78 133
8,834 5,942 4,513 6.506
1)
( )
2) DNB DNB DNB
11
21
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(6,138) (6,289) ) (7,772) (7,622)
(968) (1,219) (1,428) (1,190)
(872) (1,205) (1,310) (968)
(656) (315) (335) (693)
(614) (612) (715) (733)
(9,248) (9,639) (11,561) (11,206)
(5,206) (5,250) *) (6,196) (6,197)
(785) (761) (1,295) ,275)
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 D 2016 D
7,618 7,449 12 31 8,951 10,801
998 996 1,396 3,205
7,301 7,171 12 31 8,544 10,366
980 979 1,376 3,166
7,674 7,499 10,279 10,793
7,356 7,198 9,848 10,372
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(1,474) (1,921) D (2,011) (1,575)
(1,886) (1,969) IT (2,119) (2,087)
(179) (158) (193) (222)
(25) @7 (60) (74)
(567) (564) (798) (804)
173) (212) 272) (225)
(198) (204) (204) (198)
(49) (52) (63) (61)
1,112) (1,097) 2 (1,261) (1,285)
(63) (61) (81) 92)
(391) (638) (837) (585)
(6,118) (6,904) (7,899) (7,207)
1)2017 DNB 1,390
DNB 1,388
2016 1,038 1,037
2)2017 DNB 945
DNB 1,012
2016 953 1,020
23
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(1,447) (1,429) (1,458) (1,477)
(335) (338) (417) (470)
1) (42) 11
(542) D (545) )
(258) ®) ®) (140)
(2,050) (2,318) (2,469) (2,103)
1) 2017 502
37 38
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DNB Norwegian Public Service Pension Fund
Postbanken 330
0 71 7
71 12 15
12
2015 2017
67
DNB
12 3
12 6 25
6 12 66
(CPA)
Public Service Pension Fund
CPA 1G 7.1G

170
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12 31
DNB
2017 2016
(452) (419)
(116) (139)
84 89
46) 216
@ @
(531) (252)
(88) D)
42) “2)
(544) (495)
(1,205) (872)
DNB
2017 2016
(483) (432)
(118) 141)
84 89
1) 220
@ @
(559) (265)
(€D (98)
46) 45)
(609) (560)
(1,310) (968)
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
4,991 5,038 5,119 5,074
419 452 483 432
139 116 118 141
209 111 112 216
22 22 ()
(329) 46 48 (344)
(236) (273) @17 (242)
(155) 13 18 (157)
5,038 5,526 5,642 5,119
2016 2017 2017 2016
2,798 2,584 2,603 2,826
89 84 84 89
(©) (O) 5) (15)
(113) 7 (124)
(62) (36) (36) (62)
92 79 80 110
(114) (131) (132) (115)
@ @ @ @
(106) 46 47 (105)
2,584 2,620 2,647 2,603
2,454 2,906 2,995 2,516
2017 12
DNB
() +1 0 -1
(
33-34 5-8 2
34-35 5-8 2
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(695) (9,603) (5,850) (8,406)
(4,528) 6,535 947 4,442
5,223) (3,068) (4,903) (3,964)
20,012 21,978 24,718 21,874
(5,003) (5,275) - 24 2016 25% (5,932) (5,469)
(121) (142)
(165) 10
357 749 749 357
(1,023) 1,450 D 604 509
451 160 172 352
2 (23) 123
() 94) 18
) (24) 72) 136
(5,223) (3,068) (4,903) (3,964)
26% 14% 20% 18%
48 (O ) 52
171 (1,449)
48 (O) 162 (@,397)
1) EU
EEA
3

2) ( )

24

2017 24
12 45

24
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
6,308 1,826 11 (990) (5,323)
(4,528) 6,535 947 4,442
47 ) ) 52
@ (16) (38) (28)
(133)
1,826 8,341 12 31 (90) (990)
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
(662) (814) 72 54
(1,781) (2,964) 2
1,404 1,988
8,278 3,030
750 663
(148) (245) 2
574 224
8,415 1,882 74 56
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
5 D) 722 853
1,821 2,964
(5,099) (6,937)
) (39) 4,400 5,804
54 94 17 (585)
261 857 187 419
441 482 467) (136)
757 1,392 847 2,382
1)
2) 2017 2016
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DNB

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
660 660 113 517 517 88
660 660 113 517 517 88
1) 461 136
574 224

DNB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
20 20 5
660 660 113 517 517 88
2,005 1,491 329 2,311 1,577 394
2,685 2,171 447 2,828 2,094 482
D 461 136
908 618
DNB
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2017 12 31 DNB
1)
143,463 3,251 4,434 151,147
348,588 4,863 227,522 580,973
55,839 12,322 662,622 730,782
169,639 92,355 261,994
5,508 802 6,310
138,346 8,606 146,953
9,613 9,613
9,007 9,007
115,142 115,142
22,092 22,092
861,384 113,592 8,606 1,040,819 9,613 2,034,015
285,817 4,657 42,324 332,798
41,692 14,090 900,744 956,525
178,324 1,210 179,534
158,693 9,751 157,727 326,171
6,214 44,889 51,103
2,873 26,666 29,538
2) 670,739 31,371 1,210 1,172,349 1,875,669
1)
2) 30,933
2016 12 31 DNB
1)
187,462 15,824 4,648 207,934
340,736 4,907 203,450 549,093
42,974 16,052 631,034 690,060
150,169 73,191 223,360
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4,297 881 5,178
159,622 10,795 170,317
12,760 12,760
995 995
118,233 118,233
13,462 13,462
885,161 110,855 10,795 971,822 12,760 1,991,392
299,432 1,196 38,104 338,731
43,210 11,599 865,855 920,664
180,605 1,189 181,794
153,485 12,925 170,531 336,941
516 23,377 23,893
1,254 28,093 29,347
2) 677,247 26,975 1189 1,125,960 1,831,371
1)
2) 26,362

175/386
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2017 12 31 DNB
1
143,463 3,251 4,881 151,595
199,288 38,561 237,849
55,839 55,373 1,420,133 1,531,345
169,059 87,970 257,029
6,304 999 7,303
106,318 26,331 132,649
9,613 9,613
7,888 7,888
680,271 147,593 26,331 1,471,463 9,613 2335271
182,335 4,657 35,508 222,501
41,692 14,090 924,593 980,374
108,755 3,265 112,020
158,693 83,703 539,731 782,127
6,214 13,091 19,304
2,873 26,666 29,538
2) 497,688 105,323 3265 1,539,588 2,145,864
1)
2) 103,319
2016 12 31 DNB
1)
187,462 15,824 4,977 208,263
160,828 45 14,035 174,908
42,974 69,442 1,379,852 1,492,268
148,026 69,862 217,887
5,158 1,042 6,200
124,919 33,038 157,957
12,760 12,760

176/386



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

8,255 8,255
669,366 156,215 33,038 1,407,119 12,760 2,278,497
178,047 1,196 32,363 211,606
43,210 11,599 890,885 945,694
128,796 2,195 130,990
153,485 87,402 526,863 767,750
516 15,265 15,781
1,254 28,093 29,347
2) 504,053 101,451 2,195 1,493,470 2,101,169
1)
2) 99,238
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27
DNB

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
4,434 4,434 4,648 4,648
227,522 227,522 203,450 203,450
662,622 663,545 631,034 634,571
9,613 9,581 12,760 12,406
904,190 905,082 851,891 855,075
42,324 42,324 38,104 38,104
900,744 900,744 865,855 865,855
157,727 160,827 170,531 173,788
26,666 26,378 28,093 28,065
1,127,460 1,130,273 1,102,583 1,105,812

DNB

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
4,881 4,881 4,977 4,977
38,561 38,561 14,035 14,035
1,420,133 1,421,464 1,379,852 1,383,679
9,613 9,581 12,760 12,406
1,473,188 1,474,487 1,411,623 1,415,097
35,508 35,508 32,363 32,363
924,593 924,593 890,885 890,885
539,731 548,082 526,863 533,874
26,666 26,378 28,093 28,065
1,526,497 1,534,561 1,478,205 1,485,187

DNB
19 29 3D
2017 12 31
4,434 4,434
227,522 227,522
663,545 663,545
9,581 9,581
2017 12 31

42,324 42,324
900,744 900,744
160,139 688 160,827
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15,943 10,435 26,378
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DNB
1 21) 3D
2017 12 31
4,881 4,881
38,561 38,561
1,421,464 1,421,464
9,581 9,581
2017 12 31
35,508 35,508
924,593 924,593
519,955 28,127 548,082
11,081 15,297 26,378
1) 28
DNB
DNB
Finans

180/386
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2017

33
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28
DNB
1 2 3

2017 31
146,714 146,714
353,451 353,451
55,839 12,322 68,161
46,440 215,226 328 261,994
5,630 254 527 6,310
131 144,753 2,069 146,953

2017 31
290,474 290,474
55,782 55,782
168,444 168,444
2,873 2,873
150 177,635 1,749 179,534
1 6,153 61 6,214

2016 31
203,286 203,286
345,643 345,643
42,974 16,052 59,026
50,893 172,092 375 223,360
4,140 239 799 5,178
0 168,998 1,319 170,317

2016 31
300,628 300,628
54,809 54,809
166,410 166,410
1,254 1,254
0 180,732 1,062 181,794
D 516 0 516

1)
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DNB
1 2 3
2017 31
146,714 146,714
199,288 199,288
55,839 55,373 111,212
53,391 203,311 328 257,029
6,421 260 621 7,303
131 130,450 2,069 132,649
2017 31
186,993 186,993
55,782 55,782
242,396 242,396
2,873 2,873
150 110,121 1,749 112,020
D 6,153 61 6,214
2016 31
203,286 203,286
160,873 160,873
42,974 69,442 112,416
54,988 162,524 375 217,887
5,009 245 946 6,200
0 156,637 1,319 157,957
2016 31
179,243 179,243
54,809 54,809
240,887 240,887
1,254 1,254
0 129,928 1,062 130,990
1) 516 0 516
1)
2
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2017 2016
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2 3
2
3
2 3
2 3
2 3
2
FRA
2
3
2
2
2
2
1
3 DNB
2015 12 31 24,855 566 828 1,504 1,144
42 (12) (119) (201) (122)

4,914 308 135 802 797
185/386
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(2,696) (597) (45)
(11,063) 772 (751)
698
(576)
(13) (14) (6)
2016 31 16,052 375 79 1,310 1,062
13 (63) 2 (75) (99)
2,039 331 55 1,422 1,349
(951) (291) (350)
(4,831) (592) (579)
100
(132)
8 () 15
2017 31 12,322 328 527 2,069 1,749
3 DNB
2015 31 85,777 734 1,229 1,504 1,144
(519) (97 (120) (202) (122)
13,818 308 156 802 797
(5,146) (657) (283)
(24,489) 0 (772 (751)
698
(576)
(35) (36) (14) (6)
2016 31 69,442 375 946 1,319 1,062
119 (63) 73 (75) (99)
5,041 331 61 1,422 1,349
(291) (459)
(19,228) (592) (579)
100
(132)
8 () 15
2017 31 55,373 328 621 2,069 1,749

186/386

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

lock-in period

2017 46,604

2017 8,769
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3
DNB DNB
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
392 355 12,241 54,602 355 415
135 @70 50 D 674 27 206
31 97
527 328 12,322 55,373 328 621
1)
DNB 3 DNB
(PE) (PE)
527 12 212 303 2017 12 31 397 212 12 621
DNB 3 DNB
2017 2017
12 31 12 31
(24) 12,322 55,373 (122)
() 328 328 (1)
527 621
320 320
10
3
10
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1
DNB
1
2017 12 31
2) 192,707 192,707 192,707
2) 56,430 56,430 56,430
3 146,953 146,953 23,797 73,930 49,226
2017 12 31
2 57,299 57,299 57,299
2) 1,552 1,552 1,552
3 179,534 179,534 23,797 91,201 64,536
DNB
1)
2016 12 31
2) 153,938 153,938 153,938
2) 43,496 43,496 43,496
3 170,317 170,317 54,580 70,330 45,407
2016 12 31
2) 50,018 50,018 50,018
2 1,185 1,185 1,185
3 181,794 181,794 54,580 58,566 68,648
DNB
1)
2017 12 31
2 192,707 192,707 192,707
2) 56,430 56,430 56,430
3 132,649 132,649 23,797 73,325 35,527
2017 12 31
2) 30,922 30,922 30,922
2) 1,552 1,552 1,552
3 112,020 112,020 23,797 72,527 15,696
DNB
1
2016 12 31
2) 153,938 153,938 153,938
2) 43,496 43,496 43,496
3 157,957 157,957 54,603 70,288 33,066
2016 12 31
2) 20,375 20,375 20,375
2) 1,185 1,185 1,185
3 130,990 130,990 54,603 58,250 18,137
1)
2)
3)

189/386
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
5,178 6,310 7,303 6,200
1y
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
11,079 9,776 2,688 11,079
3,648 4,596 2,698 3,648
215 178 178 215
14,941 14,550 5,564 14,941
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
10,446 8,889 1,808 10,446
1,185 877 877 1,185
3,648 4,596 2,698 3,648
225 187 187 225
15,505 14,549 5,570 15,505
DNB
e DNB
48
e DNB
15

191/386



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

oOoOooodn

DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
190,083 243,010 243,010 190,083
31,121 45,801 45,801 31,121
221,204 288,811 288,811 221,204
4,203 41,208 11,616 4,203
10,084 9,021 9,199 10,084
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
12,760 9,613 9,613 12,760
12,760 9,613 9,613 12,760

DNB

192/386
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2017 12 31
36
88.0
2017 12 8.7
49
2017 12 4.1
DNB
2017 2016
98 84
409 448
(311) (364)
DNB
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
220 318
256 665
36 347
DNB
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
8,668 10,414
8,631 10,067
36 347
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DNB

2017

2016

125
(55)

(12)

131
(64)

(20)

47

DNB

2015 12 31

2,333

163
(35)
(1,312)

(65)

2016 12 31

1,175

171
(382)

25

2017 12 31

990

2017 12 31

194/386



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

ooooOoog
35
DNB
2017 2016
11 3,570 4,091
(587) 771
144
1) 175 (880)
8,019 (557)
12 31 2 11,176 3,570
DNB
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2017 2017
3) 3) 3) 3) ()
4 148,505 131,586 848 27 44 7,387
22,398 15,595 (224) (261) 40 2,721 3,219
Vipps ASD) 380 135 (15) (131) 52 525
Visa Norgel) 443 283
100 68
11,176 3,570
DNB
2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31
()
4) 44 7,374
40 919 919
Vipps ASY) 52 629
85 76
9,007 995
1) DNB Visa Norway Visa Europe
2016 3 31 Visa Europe 855
2016 2 Visalnc
Visa Europe 1,128
2)
3)

195/386
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5) 2017 3
105
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DNB Nordea
DNB
44 DNB
Vipps AS DNB
DNB Vipps AS 52
Vipps AS
49.9 DNB 7 3 Vipps AS
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DNB
()
DNB Invest Denmark 877,579 877,578,841 877,579 100 10,772,220
DNB Bank Polska 1,257,200  1,257,200,000 1,257,200 100 1,773,562
DNB Asial) 1,500,000 150,000,000 1,500,000 100 12,297,600
DNB Asiad) 20,000 20,000,000 20,000 100 100,769
DNB Brasil 600 599,999 600 100 2,542
DNB Capital2 100 19,676,160
DNB 70,000 70,000 70,000 100 688,293
DNB 1 1,000 1 100 3,004
100,000 100,000,000
DNB 100,000 100 14,486,571
DNB (UK) Limited 1,154,200  1,154,200,000 1,154,200 100 12,791,535
Aksje- og Eiendomsinvest 100 100,000 100 100 38,721
Bryggetorget Holding 3,250 2,500 3,250 100 63,230
DNB 4,157,000 41,570,000 4,157,000 100 36,384,000
DNB 10,003 100,033 10,003 100 168,241
DNB Eiendomsutvikling 91,000 91,000,000 91,000 100 253,931
DNB Gjenstandsadministrasjon 3,000 30 3,000 100 3,000
DNB ID Solutions 300 3,000 300 100 15,033
DNB Invest Holding 100,000 200,000 100,000 100 172,000
DNB 550,000 550,000 550,000 100 5,240,942
DNB 1,000 10,000 1,000 100 24,000
DNB Polish Properties 1,200 1,200 1,200 100 35,113
Godfjellet 8,030 8,030 8,030 100 27,600
Godfjorden 1,000 10,000 1,000 100 72,000
10S Tubular Management 900 750 900 100 42,200
Kongsberg Industrieiendom 100 1,000 100 100 10,000
115,142,267

1) DNB AsiaLtd

2) DNB Capital LLC 2.4

DNB

DNB
2017
687
2016 5,795
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
2,921 2,404 2,584 3,057
571 1,040 1,056 824
106 71 116 100
3,598 3,515 3,756 3,981
DNB
2016 1 1 3,678 1,486 825 5,988
266 323 589
(39) (39)
(42) (42)
(0) 106 (452) (346)
(55) @) (19 (71)
2016 12 31 3,543 1,857 681 6,080
2016 1 1 (665) (975) (672) (2,313)
(139) (49) (188)
©) ©)
41 (169) 136 7
3 2 11 15
2016 12 31 (622) (1,286) (575) (2/482)
2016 12 31 2,921 571 106 3,598
2017 1 1 3,543 1,857 681 6,081
633 16 649
n (697) (43) (9) (740)
25 1 12 38
2017 12 31 2,871 2,448 709 6,028
2017 1 1 (622) (1,286) (575) (2,482)
(165) (52) (216)
&) 155 43 0 198
© ® (11) (12
2017 12 31 (467) (1,408) (639) (2513)
2017 12 31 2,404 1,040 71 3,515

198/386



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

1) 2017 502 Cresco
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DNB
2016 1 1 4,665 3,395 978 9,039
19 266 346 632
(©) (©)
(41) ) (41)
(€) (367) (444) (813)
(56) (55) (40) (150)
2016 12 31 4,585 3,241 841 8,666
2016 1 1 (1,566) (2,519) (779) (4,863)
(241) (C) (289)
®) 3 9
20 286 52 358
23 60 29 112
2016 12 31 (1,528) (2,417) (742) (4,685)
2016 12 31 3,057 824 100 3,081
2017 1 1 4,585 3,241 841 8,666
45 455 28 528
2 2
(9) (0)
1) (703) (43) O] (745)
22 147 95 263
2017 12 31 3,949 3,801 964 8,714
2017 1 1 (1,528) (2,417) (742) (4,685)
(199) (69) (268)
©) (42 (46)
o) 160 43 0 203
7 (130) (39) (161)
2017 12 31 (1,365) (2,745) (848) (4,958)
2017 12 31 2,584 1,056 116 3,756
1) 2017 502 Cresco

2.5
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DNB 2017 12 31 DNB
( (
) (@) (@) (@) ) )
982 11.9 2.5 2.5 11.9 982
483 11.9 2.5 2.5 11.9 483
791 11.9 2.5 DNB Finans- 2.5 11.9 791
148 11.9 2.5 2.5 11.9 328

2,404 2,584
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DNB 2016 12 31 DNB
( (
) ) ) ) ) )
982 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 982
483 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 483
791 12.4 2.5 DNB Finans- 2.5 12.4 791
665 12.4 2.5 2.5 12.4 801
2,920 3,057
DnB  Gjensidige NOR Nordlandsbanken
Gjensidige NOR
DnB  Gjensidige NOR
DNB Finans
DNB 2008
DNB SkandiaBanken

DNB Finans
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DNB

2015 12 31 200 3,101 8,648 15 11,965

7 @
9 165 2,333 1 2,508
(31) (242) (2,667) (5) (2,945)
(13) (10) (296) ()] (319)
2016 12 31 172 3,007 8,018 11 11,209
2015 12 31 (33 (1523) (2,927) @) (4,485)
0 188 1,583 0 1,772
1) ) (308) (1,252) @ (1,570)
3 3 103 0 108
2016 12 31 (39 (1,640 (2493) @) (4,175)
2016 12 31 133 1,367 5,525 9 7,034
2016 12 31 172 3,007 8,018 11 11,209
3 362 2,883 2 3,250
(1) (53) (2,272 ©) (2,339)
2 2 228 0 232
2017 12 31 167 3,318 8,857 10 12,352
2016 12 31 (39) (1,640) (2,493) @ (4,175)
6 900 905
1) 9 (297) (853) ®) (1,161)
(1) 2 (81) 0 (80)
2017 12 31 (49) (1,928) (2,528) ) (4,510)
2017 12 31 118 1,390 6,329 6 7,842
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2015 12 31 798 3,501 8,648 174 13,122
7 ©)

19 233 2,333 27 2,613

(419) (280) (100) (799)

(198) (286) (2,667) 27 (3.179)

(35) (24) (296) @ (363)

2016 12 31 173 3,136 8,018 67 11,394

2015 12 31 (210) (1,821) (2,928) (104) (5,063)

113 209 62 384

78 230 1,584 20 1,912

1) (20) (346) (1,252) (13) (1,631)

(13) (13)

12 14 103 5 133

2016 12 31 (39) (1,715) (2,493) (31) (4,278)

2016 12 31 133 1,421 5,525 36 7,117

2016 12 31 173 3,136 8,018 67 11,394

(22) (22)

3 388 2,883 3 3,276

(12) (61) (2.272) 4 (2,348)

2 8 228 5 244

2017 12 31 168 3471 8,857 50 12,545

2016 12 31 (39) (1,715) (2,493) (31) (4,278)

10 900 [h) 909

1 ) (310) (853) 4 (1,177)

0 2 2

@ (®) (81) 4 (90)

2017 12 31 (49) (2,019) (2,529) (37) (4,634)

2017 12 31 118 1,451 6,329 12 7,911

1)

10
10

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )
oOoOooodn

DNB
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
12,165 12,439 1 12,500 13,472
31,348 31,827 15 32,515 35,624
3,275 3,850 5 3,850 3,335
46,788 48,116 48,865 52,431
11,788 12,053 1 12,113 12,930
25,235 25,620 15 25,726 28,883
2,171 2,553 5 2,553 2,226
39,195 40,226 40,392 44,039
7,594 7,889 8,473 8,393
65 72 72 65
1,894 2,100 2,100 1,918
51 56 56 117
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
342 267 1 267 342
1,708 2,102 15 2,123 1,723
33 15 5 15 33
2,083 2,384 2,405 2,098
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
81 40 1 52 93
372 408 15 469 449
5,837 5,830 5 5,830 5,837
6,290 6,277 6,352 6,379
478 542 365 287
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
857 827 852 822
13 13
857 840 865 822
© © © )
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
736 462 527 841
1,801 1,734 1,743 1,809
1,060 2,677 2,677 1,197
9,865 17,218 D 2,940 4,408
13,462 22,092 2 7,888 8,255
1) DNB 2017 12 31 15,160
2)
41
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
344,437 354,216 361,969 348,263
51,347 46,559 46,559 51,347
47,711 52,889 48,056 43,307
67,394 57,280 59,951 68,738
128,298 141,457 142,878 129,567
27,672 32,302 33,808 28,408
27,266 34,110 34,110 27,267
50,265 48,249 50,750 52,650
26,074 22,149 22,815 26,435
19,023 15,738 16,527 19,469
7,582 8,445 8,445 7,582
3,071 3,078 3,078 3,071
2,444 2,339 2,362 2,465
57,106 54,662 55,114 57,715
60,742 82,876 93,671 79,061
920,434 956,350 980,095 945,344
230 175 279 349
920,664 956,525 980,374 945,694
EU NACE Rev.2
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DNB
2017
12 31 2017 2017 2016
2017 2017 12 31
) 158,675 1,771,171 (1,767,362) 1,451 153,415
1) 159,536 17,206 (37,206) 6,168 173,368
7,961 (2,197) 10,158
326,171 1,788,376 (1,804,568) 7,619 (2197) 336,941
2017 12 31 D2)
DNB
2018 16,140 16,140
2019 13,731 13,731
2020 49,762 49,762
2021 34,437 34,437
2022 19,840 19,840
2023 9,426 9,426
2024 6,944 6,944
150,280 150,280
2017 12 31 )]
DNB
2018 17 158,658 158,675
17 158,658 158,675
2018 2,410 2,410
2019 1,722 1,722
2020 1,531 1,531
2021 3453 3,453
2022
2023
2024 139 139
9,255 9,255
9,273 158,658 167,930
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485 7,475 7,961

9,758 316,413 326,171

1)
2)
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2017
12 31 2017 2017 2016
2017 2017 12 3
) 158,675 1,771,171 (1,767,362) 1,451 153,415
1 598,202 77,859 (89,010) 27,906 581,447
25,250 (7,639) 32,888
782,127 1849030  (1,856,373) 29,357 (7,638) 767,750
2017 12 31 12)

DNB
2018 74,913 74,913
2019 56,174 56,174
2020 85,082 85,082
2021 85,067 85,067
2022 87,648 87,648
2023 34,873 34,873
2024 93,019 93,019
516,777 516,777

2017 12 31 1

DNB
2018 17 158,658 158,675
17 158,658 158,675
2018 8,669 8,669
2019 18,085 18,085
2020 20,400 20,400
2021 19,557 19,557
2022 12,197 12,197
2023 257 257
2024 2,259 2,259
81,425 81,425
81,443 158,658 240,100
2,267 22,983 25,250
83,710 698,417 782,127
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DNB 2017
12 31 450.4
617.8
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DNB

2017 2016
12 31 2017 2017 12 31

2017 2017
23,897 10,106 (6,812) 1,189 19,415
5,361 (241) 5,602
(3732 3,732
280 (319) 599
29,538 10,106 (10,544) 948 (319) 29,347

DNB
2012 750 3.00% 2023 2018 7,375
2013 1,250 3  NIBOR 1.70% 2023 2018 1,250
2015 1,000 1.97% 2025 2020 999
2015 3000 3  STIBOR 1.40% 2025 2020 2,997
2016 10,000 1.00% 2026 2021 729
2017 11,500 1.04% 2027 2022 838
2017 1400 3  NIBOR 1.75% 2027 2022 1,400
2017 170 3.08% 2027 2022 170
2017 750 3 STIBOR 1.70% 2027 2022 749
2017 1,000 1.98% 2027 2022 999
2017 650 1.25% 2027 2022 6,391
23,897
1985 215 3 LIBOR 0.25% 1,763
1986 150 6 LIBOR 0.15% 1,230
1986 200 6 LIBOR 0.13% 1,640
1999 10,000 451% 2029 729
5,361

DNB
44
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
1,574 458 458 1,574
516 6,214 6,214 516
3,602 3,836 4,136 3,890
2,810 2,032 2,053 2,831
2,906 2,828 2,828 2,943
9,858 32,894
632 1,202 1,384 1,015
246 219 219 246
1,749 1,420 2,013 2,765
23,893 51,103 D 19,304 15,781
1)
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DNB (Oslo Bars)
DNB 2017 12 31 DNB
182,556,480 18,255,648,000
100 2016 12 31
183,143,110 18,314,311,000
100 2017 3 Vipps
586,630 58,663,000
DNB 2017 12
31 2,177 2016 12 31 1,588
Tierl
Tierl DNB
Tierl DNB
2017 2016
12 31 2017 12 31
2017 2017 2017
Tierl  ( ) 15,574 15,574
585 (724) 938 ) 379
Tierl 16,159 (724) 938 U 15,952
DNB
2015 2,150 3 NIBOR 3.25% 2,150
2015 750 5.75% 5,903
2016 1,400 3 NIBOR 5.25% 1,400
2016 750 6.50% 6,120

15,574
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6-16a
DNB
2016 12 9
DNB DNB
Finanstilsynet

DNB 2011
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DNB
50
100
DNB
DNB
DNB
4

[ ]

[ J

. EVP

EVP
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60

60
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DNB

DNB

50
2018

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2 DNB DNB
DNB
DNB DNB

DNB
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DNB

Finanstilsynet
DNB EU
o 2
[ ]
° 2018
50 DNB
3 1 3 3
DNB
2016 12 31
65
70
12 DNB 2017 1 1

2016
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B.
50
DNB 3 1
1 3 1 2 3 1 3
DNB
C.
2015 2011
D.
2017
50 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum DNB 2017
450,000 2016 437,000
DNB 2016 548,000
2017 559,000
Rune Bjerke 2016 5,794,000 2017
5,957,000 DNB
2016 2,010,000 2017
2,272,000 2017 2018
50 DNB
3 3
2016 322,000 2017 301,000
2016 3,871,000
2017 5,105,000 DNB
DNB 2016
4,989,000 12G
1,118,000 2
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2017 DNB
2017 2017
12 31 2017 12 31 2017
2017 2017 2017 2017 n
1) 2) 3) 4) 5) 6)
DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 1,009 1,009
Gro Bakstad ( 2017 4 25 ) 225 225 3
Jarle Bergo 2017 4 25 253 1 254
Lillian Hattrem 631 327 638 22 36 1,023 3,185 74
Kim Wahl 327 327 46
Rune Bjerke 5,695 5,957 2,272 301 8,530 9,620 60 5,105
Bjorn Erik Nass
Qo7 3 1 2,045 250 3,308 5,603 957 19
ggzjﬁg B;aathen 4,000 3,881 1,522 216 5,618 12 65 707
Trond Bentesturen EVP 3,560 3,675 1,362 263 5,300 6,144 65 881
Ottar Ertzeid EVP 9,020 9,419 3,822 238 13,479 21 62 781
Benedicte S. Fasmer EVP 2,950 3,179 1,122 270 4,571 6,014 115
'::ZT;S ﬁl\zgelzlgenschou EvP 2,340 2,130 647 163 2,940 11,666 115
Liv Fiksdahl EVP 2017 12 11 3,200 3,347 1,222 245 4,814 1,113 62 1,235
Rune Garborg EVP 2017 9 1 2,950 2,179 950 214 3,343 6,401 175
Solveig Hellebust EVP 3,200 2,693 1,022 234 3,950 18 65 400
Ida Lerner, EVP (2017 12 11 ) 3,992 2,162 1,477 2,376 6,015
Bengt Olav Lund EVP
o7 5 1 2017 12 11 2,950 3,232 1,072 255 4,558 6,592 115
Thomas Midteide EVP 2,500 2,568 1,022 251 3,840 2,186 65 269
Kari Olrud Moen EVP 2017 12 11 2,880 3,021 1,000 234 4,255 21 62 1,441
ﬁ;glgttjgﬂi EvP 1,840 1,664 622 150 2,436 3,124 115
Tom Rathke EWVP 2017 5 1 3,480 3,795 872 245 4,912 6,078 62 2,454
Hans Olav Renningen EVP
@7 12 1 ) 1,650 1,714 822 180 2,716 4,880 206
Harald Serch-Hanssen EVP 4,175 4,368 1,422 258 6,048 5,130 65 1,217
Terje Turnes EVP 2017 12 11 4,010 4,143 582 242 4,967 92 709
19,235,018
1)
2) DNB
2017 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 450,000
Jarle Bergo 108,000
3) 1
3
5 DNB
6) SCC 24
7)
8) lda Lerner DNB CEMEA 2017 12 11 DNB
DNB
Ida Lerner 2018
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2016 DNB
2016 2016
12 31 2016 12 31 2016
2016 2016 2016 2016
D 2) 3) 4) 5) 6)
DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 985 2 987
Jarle Bergo 710 6 717
Lillian Hattrem 2016 1 1 594 321 597 20 39 977 3,257 73
Kim Wahl 319 319 51
Rune Bjerke 5,556 5,794 2,010 322 8,126 8,845 4,989
Bjarn Erik Nass
2017 3 1 3,880 4,071 1,520 234 5,825 956 5,224
Kjerstin Braathen
2017 3 1 3,010 3,150 1,150 234 4,534 40 619
Trond Bentestuen EVP 3,560 3,204 1,290 268 4,763 6,301 706
Ottar Ertzeid EVP 8,820 9,205 3,800 235 13,240 23 623
Benedicte S. Fasmer EVP
2016 9 26 2,950 2,383 870 205 3,459 7,476 113
Liv Fiksdahl EVP 3,050 3,196 1,110 243 4,549 1,236 1,014
Rune Garborg EVP 2016 9 26 2,950 2,423 1,420 229 4,072 6,634 321
Solveig Hellebust EVP 2,450 2,571 930 232 3,733 3 379
Thomas Midteide EVP 2,500 2,098 930 259 3,287 4,482 256
Kari Olrud Moen EVP 2,810 2,945 1,020 232 4,197 18 1,320
Tom Rathke EVP 3,400 3,733 1,020 276 5,030 6,221 2,613
Bengt Olav Lund EvP7) 2,610 1,982 1,260 204 3,445 7,115 113
Harald Serch-Hanssen EVP 4,090 4,279 1,400 252 5,931 5,372 1,004
Terje Turnes EVP 3,930 4,119 580 235 4,935 575
18,112,694
1)
2) DNB
2016 DNB
Anne Carine Tanum 437,000
Jarle Bergo 319,000
3) 1
3
5 DNB
6) scc
24
2016
7)2016 5

222/386



EDINETOOOO
o o o o =243 )

ooooOoog
Bjorn Erik Neesss 2017 3 1 Tom Rathke 2017 5 1
DNB
Bengt Olav Lund
Vipps Rune Garborg 2017 9 1

DNB Vipps AS
2017 12 11 Ida
Lerner Ingjerd Blekeli Spiten(2018 1 9 )
Rasmus Aage Figenschau Alf Otterstad Bengt Olav
Lund Liv Fiksdahl Terje Turnes DNB

Kari Olrud Moen DNB
12 EVP
2016 2017 1 1
Bjarn Erik Naess 62 70
2017 3 1
2016 12 31
2017 3 1

2016 2016
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2017 DNB
DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
(10,465) (9,871) &) (21,156) (23,629)
(1,016) (1,163) (2,305) (1,731)
(12,860) (6,731) 2) (11,456) (12,874)
(3,476) (4,555) (5,975) (3,570)
(27,817) (22,320) (40,892) (41,803)
1 DNB
2)
47
DNB DNB DNB
DNB
34
DNB NOR Savings Bank
Foundation 35
DNB
DNB
2017 2016 2017 2016
11 60 44 1,125 913
(6) ©) (48) (37
2 24 21,238 249
12 31 56 60 22,315 1,125
2 1 25 24
11 253 235 781 702
47 14 319 78
(55) 5 334 1
12 31 245 253 1,434 781
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® © @ @

) i . 3,543 5,951

1) DNB
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2016 2017
46
DNB
DNB DNB 1 DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
393,832 126,157 12 31 25,950 22,059
20,250 83,702 12 31 2) 394 726
143,450 126,077 12 31 9,237 10,796
62,288 102,327 12 31 2) 1,759 919
5,387 5,506 578 506
(2,897) (3,055) (48) (56)
6,508 6,990 3 1,995 1,884
(132) (187) (166) (106)
1) DNB DNB
DNB
2)2016 12 31 2017 12 31 DNB
DNB
3) DNB 2017 2016
2,884 1,591
DNB
DNB DNB
DNB
DNB
2017 12.0 2016 19.8
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IT

2017 12 2016 2.3

2017 12 121
2016 9.0
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2013 4
12
RCF
DNB
2016
)
2016 26.2
DNB
DNB
DNB
2017 19
2017
3.5
2017 12
2016 0.9
2017
)
2016 111.6

30

DNB

RCF

2016

228/386

RCF

RCF

2017 12

190

DNB

7.2

2017 12
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DNB

RCF

2016 2

26.0

88.1

0.9

108.3
DNB
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DNB
DNB DNB
2017 DNB
DNB 19 2016 19
2016 11 5 DNB
DNB
2016 4 2.6 4.5
DNB DNB
2017 4 DNB Nordea
DNB 44 2017 12 DNB
210
Vipps AS
2017 3 Vipps AS DNB 105
DNB Vipps AS 52
Vipps AS DNB

DNB 49.9 7 3
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DNB DNB
2016 2017 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
29,930 27,798 28,558 30,900
32,547 29,874 31,852 34,472
17,979 17,525 17,525 17,898
6,535 6,254 6,254 6,557
2,213 2,348 3,153 2,714
89,205 83,799 87,342 92,541
10,735 6,106
89,205 83,799 ") 98,077 98,647
479,792 488,943 589,623 606,122
3,861 4,103 4,170 3,948
37
483,653 493,046 593,793 610,107
572,858 576,845 691,871 708,754
9,322 12,778
*) 295 326
DNB CLS
DNB CLS
CLS
CLS 9
CLS CLS
30
DNB CLS
DNB
2017 12 450
DNB
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
379,635 355,932
70,812 59,859
3,033 3,581
14,757 19,701
468,236 439,072
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DNB
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
617,756 599,579
52,878 38,527
670,634 638,106
1 468,236 439,072
(465) (192)
467,771 438,880
() 143.4 1454

11 8 11 11
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49 IFRS 9
2014 IASB IAS 39 IFRS 9
IASB
IFRS 9 2018 1 1 2016 11 EU

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 9
°
° (FvVOCI)

. (FVTPL)
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DNB
Nordic Bond Pricing
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loss allowance provisions

Tierl
DNB
Tierl
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(ECL)
IFRS 9 IAS 39 ECL

ECL

ECL
12

IFRS 9 IAS 39

IFRS 9

IAS 39 IFRS 9 2018 1 1
DNB
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2018 1 1 DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 9
FVTPL( ) 143,463 143,461
FVTPL( ) 3,251 3,251
4,434 4,434
FVTPL( ) 348,588 348,564
FVTPL( ) 4,863 4,856
227,522 227,517
FVTPL( ) 55,839 55,837
FVTPL( ) 12,322 6,050
FVTPL( ) 6.259
FvOCI 662,622 97,531
564,847
FVTPL( 169,639 167,414
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( ) 2,224
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 92,355 92,355
FVTPL( 9,613 9,581
)
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 5,508 5,508
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 802 802
FVTPL( 138,346 138,346
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 8,606 8,606
22,002 22,092

1,909,865 1,909,536
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2018 1 1 DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 9
FVTPL( 285,817 285,822
)
FVTPL( ) 4,657 4,657
42,324 42,324
FVTPL( 41,692 39,827
)
FVTPL( ) 1,895
FVTPL( ) 14,090 192
FVTPL( ) 13,897
900,744 900,744
FVTPL( FVTPL( 178,324 178,324
) )
FVTPL( 1,210 1,210
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( FVTPL ( 158,693 (12
) )
158,701
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 9,751 9,751
157,727 157,727
FVTPL( FVTPL( 6,214 6,214
) )
44,889 44,889
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 2,873 2,873
26,666 26,666

1,875,669 1,875,700
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2018 1 1 DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 9
FVTPL( 143,463 143,461
)
VTP ) 3,251 3251
4,881 4,881
FVTPL( 199,288 199,277
)
38,561 38,555
FVTPL( 55,839 55,837
)
TR ) 55,373 8,764
FVTPL( ) 46,596

1,420,133 1,419,820

FVTPL( 169,059 166,835
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( ) 2,224
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 87,970 80,805
7,156
FVTPL( ) 9,613 9,581
FVTPL( 6,304 5,508
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( ) 795
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 999 999
FVTPL( 106,318 106,318
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( 26,331 26,331
FVTPL( )
)
7,888 7,888

2,335,271 2,334,884

2018 1 1 DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
IAS 39 IFRS 9
FVTPL( 182,335 182,316
)
FVTPL( ) 4,657 4,657
35,508 35,508
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FVTPL( 41,692 39,827
)
FVTPL( ) 1895
FVTPL( ) 14,090 192
FVTPL( ) 13,897
924,593 924,593
FVTPL( 108,755 108,755
) FVTPL( )
FVTPL( 3,265 3,265
FVTPL( )
)
FVTPL( 158,693 (12)
) FVTPL( )
158,701
FVTPL( ) FVTRL( ) 83,703 83,703
539,731 539,731
FVTPL( 6,214 6,214
) FVTPL( )
13,091 13,001
FVTPL( ) FVTPL( ) 2,873 2,873
26,666 26,666

2,145,864 2,145,871
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IFRS 9
FRTB
IAS 39

IAS 39

IAS 39

IAS 39

IFRS 9
IFRS 9

IAS 39 IFRS 9 2018 1 1 DNB
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IAS 39 IFRS 9
DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
2017 12 2018
31 1
4,434
FVTPL 146,712
151,146
227,522 ©)
FVTPL 353,419
580,936
662,622 (242)
FvocCl (97,531)
FVTPL 61,887 @
626,733
9,613
FVTPL (9.613)
0
22,092 22,092
926,282 454,873 (248 1,380,907
(FVTPL)
146,714
(146,712) @
0
353,451
(353,419) (32
0
68,161
(61,887) (15)
6,259
261,994
9,613 (32
271,575
6,310 6,310
146,953 146,953
FVTPL 983,583 (552,405) (81) 431,007
FVOCI
97,531
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97,531

FVOCI 97,531 0 97,531

244/386



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
2017 12 2018
31 1
42324
FVTPL 290,480
332,803
900,744
FVTPL 40,019
940,763
157,727
FVTPL 158,701
316,428
44,889 44,889
26,666 26,666
1,172,349 489,200 1,661,549
(FVTRL)
290,474
(290,480) 5
0
55,782
(40,019) 30
15,792
168,444
(158,701) @
9,739
6,214 6,214
2,873 2,873
179,534 179,534
FVTPL 703,320 (489,200 31 214,151
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DNB
IAS 39 IFRS 9
2017 12 2018
31 1
4,881
FVTPL 146,712
151,593
38,561 (6)
FVTPL 199,277
237,832
1,420,133 (311)
FVTPL 64,601 @
1,484,421
0
FVTPL 7,156 (0)
7,156
9,613
FVTPL (9.613)
0
7,888 7,888
1,481,076 408,134 (320) 1,888,889
(FVTPL)
146,714
(146,712) @
0
199,288
(199,277) (10)
0
111,212
(64,601) (15)
46,596
257,029
(7,156) ®)
9,613 (32)
259,446
7,303 7,303
132,649 132,649
FVTPL 854,195 (408,134) (67) 445,994
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IAS 39 IFRS 9
2017 12 2018
31 1
35,508
FVTPL 186,974
222,482
924,593
FVTPL 40,019
964,612
539,731
FVTPL 158,701
698,432
13,001 13,001
26,666 26,666
1,539,588 385,604 1,925,282
(FVTPL)
186,993
(186,974) (19
©)
55,782
(40,019) 30
15,792
242,396
(158,701) )
83,601
6,214 6,214
2,873 2,873
112,020 112,020
FVTPL 606,276 (385,694) 7 220,589
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IFRS 9
2018 1 1 DNB
FVTPL
IFRS 9
1) FVTPL 2 FvoCl 3)
151,146 151,146
580,936 580,936
6,259 97,531 626,733 730,524
176,996 94,579 271,575
5,508 802 6,310
138,346 8,606 146,953
22,092 22,092
320,851 9,408 100,838 97,531 1,380,907 1,909,536
332,803 332,803
15,792 940,763 956,555
178,324 1,210 179,534
(12) 9,751 316,428 326,167
6,214 44,889 51,103
2,873 26,666 29,538
184,525 1,210 28,416 1,661,549 1,875,700
2018 1 1 DNB
FVTPL
IFRS 9
D FVTPL 2) 3
151,593 151,593
237,832 237,832
46596 1,484,421 1,531,017
176,416 83,030 7,156 266,602
5,508 1,794 7,303
106,318 26,331 132,649
7,888 7,888
288,243 28,125 129,626 1,888,889 2,334,884
222,482 222,482
15,792 964,612 980,404
108,755 3,265 112,020
(12 83,703 698,432 782,123
6,214 13,091 19,304
2,873 26,666 29,538
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114,956 3,265 102,368 1,925,282 2,145,871

1)
2) FVTPL

3)

DNB
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FRS 9

DNB

IAS 39
2017

12 31

FVTPL

IFRS 9 3,251

4,863

6,063

IFRS 9 802

14,979

4,657

192

4,850

IAS 39

IFRS 9

DNB
IAS 39
2017

12 31

FVTPL

IFRS 9 3,251

8,777

7,165

IFRS 9 999

20,191

4,657

192

4,850

250/386

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

o o o o =243 )

oOoOooodn

IFRS 9
DNB
2017 12 31 2018 1 1
IAS 39

IAS 37 IFRS 9 12 ECL ECL ECL

®) ©®)
(8,653) ) (241) (8,896) (296) (2,138) (6,562)
(911) (898) (1,809) (237) (1,164) (508)
(9,564) 2 (1,139) (10,710) (338) (3,302) (7,070)

DNB
2017 12 31 2018 1 1
IAS 39

IAS 37 IFRS 9 12 ECL ECL ECL

(6) (6) (6)
(11,870) 11 (312) (12,171) (381) (3,081) (8,709)
(919) (1,891) (2,810) a7y (2,128) (511)
(12,789) 11 (2,209) (24,987) (558) (5,209) (9,221)

IFRS 9
DNB

2017 12 31 2018 1 1
IAS 39 IFRS 9 12 ECL ECL ECL
(718) (227) (945) (115) (269) (561)
(2,602) ) 260 (2,344) (32) (115) (2,197)
(9,009) 13 (2,702) (11,698) (410) (4,826) (6,462)

1) (460) 460
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(12,789) 11 (2,209) (14,987) (558) (5,209) (9,221)

1) 2017 12 31 2018 1 1
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Income statement

DME Bank ASA DME Bark Group
20185 2017 Amourts iy NG milion Nizhs 27 2016
ER L] AT 126 Total infernst income i Lok ] &2 aaF
11 558 112 7o Tetal i P 17 18465 (18 36%
23 608 M 418 Het Interest Income i7 E=Rut] 5T
7% Ta0 Commistion and fee incoms ele. 12 928 L]
{2 B2 |8 Commission and fee sxpenses eic. 15 i3 daay {2 B8a)
LEE G2 Mot gaims on fnancial insnements af e value 20 4513 LR
Profs bom mvestments accainted for by the equity msthod 35 [RgF) 1188

Hlet gars on invastment properias 143 135

5837 5325 Othar income 1897 205
18 ABE 18312 Het otber IRt ofe 12 435 15 F18
A7 004 40 728 Tedal | 43 330 49 £33
0 248 @ B3 Salarien and otfed partcnnsl sxpening 2 i1 581 (11 208
16 118) {401 Other s sia 2 iT BSSY {7 20T
{2 0500 (231m woinbon and rment of §xed and inta amel 23 (2488, 2108
{17 417) 18 S5y Todal cyperating xp {21975 (20 518)
4 677 21 86T Pre-tax apefating profit before imparmssn 410 T
14 24T el gairs on foed and inlangibie sxiebs 5 15

8 BTE) {8 BT Imgairment of loans and guarmniees ] (a4 (7 &34y
001z 216978 Pre-tax operating profic M TR 1874
15 3% [EL ] Tax axpense 5 (4 B0 {3084,
Praft kom coerations kel fr sale, akeriazes {1} 4

14 TES 12810 Prolit for the year 16 813 17 514
tERE ] 17 &7z Pertenn afributes 1o sharsholicders 18 878 17 318
18 B35 [Porbion sfributable 1o addtional Tier § capiial hoiders - i
14 TED 1 010 Profit for Chee oo 19 813 A7 914
8078 1083 Eamningsidicted samings e shan (HOK) 10827 arm
Eamingt pid i o operabond hebd B2 taks (NOK) {001 o2

Earnings pos share for conlivung operations excluding
8078 10838 operations held ke sale (N0 0828 arra

Comprehensive income statement

OHHB Bank ASA DONE Bank Group
2018 2017 Amnurde i NOK adlion a7 Fiill ]
14 TED 1% 010 Profit for the year 19 B13 7 014
{1BE) [120y Arhiaral gaing snd lasss {107} 178
] (L] [Eervis that vl not be reclassiSed {o the noome sistemant {107y 780
1135 53 Cursncy trangation of forsign oparaSions 1182 (6ATH)
Cumeecy randation rewrvs reclasslod 1o the income Walement | (13033 3
Hudging ol nel irvaimes {515 448

Hedging retere reclasufed o the income sistement ' =G
Iresimants according 1o the eguity methed ™' 160 25
rratimanly accerding (o the aguity methed rechiis fed io the incama i {B55)
{135 53 teens that may subsecuantly b tecietaibed fo the Eicente statenpet 40 3058
[EL1] 157} Other & v incoime for the el of Lan) o) (LR E
14 487 18 B Gompretensihoe income for the year 1T 14 &i0

1 it foud® quarier of 2017, comency frangiation resenes [acourmuisled gaing) of MO 1 30T milion and hedging mesenes (eocumaised osses) of
MO T 20 milion relsting to the Balics wers moksnted o b incoms salement and recapnized in "Ml gaing on fised and infangibie azssfs®. Tax relating Io

it Baitizs hooging reserve smourdsd o NOK 338 milor, which was fio b i nCom and moog i *Fax up
& DMNB hed indiredt ovnersin infenesis io Viss Ewope lvoogh s membership in Vise Norge In with the variwation of e hoiding nb’m!mnﬂ
1 Mawch 2016 an scowmalated pain of MOK 435 mallon was g k0 other oomp incovme. Lipom He oompdeton of e acquishon of Viss Europe

By Viza fng in the second quader of 2018, this amoonf was reclassfied 1o peol® and o fotal gein of NOK 1 128 millon wis recogresed af “Proft fom imestrents
acsounted far by B equily rasthod” in ihe income slafemend

10 ¢ DB BAMNEK - ANNUAL REPORT 2097

259/386



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
ooOooood

Balance sheet

IDHE Bark ASA DHE Bank Groug

31 Der. 3 D 3 D 31 Dwe

e 017 Amwrets in NOK rmilfon Hate 27 il

Assals

207 834 154 147 Cash and deposis with central banks 07 151 554 208 263

Gl 08k G0 8Ty Coaw from credit insSitutions 6.7 2 27. 8 TAT BaE 174 BOG

50 D& Tan Tz Loant i cultamen 67, 2% 27. 0% 153 345 1482 268

123 360 Fii B Commuicial paps and bond at hir valus 2, 18, 30 25T 029 Falolilirg

Ry ] 8310 Shisraicn g 26, 28 30, 31 T s 6200

1TeMT 1415 553 Financisl derivatnoes 14, 6, 1% 132 G 167 867

12 780 S613 Commarcial papadt and bandi, held bs matarty M, 2733 S613 12 780

it progedins E 990 1178

= 007 s itmenis Bzcounbed loe by the sauity mithod 36 AT 1570

118 233 116 142 Invesiments o subskdanes M [x] [{11]

3 508 3515 intangble astats " 58 300

1882 L EAE] Defered tax aveets o5 T 1382

o TR42 Fizd nitats ] T THT

Azsabs hald for sale B2 B4t

13 462 prdir] Cther ssuats 40 7 488 8255

2 003 nos 2033 TET Total assets 2 350 §50 2 HBITT
Liabdlities and equity

358 T 332 TeR Coaw bo credit instiutons F. A ] Forrdit]] Pl

G20 B4 B8 25 Deposits fom customans 26, 27, 19, 41 880 374 B B

181 75 1T 5 Financial derivativet 15, 16, 2% 112030 130 890

336 841 A 1T Dt euribiend ittisbd 28, 17, 28, 42 Taz 127 76T 750

4 3 TES Paynbis toors 25 a e 847

B5 T4 D tases -} -2 .1

Pl 5110 Ctter lishiites o, 4d 18 304 16 T

Linbifes haid for sale 41 43

19#E 1652 Prerdsions 1768 038

2484 2 B0l Penuen commirants o Pl -] 2518

Pl b 15 534 Subordrated loan captal 26, 27, 20, 43 1853 0 a7

1 B35 80F 1884 057 Taotal flabilieies 2158 175 158104

8 314 L] Share capital 10258 314

19 85 19 S Share pramium 0611 et

15 862 16159 Buifteenl Tosr 1 capEal 16188 15 562

13842 11641 Cithr ety 148 860 136 200

A6 104 168 T30 Totnl equly a5 207 635 i o7}

2 003 908 20583 TET Total labilities and equity 7 350 880 2B 272

DHE BANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2007 / 1
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Statement of changes in equity

Oooooooa

DB Bank ASA
Achnal Carancy
S Bare Asghong e rEmaton s Tolal
Amoonts in KOK mdlon o prefTam Tear | LatlE bk ek i ity 3ty
Balance shool a8 ol 11 December 2095 18314 19 §i5 353 {458y L 104 7T 191 53F
Pzt fad Ehis vl 85 14183 14 78S
Dher comprebenuve ncome (nek of bas) (188 {135) 13013
Coomygy shanshie incoma lof the yaas £oh {168 {138 14183 14 487
Acdiional Ter 1 capial nsued TE20 LET] TaTy
Intereit prymantt addtional Tier 1 capital (505 1505)
Currancy movementy tken to ncoms g 1
Dafinc- e b paniadn dchime
dincontinuid € 17}
Teanafe of endng pofols b
subsidiary (continuity] 185 185
Grzup coninbution fr 2046 by DME ASA {8 284 19 24
_Gisup contributicn e 2016 Som DNE ASA T
Balance sheel & st 31 December 2015 18314 19 294 14 8832 [L21]] a7 114 048, 168 104
Profit for the year ] 1TeTE 18810
e comprafin iive B (nel of bied 120 53 &7
Comgr shenshng income for the year f] {130 53 17er: 18843
Debirsed g Wippa AS (58} 1841} {700}
Interest paymants addtionnl Tier 1 capital {Tady {T24)
Curnpncy mavements ke b incomis i T
Transfe of endng podiols b
subsidiary (continuity] 2 4
Divadercts and group contribution
Pﬂ'l‘ﬂ1?tﬂ-“iﬂ£éﬂ. {15 B0 jl!ﬂ:ﬂ-
Balance shoet & ot 31 December 2017 18 136 19 i 16 150 [EEL] ST 115 580 160730
OHE Bank Group
Achmnal Cumendy Hout rwansds
“Fate e Aation gefrl @ AN e g e Tl
Asmexinfy in WOK millen o wpmagm _ Tier | candsl g regores ! reggree ! souit A
Balance sheet a5 al 11 December #1015 18 314 Ful bl 3353 [LHT] 12280 {11 28y 120171 1341
Proft for the yeasr =] 1738 1T 814
_Ciher comprebenive inconte {net of bax) {178 {8 521) A 34 A880) 33
Comgr shensind incoms for the year S35 T8 {8 521) 4 346 16438 14 68D
Agditonsl ler 1 capital Bssoed TEA 4% Tart
Intarest paymssnts soctionsl Tier 1 capsisl (BOG) Pl t]
Currency movenents taken o incoms i 11"
Cafinc-bens k! ponis h & 1 18 L]
AGDL prewision in Luxsmbourg
rec lnkifiod o squity 13 13
Gtbup contrbuyticn tp DHE ASA for 2015 Ewe)  j5000)
Baance sheet &5 al 31 December 2016 16314 20611 15857 (E51) 11758 {7 507 131575 190078
Profit for the year ol 18876 18813
Crher comprefienive ncome (net of bax) 107y [LFL)] a7 160 M3
Compr shanshoe income for the year b {107y {12} Eh 19038 20117
e i ' IFPS AS (58 1541) 1700
Intarest paymants addtional Ther 1 captsl (T24) 24
Currency movements taken o income [0 T
_Greup ibuticn to DHE ASA o 3018 {5 ) 15 )
Baance sheet 25 at 31 December 2017 13 756 20811 16159 {748} 11847 7131y 144892 03683
1 Qtwhich OC) reipled [0 the Babics.
Balince shee! oz of 31 Decormbar 2018 1015 EEFil ko
Ceher comprnfeniase incoume far the
v iy - September 2007 207 (1T mnr
s Cornpvnl W rceime el diend
i (0o ruireen i (a7 o pet)
Baignce sheet 28 of 31 Decomber 2017 o o ")
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Cash flow statement

IDNE Bark ASA DHE Bank Groug
=L ST gty irv A el 2L L B
Oporating activities
1 13 (30 By Mt paryrents on lsans 1o customens: 36 15 (35 18T}
6 574 2T M Inbarett raceved Fom cushamen 47 78R 47 420
3T 408 ET3-20] Mt recaipts on deposis from cusiomaens " B ] &0 T
5218} 5 26 Inbarest pad B2 cusiomars (4 425) AT
Lad 5T [0 514y Mek recesptsipaymaents on leans o credit imstitutions 3 214} 163 238
3774 074 int d Eom credH intitut 2449 1264
{1978} (3 DAy nbarist paed bo eradl nsbtubong 2 428} (1681
8 655} (21 783 Mat recepbupaymants on the sale of & I assess for o trading [20 331} 4078
437 441 Intarest receved on bonds and commerncisl paper e 4271
3095 35 ek racepts on commistiont and lady 6035 5757
(15885 (18 3233 Py (0 Dp et {19 505} {18014
1268} (1887} Tands paid (10 D04} (1455}
B G ¥ Oithar recspts 62z 8327
LR (33 406} Mt cash New from oparating acevities (31 4TE) AL F
Inwesiment activitles
1627} {1 Moy Moot paryroents on tha soquisBion of fed azaess 2 T4} [1529)
Mot receiptsipaymants, mopartes Ji2 i i3]
3] 1210 Recigts on the take of Kag-tim inwatments in shares 0 -1
(3 700y 3 T Payments on the acquittion of keg-teem isvesimaents in thans TS}
&7 -1 Cfvicianch racaspd oniong beerm mvatonssky i s L o
{4 408) {3 181 Mt cash fow from investment sctivities £2 470 i1 208]
Fumnding activities
8843 961 1788378 Racpiphs on Miped beads and commaencsal paper (2o nats 47) 1848030 8995508
Ea3s0s [ 904 BB Paymants on rededmoed bonds and commarcial papsr {Lea nota 473 {1858 37%) (2030 TaE)
6 238} 5 B26) Inberest paryreant on issued bonds and commeecial paper [13 853} (16016}
i 10 Recaipts on the raizing of webordinated loan capital (ves note 435 10106 TaE
[ (10 Gdp Redeerptan. of jubsedmpted losn capdal (308 note 3] (10 54} &)
20 (T} Inbarest payriets on subcedinatad loan capital (T84} L]
7530 Rezeipts on Fsued adeitional Tiw 1 capitsl T80
S [Ty interest pryrenis on addiional Tier 1 capital [T2d) 301
16 B4y Ty Giroup conirbutions payments 318 (8 B4
2 833 (25 080} Mef cash Mow from funding activities [25 434) (20 978)
{1 663) 5 0E3 Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cashs equ 5478 [ERF
161 844 (58 SE4) Met cash Now (96 971} 101 596
0 21 Tew Cash at ot 1 January 214 T80 25 i0a
Amcunt of cash in subsidisres which contnol is les 3 TEE}p
el Bad (58 5ag) Mt payrrsis of cagh (S8 8T} 181 588
M1 768 163 184 Cash ax at 31 Decambor 154 051 14 780
b Ofwihich:
207 534 15T 147 Cash and deposts with central bavks 151 585 207 908
3835 2034 Doposits wih crodt instiutions wih no sgreed peniod of notice 2458 28451

1) Rocosded under "Due foum orecl inaflufiona” i e balinoe shea

The cash fiow sislement Shows receipts and payments of cash and cash equivalenls during the yeas, The stalement has been prepared n
accordancs with the direct method. Cash Niows are classibed as operating acthaties, investment acthities or funding activitbes. Balance shast
e are adjusied for the affects of sxchange rale mosments. Cash is defined as cash and daposits with cenlral banks, and deposits with
credit insbtutiens with no agreed penod of notics,

DHE BANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2017 1 13
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Corparate information
Basis for preparation
Consoldation
Segment information

Recagnition in the income statement and in
other comprehensive Ncome

Financial instruments

Irvestment property and fixed assets
Intangible assets

Impairment of fixed and intangible assets
Pensions

Income tax

Previsions

Leasing

Cash flaw staterments

Dividends

Approved standards and interpretations that
have not entered into force

Important accounting estmates, judgments
and assumptions

1. Corperate information

DMB Bank ASA s 8 subshdiary of DNB ASA, which = & Nofwegah
public kmited company ksted on the Oslo Stock Exchanpe (Oslo
Bersh. The consolidabed financial stabements for 2017 wene
approved by the Board of Direciors on 7 March 2018,

The banking group offers banking services and secuntes and
vestment serdces in e Horwegian and intemational retail and
cofporale markeis.

The visiting address to the banking group’s head office is
Dromning Eufemias gate 30. Blervia. Osio. Morway.

2. Basis for preparation

DME Bank group has prepared the consalidated financial stabe-
menls for 2017 in sccordance with Intemetional Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRSs), as ssued by the iIntemational
Accounting Slandards Bcard (1458) and endorsed by the
Eurcpean Linion {EL)

DMNB Bank ASA has prepared its stand-aions financial
slabements according fo the Norwegian Minksiry of Finance's
reguialions on annual eccounts, Section 1-6. on the use of IFRS,
hereinafler called the Morweglan IFRS regulations, which implies
that recegnition and measwements are in accordance with IFRS,
The only exception i that the Norweglan IFRS regulalions atsa
givie permission to recognise provisions for dividends and group
coniributons in subsidaries as income and recognise the Board of
Directors' proposed diddends and group contnbulions as liabilties
on the badance shest dale. According to IFRS, dividends should be
presented as aquity unbl approved by the general meeting.

DME Bank ASA presenls disciosure information in accondance with
IFRS.

The consdidated financial stelements are based on the
histeric cost principle. with the following exceptions: financial
assets and Eabdites measured at fair value and investment
properties. The consolidaled financiel statements ane presented in
Norwegian kroner. Unless olhersise specified, all amounts are
rounded to the neares! milion

The banking group's consalidated balance sheels are primanly
based on an assessment of the liquidity of the assels and Eabi
ties

3. Consolidation
The consalidated financial statements for DHB Bank ASA ("DNB
Bank® or he banking group®) include OME Bank and subsidiaries.
The accounting prnciples are applied consistently when con=
solidating ownership inberests in subsidiaries and are based on the
same reporting pericds a% those ysed for the parent company.
‘When preparing the con soidated financial stalements, intra-
group transaclions and balances, along with gains and losses on
transactions befwesn group units, are eliminated

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are defined as companies in which DNE Bank.

direclly o indrectly. has conbrol, Condral over an entity is

evidenced by the banking growp’s abilty to exercise it power in

order to affect any variable retums that the banking group is

exposed tathrough its imvalverent with ihe ently. When

assewsEn g whether to consclidate an entily the banking group

evaluntes a range of confrel factors, including

*  the pupose and design of the enlity,

*  the relesant activities and how these are determined,

*  whether the Group's rights result in the ability to drect the
relevant acthvities

* whether the Group hes sxposune of fight tovarable retums

*  whether the Group has the ability fo use As power to affect s
elunn

W DNB BANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2087
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‘Where voling rights are relevanl, the banking group is deemed to
have coniral whare it holds, direclly o Bndirectly, mane than hall of
the vating rights in an enlity, unbess the banking group through
agreemants does nol have corresponding voting rights in relevant
decision-making Dodes. Wth respsct 1o campanias whare the
banking group's helding represent less than half of the nghts, &
maked an assessment of whelher other fackors indicate de facto
conbial.

Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the dale on which
control | obtained and untl conbral ceases.

Agsociated companies and jolnt arrangements

Assecialed companies afe companies in which DNE Bank has a
significant influence, that is lhe power to paicipate @ the fnancial
and operabing policy decisions of the companies, bul ks not i con-
trof or peint control of the companses. DNE Bank assumes that
significant influence exists when the banking group holds bebwesn
20 and 50 per cenl of the valing share capifal of primary capital in
anciher entity. Associabed companies ane recognised in the
gonsclidaled financial stabements accordng Lo the equity method.

Joint arrangemaents are classified as sithar jant ventures of
feint cperations. When accounting for joint ventures, the equity
method is applied. For joinl cperalions, the parties recognise their
right s Bo assels and habditves in thair balance sheels and recognise
their share of income and costs incurmed jointly B their income
staterments. DNB's jaint arangements are delermmined 1o be join
wenlures.

Under the egquity methed of accounting, the investment is
recagnised al cost al the bme of acquisition and is adusted for
subsequent changes in the banking group's share of egquiy n the
asscciated company. Any goodwill is included in the acguistion
cosl. The banking group's share of profits or losses is recognised
In the income statement and added 1o the cost price of the
inwestment aleng with other changes in squity which have not
been reflected in the incorme staternent. The banking group's share
of lesses is nat reflecled in the income statement if the carmying
amount of the imvestment will be negative, unless the banking
group has taken on commitments or issued guarantees for the
commitments of the associated company of joind venture,

Al the end of each reporting period the banking group assess
whether any indication of impaimment exists, f such indication
auists, b investment will be tested for impairment. The camydng
value of the imvestiment will be compared with the recoverable
amoint the higher of fair value less cosls 1o sell and value in use)
I necessary, the carrying value will be wrillen down lo the recover-
able armount,

The banking group's share of unrealised gaing on Iransactons
bebween the banking group and its associated companies or joinl
wvenbures is gliminated, The same applies Lo unreplised losses
uriess the ransaction indicates an impasment of the transferred
nssels.

Conversion of transactlens In forelgn currency
The presentation cumency in the banking group’s consolidaled
financial stalements is Horwegion kroner. The parent entiy in the
banking group, DB Bank ASA, has Norweglan kroner as s
functional cufrency, Balance sheet ilems of fareign branches and
subsidiaries in cher functional curencies are ransialed info the
presentation cumency. Morwegian kroner, according e the ex-
change rales prevailing on the balance sheet dabe, while profit or
loss Memis are iranslaled according bo exchange rates on the
transaction date. Changes in nef assets resulling from sxchange
rle miovements ane recagnised in oher comprehen sive income,
Monetary assels and liabiilies i foreign currency are trans-
lated ino ihe enbifies functional csmency of the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet dabe. Changes in the carrying
amount of such assebs due to exchange rabe movements between
the trangaction dale and the balance sheet dale, are recognided in
B income stalament

4,  Segment information

Fimanceal governance in DNE Bank s adapted toihe different ous-
tomes sagments. The Tollow-up of lotal customer relationships and
segment profability are two mponant dmensions when making
strategic priorlies and deciding whers 1o allacate the Banking
group’s resources, Reported figures for the vinfious Segments
reflect the banking group's lotal sales of producls and sendces 1o
the specific segmeant.

Thi segren information has been preparsd on the basis of
imlemnal inancial reporing 1o the banking group management team
{chief cparating decisicn-making body) for an assessment of deve-
laprnents and the allocation of resources, Figures for ihe operating
segiments ane bated on OMNE Bank's management madel and the
banking group's accounting prnciples, The figures ane based on a
nurmnber of assumption s, eslimates and judgmental distributicn.

According to DNE Bank's management model, the operaking
segments ane independent profit cenlres that are fully responsible
foe Ehelr prefit afler tax amd for achieving the langeled ralums on
aliccated capital All of the banking group's customer activities are
divided ameng the operating segments, along with the refated
balance-shest items, income and expensas.

Excess liquidity and liguidty deficils in the cperating segments
are placed in or bomowed from the bank's Treasury at market
terms, where inlerest rates are based on duration and the banking
greup's financial positon,

When cperaling segments cooperate on the delivery of finan-
cial services bo custamens, internal deliveries are based on market
prices,

Services provided by group services and staff unils are
chasged |0 the operating segments in accordance with serice
agreements. Join! expenses which ane indescty inked 1o achhvities
in the operating segmaents. are charged to the cperating segments
an the basls of distribution fermulas.

A number of key functions and profits from acthilies not re-
lated to the operating segments’ stralegic cperalions are presented
within Qther oparaticns. This. ibem comprises income and ex-
penses relating to the banking group’s kquidity managemaent,
Income from nvestments in equity insinements not included in the
trading porticlio. interest mcome assigned tothe banking group’s
wnallocated capdlal, ownership-related expenses and income from
the management of the bani's real estate porticlio

et profits from repossessed eperations which are flly con-
sglidated in the banking group are presented as “Proft from re-
possessed cperalions” in the segment reporting. The effect of
consolidation of the repossessed companies is presented within
Oither cperations

Refum on capial is eslimated on the basis of mtemal mea-
suremenl of rsi-adjusted capital requirements. See nole 2 Seg-
mends for further infoemation about the prnciples for allocation of
capital

5. Recognition in the income statement and in
other comprehensive income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method

This imgplies ihat inferest |s recognised when incurred, with 1he

addition of amcrtised front-end fees and any other fees which are

regarded as an integral part of the effective inlerest rate

The effective interest rate is set by deccunting contractual
cash Bows based on the expecied life of the aséel. Cash flows
include front-end fees and direct bransaction cosds which are not
paid directly by the cusionmer,

Inlerest ks recognised acconding o the effective interest
meethod with respect o both balance sheet items camed ol
amartised cost and balance sheet Rems carmed o Tair value in the
Income statement, with the exception of front-end fees on loans at
fair walue, which are recognised when eamned. Inferes! on impaired
loans cofresponds 1o the effective intéras! rale on the boak valus,
met of impaimment
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“Net ather operaling income” includes, amang others, fees and
cammissions relating 1o money ransfers, perfomancasuccess
fees, cradt broking, real estale beoking, comporate finance and
seculibes services. Credl broking commissions include synd-
calbon meome in the fom of aes and cofmmissions from transact-
lions whiers DMNE Bank arrenges the loans without retaining pafs
of the loan tself or participates in a kean syndicabe and recehes
campensation in excess of the effective inberest recersed by the
ofher paicipants. Fees which are net intluded i effectve inferes]
rate calculations, as well &s commissions, are recognised during
the paricd when the services ane rendered of the ransactions are
compleled,

Perfarmantalsutcass leed ans peeogrised when (he faes with
& high degree of cenainty have been sarned and can be measwed
In & reliabie manner.

Fees that are incurred when establishing Anancial guaranbees
ane recognised ever the term of the contract within the line fem
"Met gamns on financial inslnsments at fair value”,

Diagends on imvestments are recognised from the date the
dividencts are approved al the ganeral mesting.

Inecamie from financial instruments carmied at fair value through
profit or boss |s described under Financlal imstruments, while net
Income from investment property is described under invesiment
property and fed assets.

Iterns of income and expense in clher comprehensive income
are grouped based on whethar of not they can be reclassified 1o
the income statement at & flure date

6. Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

R jon of . 3l

Financial assets and liabdities. are recognised in the balance shest
whaen the Group becomes a party to the contraclual previsions of
the instrument. Settlement date accounting is applied for fmandial
assels cassified as loans and receivables, while frade dale
secounting is applied for the cther classification categonies

Derecognition of fnancial pyeets

Financial assels are derecognised when the nghl o receive and
retain cash fows from the asset has expired or been transterred.
Thie banking group enters into certain transactions where & trans-
fers assets recognised on @s batance sheet, bt retains either all or
parts the risks and rewards of the transfemed assel. Ifall or sub-
stantiafy af of the risks and rewards are refained, the transfemred
financial assed s not derecognised from the balance sheet, but
reclassified bo separate assels o labifities refecting the rights and
obligations created o netained in the ransfer. Such ransactions
could enlail the transfer of a loan portfolio where the banking group
retaing the risks and relums a sseciated with the transferred por-
falio by guarantesing for all risks in the portfolio or entering into a
total retum swap,

Deracoonition of fnancil apililies
Financial linbilties ane devecognised when the contractunl obliga-
lions have been discharged, cancelled o have expired

Esgurchige andreverss muichass soreements

Securilies purchased under agreements 1o resell are genenally nol
recognised in the financial staternents as the risk and refums are
nermalty ot taken over by the banking group, This is done ime-
spetiive of whether the banking group has the nght to sel o re-
pledge the securiies. Upon the sale of securilies received, the
banking group recognises an obligation in the balance sheet For
muare information, see nole 32 Securties received which can be
sald or repledged,

Securities soid under agreements to repurchase are generally
nol derecognised as ihe risk and relums are nomally net irans.
ferred, This s done irespedtive of whether the recipsent i enlitled
1o Sell of repladge the secunites. These securities ate presenbad

a% seculies n the Group's balance shest and are spedfied in
note 31 Transferred assels o aetels with olher resinstions.

Secunbies borowing and lendng agreements

Transaclions mainly include equity borrewing or lending. Agnee-
ments on securilies berowing and lending are generally based on
colateral in the form of cath of Lacurilies,

Equities which have bean received or transferred in such tran-
saclions, are generaly nol recognsed o derscognised, A5 sks
and retumms associaled with oanership of the assets are nomally
naot taken over of transferred.

Equities received, including equities recerved as collateral, are
registenad off the balahce shest imespaclnege of whather the
banking group has the night 1o sell o repbedge the secunities, Upon
the sale of securities recesved, the banking group will recognise an
chligation in the balance sheel, For more information. see nobe 32
Securites received which can be scid or repledged

Tramslfemad aguilies and colaleral which the recipient is an-
titled 1o sell of repledge. ane presented as soullies of sacurities n
hee banking group’s balance sheel and are specified in note 31
Transberred assels of assets with olher restrictions.

Classilcation and presentation

O indtiaf recagnition financial assets are classified n one of the

Tolicwing categories acoordng bo the type of instrurment and the

purpose of the invesiment:

= fnancial assets held for trackng and dervatives camied af fair
witlue with ehanges in value recognised in prafit of loss
{brading pertiokic]

*  fnanciasl assets designated as af fair vabue with changes in
value recognised in profit of loss

+  fnancial darvatives designated as hedging instruments

¢  leans and receivables, camied ol amortised cost

¢ heldbematunty invesiments, carfied al amortised cost

*  financial assets avalable for sale camed sl fair value with
changes in value recognised in other comprehensive income

On initiaf recognition finonciad Babilties are classified in one of the

Tollowing categories:

*  fnancial kabdities held for trading and derivatives camed al
falr value with changes in veiue recognised in profl or loss
{trading portfolic)

v financial Babiities designated as &l fair value with changes in
value recagnised in profit o loss

v fnancial dervatives designated as hedging insbruments
*  olher financial liabilties canmed at amonised oot

Guidelines for classification in the vanious portfolics of the banking
group are gien below,

i i

Financial instruments in the rading portfclio ane initially recognised
at fair value, The fair value comesponds bo the Lransadtion price,
undess anplher value can be pstified based on obsenmble market
transactions, See the paragraph below on determining fair value al
subsequen! valualion, See the paragraph below an delermining
fadf value 81 subsequent valuation

Changes in the fair valwe of the financial instrumanis are
presented within *MNet gains on Snencial insiruments af fair value®
in the mcome statement, Interest income and inferest expenses
fromi interest beafing securilies are presented within “Met inleres
ncoms®,

Financial derivalives are presented a4 an assel if the fair value
i poditive and &5 & lability i Bhe fair value i negative,

The trading poctioie mainly includes financial assats and Ea-
bilities in Markets and financial derfvatives not used for hedge
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accounting puiposes. In addilion, the porfolia includes sacurties
Barowing and depesits thal are used actively in interast rate and
lijuidity management and hawve & shor remaining matudity.

Fif L] i

hanoes in in
Financial mstruments in the porfolio ane recognised at fair value
See the paragraph bebow o deteminang tair value al subsedquen
waluation. Financial instruments are classified in this category if
one of the following criteria ik fulfilled:

*  The dassibcation eliminates o significantly reduces measure-
Frafl oF recognition inconcislensy tha! would othersse arise
from reasuning financial assels of liabilties or recognisang
the gains and losses on them on different bases

+  The Snancial instrumenls afe part of a portfolio thal is
managed and saluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with & documenbed risk management or imvesirment strategy

Changes in fair value of the financial instruments ane presented
within "Hel gains on financiad instruments al fair value® in the in-
e daliment. Inlered! intorme and Rteres expensed on loans
designated as af fair value and other fxed-ncome securties ans
presented within "Hel inferest incomea”

The portfoiocs include commencial paper, bonds, squilbes,
fixed-rate loans in Horsegian kroner, fixed-rate $ecunties issved in
Roswegian kroner, such as ndex-linked bands and aguity-linked
bank deposts and ciher fxed-rabe Seposits in Morwegan Kroner

Fin 1

The banking group enbers inte hedging tran sactions 1o manage
interest rate rigk on long-lemn bormowings and degodits in Tareign
cirencies. These iransaclions ame recognised as Tair value
hedges. See lem Hedge accounting,

Loans and receivables camed af amerdised cost

Loans and receivables camried af amorised cost are recognised at
the Iranaaction price plis direct randachon sxpentes. Subssguenl
measurernent follows the efective mberest melhod, less any im-
pairment charges. The effsctive inlenest method is described under
Recognition in the income statement and in cther comprehensive
income.

Interast meoma on financial instruments ciadsified as lsnding =
presented within “Hed interest income” using the effective intemast
mmethad.

A decrease invalue on the balancs sheet date based on
gbjective indcations of imparment for [cans valued at amodised
et and in the potfolicd of fioad-rale [oans meadured at T8 value,
are prasenisd within “impairment of loans and guaraniess®.

‘rurd-lu-mwrl:.- nwsnnmis are cameu B ammfsu-u cost and
recognised at the transaction price plus diredt transaclion ex-
panses, Subsequan measunement fallows the sffective inlenest
methad, less any impairment changes. The effectove interest
method is described under Recognition in the income statemant
and in cther comprehenshae income.

Intere st income relating to the instruments is presented within
“Het interest income®. This category mainly comprises the inter-
national bond portiobs in DNE Markets.

annull assets inthe mnll‘nh hr sile :ﬂmsr ore unngrﬂwd
&t fair value with the subsequent change i fair value presented in
gther comprehensie income. See below aboul the detenmination
of fair value. At the time of realisation the change i fair value shall
be included as a part of the gain that is presented in the income
statement. Financial assels are classified in this category if they do

Oooooooa

nok et the cribéria fof being desdified in any of the dher cate-
goried precenied abave,

Other financipl rabaities cactied ot amontised cost
Fimanceal liabilties carmed 8l amortised cost are recognised at tha
transaction price plus dired transaclion expenses, Interesl ex-
panded on fuch instruments are presented within “Net inbensst
income” using the effective inlemest method This calegory inclides
depaosils from customers and credt instRutions, commencial paper
ssued, bonds, subordnated loan capilal and perpetual suborndi-
nated lcan capital securities

1 inl £
Contracls resulling in the banking group having o reimburse the
hoider for & |oss incuETed because B Specific deblor kaits to make
payment when dus, are classified as issued financial guaranieses,
On initial recognition. issued financial guarantess are recog-
mised at lhe considarabion received for the guaranbes. lsgued
financial guarantess are subsequently measured &l the higher of
the consideration received for the guarantes exciudng any
amortised amounts recognised inthe income statement and the
best estimate of the payment dus if the guarantee is honoured
When issuing financial guarantees, the consideration for the
guaranles is presented within the Ene ibern "Provisions” in the
balance sheet. Changes i the camying ameunt of financial
puarantess are recognised within the kne ilem “Het gains on
fnancial instruments a1 fair value®, socept for changes relaled 1o
guarantess which are pan of isans which are incividually impaired.
Changes in the value of such guarantee contracts ane recognised
wilhin the line item “Impairment of loans and guaraniess”

hsuud adubmﬁ Tier 1 capital ﬂwr.lm-nls ane u'rmnmni whiene
[DHEB Bank has a unilaberal nght ned to repay interest or the pring-
pal lo the investors. As a consequence of these terms, the instru-
ments g not meet the requirements for a liability and are therefore
presented on the ine Addticnal Tier 1 capital within the banking
group's equity. Transaction expenses and pcorued interes! are
presented as a reduction in Other squity. while the acvantage of
tha tax deduction for the mberest will give an increase & Clher
equity.

Equity in forelgn currency shall be converted bo Norwegian
kroner based on the exchange rabe on the ransaction dafe and is
nck subject bo subsequent revaluation

Offsetting

Financial assels and financial lakilities are offsed and presented
net in the balance sheel when the banking group has & legally
enforceable right to offset recognised amounts and has agreed to
settle the balances on a net basis or (o realise the assel and seltle
the liabilty simutanecusly. Masier nelting agreements or similar
agreements ghee the right to offsed in the event of defaul. Such
agreemaents reduce the banking greup’s exposure in the event of
default, bul do not on their cwn quality for offsetling in accordance
with IFRS, a5 there also needs. to be an intention to settie the
coniraciual cash flows net on an ongoing basis. See nole 29
Orftseiting for details about the financial assels and Snancial
ligbilities subject bo offsetling agreements.

Determination of falr value

Fairvalue i the price thal would be received by selling an assel o
paid to transter & Bability in an orderly ansaction between market
participants ol ihe measurernent date, Financial assels and liabdi-
ties in active markels are measured ol the prce within the bid-ask
spread thal is most representatiee of the fair value ol the measure-
ment date, In mos cases bid or asking prices fof these instru-
rrvends are the mosd representabive price for assels and labililies
respectively, Derfvatives which are camied net are recognised at
rickriasiosl prices al the balance shest date,
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Financial mstruments measured al fair valpe are vilued on a
daily basis with the exceplion of & baw handal Bstrumants that
are valued o @ manthly o quarterhy basis. As far 85 podsible,
dire cliy obsarvalile market prces ane used. Valuations of the
wanous types of financkal insiriments ars based on well-
scknowledged lechnbques and madels, The prices and input
parameters used are contralled and assessed based on
established reulines and confirol procedures,

The contred environment for fair value measurement of
fimancial imsirumens is an intagrated part of e company’s
financial reporting. A number of controls are camed cut on a daily
basis, including controls of the day-one results on iraded poditions
and conlrals of the key inpul parareters in the valiation. Al the
end of each month and quaner, sxiended contrels are canmed out
b ensLne that the valuations ane consistent with the Lirg
palicy for fair value including variaticn analyses. Special emphasis
Is placed on valuations in the level 3 in the valeation hierarchy,
whete (he effects may be signifcant of pasticulanty chalenging

Instryments traded in g0 sctive market

With respact to instrements raded i an achve marke!. guoled
peices are used, obtained from & siock exchange, a broker or 8
peice-seting agency.

A markel is considered actree if it is possible o oblasn exbernal,
observable prces, exchange rafes of interest rales and thess
petces represent actual end frequent markel ransactions.

Some Investments in equilies and commercial paper and
bends are iraded in active markels,

Inshuments not traded in an aetive mackel

Financial instruments not traded in an active markel are vahied

acconding o differen! valuation fechnigues and are divided into bwo

calegories:

Valuation based on obsarvable marked dala;

s recenlly chsended transactions in the relevant instrument
betaeen informed, willing and independent paries

*  indtrurnents iradedin an active maket which are substantially
simdlar ko the sstrumeant hat is valued

. offver valiabion techneques where Key paramelers ane based
on obdervable madkel dala.

Waluation bated on olher faclars than obsanrable markel dala:
L] estimal ed cash flows
*  waluation of assels and kabil%ies in companies

*  models whers key paramelers are not based on cbienable
market data

*  possible indusitry standards

In the valuabion of OTC dervalives, a fair value adjustment is
made for the counterparty’s cred® risk (CWiA) and for the banking
group’s cwn credit risk (DVA), In addition, an sdustment is made
for expected funding costs (FulA),

The banking group estimates CVA 0% o fundlion of a simulated
expected positive exposure, the counterparty’s probability of de-
faull and loss ghven defaull. The majority of the banking group’s
derivative counterparties have no market-impled credit spread and
no exfternal rating. Internal ratings are therefore combined with
hisstonical credd default swap (CDS) spreads as well as current
COS index prices bo amive at the counterparty's edlimated COS
spreads, This meand thal the banking group uses its own chadd
madels and their discriminatony power, bul calibrabes against
pricing levels for similar credit risk in the market. The DVA s based
on the same approach, using an assessment of the banking
group's credit $presd

Fua reflects the estimated present valee of the future funding
Losls associabed with funding uncallaterslised derivalive ai-
posures. i i3 caleulated by applying & funding spread sbove he
ipatled exposure. Funding benests are nol estimated for posi-
tions fof which DMB caleulates DA

For fnancial instruments measured by using valuation
techaiques, & gain of 1035 might from lime bo time occur al imitial
recogilion when the eslimated far value is dfferent from the
actual ransaclion price, When the measwrement |s based on non-
phsarable inpul pararmeters (level 3), the gain or loss is deferred
and therefone ot recognised af day one. Fair value changes in
Ealer period are anly recognised bo the extent the change is caused
by factors Ehal markal pamticipants would 1ake inlo astou il

Impalement of financial assets

At end of each reporting peried, the banking greup consider
whether any cbective evidence of Impairment exist as & resul of
one ol more events have taken place after initial recagnilion (loss
denl) and thi loss event has mpac on the estimated Tutuse cash
florws A financial asset or group of financial assets s impaired |f
there |s any obgecthe svidence of impaimnent. Objective indica-
tions of impainment include an assessmand of the following loss
avenis:

*  serious finencial problems on the part of the debter,
' non-pRyment of oher sences breaches of contract.

& the probabiliby thst the debler will enter inbo debt negatiations
o

*  olher special circumstances thal have occumed.

Renegatiation of loan lerms to ease the position of the bomower
quilifes 05 & loss event,

| i i

If chjective evidence of mpairment exigls. mpainment of Ioans is
caloulated o the diference between the camying amount and the
nel present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the
origngl effective inlerest rale,

The business areas calcubale estimated fulure cash Nows
based on developments in the exposure, past expenence with the
deblor, the probable outcome of negotintions and expecled macdre-
economic frends that will infuence the customer's cash flow, In
addifion, the probabilty of debt satiement procesdings and bank-
muplcies is taken inlo consideratian, including the probability that
agsets provided a3 colaleral will be foreclosed. YWhen measunng
coliaterals. recognised melhods for measuring underying assets
are used

Individual impairment of loans reduces the camying amaount of
Beans ahd guarantees Impasment during the paned 14 recognised
a3 “Impairment of loans and guararess® in proft of loss,

Lollective impairment of icens

Loans which are not indhvidually impained are assessed collectvely
for Eripainment. The gddetiment is bated on whelher cbhjsctive
wddence of mpairment exists thal can ba related 1o a group of
fin-amcial assels.

Lesans ane grouped on the basis of similar credit sk charae-
teridfics and in accordance with the division of cuslamers into
Seclars of indusiries and ridk categaries. Impakment is estirmabed
per group of inancial assels based on estimates of the general
economic siluation and loss experience for the respective groups.

Collsetive impaiment reduces the camygng amount of the kne
e "Loans to customers® in the balance sheet. Changes during
the period are recognised wilhin the line itsm “Impaimmsent of loans
A guaramees® in the incorme stalement. LKe indnadual mpa-
menl, colfective mpaimment 5 dscounted The descount factor S
based on slatslics derived from indnsdual mmpainment.
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Repossession of apsely

Astets which afe repodsessed as part of the rmanagement of non-
perfaring and impaired loans ane recognised at tair valus a1 the
time of acquisiteon, Such assels are recagnised in the balancs
sheet according bo the nalune of the assel. Any difference batwesn
the carrying amount of the loan and the fan value of the asssl is
pres anted within the line ivem “Irpairment of loans and Quansn-
teed” in the incame stalament. Subsequent valralions and presen-
tation of 1he impact 1o the incorme stateren] follow the prnciples
for thie nalevant balance sheed bam.

Hedge accounting

When instrurents are individually hedged, there 1S a dear, drect
and documented cormeiation betwesn changes in the value of Ihe
hedged flem resulting from he hedged risk and changes in the
walue of the financal dedivative (hedgng instnament).

Upon entering into the hedging relaticnship, the comelation
Batween the hedged e and the hedging instaument is dosu-
miented. in addition_ the underhing risk manapement objsclive and
sirategy are docurnented Changes in Taer value related to the
hedged risk of the hadged item and instnament are svaluated
pericdically bo ensure the necessary hedge effectiveness. Hedging
instruments are reccgnised 8 fair valee i the financial sialements
and changes in the far value ane presenbed within "Net gans on
financial instruments at Tair vabue® in the income statermsnt.

For fair value hedging, the changes in the fair value of the
hedged ilem atiibutable to the hedged risk will be recognised as
an addition 1o or dedwction from the balence sheel value of finan-
cial Babilties and assets and presented within *Met gains on
financial mstruments at fair vabue" in the income statement,

I ther hedpe refatbonship ceases o adeguale hedge effec-
tiveness canncd be verified, the accumulated change in fair value
of the hedged item ks amorlised cver the remaining maburity,

The banking greup undertakes hedging of investments in
foreign subsidiaries to eliminate the currency nsk on the imested
amount. Hedging transactions are in the form of cumency swaps o
feng-term bomowings in foreign currency. bn the consalidated
finamcial statement, the hedge relafionships are presented as
hedging of net investments in intematicnal operations.

7. Investment praperty and fixed assets
Properties heid to generate profits (hrough rental income of for an
increase in value. are presented in the balance sheet as mest-
ment property, Other tangible assets are presented as fied assels
in the balance sheet,

On initial recognition. investment properies are measured at
cost inchading acquisition costs.

In subsequent periods. investment properties ane measured al
fair value, Therefore, no snnual depreciation 5 made on an imes-
ment property. Fair value is detemined by using well-acknoas
ledged valualion lechniques. internal and external experise is
wsed for valuahions. A selection of extemnal appraisals are chlained
and compared 'wigh internal valuations for control purposes.
Prowviders of valualions are also followed up on an ongoing basis
through dinlogue and engquiries concerning the waluation of indi-
widunl properties. Changes in fair value of investment property are
recagnised within the Ine lem "Het gaing on invesimen] propery”
in the income statement

Ciher tangible assets are measured ol cost less accumulaled
depreciation and impairment lesses. Cost includes expenses
direcily related to the acquisition of the assel, Subsequent ex-
penses are capialised on the rebevant assets when it is probable
thist future economas benefils associaled with the expenditure will
s 1o DHB Bank and can be measured reliably. Expenses for
repairs and maintenance are recognised in the income statement
a5 they oo,

The residual values and uselul fves of the assels are reviewed
annualty and acusted if required, Gains and losses on the sale of

Oooooooa

fored assels afe recognised within the line term “Net gain on fixed
and intangpisle aceats” in the income datemenl

8. Intangible assets

Gaoodwill

Goodwill is inftially measured 8l the acquisition date, as the excess
of the aggregate of the cansideration transfered and the amount
recognised for any non-comiraling inberest oser the tair value of the
identifable assets acquired and kabilties assurved in & busness
combination. Goadwill acquired is allecated Lo each cash gene-
rading unit. of group of units, expected to beneft from lhe combina-
ion's symergies. Following inibal recogntion, goodwill i% measuned
&l eost leds ary accumilaled impairmeant losses.

Development of IT systems and soltware

Acquired software is recognesed al cost with the addition of ex-
penses incumed bo make the software ready for use. [dentifable
ceats far imtamally develaped sotware controllad by the banking
group whens it is probable that econamnic banefits will cover deve-
lopment expenses al the balance sheel dale, are recognised as
irangible aseets. When assessing batance sheel values, the
economic benefits are evaluated on the basis of profitabilty ana-
tyses. Cevelopment expenses include cxpenses covening pay to
amployess dirsctly invobved inthe progect, maberials and a share of
directly refated overnead expenses. Expenses retaling 1o main-
tenance of software and IT systems are charged 1o the incorme
statement a5 they ocour. Softwane expenses recognised in the
balance sheet are depreciated according to a straight line pinciple
over their expected useful Be. usually e years. The assessment
fior whether there is a nesd for impairment is considersd acconding
tothe principles descrbed below,

9. Impairment of fixed and intangible assets

At end of each reporting period the banking group considers
whether any indication of impairment of fed or intangitle assels
axists. i such indication exisls, the recoverabbe amount of the
asset ks calculated to estimate possibée impairment, Goodwill and
intangible assots with an indefinde usetul lite are tested for Impair-
meend mindmum once 8 year even if ne indcaticn of impairment
exists. DNB has chosen to perform this annual lest in the fourth
quarter.

Thee recowerable amount represents the higher of an assets
fair value bess costs lo sell and its value in use. H the assel's
carrying amount excesds the estimated recoverable amount, the
asset is written down bo s recoverable amount. See nole 37 infan-
gible assels for descoption of impaimment testing.

The folicwing relevant crilena are considersd when assessing
whether indications of impaimen exists:

*  adeciing in ihe asset's masket value

»  changes in the long-termn return requirement which may affect
the discount rate used in the calculation of the asset’s value
I use

& plans ko restructure of iguidate the assel
v e assel generates less incorme than anticipated,

Calculations of value in use are based on historical resulls and
plan figures approved by management. On the basis of plan
figures for the cash-generating units. a fulure cash fiow is esti-
maled, defined as the potential refurn to the owner. The return
includes profits from the cash-generating unil adjusied for the need
bo build sufficient capital to meet expected fulure capital adequacy
requirernents. Higher capital requirements due lo expanded operes
Bons could make it necessary to retain part of the profits or 1o
inject more capltal from the owner, if profits from the cash-geners-
ting unit are not adequate to build the necessary copfinl, Beyond
the plan penod, which is thres years, cash flow trends are
assurned to reflect market expectations for the bype of cperabions
carned sul by the cash-parerating unil. Fuluhe axpecied cash
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flcws are established for a ten year period where the Gondons
prowth formule is used o eslimate (he larminal valie bo ba in-
cluded,

The required rate of return 4 based on an assessment of the
markals required rate of retum for the type of cperalions carmad
out by the cash-generating unil. The required rate of relum refects
I rigk of the oparalions.

10. Pensions

DOME has colniry-specific pension schemes fof ils employess. In
Horway. ONE has a defined-confribulion pension scheme. in 2015
and 2018, the pansion schemes was by and large comverted from a
definad-banefil pension sthema 1o defined-conlibubion pandion
scheme. In that connection, an unfunded compansation scheme
was established. See nobe 24 Pension s for more infoemmation.

Defined-contribution pension schemes

Unier defined-conlribution pangien schemes 1he Banking group
doss nal commit #sell to paying specified fulure pension benefits,
bt makes annual conlributions to the employees’ pension savngs.
Fulure pansions will depend on the size of annual contributions
and the annual reburm on pension savings. After paying annual
coniribulions, the banking group has no further commitments.
linked b employess’ work performance. The expenses Tollowing
from the defined-coniribution pension schermes are recagnised in
the income statement

Defined-benefit pension schemes

Pension expenses are calculated based on a linear distribution of
pension entibements measursd against estimated accumaulated
commaments al the tme of retirement. Penshon commitments ane
malched against the pension funds in the schemes. Pension
commiments are estimabed based en the present value of esti-
maled fulure pensbon payments at the balance sheet date, The
calculation of the pension commatments is based on acluadal and
econamic assumplions about life expectancy. rise in salanes and
sarty retirement. The discount rate used is determined by refe-
rence tothe yvield on covered bonds af the balance sheet date.
plus an add-on that reflects the relevant duraticn of the pension
commiiments

11. Income tax
Taxes for the year comprise payable laxes for the fnancial year,
any payabde taoes Tor previous years and changes in deferred
taxes on temporary differences. Temporary differences are differ-
rences between the camying amount of an asset o kabilty and the
taxable value of the asset or lisbility. The most significant termpo-
rary differences refer lo changes in the fasr value of financial
as5els ond linbilgies, pension obligations, depreciation of fixed
assels and properties and impaimmend losses for goodwill, Deferred
taxes are caloulated on the basis of fax rales and tax rules that are
applied on the balance sheet date o are highly likety to be app-
rowed and are expected o be applicable when the deferred bax
assel is realised or the defered tax linbility setiled

Dederred lax assels are recognised in the balance sheet 1o the
exient that it is probable that fulure taxcable income will be avail-
able againgt which they can be utiised. Deferred taxes and de-
ferred tax assets within the same lax group are presented net in
Ihe balance sheet

Taxes payable and deferred taxes relafing to elements of other
comprehensive intome are presented net along with the related
Income of cosl in the comprehensive income stalement,
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12. Provisions
Provisions ara resogrased when i is probabie that the DNE Bank
will need o satile a present obligation i connechion with a past
evenl, and it an be refiably estimated

I restructuring plans that change the scops of the banking
group's operation of the way the banking group caries oo its
operalion ane approved and communicated to the affected
employess, the need for restructuring provisions s considersd.
This inchuides presdsions for agreements on Severance packages
with ermployess when used a5 pan of the restructuring. The prow-
sions are reviewed on each reporting date and ane reversed as
expenses ane incumed.

Prondsions are meadured at best sslimate, reviswed on sath
reporling date and sfusied &8 nEcESSARY.

13. Leasing

Alease s classified as a fmance lease it iransfers substanbally
all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership. Other leases ahe
classified as operaling leases

OME Bank as lessor

Dperating leases

Operating leases are leases whese not an inssgnificant share of the
fis% and rewards relating to the invesiment in the leasad obpect
acgnues bo DNE Bank af the end of the lease perod. Operating
assets are recognised as foed assels i the balance sheet. kn-
come from operating leases is recognised over the bease termn o a
siraighl-Ene basis. Depreciation of the fived assels is presenied as
ordinary depreciaticn in the income statement.

Einancipl leases

Financial leases are presented as lending in the balance shesl,
and a1 inception the lease is measured al an amound equal to the
ned investmeent in the lease. The net invesimenl represents mind
mum lease payments. unguaranteed residual values and any
drect expenses incumed by the lessor innegotiabing the lease,
discounied by the implich mberes? rate (intemal rate of return).
Leasing income is recegnésed in the income statement according
fo the annuity method, where the interest component is recognised
within the line Bermn “Net infterest i = while inst reduce
the balance sheet value of the loan,

DME Bank as lessee

Dpersiing leases

Lease payments are recognised in the income stalerment as an
expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease lem unless
anciher systematic basis |5 more representalive of the time pattem
of OB Bank's use of the asset

14. Cash flow statements

The cash flow stalements show cash flows grouped acconding 1o
source and use. The cash Sows are presanded 85 cperabng active-
ties, investment acthvities or funding activities. Cash is defined as
cash, deposils with central banks and deposils with credit insti-
fution$ with no agreed period of notice. The cash fiow stalement
has been prepared in accordance with the direct methad.

15. Dividends

Proposed dividends are part of equity unill approved by the
genernl mesling. Al that time, the dividend is presented a3 linbilty
in the financial siatement, Proposed diidends are nol included in
copital adequacy calculations
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16, Apagmad standards and intﬂmtﬂlﬂnﬁ
have not entered into fo

By the end of 2017 the LASE had published & numher of amend-

ments 1o current regulations which have not entered nlo force

Balew is & deserplion of the amendments which may have impas

on the banking group's future reporting

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASE issued the new standard for financial

instrurments IFRS 8 Financial Inttruments. The néw standarnd s

effective from 1 Janiary 2018 and replaces the current LAS 38,
The IFRS & actounting principles and disclosures on ransdion

are presented in nole 45,

IFRS 15 Revenue from confracts with customers

IFRS 15 was published by he ASE in May 2014 and establishes
& new fve-step model that will apply 10 revenue ansing from con-
tracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue (s recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration lowhich an enlity expects lo
ba entilled in exchange for ransfeming goods o senicesioa
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a mone structured
approach Lo measuring and recognising revenue.

The nerw revenus slandard 5 apphcable bo all entites and will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirsmants under
IFRS. Contracis with cusicmers that will be accounted for in accor-
dance with the IFRS 9 Financial instruments shal however follow
the requirements in IFRS 9 as they are scoped oul of IFRS 15

IFRS 15 will be effectnee a5 of 1 January 2018 and the
standard was endorsed by the EU in September 2016, The
banking group has analysed the impact of the new niles. No
significant changes have been identified in the way the banking
Group recognises revenues. The banking group will appiy the
standard frorm 2018

IFRS 16 Leases

In January 2016, the LASE issued the new standard IFRS 16
“Leases”. The new stendard will have large implications for
lessees. 85 all leases (wilh the exception of shor-term leases and
wmal asset lsases) will be recognised in the balance sheet asa
right-of-use assel with & comesponding liablity. Al indtial receg-
nition, the [ease habity and the right-of-use assel are measured
ot the present value of fulure lease payments. Lease payments
shiall be récognised as interes! expenses and amorisations. The
accounting requirements for lessors are unchanged.

IFRS 16 was endorsed by the EU in October 2017 and will be
eifective from 1 January 2099, The banking group has started to
analyse lhe consequences of the new standard, The major part of
the banking group’s lease liabdities arises Fom lenses on comer
cinl read esiate and IT equipment. It is too early o ghve o reliable
estimate of ihe effects on the banking group’s finencial statements
when {he banking group acts as lessee. The banking group will
apply the standard from 2018

17. Important accounting estimates, judgments
and assumptions

When preparing the consalidated financial stalements, manage-
ment makes estimates, judgment and assumptions that affec the
application of the accounting prnciples and the carmying smount of
assets, fabddies, incoms and expenses. Estimates and assump.
tions are subdect to continual evalustion and are based an histor-
cad expenence and other factors, including eapectations of fulure
events that are beleved 1o be probable on the balance sheet date.

Impairment of loans

Estirnates of fulure cash flows are based on empinical dals and
menagement's judgment of fulure Mmadrestonomic develapments
nnd developments in the perfermance of the aciual loans and on
the siluation al the balance sheet dale. The estimates are the
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resul of B process which involves the business areas and central
creci units and repredents Fanagerment's best afimate

When considering impairmand of leans, thene will be savenal
elernents of uncemainty with respect bo the identification of objee-
brvie edtdience of Enpairment, the estimation of amounts and the
taming of Bubure cash flows, including the valualion of collateral,
Sme note 5 Credit sk for information about management and
follow-up of cradi risk.

Individual impainrient

‘When estimating impaiment of indhidual loans Bnd guarantess,
both e currend and the fulure Snancial postions of the cuslamer
ahe considered. For corporale customens, e pravailing rarnk st
situation is alsa reviewesd, along with market condlions within the
redbevant industry and general marked condiions which could affect
the custorvers’ ability to repary the loans. bn addibion, the probability
and cutcome of restructunng, refinancing and re-capalsation are
takcer inlo aeeaunl, as wall as the probabiily of bamkrupleies and
the possible foreciosure of assels provided as collalesal. There is
uncertainty related to the valuation of collabaral for which no cbser-
wable markel dala are avallable. An cverall assessment of these
factors foarms the basis for estimating the future cash fow. In the
event of a profonged weak sconemic trend in cerain industries
andfor geographical areas, the application of jidgensent and esti-
malions are mofe demanding. The dscount period is estimated on
an individual basis of based o empeecal data about the penod &
norrmally bakes (o reach & sclution bo ihe problems that caused the
chjective indication of impaimment.

Sollective impairment

Thie expected future cash fow is estimated on the basis of ex-
pected losses and the anbicipated economic situation for the
respactive groups. Expected losses are based on histerical loss
gxperience for the relevant groups. The economic siluation is
assessed by means of economic indicators for each group based
on exiemal information about the markets. \Vancus parameters ane
used depandng on the group in question. Key paramelers are
production gaps, which give an indication of capacity ublisation in
the economy. housing prices, of prices, salmon prices and
shipping freighl rates. The economic indicators that are used show
a high degree of correlation with historical impaimment. To estimate
the net present value of expected fubure cash Bows for loans sub-
ject to collectrve impaimment. 8 dscount factor based on observed
empirical date from individually evaluated loans is used.

Fair value of financlal derivatives and other financial
Instruments

The fair value of financial mstruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using different valuation techni-
ques. The banking group considers and chooses technigues and
assumplions that as far &s possible are based on chsenmable
markel data representing the markel condtions on the balance
sheet date, When measuring financiad instrumenis for which
cbsenable marked data are not available, the banking group
rrnkes assumptions regarding what market participants would use
a5 the basis for valuing similas financial mstruments. The value-
tions require application of significant judgment when calculabing
liquidity risk, credt risk and volaliity among others. Changes in
hese factors would affect the estimated fair walug of the banking
group’s financial instruments. For moee information see nole 28
Financaal insirements at tair value

DHE BANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2007 /

270/386



Inceme taxes, including deferred tax assels and uncertain
tax liabilities

The banking group is subjsct to oome taxes in a rumber of junis-
dictions. Significant judgment is reguired in determining the income
tax in e consolidated financial salaments, including asgess.
ments of recognised defermed tax assets and uncetan tax lia-
belities.

Dedarad lax assats ane recognised tothe sxtent it IS prabable
that the banking group will have falure taxable income against
which they can be ullised, Exientive attesments must be made
to deterine the amouni which can be recognised, included the
expacted e of utilisabion, the level of profts computed for tax

EDINETOOOO
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purposes a3 well as sirategies for tax planning and the existence
of tamble ernporary differsnces.

There will be uncenainty relaled io the final bax lability for
many transachons and calculations. The banking Qroup recognises
Eabibtias related Lo the fulure autcome of tax dspules based on
estimates of changed income lames, When assessing the uncedtain
tax liabilRies 1o be recognised in the bafance shes, the probability
of the liabilty arising = conssdered. If the final outeoms of the tax
disputes deviates Trom the amounts recognised in the balance
sheel, ihe deviations will Enpact the inceme tax expense in the
mcome statement for the applcable period.
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Note 2 Segments

Financial govemance in DNE 5 geared to the difersnt customer segrments. The fabow-up of total customer relationships and sagment
prefitabaly afe bwo imparlant demensions when making stralegic prerilies and decidng where 1o allocabe the Bankang greup’s resources. Specal
product Breas ane responsitde for production and development for parts of the produel range and for ensuring that the banking group meels the
needs of the various customer segments. Reporbed fgures for the different segrmients will reflact the banking greup’s total sales of products and
senaces (o the relevant customer segmants. DNEs Ballic operalion becama part of & joint vanture wilh Nardea fram 1 Oclober 2017, The Balte
operalion was past of the Large corporates and infemational customens segmenl up unt this date. Follwing ihe reorganisabion announced in
Sapiernber 2016, the DNE Bank Group has changed s distribution of the prof from DNE Finans” aperations betwean the three cusiomer
segments. As of 1. January 2017, profit from DNEB Finans” operalbons in Sweden are dvided belween the personal customer sagment. the small
and medum-szed enterprises segmenl and the large corperabes and international customers segevend. Frofit from DNB Finans” cperations in
Danmatk ase divided between the small and medum-sized enberprises segrment and the largs coporales and intemational customers segment.
Prendously, profits from [ese operations ware ncuded in he langs coporates and intem ational customears segnenl. The detribution of proft
from DHE Finans' operations in Noreay on e various sepments s also bean changed Figures for 2016 have Deen adusted
Correspondinghy.

Personal custemers inclndes the banking group’s total products and acthlles bo private cuslomens in all channels, bolh digital and
phiysical. DHE offers a wide renge of preducts through Norwsy's langest dstnbution network, comprising
branches, telephone banking (24/7 ). digial banking, real estate broking as well 85 exlemal channels (post
affces and in-store postal and banking outiels). Credit cards and consurer financing in Sweden are alss

included in this business ares.

Small end medum-sized - s responsible for product sales and advisony sendoes Lo small and medum-sized enterprises in Norway

enbemrises Cusbomers in this segment range from small businesses and star-up companées Lo relatively large copomte
customers, and the product offerings are adapted to the customers’ dfferent needs. Small and medium-sized
enterprises are served (hrough the banking group's physkcat distibulion network throughout Horway as well as
digital and telephone banking (24/7). Factonng. beasing and asset financing for small and medum-sized
enerprises in Sweden and Denmari sre also included in this business area

Large corporales and = includes large Norweglan and international conporate customers. Operations are based on sound industry

International cusiomers expertise and long-term cuslomer redationships.

Trading - incledes market making and cther tradng acthvities in foed income, cumencies and commaodities (FICC) as well
a5 aquities._ including risk management of the risk inherent in customer trensachions. Markels' trading acthvities
suppor the customer activities.

The income slatement and balance shest fof the segments have been prepared on the bass of inbernal financial reporing for the functionad
grganisation of the ONB Bank Group into segments, as reparted to group management (chiel operating declsion maker) for an assessment of
clument develapments and the allocation of resources. Figures Tor sagments are based on the banking group's accounting principles and DHB's
management model. Allecation of costs and capiial between segments invohves a rumber of assumptions, estimates and discretionany
distnitions

Capllal afecated 1o the segmaents i5 calcutated on the basks of the DNE bank group’s comman equity Tier 1 captal and long-term capitalisation
amibition. The allocation of capital to all units s based on the banking group's adapiation to Basel ||| with capital requirement relaled Lo credt
sk, marked risk and operational sk, The eflocation of captal for credd sk is based en the DNE bank group's internal measurerment of risk-
adiusted caplial reguirements for crec. Capltal requirements for meaked risk are aBooated dnectly in accordance with risk-welghbed volume, and
cperational risk is allocated based on the respective units’ total Income
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Note 2 Segments (continued)
Balance shests OMB Bank Group
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17 DNE's Babic operation became pad of & joint venture wilt: Modes from | October 2017, The Sabic operation was part of the Lange corporates and infemational
custovmens Seqment up witd this date. Losns fo &00 Sposts fomm cusiomers i e Balcs vwave nclued under Lange COMoniles and' intamational cusfomess a3
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COther operations/eliminations

Cther operationsleliminations include IT, Pecple & Operations, Group Finance including Group Treasury, Risk Management, Media &
Marketing, Compliance, Hew Business. the parliaily owned comparry Eksportfinans and investments in IT infrastruciure. In acdition, Cther
aperationa/eliminations include that par of the banking group's equity thal is not allacated 1o the segments. Profits from repossessed aparabions
which are fully consoldated in the DNB Bank Group are presented nel under “Prodt from repossessed operations® in the internal feperting of
segments. The acquired companies and all intra-group eliminabions are included in Cther cperalionsfeliminabions.

Ir thi third quarter of 2017 NOK 754 milton wa s reccgnited &5 Net gaint on fixed and intangibte asasls and presentsd within the Cther
aperationsfeliminalions fellowing the eslablishment of Vipps AS and the agreement DNB entered inlawill 105 olher Norwegian banks, DHB will
Iltier & iarship interest in the new legal enbity (Wipps AS) of close 10 52 per ceni. However, due ta the lerms and condians in the
shareholder agraement, it has been decidad to define \Vipps AS &5 an associaled company and the company is consolidated in DNE acconding
to the equity method. DNE can vobe for 49 9 per cent 8t the General Meeting, and has thres of seven board memoers
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Note 2 Segments (continued)
Geographic areas
Incame statemant CHE Bank Group
Filamatord £ ks
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Product information
See ncte 17 Net interest income. nobe 18 Interes! rates on selected balance sheet llems, note 15 Net commission and fee for further information
on produss.

Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy

The DHB Group séms to maintain a managermant buffer of appeoamately 1.0 percentage point in addtion to the totel reguistory commen equity
Tier 1 {CET1) capital ralio. The object of the managemant buffer is o cushion against Buchualions in nsk-weighted assets gnd aamings that can
coour Bs B resull of, for example, exchange rate movements or changes in credt spreads, and thereby enabie the Group 1o maintain nomal
growih in lending and & predictable dhidend policy. Al year-end 2017, the total regulstory CETYT capital ratio requirement was 15.2 per cent.
DHB's inbermal target was 16.1 per cenl. The capitalisation targets refale tothe Group's rsk-weighled assels al any given lirme. Norwegian
banks are subject 1o a fransiionsl rule for capeal adeguacy calculations, which stipulates thal tetal rsk-weighted assets cannol be redusced
below 80 per cent of the comespondng figure calculated according o the Basel | reguiations

Al year-and 2017, the DNE Bank Group had 8 CETY capital retio of 16.2 per cent and a capital adequacy rabio of 2005 per cent, compared with
15.7 per cent and 20.0 per cent, respeciively, a year sariier. Risk-weighted assels camae to NOK 1 015 billien at year-end 2017, compared with
ROK 1 041 billion the year before

DHE Bank ASA hada CET1 capilal ralio of 17.7 per cent al year-end 2017, compared with 19.1 per cont @ year earer. The caplal adequacy
ratic was 23.0 per cent at year-snd 2017, compared with 24,8 per cent & year easlisr

Al year-end 2017, DNB Bolighredl AS had & CET1 capital ratio of 166 per cent and & cepital adequacy rabio of 18.5 per cent, caleulated
Bccording bo the transitional nutes fior nsk-welghted assets. if the ransitional nules were not applied, DNE Boligkredit's CET1 capital ratio and
capital adegquacy ratio would have been 21.4 and 24.0 per cenl. respectively, al year-end 2017

As a supplement to the risk-weighted capiial adequacy regme. the Basel Commities introduced & new capital measure, Teverage ralic”

of nan-risk based CET1 capdial ratio. The Morwegian Menistry of Finance has saf a mininum reguirernent for the lverage rath in creda
instfutions and investment firms in Noreay that sntered inte effect as of 30 June 2017, calculabed on the basis of CET1 capital incleding
addtional Tier 1 capiltal, The basis of calculation consists of assels and off-batance sheel tems comverted by means of the conversion factors
used in the standardised approach for calculating ordinary capital adeguacy. In addtion, scme specisl adjustiments are made for dervatves
and repa iransactions. Inserance operations are nol included. The definftions of capital and the basis of calculation are in conformity with
international ules, The Horweginn leverage rabio requirement consksts of a minimum requirement of 3 per cent that will apply bo all financial
instfulions, a mandatony 2 per cent buffer for banks and an addtional mandatory buffer of 1 per cent for systematicaly imporiant benks. DNB
s Ihe only instifution in Monway that will be required 19 have a beverage rabio of 6 per cent

The DNB Bank Group calculates ils leverage ratiain accordance with the revised article 429 of the CRR, and the European Commission
Reguiaticn that entered info force on 18 January 2015, Al year-end 2017, the Bank Geoup's lewerage ratic was 6.5 per cent, companed with 7.1
per cent a year sarlier. DNE meels the minimum requirement of & per cent by a wide margin
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Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy {continued)

Capital adequacy

Capital adequacy is calculated and repocted in accondance with Norwegian regulstions, which are broady in Bne with the EL capilal require-
ments regulations for credil inslitulions and invesiment Bms (CRD NMCRR)L The reguiatory consdidation deviates from consdidation in the
ateounts and comprses the parent company, subsickanes and sssociated companies wilthin the financial sector. Associaled companses are
consolidated prorata.

OB Bank ASA Primary capital Ofils Bank Growp
31 Dec 31 Dus, 31 Deg 31 Dec,
2018 2017 Amourts in NOK millen aF ot
1 104 1843 720 Total squity 2 il 1=y ]
Efest from negulatony contolidaton 165 {181y
{15 574) {I5ET4) HAddivonal Tier 1 capiial svpinenenis inzluded in iotal eguby 1556743 {155674)
12_'9!] {-ﬂ Mol moorund niees on addtional Ther 1 cn nstruments HE EL
16 28 183 168 Common squity Tier 1 capital estraments 187 L8 174 s
Degurtom
Paariitn lunch Bbivi pansst commibimenty
{2800y {2404 Goodwill [rd=.H {2 868)
234) B2y Dabsmad i avssby that ars niot dus b lemporary AMsrencen (L1 [T ]
L] [LREI ] Other intangbie sveets it aap 1]
Grocp eoesibution, payabie (15 B4 {5 0B)
(1] 8513 Expecied losses axcesding actual bosses, IRE portolios (£ 8: 1] {163
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fudustments for unreafised lossesgains) anising from S institution's oen
{580 481 credr fak delalnd b derhoalres habillies (VA [iLE ] (155
147 4T 147 851 Common equity Tier 1 capital 164 431 153 i
1741 15 674 Additional Tier 1 capdal insnaments 1% 674 17 471
164 08 163 425 Ties 1 capital 180 005 160 850
Se0z 5351 Perpetunl wboidnnlig lpan capial 5351 5602
21 248 3 gAY Term subsrdinated loan cogetal T3 EET 21 248
26 851 5 248 Theer 2 cmpital o fre| 6 851
161 TEh 192 &R Total sligible capial ot Fax] 207 T
T334 35 908 [Frk-waighted volume, ransutianal ules 1044 853 ¥ 0l 68
Bi960 65870 Menimum ¢ptsl guiremect, vansiicnal ey BHi7s @32
181 177 Common eguty Tier 1 capital rabio, ransitonal rules (%) 152 187
2.3 195 T § copital rntio, transioral nabes (% 17T 174
8 FrR Caphal reta tanuticnsl ruley (W) me ;a

20 1 DNB BANK - ANNUAL REPORT 2087

275/386



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000o000o0o00o0ooo0000ondnE26109)
Oooooooa

Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy {continued)

Basel Il
The rajeety of the credt porfoios are reported accondng 1o the IRE approach, However, one portiolo, banks and fnancial nsttutions
{DHE Bank ) ks shil sibjed to final IRE approval from Finanshisynel

Spocification of risk-wnighied volume and capltsl requirements DME Bank ASA
derur g
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Total credit risk 1871 838 1 618 gad 478 i ] EE1TH 63 Quf
Blarkal riak
[Peaiton rak, disbl insdnaments 078 1 820 1855
Petiton sk, Squity Miliumans facrd b4 ]
Curency risk
Commodity figk o 2 -]
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Testal mrarkst ek 3 83T 2531 2 Be0
_Operntonal rok il s G170 5 865
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Note 3 Capitalisation policy and capital adequacy {continued)
Specification of risk-weighted volume and capilal requiremoents OMB Bank Group
A
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Note 4 Risk management

Risk management in DNB

The Board of Directors of DNB ASA has & clearly stated goal bo mainiasn & low overall Ask profile and to mvaintain an AA level raling for ordinary
beng-term debl. The proftability of DMNB wil depend an the abilfy Lo identify, manage and accuralely price risk arrsing in connection with financisl
sendces.

Organisation and autharisation structure

«  Board of Dreciors. The Board of Directors of DHE ASA sets long-lenm targels fof the Group's sk profile, The sk profile is operationnissd
throwgh the: risk mianagement framework, includng the eslablishment of authorisations, Risk-taking should lake place within estabiished
imils.

*  Authorisabans. Authorsations must be in place for the sxtension of credit and for position and trading imits in all critical financal areas.

AN apthorisations are personal Authorisalions and group limits are determined by the Board of Direclors end can be delegated in the
organisation. though any further delegalion requires approval by an immediste superor,

*  Annual review of imils, Risk limats are reviewsd at least snnueally in connection with budget and planning processes,

v independent rigk management funchions. Risk management funchions and the development of risk management tocds are undertaken by
units that are independent of operations in the indvidual business areos

Roles and responsibilities

Risk management in DNB is based on @ model with three lines of defence:

+ The frst ine of defence |s Ine operational management's governance and internal sontral, Including processes and activities 1o reach
defined goals relating bo cperalsonal efficiency, relabibe finandial reporling and compiance with [ews and regulations. The operational
management is respensible for all sk associated with the unit’s acthilies and processes.

o The second line of defancs B an independent Tundion which moniters and falows up the operalional managerment's govermance and
Imternal cemtral. The second line of defence is respansibie for setting the premises for risk management, cocrdination acroess ergantsational
urils and risk repoing

s The lhid line of defence ks Group Audd, which reviews and eviluates group management's overall governance end internal contral. Group
At is mdependent of the Group's eoeculive mandgerment and reports bo the Board of Directors of DNB ASA

Monkaring and use
o Accountabiity. All execidives are respansble for sk within (hes own area of responsbilty and must consequently be fully spdated on the
nisk siuation at afl tres.

*  Risk reporfing. Risk repoding in the Group ensures that all executives have the necessary informalion about curen risk levels and future
developments, To ensure high-gually, indepandent risk reports, responsibility for reporting is assigned 10 unils that are ndependent of the
sperathe Lnits

' Capital gssessmenl. & summary and analysis of the Group's capRal and risk suaticn is presented in a quarterdy risk repor to DNE ASAs
Board of Directors

*  Lise of risk informabion, Risk is an infegral part of the management and moniloring of business areas. Risk-adjusted retun is reflected in
produsct pricing, profit calculations and in monforing perfarmance in the business areas

Relevant risk measures

*  Rizk appetie. DNB monilors risk through dedned targets and limds. The risk appetite frenerwork consists of 16 statements covening the risk
dimensions which ane considered lo be significant for the DNEB Greup. and which sdded up give 8 good view of the total isk. Developments
in the target figures are monitered and reported monthiy to the greup management team and quarterly to DNE s Board of Directors. See
separate paragraph on risk appetite,

* A comman rigk messure for ihe Group. The Group's risk is measured in the form of economic capital. cafculated for ol of the Group's
busingss areas and main risk categories, with the exception of liquidty risk. Ses separste paragraph on economic capital,

' Supplementary risk measure. In addition, risk is Tollowed up through supplementary nsk measures sdapted 1o operatbons In the various
business areas, for mxample monftoring of positions relat ive o limits, key Sgures and porticiio risk targels.

Risk categories
in DME, risk ks divided into six main categones which are subjec! lo special measuement and monicring

v Cred® rish ks the sk of financial losses due to fallure on the part of the Group's cuslomers o mest thieir payment cbligations. Credit risk
refers bo all claims against customers. principally lcans, but also obligations relabed to olher approved credils, guarantees, flxed-income
securities, undrewn credits and iInlehank deposis. Credit risk also inclutes residual value risi and concentration nsk, Resideal value sk s
the risk haf the value of colaberal securing the exposuee is lower than expected. Concentralion risk includes risk asscerabed with lange
expesures 1o 8 single customer and clusters of loans in geographical areas or indusiries, of with homogensous cuslomer groups.
Counterparty risk ks aiso a type of credt sk and arises hrough dervative rading. There are significant elements of counberparty risk
rednting to payment transfers and the settlement of contracts, but these ane not included in the defintion of credd risk
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Note 4 Risk management {continued)

*  Mavkied rizk is the nsk of losses due to unhedged pesitions in the forsign exchange. inlerest rale, commaodity and equity markets. The risk
grises in consegquence of Tecluations in profits due 1o changes in markel prices or exchange rabes. Market risk inclsdes both risk thal arises
through ordinary radng activities and risk that arses as part of banking acthities and other business operations. bn adafion, markel risk
arises in DNB Livsforsikring AS, reflecting the risk Ihal the refum on nancial assels will not be sufficient o meet the obligations specified in
INSUranNCE Pobties

*  Operationsl risk is the risk of losses due 1o deficiencies or enors in inlemal processes and Systems, human emors of exiemal events,
Operational ridk al4o includes cempliance risk. Jogal rigk, condust risk and T risk, inchiding infarmation securly. It does ral intlude strabegic
&k of repulational rick. Operalional risk apples 1o ihe snlire organisalion, and an operalional fisk evend can affect diferent pais of the
erganisation in various ways. Compliance risk s the risk of losses in conseguence of the vicalion of laws and regulations. Legal risk i5
relaied to the documeniation and inlerpretation of contracis and diferent legal practices in countries where the bank has operalions,
Conduct risk is defined as the exisling o potential sk of losses retated to improper delivenies of financial sendces of losses resulting from
paneralty reprehensile conduct,

L] fEurance sk i$ incurred by DRB Livalars®ning AS and DNB Forsikiing AS and @5 related Do changes in fulure mdurancs abiigations. Within
lil insuranee, such risk reflscts changes in policyh olders’ lifs expactansy and disabilly rabes. Within non-life insurance, insurance risk is
related fo the Fegquency and size of fulure claims payments.

s Liquichly rizk 15 the sk that the Group will be unable o meel it oblipations as they fall due, and the risk that the Group will be unable 1o
meet s bquidity obligations wilhout & subslantial rise in apputenant cosls, Liguidity is vilal ko inancial aperations. This risk categary wil
oftan be conditional in the respest that @ will nol malenalise unkl other svents grae e Lo consern reganrding the Group's. absiity 16 reet its
coligations

*  Business risk relabes 1o Buctuslions in profits due to changes in external factors such &% the market situaticon. gevemment regulations o the

less of income due 1o 8 weakened reputation. Reputational sk i ofien a consequence of alfer fisk calegones, The Group's business sk &
primarily handied through the sirategy process and cngoing effors to safeguarnd and improne the Group's reputation. When detemmining and
following up the Group's risk appelile, reputationad risk is defined a3 a separate risk dmension, Repulational sk i folowed up by
monieing meda coverage, while the compelitive $Zunlion is followed up by anabysing market irends and development s in market shares

In addibion bo the above-menBoned sk tﬂw!-lhﬂ Gl'ﬂ.lp % eipn-ud 1= ﬂmm risk, which can be defined as the % of a decling in pl'ﬁ!-
if the Group fails o explot exisling sirategic coportunities, The Group's siralegic 14X is notl measured of reported indvidually, but is discussed
as part of tha annual siralagy process

Risk appetite

The Board of Directors of DMEB ASA sebs long-term targets for the risk prolile through the fisk appetie frameswark. The risk appebe framework
BEYS bo ensure thal resk is managed and integrated with the Group's governance processes. The sk appetite frameaock Should provide

& holishe and Bataneed view of (e ek in he busness. n 2017, the framewark conginted of 16 slataments. To suppor e framework 8 sef of
govemance principles ond operational procedures and responsibillies within the

DB Grotp have been defined. The largeted risk profile will also be reflscted in ofher pans of the risk management, including the establishment
of authoridalions and budiness limis, The sk appelite framework will b revigwed & l2as! annualy. The Board of Direlons also regularky
et frek levels, the framework struciune and the reperting of relevant risk cateponies

Thie Emids in the risk appelite framewonk ane operationalised in the buseess aress and SUpHon unis. [n Ihe Growp's governance systerm, (he risk
appelile framesork s implamented in the form of target Sgures for selected risk indicators. The ek indcators will Bypically take the farm of limas
{for quantifiabie risk) of qualiative assessments of the risk level. They donol need bo be based on the same measurement parameters a3 the
anes uded o group level, though they must suppor the same risk bypes and $how the same irend. Continual monfoing of thess target figures
Al enidure 1hat Lhe risks that ame considerad 1o be the med! Sgnifizanl are ko subjes 1o manilaring and diaiS4on in operalive uRRS in the
arganisation,

Economic capital for the DNB Bank Group

DB quantifies aconomic capital for all main risk categories. A simulalion model, the tolal risk modal, & used 1o caltulate unexpected laSies for
Beth Ehe varicus fisk calegesies and in Lotal fer the Group, Caleulations are made fae a8 significant proft centres, custeenars and peoducts. The
quantificalion is based on stalistical probabilily calculalions for the vanous rak calegories on the basis of historical data. In cases where
histerical data ts of madequale quality, discreticnany assessments are alse made. The model initially simulates the risk of lesses assaciabed with
thie vanicus risk eategories separately, whereafer the tofal risk (5 estimated. A diversdication afect ances when the various rsks ane considersd
tegether, as It s unlicely that all losses will occur at the same time. The dversificaton effect bebween risk calegones and business aneas implies
Ihal the Group™s econom: capital will be much lower than if the bisiness areas had been indapendent companies.

DHE hes sliputated that sconomic capilal shall cover 899 per cenl of pobential inexpect ad logses with & one-year hodzon. The confidenee level
hiBs been sdjusted down from 38 57 per cent in 2017 1o be mode comparable with reguialony capital
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Note 5 Credit risk

Credit risk of coUMerpasty risk is the risk of financial losses due to failure on the part of the banking group’s customersfoount sparties 1o meet
thir payenent sbligathons towards e banking group. Credt Ak refers to all claims against customersounterpanties, mainty loans, bt alas
cormmitrmenls in fhe fom of other exdended credis, gearantees, inferest-beanng securilies, unutlised coedd lines, dervalive lrsdng and
interbank deposits. Credt nsk alsoincludes ressdual value risk and concentration risk. Residual value risk ks ihe risk that the vaiue of collatersl
SECUNRG exposire i3 lower hsn expacted. Concentralion rsk intludes nsk assosated wilh [args axposures bo a single custamer and clusters of
commitments in geographical areas of indusiries, of with homogenadus customer groups.

Credt risk management and measurement 15 desonbed in further detail in thve Risk and Capital Management (Pillar 3) regon. The banking group
guidelines Tor eredil aetnaty are approved by the Boards of Derscters of DME Bank ASA. The principal objesdive of credit actrily is lo ensure that
the guality and composftion of the loan porifolio provide & pood basis for the banking groap’s short and long-lemm profiability. The quality of the
porfolio should be consistent with DNB's aim of maintaining a low nisk profie. See afso nole 4 Risk menagement, in which credit risk for the
Banking group s quantified in the farm of risk-adusted sconomia capilal.

The rFraximum cradil sk axposure will be the carmying amount of Snancial a35#1s plus unrecorded exposure, which mainly includes guaraniees,
unutilised credd lines and loan offers. Guaraniees, unutilised credit ines and loan offéns ane spedcified in nols 48 OfT-balancs shesl fransaddions
and contingencies. The maximum credt nsk axposure and relabed collataral are shown below.

Credit risk exposure and collaferal a5 at 31 December 2007 DNE Bank ASA
M axmum
sxposEmte.  Secured by Collateralmed Crehar
_Armounts in NOK milion crachisivi  resd walabe by securiies  collsteral
Doposits with central bamks 150 187
Duw from credt institations L80873 182707 e )
Loand bo suidomeds 730 702 264 853 B2 789 X909
Commaersial paper and bonds 271 807
Finncial dervaties 1465 883 1783 a5a7s
Othay assats 21530
Total maximen svpoture 1o coedit risk relected on the balance shest 1802 102 284 353 25T X4 38003
Guaranises 8329 B 95 165 34 B8
Unutiised crodit ines and losn offers 48H 843 18 444 He 50 764
e ik L]
Total maximem ssposire o ooedil risk mot reflscted on the balance shest 676 338 po LR L] AT 6T
Tokal 24TH &40 293 0RY 257 63 403 575
Cradit risk exposure and collateral as at 1 Decembaer 2016 DHE Bank ABA
Waeimum
i w5 dby Col LT Cotiiee
Armounts in NOK milion il risi renl extabe by securites  cofisteral
Depouty with comiral bamks 208 W3
Dun from credt intitutions SR 093 163938 3
Loans ba euslamess &80 060 240 108 43 187 7055
Commercial paper and bon s a0
Firancial derdvathes T W7 wig TE Do
i sty 12738
Tetal E # {6 et diak roleched o the bal bl 1 885 258 240 106 204 04 341 08%
Guaraniess BgETE B E43 182 LR
Unulfized chad® Bnes and loan affers 470782 18278 a2 AR
Dtrer commiments 3 848
Vol b dapebiairi 18 et ik mot fafacted on e kal it £72332 24 BT 255 B 187
Totml_ 2437630 764930  aee  arese
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Note § Credit risk {continued])
Cradil risk exposure and collsteral a5 at 31 December 2017 DR Bank Growp
Wazirrm
wpomirs o Secursdby  Collaieralived Gthar
Apenfs i NOK maden crecil ik real pitete by ueturities colatersl '
Dwpoaits wakh coniral banks 160 A5
Cuse feom: cradit insstutions AT e 162 TOF ¥
Loans 10 cusiamens 1531 5 #6151 L= 8T 158
Comsmaicial papar and bendt e E4T
Financisl derivatives 132 649 1753 56 M3
Ceher sszets 73851
Totsl maximum sxposare bo credt fsk refected on the belance shest 2 2% 415 a8 151 28 158 a2 665
Guikiarbé 5832 500 185 24 952
Urutibuod croct bnes and lcan affers £A5 T B5 &89 18 76 T2
O EanmAmS 4170
Totsl mavimum exposrs bo credt rak ol refected on the batance shast a0 g o &7 403 TR ST
Tatsd 3007 i 1 030 Bl 256 580 508 I
Cradit risk exposure and collateral as at 31 December 2016 DME Bank Growp
Masiren
io = = dby Coll i el Cther
Amounts in NOK mifon credt sk roal estate by seturtes  colaters '
gty with contral Bankt 207 1T
Do fram cracit insisluytions 174 502 153 538 ]
Loant 1o cusharman 1487 263 BES 858 80295 330158
Commercial paper and bonds 20 84T
Financis! derirativies 167 857 k] X872
Crthir sty 7414
Tatsd i o b crisdit ik refacted on 1he bak il 2 IT04T2 A5 850 NG 152 A5 153
Gusrasbesy e d v el a el 162 3T
Urutibsed crecd knes and loan offers [ g ) TR -rid T B
Orthiar drnsit 3585 18
Tatsl L expatas i Lo Srisdit fuk nat el dl 5 th bk shest e 18 BT 72 Pl 112 5965
_Toiad 2872 E51 573 831 206 407 E&S 748

1 Ofher cofisferal Foiudes th sz sessed fair vl of movebles, suedies, g o caah 88 woll o5 offsy Srocll sahancaments, Sach 08 reffhing dgaeme s o
guarariees moaned,

This table abode ifcludes on and oi-balancs shoet ilems which sntail cradl ek and he assessed value of refated collateral. IT avadable, Tair
walues are used |n general, fair values are estimated accordng 1o diferent techniques depending on the type of colateral, Wilh respect bz
properties, models estimating the vaiue of collalensl based on madket parameters for simiar properties, sne usad, Comesponding techniques are
used for other non-financial callaberal. In order o reflsc the effective svailabie collaferal value, the Tair value of collaeral included inihe tabls 5
lmifed fo the macmum credil exposure of the individual laan or exposure,

Comments 1o the masn dems a5 a1 31 December 2017

*  Deposts with cenbral banks, Deposds with Morges Bank totalled NOX 3 251 millicn. DNE engeges only in shor-term bransactions with
central banks cutside Norway, mainly in OECD counlries

L Lowns & crshomers: See futher description under “Guidelines for credil activity™

*  Commercigl paper snd bonds: See further descripbion under *Credit exposure of oiher financial assets”,

¢ Financlal dernalives: Other collateral represents netling opportunities agains! olher autdlanding balances with customers and cash
coifateral recehed

= Guarantees: See further description under “Guidelines for credil acthity™

*  Unudiliped credl! ines and ioan offers: Offers of loans, credils and credil Bnes totalling KROK 111 663 million for the DNE Bank Group and
for the DNE Bank ASA were included in the maximum credl sxpossre. Mo formal collateral has bean established for such exposure, and
Ihe assessed value is nol included in the lable. Collaleral is established cnce the offers are accepled by the cuslomerns. The assessment of
the value of any collaleral established in conneclion with such offers folicws the precedure and criteria descrbed under “Guidefines for
credit activity”
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Note 5 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk exposure of loans and commitments
Notes 6 and 7 show the banking group’s credt risk exposure for principal customer groups and sccarding to geographic location. Motes 8
through 11 show impaired lsans and guaraniees and mpaiment of lsans and guarantess.

Ciassification of laans and commiments

DMB's internal modets for rsk classiflcation of customers sre subject o continual mprovernent and lesting. The modeis ane adapted bo different
industries and segments and are updated if calibraticns show that their explanatory power has diminished cver time. DNB has been granted
permision to e IRBA medes In capital adequacy caleulstions for the corparate pafalio, for olher pomfolios |RE i3 being used. The sams
madels are used in caltulations of capdal requirements and in fsk managemanl

All corporete custemers granted credit must be classified according to risk n connection with every significant credit approval and, unless
othersise decided, at least once a year. In the personal banking marnet. whare there 5 & large number of customers, the majority of crecdt
decisions should be made on the basis of aulemated scorng and decision suppon systems. Risk ciassification should refiect long-femn risk
asseclabed with each customer and the customer's credil commiiment,

The risk classffication systems: are used as decision support, monitonng and reporting. The risk parameters used in the classification systems
are an integrated par of the credit process and ongang risk monflonng, including the folow-up of credil sirategies.

Probabeity of default, PD, 5 wsed to measure gually. The bank divides its portfolio inbo ten fisk classes based on the probability of defaull for
wach credt commitment.

DNB's risk classification "

Probabilly of el
iper car) Exterral rafing
Rish clasa Ax bom Up o Moody's Standard & Poo's
1 oot 010 Aam - A3 FYT
2 +R ] 024 BEsnl = Ban2 BEE+=-BEE
3 02 050 Biad BEE-
4 0sa 078 Bal BE+
B oTs 125 Ea2 EB
L 128 200
7 2 300 Bad BB
o 300 500 B1 B+
Ll 500 B0 B2 B
10 B0 enpared. B3, Caars B. COGIE
1 DWEE riak claasfeatien syatevn, whone T reprasents e kst righ and 10 i bighes riak
Loais and commilments accofdling to risk classification DHE Bank ASA
Tt
Gross loans Geasranies Unutimad loara and
Arreunts in NOK milion_ B3 EUAR T LB eiedt s s
Risk casegory based cn probabity of defaull
1.4 418622 &7 1o A 428 AT 167
57 103 787 2 e 50 T 25T 800
8-10 B4 129 S5 12021 BS 164
red laney and areets 22048 1685 1 514 25 847
Total lomns and commibmenss #s at 31 Oscember 2016 ' 668 565 B0 809 AET0S 1165178
Fisk category based on probabelity of default
1-4 471 799 20 5680 ANEITe B8 734
5-7 185 270 i7 &7 51087 264 204
8- 10 52416 5281 B33 67038
Hon and red loses and cormmiimends 10 G5 ¥ i 21 858
Total loams and [ a5 8l 31 D wnr 7017 1 TIRATE T8 3049 ATT 148 1181 831
1l Besesd on nomenel amounds.
Loandoss level 2017 2018
Homsalived ktws incloding |ows of interand intonte in per tecd of nel loans iy ] 033

1l The cakwlation of tee loarioss evel is besed on an svalvation of the protatdity of fulture losees (defaul frequency), sxposure o defaul and the sire of the
asfirated ok (bes raticl. Caltulations ane besed on @ coviam leved of dizcretion and edemation
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Note § Credit risk {continued])
Loans and commitments according to fsk classification DRB Bank Group
I
Grovs loans Gunranies Urbdined hn:::d
A £ in NOK mallien 15 et by credt Enes I
Hisic category based on probability of defasit
1.4 1 Oresay LR 469 278 1 848 108
BT WP UET 14 081 e A5 Obg
B- 10 B 700 9548 IREEY 128 208
M= ing And impaked loans and commEments 30 51 1503 1 o2 34185
Total loans and commétmenis a5 8431 Decamber 2046 '/ 1 504 348 B4 EO ET1328 2485888
Rizk category batsed on probabdity of defasdt
1.4 1 8 B30 £1 &80 4685 284 1 6o By
-7 3646 160 (L] G 60 A3 GaT
&- 10 T aaT 35 ] 4 Tad 103 374
Hon-peiieming and impaked laans and Ay 24454 1588 1523 T S84
Total loans and commémenis s 8t 31 December 2017 1 540 g bi- 1 ES1800 2471428
1 Based an norial &mocla
Loan-oss level " 27 s
Higrmakaod et meiudag bt of Mol ncase o pas cond of nst loans 023 037

1 The silculsfion of the lean-tags Tovw! i basd o0 an svilustion of the prodaleily of fufose Bzses [defeul feguandy], axpasune al deliull ond the 3ide af ihe
en st by (loas adal Cabulitions are based oo & codii vl of discralng and eulimelios

Guidelines for credit activity

DME's guidefines and processes for approving credits ame described in the group guidelines for credit acthily. The guidelines describe how DNE
shall grant and follow up credil exposures in Ehe vanous segmenis. Detalled descriptions are given of the assessment of new cusiomans, Tollow-
up of healihy credt exposures, follow-up of custamers in Bnancal dfculty and procedures for handing doubliul and nen-perfenming loans.

Thie granting of credil in DNB s based on authorisation and approval malnices. As 8 fundamental principle, one person makes a recommend-
dation and ancther one appdoves i, which (akes place theaugh the suthorisation and approval malnices, The malrices are differentiated on the
basts of wolurne, mek and, if relevant, indusiny, While onby two persons may be invohved in (recomemending and approving) & how-risk axposuns in
the form of a hame mergage, recommendations for largefoomplex exposures must be endorsed by & senior credil officer. In addition, advice will
be sought from credt commiiess, and the nvolvement of industry specialists may be reguired

A decrive elament when granting cred is the cusiomers’ dabl sarvicing capadly in the form of ongaing Tuture cash flows, such 8% eamed
ineame o inconve from the Business openaions which afe being Enanced. Thée bank seeks 1o furlher mitigabe Ehe fsk of losges in cannsctian
with & possible fulure redsclion n cash Niows of defaul by requiring that colfaleral be furnished.

Coitaleral can be in the fenm of phrysical assels, guaraniess, cash depasils o nelling agreements. As a rule, physical collateral shall b insured.
Megalive pledges, wherety customers undenaie Lo keep their assls free irom encumbeances Ws-a-Ws oher lenders, are akso used a8 & rigk-
mithgating measure.

In addition bo collateral, most comparabe credit agreements will include financial covenants, which represent an adddional fisk-matigating element
te enEume that DNE becames sware of and imobeed in amy Snancial challenges at an earfy stage. Examples of financial covenants ate minimum
met cash flow and aquity ratio requirements.

Bonitering credh risk

Performing cusiomers

According lo the guidelings for credt acthvily Tor conporabe customers, a credit assessment shall be made of all customers af least once a year
This is & complete review of all fisks idenlifed by DHE relaling 1o the cuslemer. A new evaluation of all collateral (provided) is an integral par of
the anniual redew. The decision-making and suthorisation malrices shall also be used in connection with the renewal of all existing credits and
thus ensure thatl parsons with relevant experise are atways invabved when considenng lange and complicated exposures.

Personal customers are folowed up theough a systematic portfollo managemaent syslem. Exposures are followed up indnidually if heightened
risk has been identified.

Walchiist

Thi watchiist 5 the Group's pimary tool for Following up cofporabe customers when a ek has arisen which requines special manitoning. If
customers breach fAnancial covenants or a loss event requinng special mentoring has cocurred. i will be considered whether to place the
expOsure on the watchist. Loss events include senious Snancial problens of majer changes in market conditions. In addiben, all customsers in
thie high-risk segment {rsk grades 8- 10) will be walchiist candidates. It ks an integral pait of credit aclivity to consider whather to place high-risk
custerners on the watchlist, Walchlisbed customers are subject to special monitoring. More frequent. often quarterty risk assessments ane
requined, includng an updated valation of collateral. In addition, an acticn plan must be prepared to get out of the risk siluation that has ansen.
The paficularty close folow-up of custofmers Tacng greater chalienges s based on the bank's exparience hal special mondoring bolh reduces
thie risk that lesses wil occur and minimises the losses thal actually materialise. Each lime watchlisted exposures are reviewed, the need for
npairment fosses will be considered.
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Note 5 Credit risk (continued)

Granting concessionary freslment of customers

It & custorner gets into financial dificulties, DME may in Some cases grant vollstbary conoessions in the form of less stringent financial covenants
of reducedideferred mberest and instalment payments. Such measures are offered in sccondance with the Group's eredit gusdelines, thius aiming
to help customers through & leugh francial penod when it ks expected that Ehey will meel their obligations on a lader date. This is part of DNB's
sirategy to reduce losses. DNB Bank ASA'S telal forbearance exposures, in accofdance wilh the definition of forbearance in CRO IV, totalled
approgimately MOK 37 billion al year-end 2017

Lo and nonperferming porifois

I the event of losses of pon-parolmance, customers are closely rondaned, In the bank's experience, other supplementary rescurces are
e ired dunng this slage than for pericrming custormers. Custormer exposures which fall into this category will eilher ba transferred i their
antirety 1o 8 separate unit with special expertise in this field. or parsons from this unil will join the customer leam

Repossessed companias and assels

In eonnecthan with the follcw-up of impaired and non-perfomming expodures, DHE will in somes cases take cver assels provided as collateral for
loans and guarantess. Al acquited cofmpanies are followed up by the Group Investment unit, whose main tarpet is 1o secursiecover values fof
DMB's shareholders through Snancial resinecturing when companies and properlies ane nepossessed due to defaull. See separate paragraph
below Tor details on repossessed assels

Past due loans not subject to Impalrment

The table Delow shows ovendee amounts on loans and overdralts on coadis/teposits and the tolal residual debl Tor these kans brolen
doswn on the number of days after the due date, assuming a detenioration of customer sehvency of wmillingness to pay. Past due loans and
ovencrafts on credits/deposils are subject o continual monitoring. Loans and guarantees whene any objective evidence of impalment exists e
reviewed for impaiment. Such reviews have also been camied out for the loans included in the table for which no need for fmpaiment has been
identified. Past due loans subjedt to impairment are not included in the table but are included in tables shoraing impaired l9ans and guarantees.
seg note 8 Impaired loans and guamaniees for principal cusiomer groups

CNE Bank ASA
3 December 2017 31 Docemiber 2008

Crrgtandng Cagstanding
balanca on balance on
Past dual pasi dus Pasi dual pasd dus
Ammunts in NOK milien ik aem s mncrrmn lasns
1028 days i 2410 e ] 1833
30-52 days 470 a5 443 4%
il 5 days o} 173 " 1658
= B0 days 113 P b Fab] 1474
Total 1 300 B e ] 3 BEY
GHB Bank Group

1 Oecombe 2007 3 Deteeber 2018
Cutsandng Cutstanding
Bblares on Blans on
Past duni' past dus Past dunl pasd dus

b i NNT iy L] L - B
1020 dlays a5 54 ] b~ ] THe
B85 days Ll 1121 anT 1148
i85 days L2 My 14 430
> Bl days 130 3 By Forrd 3 268
Total 1435 13 B8 1 aB& 12084
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Note § Credit risk {continued])

Credit exposure of other financial assets
The Group's invesiments in other inanciad assets, including comemerncial paper and bonds, are wilhin market risk lims approved by the Board of
Direciors, See nole 33 Commencial paper and bonds, held bo maburity, Tor a deserpbion of Markets' imlemational bond parfolic.

Counterparty risk for derivatives

DB enters nto derrvative transactons on the basls of customer demand and to hedge positions resulting from sweeh activity, In addition,
derivatives are sed bo hedge postions in the trading portfolio and 1ake positions in the inlerest rate, cumency. commodity and squity markets. in
addition, defivatives are wsed b hedpe currency aad interest rabe Ask afSing in connection with funding and lending. Derfvativies are genarally
traded “ever the counter” (OTC), which means that individual contracts are agreed upon by e parties, The credt isk that anses in connection
with detivative trading 5 inciuded in the DNEB Group's owerall credil fisk measurement

Inn order bo rinimise counlempany risk for indnidual counterparties, netting agreements and biateral guarantes agreements have been snlered
Ink. Such agresments make it possibbe fo net all posithve and negatie maket values relaled 1o contracts enterad ino against one single
counberparty. C5A (Creds Support Annex) agreements are anciher type of risk-mitigating measure. C5A agresments have been enlered inlo
wilh most major bank countepaties and other financial counterpanties, as wall a3 & steadily inereasing number of non-finansial countepaTes.
Under these agreements, the market valus of all derivalive ceniracts between DNB and the courlerparty ks setiled sither daily of weskly, which
B esy sdiminates counberparty risk. These transactions are mosty settied in cash,_ though govemment bonds and coversd bonds Bre used Bs
well

Thie diffenend inberest rate products (infenest rate swaps and Forward Rate Agreements (FRAS) in different cumencies) are cleared through
clearing houses like LCH Cleamet. DNB's counlerparty risk on an indhviduad counterparty Is thus transfermed to the clearing house. Equity
forward conlricls. securities ioans and currency tmding for personal customers are monifored and increasesidecreases in value are setthed
daily.

Repossessed properties and other assets — carnying amount

Repossessod assels ane assels acquired by units within the banking group as par of the management of non-perfenming and impaired loans
and guarantees. AL the lime of acquisition. such assets are valued at their estimated realisabie value. Any deviation from the camying amount of
nonperforming and impaired loans and guaraniees af the time of acquisition is classified as impaimment on loans. Repossessed assets are
recorded in the batance shest acconding to the type of assel. When acquinng shares cr mutual furd holdings, the assets are evaluated
gcconding o the principles described in note 1 Accounting principles. Upon final sale. the difference relative to carning amaount ks recognised in
the income statement accordng to the type of assel.

DHE Bank ASA DME Bank Croup
2008 2017 Amounis i NOK milkon M7 6

5 28 Repottessed progarties end othar repossesaed astels a4 at 1 January 1422 2 350

1 o Froperty additions 2 o7

Dthad aiat addtions 1

Recasufiod ng hoid for sale’ {1087

123 [LLH] Propaity diapotai {382 1325

Other awset dupossls e

Mol gaintAcsies renlting from sdpstment to far valus Govestmant properist) 168 n

E 18 Repasibtied propiies bad oiher (8potnstied astets a4 at 31 Daceerier 811 1122

IF irchoces s2eeds o fhe Balcs reclazsfied a2 held for sale i Avguel 2016
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Note 5 Credit risk (continued)
Loans and deposits designated as at fair value
ONE Bank ASA DNE Bank Group
31 Dee 3t Dee 3 D 3 D
16 207 At in NOK mafion 2017 il 8
20 He 17 18 Loans and deposits designated as at fairvalue 55373 60 any
20 559 17185 Toksl wepesurs ba radi rith 55373 69 487
1] L] Walus WMMHI B LFal
B4} 36} Wulue adjustment frem changs in credit sk | 33 011

11 Credit rink eacted 4 e vilve medswoment /s based o0 normalsed Bs5es snd chnges it nonmelsed IDs5es #» the misvent portiodo

Effects of changes in credit margins
Changes in credt margins affected a nuember of ibems in the DNB Bank Group's balance sheat

The DHE Bank Group's fved-rebe lcans in Morwegian kroner and parts of the portiolio of margin loans in Norwegian kigner are camied ai fair
walue through peofit or loss. Unreakoed gains, measured relative 1o swap rabes on these oans, came o NOK 85 million al year-snd 2017,
compared with unrealised osses of MOK 144 milllon at end-December 2046 reflecling reduced mangin requirements. The unrealised gains wil
e reversed ver the remaining tenm o matunty, provided 1hat there ans no changes in the credit stalus of the kans.

A5 part of ongaing lguidty managemend, Markels invests in an international bond portfolio. The holding of such bonds lotaled 1o NOK 80 billion
end-December 2017, Unrealised gains in this portfolic amounted bo HOK 281 million at end-December 2017, comparned with unreaiised gains of
HOK 45 million af year-end 2016, There was considerable tumover in the porttolio in 207

Unrealised gain on the pofelio of Morwegian bonds used for quidity management carme to MoK 410 million at wear-end 2017 compared with
an unrealiced gain of HOW 310 million at end-December 2016,

The DHE Bank Group's long-term borowings in Moreegian kroner are camed a1 fair value through prof o loss, Margn requirernents were
reduced in 2017: Al end-December 2017, there were unreakised losses of NOK 8§00 milkon on long-term borowings. companed wilh unrealised
losses of HOK 31T milion at year-end 2016 Unre afised losses on the DNE Bank Group's linbilties will be reversed ever the remaining term be
maturity,
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MNote 6 Loans and commitments for principal customer groups
Loans and commitments as al 31 Decemboer 2007 DHE Bank ABA
Loans and Unutbsed  Total losns and
Amourts in NOK miion recevsbles  Guwantess cieciines  comm
Brivate indvaduaiy 165452 186 15T 488 EraR b
Teanwportation by tea and pipeines and vesed consiiuchbon 4 E7 104075 14 S48 % 38
Raal onls 1552381 4 387 33835 197 64
Maniutszbunng 45 BaT 18 169 TB4TI 23 478
Serdces B8 THT 5758 33 588 104 133
Tenda [ 4443 20 538 54 02
Cd and gas 16 0ax s7 8517 e L
Trantpansien and saswis et 3 829 8429 13208 =t ]
Suiicing and constuction 55 04 1118 32 Tar 86 &1
Pirie and waber mupply 20137 T 545 15 b 43 673
Seafocd 17 238 138 5032 22 409
Hial#ls hd riEtaurants 78T 385 Bar 7o
Agriculture and Sorestry 4632 ] L 5 551
Central amd tocal govemmant 13 a3e 188 SarT (e T
Crther sacian 48 847 a7 4 808 54 80
Tetl cuttomert, neminal amount aBe diddual irgarmen TR ETH TS 8 7T 148 1185 68
= Codoctive mnparmant, cushomars (2 G8E) {2098
+ Other sdostments (4] [l i
Loans 1o customers FI0TEY 75308 ITT 148 118 3
Crodt inyitutiont, neminal amount ater individual impainment SA0 8T T 480 111 797 700 261
* Cher sttty
Loans 1o and due nem cred instiutions 580 87 T a0 111 Far o0 261
Loans and commitmaents a5 af 31 December 2016 OHB Bank A5A
Leany and Unutiksed  Total loeng and
Armounts in NOK millon rececvables Gusranbers credht bnes commimants
Private indvdusty 137 2 225 178 P53 T 140
Teanspotation by tea and pipdines and vedisl tonttiuctan ED S H823 14 TER T4
Rsal petale 14E E8Y 28680 25588 7120
Manufscturing 45 435 F2pa7 32202 L]
Senaes B4 084 471 21178 0 T4
Trnde 12 ne 4404 21 965 £ AT
CH and gas 20 783 984 161 3358
Transpokatson and ¢ omevisi atioen 38 BT 8703 15418 [N E]
Elusicin g and construstion A7 4 12724 28832 B5 518
Power and water supphy Foi B ] 6 Tos 17178 a0 &
Seafeed 15323 188 5835 21 358
Hiobels mnd restaurmnts B3 408 1 853 11
Aggiculturs and feery 4 616 58 1 067 5 T4
Coentral ard focal govemment jrdri] 168 LE:H 8 08
Ceher tacion 40 820 O 4 820 48 354
Totsl customars, nominal amoun afe ndividusl imgermnsn B9Z B4E 80383 |5 T 1 158 B4
=~ Coflpetive Fmpairmant, cusbormiy (2 TAT) {2 TET)
+ Other adfsiments (444 {845)
Lehivi 15 EURTOMEN B0 080 Thpar TS 103 1155 T
Cradt mslitutions, nominal ameunt alber indeidual momrmend 545 pem 8288 54 0RO ES1 474
* Othar adprimanty 4 4
Loans 10 and due Irom credi instl itions S48 00 B206 i 0EY 851 ATE

Thie beeakoown into prneipal customer groups cofrespends to the EU'S standard industrial classiicalion, NACE Rev 2.
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Note & Loans and commitments for principal customer groups (continued)
Loans and commitments as al 31 December 2017 DHB Bank Group
Loans and Usutlined  Todtal keant and
Aot in MOK milion recavahiey SGuarantees crochd lines cormmimienis.
Privabe ingheidualy 7@ 167 il 24 M 1002 781
Trarspartation by tea and gepslined and vesesl comt 78314 10 135 2 454 118002
Raal sstate 188 453 4387 3778 HEHIE
Msnubaciuring 76 081 18 Lo Y- 154 B45
Sernces 0512 5 pag 44 300 140855
Trade WEN 4867 2 055 10 242
Ol and gas 22 580 5 782 28 527 5T 318
Tramsportation and communkcabon 53 740 8 T4 28 454 B8 838
Budlding and consiruction B0 573 10 4882 34 ol 105 123
Power and waler supply 25601 7858 2 6a 55618
Sestood 20 300 130 5548 26074
Holols and matsunasts 7388 365 1218 BETS
Agriculture and foresiry 4 b7 43 i 912 s
Contral and local gowesmmant 16 aeh L] ] o4 B2
ithar woctors 56 428 [ 358 &0 0t
Total cushoners, nominel amount sier ndvidus impaimen 1634502 79438 551 600 2164 5689
= Collgctrve iImpaimmecd. oostomers A 1En % 157}
+ Dther adustments :ﬂ H@_
Losans o cust 1531 348 TE o0 551 00 7161024
ot imttutions, nomansl smount afer mdvedusl impainmes 7 849 B34 3003 04 218
+ Othe adustmants
RLorvs b syl chue Erom credit Insmutions N7 4G [E 0 38 073 20 218
Loans and commitments as at 1 December 2016 " DB Bank Group
Loany e Ll ied Tortnl learst and
Arrunts in NOK milicns b Guiraniens croct lnes corn
Private indhiduals IR E ] Firl 41 774 4TI TR
Traraporiation by e and pioslings and verasl comsirution 105 148 87 M E3 150 542
Foal estate 188 Tok 2888 24 510 31 B0
Menufacturing 77 520 23413 4 f2e 169462
Services &7 3 & dish ETE™ 124 306
Trade 38 442 4528 0 83 71852
Ol and gas 25074 &% e #7337
Tranaportabon and communcalion 52 638 EE-: 1] TT™ 100 234
Buslding and consfruciion B2 13 332 M A8 o7 108
Perwar nd water fupply 31178 7 188 4 0t 2378
Epalood 15878 02 B34 23684
Hotoly and (eSaurasts 7451 420 2178 10 045
Agriculture snd foresry 4 950 &0 232 7141
Central and lecal gavesnmant 14 213 e §7R 24 224
Dtk Llelory 47 785 a3 el -1 51 577
Total cuatomees, nominsl smount BRer ndvidusl impaimant 1455 740 54 350 571 3m 2152434
= Gt impaimmeed, Cushorer 4 481 4 481]
+ Ceher adusiments (855) (55
LM £o EUstamens 1492 268 23 904 571 30 7147 408
Cracitinsttutions. nomingl smeunt ater indvicusl impakimeet 174 807 7853 34 758 HT 347
+ Cthae aduistrments 11 i1
Lnbibs B avdl chui Froim credit ERAmiaions 174 BOR 7853 3 o8 297 357

Il Losns and recenmbles in ihe Ealics are raciassifed o assets avd SabdBias held for sefe. Guararioes and unutised Croad nes mciuce the Baltcs

The breakdosn inbe principal customer groups comesponds to the EU's standard indusirial classification, NACE Rev.2
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location

Loans and commitments as al 31 Decemboer 2007 DHB Bank ABA
Loans 1o and

Loars bo  recesvabies from Unutiksisd Tolsl kbans snd
Aoty in NOF malion cusiomers e inditatom. Craprarhepy cragh) e commments
Oala 148 ETS 207 458 11 560 268 732 E38 425
Enstem and southarn Norway 205923 2z 16 TET a7 550 307 4y
Wentam MNosway 104 520 & LT 38137 150 TTS
Horfhem and central Norway 116 3k o5 T a0 =6 07T 150
Tkl Marway 573 853 207 83t 43 T80 431 487 1358 S8
Sl ey &1 503 57 BoG G610 21888 167 707
United Kingdom 1180 125 4 3288 2080 L g ]
Crher Westem European countries 65423 100 38 G427 =3 5up 185 T
Priand ] 10169 292 57 1 xEs
Cithar Easisin Esropean couniries 0] _ bed 1 002 8BS 2866
Totsl Eurape outside Honvay 120 67 S0 B55 16 628 47 B89 A0 a7
US4 and Canada 983 41 T 13 066 3023 55 oA
Barveds and Panama 4 5T 1 4103 EERE] 21 98
Crner South mnd Conirsl Arecizan counities i) 543 1448 A BEE 1432 15 68
Totsl Amenca o] 43 B8 18 038 TIre £6 300
Singapore | m 11 858 L a2 13
Hang Karng 1080 & 2 1124
Chnir Aida o ouniFas 5122 13 3891 1184 818 20 5
Total Asia 6353 26 00 1870 802 3 73
Onnr African countriss e 41 1 Tog 103 2T
Coparia 4 B0 13 0 o75 5 By
Coomemitrnesty Tazama SB0 873 BIZ 458 343 1 B9G (88
= Collective npairmant (2 aeay {2088
& Other Busimants (404 m
Mt lcans and commiments JI0TER 580 073 EZ ERE 4EE 43 185 527
17 Fegresents sinpping loans and .

Based on the custamer's address.
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location (continued)
Loans and commitments a5 at 31 December 2016 DONE Dank ASA
Lanng & end

Loansto  recebvables fom Unutlined  Total loans and
Amrnunts s NOK milios e gl if RS [+ it ereht I g e T B
Oalo 140 810 201 607 11618 2865 544 610 580
Earsbarn and ¥ 183 a8 484 18 564 B 431 F- il
Westem Norwary B4 a6 4 L k] 43 525 148 a0
Madiem and canirsl Monvay 108 627 a7 3] 3 525 150848
Total Norway 520 750 202 202 4% 950 420428 1207 228
Swedan 53 1B8 38473 &35 11 T 108112
Unked Kngdom 12m 112 $88 2485 am7 121 678
Otk Weitein Eurdpean ciuntias 55 24 &9 269 5280 2249 172264
Pedand 3| 10 161 08 -] 11 088
Ot EBLRm Eifapain counties i1k 15 531 1 080 4 17 465
Total Eurcps cutside Horway 113154 28 4T 58 387 T 431 530
US4 pnd Canada 2790 S5 551 14850 ey T
Beemuda and Pasama ' 1T 148 a8 I 234 23503
Otk South and Cantral A ik 14 528 1585 2288 1818 20184
Total Amarca 3 488 58 202 21 181 10288 121 074
Singapore 1742 17 GG 1021 oz 21041
Hong Kong I 809 ar 2 1848
Dt Anian countd 5823 84674 2785 1575 16847
Total Asia o184 24 387 3785 2168 38 638
Ot Alican countries 854 00 2002 x5 3390
Desania ' 4537 i ) 135 343
Commigmants 69§19 8B FRET ATR TG 18018
= Collcir Irmpeimeinnd 2 rar 2 TET)
+ Cther adusiments B2e 82 (a4 78
Mol loans and L 00 080 S49 003 8 333 AT TR 1 %07 179
1 PRep 5 shipping leans and Eremils

Based on the customers address
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to gecgraphical location (continued)
Loans and commitments a5 af 31 Decembrer 2007 DRl Bank Group
Leant is and

Loansto  mecesvables from Unutibsed  Tiobal loans snd
Areovds in NOK malles cugiomers  erede inadis [ il eract Bned il
Oslo 3z aor B a4 11 554 208 880 B &0
Enshern and soutPsen Nosway 604 438 F 16 Tif 120 203 a1 411
Wilentem Norwary 188 747 ] a058 48 110 255 ohE
Marthain snd eental Naraay 204 S8 55 T 300 44 504 EA &TT
Toksd Morway 124 B8 8337 43770 423 505 1 700 544
Sava ey Bl 342 el b3 BE11 48832 175 364
United Kingdom 18 T8 o =7 & 127 15 Ta2 125
e Wiailarm Eidpaan counlied B 423 97 s42 5793 M 298 0%
Poleed 17 583 = 1535 2468 i ]
Omar Easlam Eutopaan souniries 1301 G 1002 253 337m8
Totsl Europe outside Mooy 205 328 213 308 18 fhB 102 637 B
IS4 and Canada 285 k) 14138 A8 770 o s
Barresta and Panama 20 e 1 4104 4878 29 850
Crthinr South end Coanlrsl A L] 13 582 1448 1888 iTH 20 &8
Totsl Amenca BT 178 2411 201106 &7 378 147 078
Singapons "' 4 243 3 675 184 5187
Hizng Keng 1 528 BT 3 1853
Crthier Bsian 5658 13 1186 1205 1 E&0
Toksl Al 11 Fia 13 Bag 1871 1381 28 &30
Crher African counties S8 a1 1708 Ba2 BB
Ocaaria 15 441 13 303 3728 19 45%
Commirmols 1534 502 237 B4 B HAT SHE AT A4l B
= Collsehive mpadrmant (N 18T} 31N
+ {her adsiments (40 a0
Mt loans and ¢ ommitments 1571 S 297 R4y BH423 S50 623 T445 M0

T Represenis shvppeng koeas dond i,

Based on the customer's address
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Note 7 Loans and commitments according to geographical location (continued)
Loans and commitments as al 31 December 2016 " DHB Bank Group
Lasns o and

Loansto  recebvables fom Unutlined  Total loans and
Arsunts ba NOK milien Eusd el it G i erecht s EEmTni e
o 288 210 338 11454 201087 BT T2
Earsbarn and ¥ &77 683 484 18 564 124 B &21 B8E
Westem Norway 191 155 10 8580 53 872 253628
MorRem and ¢ sntral Honway 201 374 107 o584 42580 251 398
Total Morwmy f 153 437 7536 45 @52 432 E14 1548 T1E
Ewedan 2 005 £172 £ 388 34457 128030
Unkwd Kingdom 17 s w518 2519 16 340 105 334
Db Waitirn Eurepdn countins Bazg B2333 5835 3 7 203 981
Podand 15 444 323 2813 T 18835
Othar E8utem EASpsEn LouNsL B6g 25 1425 5483 B 780
Total Eurcpe outside Morway 201 770 187 242 18 747 0 2 456 040
USA snd Canada 43 680 1000 18 953 87 207 128938
Baemuca amd Pasama - 26 269 [:1:] R s 33887
Ot South and Central A eountrios 18128 1569 22 4 887 26 885
Total Amarca #4086 2748 23148 7H B33 188 B10
Singapam 680 38 102 n 9857
Hang Kong 2525 37 160 2742
e Agian eountr 6 674 6514 2766 1 585 18042
Total Asla 17 Bag 5 &B0 3787 2088 30 742
e Afican couwntnies 0 964 500 2002 552 13018
Deoania ™ 18 634 2 a7 4588 23814
CammEments 1404 770 174 729 2012 605 122 2367643
= Collecireon impeimmed 4481} 4 4813
+ Cther acjustments 1 870 178 {458) 1684
Mgt Baans A commitmants 1407 268 174 908 91 5857 80% 127 2364 855
1 Lowns and recevalbbie it the Balics ave mclassiiod 1o assels and Bebdlins held for sale. Guaraviees and unutleed crocl Bnes include the Balics.
2 Rep @ loams and i .

Based on the customers address.
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Note 8 Impaired loans and guarantees for principal customer groups " ?

OHB Bank ASA
Grows impamed Total indnichaal Het impaked
isans and guarantees paimment loany and guarsnises
31 Dec 3 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dac, 31 Dec.
Asnoants (0 NOK malfon rari bl 21018 2017 2018 a7 i [ -]
Brivate indvidualy 1837 AT 15T (TR 138 1074
Tranzportation by wea and mpeines and
wonsal coniruchon 1 B48 IsT {845 01 438) 0z 208
Real autals i 208 LieL H [l ] (50} L] 122
Manufaciurng 1873 3594 {883 {1 1) 1110 L -]
Saraue 038 B 453 [e L] {ERTY 4457 T
Tmda 21E8 f oea {TET) (370 12387 TZ@
O and gas EY ] 4580 {103 {Tad) 27 ELr
Teansporation and i 2168 3 5 i1 20 1812 ERE ]
Buking and ¢ on MHpdtisn w52 1179 anm (4R 552 &
Power mnd waber supply LR i | {BET) 1% 730 10
Loafood » &1 L] il 1 Ee ]
Hotels and restaurants 48 AR 124) 2% e 1
Agticuiture and Ereuiry ] £0 {30 {2 ar n
Cantral med bocal gowninieng D a Q a
Crher zacion 2 [ (L1] Eﬁ 1 [
Totsd customen 18 T I e {7 064 {7 54T 11 &7 EER =]
Crodt insttutions
Tetsl impaired loans and guaraness 8T I {7064 LER- T 1nesy 14 843
Ner-pat emning bashy dnd guarintess
not subject to impairment b a0 1853 1820 1 953
Taotsl non-performing and mpaind
inens end guarsnens 20 640 24343 {7 084) 7 547 13 578 16 738
OME Baik Group
ety ampaired Tertal makvahapl Het impaked
lear and guadanlees =l lang and guaramtsey
31 Dec 3 Dec 31 Daec. 31 Dac 31 Dae 31 Dec.
Amcats in NOK malles 007 20185 207 2018 ™7 088
Brivate indvedusis 2724 g8 -] AR ] Fralere] 22
Transportation by wen and pipsfines and
wosssl comvairusBon 27Ev 4 5h {1407 2N i3 2748
HReal eutnie 1230 2780 1531) B34 (-] 15
Maniutsstunng T8 S8l LA ] 41 By 1780 ER ]
Seroges Y 1508 I Tth 450 T
Teads 2177 1355 i ] (485) 1 258 T
(M mnd gas g0 43£8 {1 0ag {Tady 2787 IE5
Teansponation and K I3 L] {13913 01829 1043 3005
Basicing and construdion ¥ pag L] [ 180Ty s i
Baveir and waher supply 25M ] {1.228) (154) 133 -
Sealpod 27 &1 (L] () 1" £
Hiotels and restaurants 48 104 24) [LET] ] &
Agricuture and foressry ] 157 (RL}] 1509 k] 07
Copntral ievd bacal govaimnirend Q a m a L]
Crhar sneton 2 2a L {16 1 18
Total customers ez 32450 [ ] 12 2T 21328
Credl nsbiuticns
Tokl irnpaired loant and guaranteds el 32480 [ o] [LARFL] 4427 2133
Man-parkemiag ladhk ahd guaanties
ot sl o renent 2840 4320 2840 430
Total non-performing and impaimed
loany snd quatsntons 26 431 35770 (B 224) (11 178 17 257 TH 54
1 IeckeSng foavns and g toid Sulbyse! ho inaividiua! Dmpaimed dod fofe! son-pedonming kag end guansaiess A0f subjed fe impaeret The Saaioown ifg.

gl Groups cormipandy fo the ELPs standard intsiral dazeficaton MACE Rev.2
2 The OB Bark Group figures for 2018 inclucles valumes o e Ealics, mclssafied a2 a20els held for 2ale in Avgusl 3018, of wisch aef non-performng and nel
doublfiyl lvang and guareatess italled MO 2 258 millen of end- December 2016
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Note 9 Impairment of loans and guarantees
C#B Bank ABA
; 7 . Fyl}
Amnunty b N it Loans __ Gusrsntess L] joany Gainrantess T
rilm o 11312 o 32 [ ] ik i}
MNusfineraated mdiidunl mpaiment |2 B (218 R 3 ENR A0 (4 260)
Todal ¥ df indiiduil g il (4 Z75) {218 (4 =34} (4 T3 (420) 1513
R o iyl g i weary 1515 m2 1787 E4D 74 B4
Rucovenss on loans and guarantess poiviousty wiitten off~ 188 188 BT EAT
Het individual mmgairmmen (2 B0 1] rd i o 21ay () (352
Changas in sallective mp of lpany &5 675 1117} (1117}
Impaimient of ioans and guaranbees {1831) L] {1 637) 14 733} (48] (4 678)
‘ivritm-of®s covered by individusl impaimment made
i provious yoars 23m -] 2425 127 1278
DHD Bank Groug
2T 28
Armurts in NOK milicn Loans 7 Guarantess Total Loans ' Guarantsss Totml
Yvrite-cify {1 &E Il -rid 1350 (1359}
Mlawfneraated Pdvitual impaiman i 227) [EaL] . #45) 5 400} {420} R
Tiscwt i et . 5 gEm @218 (& 1086} 6 840} 420} (7 269)
Repwseused snvdyvdual impaimmest LE: ] 202 T v B L] 250
Rocowmret on ioans and guarantees previousty writen off = 9 Ty ] g%
Bt individunl mpaimment (3 &R () (% 2y (4 EIT) { ik 15 280)
Changes in es) parment e lgany 1268 1388 (2 144y (2 144)
Imparment of loans and guasaniees (2428 [F 48] (T o0} [M4) 7424
hiris-offy covevnd by il Impairnent mads
" previous years 3232 ] 3288 TENG B33

T Inciusing empaimes of loass af B valie
2 Recoverss in 2016 largedy reflected e effects of i agreement with LindorlT Capdal AS on the sale of porioos of non-pedonming lodms an Moy,
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Note 10 Impairment of loans and guarantees for principal customer groups
OHB Bank ASA
2017 Fanhl ]
B comantan om B moooacdd
koans wng inge wre
P Haieh sblind i Pl CETAYETES ] =T
mdradil L0 ] gLy Liad [ T [T STy bl
Amownm o HOE meion bt | L i} wrrezen o LT ATDASTIN TR wrtien off " i i b |
Private mdwduaty = T L= {185 1581 o 9o 1
Transportation by tea and pipeines
and vesssl constuclion [} 16 12 (D) i1 000 L~ 12 1= 0]
Ral gutate 53 167 3 a9 a4y i 132 157
Manulsetunng 274 3462 -] B4 (B2} 128 1 {7EE)
Seraces (R e 2 (143} 1338 149 1 {587
Tinda EaE) 114 1 (nem o 42 B ey
CH and gas [ 5-1T] Lo (&) e L] {TiE
Tranyportation and T 1355 ) L] (138 (1 0) 18 3 {983}
Buiking and eonstrystian (25 L] 3 23] 290 47 2 1253)
Fower and witber supply (e ] 1] & T3y (=] 2 -] &
Seafond K] k] Q 2 [R1] 1 o ]
Hidtels and reataurants i 4 1 (4) i E 1 k]
Agriculture and loreuiry 4 1 =} (k1] (RE] o o 1"
Canbral mvd bocal gosssmmsng m (111 im a L]
Civer secion i1 1 -] 1] [LH L] 1] JLH]
Tkl cuiformens (LR ] 17ar 155 12813} (5133 Gid 57 DER= ]
Crpdt malfatans
_Cranges in colectve impaimast of ioan &5 {1817
It et of loans and guatanbees 14 454} 1 158 (1830 {513 14 LEL (LN
O which individus! impairment
of uanaiess 218 M .1} 2 T (it
DME Bank Group
E'I T 016
o FHe g s (0
Wi A ST Sl
P Camvegred WabTIN o Ed Fim Entpreaied ey
L ] vl L ST Hel vl Wkl pdeanuly it
A AR Sl Frpmrrart g e rettien o8 ettt frjmrat g st ot ]
Private indveduais imi% L] 174 (140 [:210) 210 Bl 308
Teanuportation by sea and pipsiines
and vasisl sonuiucsss e a2 12 (476 {1 555y g 12 {1 4y
Bweal eualn k] 205 3 50 Z2n - 1] 14 My
Manufseturing A EE: & a8 i1 2 153 2 41 804
Serdces (38T o] 1 (143 I3y 158 (1. 11]
Tende i) 122 2 7o (1S <] 0 Ei: ]
04 and gas. [#35) B [l (BN [ (B8
T riatson and i {1 358) 248 (L] i1 1043 i1 B, ] 4 {15613
Busiding ond construction (AE-ri] 142 4 (7] [p s (5] 4 (258
Prowar and wabee supply 2 z -] w2m (hag 52 -] 1809
Seafooa e 3 1 z {90 1 o 5
Histels and restaurmnty i & 1 4l i T 1 1
Aggicuiture and foresry k1] a 1 ] {0 o o n]
Contral end batal govetmment o im i Li] L]
Crmar gaeine A 2 a o [F) 3 1] 1
Tote cutfornirg {6108 2162 48 13588 (7 288 80 958 5 2800
Crodit insituticns
Changes in coleci imparment of bans 1 268 i By
Impairnsent of Foars and guarantees |8 108y 7 162 b0 [ 475 {7 384 L] L] 7 424§
O winch dnclieciu) oy rmevt
of Quanilees 28 22 [l (429 L [

1} Récowenss is 2015 vgely rafisited the sffacis of the sgresment with Lingan Caplal AS o M sale of pewialios of nod-padermeng loans i Neray:

Oooooooa

The breakdown into prncipal cusiemer greups cofesponds tothe EU's stendard industiial classification. MACE Rew.2.
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Note 11 Developments in impairment of loans and guarantees
OME Bank ABA
27 2018
Loamt to Leans ie
Trodt Leary ta g Loans to
Amounts dn NOK milior mgitulions  cusiomers  Gusmanbess Total  matbutons  customers  Guarsniess Tuotal
Epakrment as ot | January (L] ] R0 3045 i T PR 7] 15 55
B impainment 182 (105) {1 728 g =] @03 (3 23]
Incraaned mpainrmant 1580 12 {1 45E) {8 iy [k ] 1 2%
Rensseiusd imparment 1 618 a2 1731 L] 4 614
Winte-cifs covernd by previous Impaimmest 23 L] 2425 12718 1M
hangas én ndevical impaimant of
BLonuid interasl and amortaakbion
Changes i collecive fmparment s arh AR 111
Changes dus 1o sxchangs rite moonmen A1) (] 4T i k) 107
i ad oot 3 D = 8852} i) B 280 9 B0 (526} (10 334
Cfwheh  Inddnidual mperment 1815} 15000 (L1 16 8463 (528 ¥ AT
Indivdual inpaimen of sosiusd
Intered and armostsation (b0 (L1 FRTLb] [Ta}
Cofechve impairment [2 008 {2 08 {2 TET 2 VAT
DNE Bank Sroup
207 2058
Loasrs 0o Loans iz
cradit Leamt to crachl Loans ta
Amounts in NOK milion ingititions  rusinmers  Gusmnbess Tolal  mathotens customsm  Suarsnisss Total
Impsirment as at 1 January (13 58 t) rel] (14 07Oy {00 a4 (LK) (1% S5}
Mo impainment [1855) (105 {1 980 @y “on 4 415)
‘incremsed mpairmant 2153y 112 2 28 {147 1" i 485)
Roassssssd snpsment 1 TB8 Mz 1877 i k] & BAD
'irile-cifs povered by previous impasirment 3232 o 3280 2803 2803
{hanges in mdwﬂinl;irmdrmqll ol
o inkerwst 5 )
Changas in callect o il V2 127 {2044y 21445
Baltics, recinssified o3 nsvets hold for sale 168 1 Bag
Changms dus ba sxchangs rate mom et {568 (2] L] kr] 14 358
Impaimmant s ot 31 Daetenber {11870 [B11) (42.381) {1384 (5280 {14070)
Cf el [naivisunl srpaimen B2 &1} {8745} l:3=] {530 @ OB5)
Indragual srparment of sccrued
infereat amd arvdisehion [l {480 44 ]
Collpciig srpasment 13157y {3180 (L E 1T 481}
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Note 12 Market risk

Marer ik 9 the nsk of lossers of reduced Tulufa income due 1o Buclustions in market prices of exchange rales The Sk anses &% & conss-.
quence of e banking groups unhedged ransaclions and expodire 0 M fofsiph exchange, plopety, inlerest rale, commadty, aredil and
eguily markels. The risk level reBects markel pece volalility and Ihe postions taken

ONE quandifies risk by caltubating economic capital for mdevduoal sk calegenes and for the baniing group's overa risk, see note 4 Risk
managerment Economic capial for matked risk should, af & confidance lavel of B0.0 per cant, cower all polenlisl losses related (o marked sk
The model has o one-year mea hoigon, Exposure inchded n [he model could be aliher actual exposure o limits,

Caleutstions of economic capital for markel sk n Ife banking group represant &n assessment of the fSk associsled with financisl instruments
Economic caplal Tor olal market sk in lhe anking group &l wear-end 2017 was NOK 7.6 billion, companed with 0K 5.7 blion in 2016, The
Incraase wis rmainly due lo he fact thal the mvesiment in Lumiror Group AB (s treaied &5 markel risk, while economic capial for DKB's foimmer
ecitdties in the Baics was divided befween makel risk, cre-it sk, business nek and cperational risk. Most of the market rish stems from
banking acthilias Bnd counts for 85 par cenl of lolal maret ngk. Marks! fhok for oparatlonad sethilies and pension commitmeants sount for 14 per
pend and | par cent respectively

Note 13 Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity for different time intervals

The value of iterns on and off the balance sheel is afected by inberest rale movernenls. The table shows polentisl losses for the

ONE Bark Group excludng Baltics and Poland resulting from parallel one percertage poinl changes in all interest rates, The calcutatons
are based on a hypothetical sibuation where nterest rate movements in gll clerencies are unfavouratde for the DNE Bank Group relative to
the bank's poskions. Also. all interest rale movements within the same interval wil be unfavourable for the banking group. The figures wil
IS reflect maximbem losses for the DNEB Bank Group.

The calculations are baged on e banking group’s positions a5 at 31 Decernber and mancet rabes on the same date. The [Ebie does mot ncude
pmirdsiradive interest rabs nsk and indenest rate sk ied bo non-interest-eaming assets.

DNB Bark Group "
From Figen Fram
Upta 1 months A months 1 year (=0
_Ameunts in NOK mdin Vmonth ta 3 monthy b lyear 05 yesn 5 yoary Total
1 December 2017
HOK v nr 350 1748 154 w
uss B AT g2 25 ] 7
EUR 4z 17 43 7 2 129
oep 3 & kL] 1 2 -}
SEK 3 14 & 2 -] 21
Cthee curencies Lk 20 i3 T 12 4B
I December 2016
HOK 454 152 bt TEE L] =
uso &1 % 7 18 B2 L]
Eug T2 3 n 2 20 )
(=1 2 8 Al 1 ]
SEK 15 & -] 33 ] =
CEhed Bl anees B 15 ] 5 15 55

I T figurad cla nof inciucle i cpavalions id Baltcs and Pedand, and ave far the red identical for DNS Bank ASA
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Note 14 Currency positions

The table shows niet currency posilions 85 &1 31 Decernbar, inclnEng financal dervalives a5 defined by Morges Bank. Net posilions i indniduad
CiTencies My reprasent up 1o 15 per cent of shgible premary capital. Agoregate surrency posdions mist ba within 30 per sem of sligible
primary capial Foneign exchangs risk related to nvestments in subsidianes s included in 1he curenty position by ihe amount recorded in he
BACCOUNS.

ONE Bank ABA DNE Bank Group

Ml eurraney potitiony Hut turtancy praitiant
31 D M D M D 31 D

e 2017 Ameunts it NOE meBan 2017 A8

1071 1212 us0 123 1068
A20 14g EUR ran (A1)
7 52 GEP 52 (16}

] 7 SEK 7 15

n [LE]] K (13) 0

14 4 CHF 4 14

& | ] P ] &

17 185 Crhar 1ES 22

whd 1575 Tantal fawuign i 1578 il

MNote 15 Financial derivatives

General information on application of financial derivatives

Financial derbvalives are confracts stipulating financial values n the fam of infere s rate berms, exchangs rades and the value of equily
instruments for fiied periods of ime. Coresponding contracls stipulating prices on commodilies and indexes are giso defined as finantial
demvatives. Dermalives include swaps, forward conlracls and aplions as well as combinations heneal. including forward rale agresmenis
(FRAS), inancial fulures and sgreements on the transler of secunties, Finencial derivalives in the DRNE Bank Group are traded (o menags
liqquidity snd marke! risk arising from the banking greup's ordinary speralions. In addtion, (he banking greup employs inancaal devatives
in 2% own accounl trading

“0rver he counter™ (OTC) derhvalives are conliects entered inbo cutside an exchange, The contracts are ladof-made sccotding 1o imvesior
redquirerments wilh respact lo the undeslying objsct, quantity, piice. expiration lerms and malusty. The acvantage of OTC derivatives i$ that
Customers are fot mied o slandardsed contracts and can buy the precse poditon they wish, The deadvantage comparad with the
shandardsed market i that @ can be ditfcult 1o Snd cther contracling padies snd to 568 the contracts in the secondary marked

The foflewing derivalivgs ane empioyed for both trading and hedging purposes in the DHEB Bank Group:

¢ Forwand comiracis’ @ confradd 1o buy or $ell inferes! rale terms, amounts in forsign currencies, shares of commodilies on a specified future
date at o fied price. Forward contracs are tailormnds contracty traded beatween counteqparties in the OTC market

*  FRAz agreements that fix the inberest rete for 8 future period for an agreed amount. When the contract matures, only the difference
between the agréed interest rabe and the actunl market inferest rafe i guchanged.

v Inbevest rate futures standardsed contracts whete the counterparses agree o exchangs specific inberes! rate instrurnents 81 8 Soed price
on & specified dabe. The conlracis are traded on an exchange. The value of interest rate futures follows the price trend on underying
Interes rate insruments

*  Swaps tansactions where wo parties sxchange cash fiows on a fived amount over an agreed pedod. The majority of swaps are tailore
made and traded cutside exchanges. The most imporiant ypes of swaps raded by ONE are:
Interest rate swaps in which fixed inberest rales are sxchanged for foating rates or floating rates are exchanged for foed rates
GToss-cumency interest ale swaps in which pariies exchange both curmency and inlerest payments
equily swaps in which interest rale refurns are exchanged for equity refurns
*  Dpbions: agreements giving 1he Buyes the righl, but not the cbligatson, ta sither buy {call option} o sell (put oplion) & specic quantity of
financial instnument of commiodity at a predetermined and fived prce. The buyer pays a premium to the seiler fof this right. Options. are
traded bath &s OTCs {tallor-made} and as slandardised contracts
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Note 15 Financial derivatives {continued)

The lables show nomen al values on financial dertvalives according te type of dervative as well 85 positive and negative matiet values. Positve
mariet values are enterad a5 as584s in the balance sheel whersas negative manket values are enbered as kabilties. Sea nole 1 Ascounting
principdes for & mofe detaded deserplion of measarement of inancial darfvates,

ONB Bank A4
31 Dacambas 2007 3 Dacomber 2008
Total Poutre Hegative Total Postive Hagate
naminal s e naminal Friasioe rracie!
Aemcants in NOK million valussy wkin VLS ki vEle Ve
Interast rae contracls
FiA-conifcin 1009324 218 k] BES B4) 415 a3
Seups INEem oLy | 51 08 Ayndorz 5127 TETTE
QTC eptiaont a9 153 T ] A5 508 TET TS
Orher OTC eontrack
Tats inlerewd rafe contracis 4 274 448 E8 458 &4 9@ 405522 s 78 864
Faralgn exchange contracts
Forward contracts 24 Gy LhE ] L1 50 TEAE 283 1125
Seaps 1258 59 Fik e EEETS 1 890 372 & 2T 0 05
OTC aptans %09 1454 1158 32 587 ] 30
Totad foreegn sxchange contracts 1308 845 AT 2 T B 1 451 44 433 o513
Equity-related contracts
Frwasd cortracty 4828 ] LR 05T I35 150
_OTE aptans 1321 154 2 2104 163 2
Totsl OTC dervatives 6 243 2z 1313 4 181 2318 1630
Futwes £ Q TH L]
_Opticers 3433 128 g1 4 573 108 7
Totl soichangs raded conTazty 3 548 126 g1 5305 108 ki
_Tetal acpityralated contracts 10 155 2 359 1405 5 456 2478 1807
Commodity selated contracts
and )} b e 2 eEh T30 30 2 3542 275
Tots commadty mlaled contiacts 33 35 2858 23 30 82 3542 273
Collateral pledgedirecalved
Total colabernl plecigedirecend 34 Ma A T2 X E2 Marz
Taital Tinancial derivatives SEM 13 p Ll ] AT S 5 @77 101 AT T AEE T
Dfwiwah:  Apched & bodge sccouniing TR &P asM T2 TS Sdd 0 T TE
- Infgrest rale Twaps H058 it Qi k] 51
- Crags-cursacy mianesf tle Susps 557 471 - &4
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Note 15 Financial derivatives (continued)
DNB Bank Group
o b 2017 31 Dwcember 2018
Total Positive Negathe Toisl Positve Hogative
Ao el ksl At L Friaist L U

Arounts b NOK milign ] walus walus vabisn s valus
Interest rale contracls

FRA-contrariy 1008324 Ha 283 BER B2 418 383
Swewps 2830178 B 05 Bot 27T 6820 3108 35 208
OTC eptiont & 133 547 L1 A5 §ag T 5
DHhar OTC conbracts &7 L] ]

Total interest rate contracts 3 886 653 66 BT BBT3 3690446 84 760 40 564
Forelgn exchange conlracts

Foreard contracts 27 il T L =] B0 55 2T 1128
Swaps iR 154 1T Ts 54 564 1 3468 007 Hr S 40 470
O1C cpians s e0s 144 1188 3z 87 &2 B
Total foregn sxchangs contrasts 842 778 38037 61373 1462 562 34 141 48 G286
Equityrelatod contracts

Formard contracts &6 ToeEn 1201 20457 2154 152
OTC cptinny 1338 a4 3 3104 tE3 ?
Totml OTC desrvativey 6 284 452 1344 4 18 2318 1830
Futures 5 =] T8 ]
Options 34Ty . ] &t 4673 108 pir
Total excharge-traded comtiacts 3aE 24 L1 5% tos v
Total souiry-re ated contracts 10H0 2538 1408 L 2435 1807
Commodity-selaled contracts

Swaps and options 33135 2680 2 33 AT 3 541 2707
Total ity rolatid contract AN TE58 234 4T3 354 2707
Collateral pledgodiecsved

Total coinieral pledgedireceed Ja 537 37 035 35670 34 758
Tedal financin derinatives 4 BT4 018 132 849 112 03e 518 W 15T 05T 130 890
Of which: Applad for heoge socounting 88011 ] ] J48 453 154 Jypas 2498

+ fnfernat rate fvaps 5T 2 Tea 32375 1 548
+ Coeag-sumpncy infamst Fle Dwsps 551 47t 62 &iE

Use of financial derivatives

Markels acts as markel maker and is obliged bo fumish both offer and bid prices for specified eplion, foréard of futures senes with 8 maxdmum
differential between the offer and bid price, together with a minimum volume. Marke! makers always trade for their own sccount. The pupase of
own account ireding. in addilien to being & market maker, ks position taking, which means intentionad risk-taking within the foreign exchange,
inberest rate and equity markets to achievs profits ansing from favourable price, exchange rabe and index luctuations. Arbitrags. thal s prodit
taking from fluctuations in prices. sxchange rates and indices for the same product in varkous markets._ is also part of cwn-sccount ireding

Customar rading entalls structuring and marketing financial denvatives for cusiomers, enabling them to transfer, modify, ke or reduce
prevailing o expeched sk, The majority of denvative fransactions relabe to cusiomer trading

Tha DHE Bank Group uses inlenest rade and currency swaps fo comvert foreign cumensy borrowings ints the desired cumency. As a typical
emmple, the bank raises a loan in eurg, which is seapped to US dollars through a basis swap. In this case, the bank will pay a LS dollar
inberes rale based on & Swid Curvs and receive & sua interest rate reduced o increased by a mangin. These dervalives are carried at
{air value, Thera may be significant varislions inthe value of the basis swaps from day lo day, due to changes in basts swap spreads. This
unhedged risk causes unrealised gains and losses, For the year 2017, there was o NOK 672 milion decrease in valee (negative efect on
prodits). compared with a NOKE 542 milion decrease in value in 2016

Risk related to financial derivatives

Daerivatives ane traded in portiolios which also include balance sheet products. The marnced risk on devivalives is handied, monitared and
contiolied as an infegral part of the masoet risk of these portfolics. See notes 4 Risk management and 12 Market sk, Dervatives are tmded
with many different counterparties and mest of these are also engaged in olher 1ypes of business with ONE. The credt risk arsing in connection
with dermathves trading is included in the tafal credit rigk of the DNB Bank Group. Netling agreements or bifateral agreements on collaberal are
entered infowith o number of counferparties, thus reducing credit sk, The authernties’ copllal adequacy requirements take into sccount such
ngreements, resuling in a reduction of capilel adequacy requirements. See note 5 Credil risk far o descriplion of counter-pany fisk.
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Note 16 Liquidity risk

Lequidity nsk i$ the nsk (hat the DNE Bank Group will be unabée tomest s payment cblipations. Overall lquadilty managament in the banking
ghoup malles that DNE Bank ASA s responsitle for funding damestic and ietamatoonal group entilies. Liguidey fisk & managed snd measined
by MEaNS of VENoeS messurement echniques

The Board of Directors has appeoved internal Bmits which resimiet Ihe shor-berm meaturity of abBties within different lime frames. The various
rvalitities are dibject 1o siress lesling based on & bank-specifle crisis, & systemic cnsis and & combination (hessol, and 4 contngency plan has
been eslabished o hande market events. In addion, kmils have been sel for structural liquidly risk, which implies hst lending 16 customers
shiould largety be financed through custormer depasils, subordnated cagital and long-term funding. Ordnary senior bond debt and coversd
bends are e major sounces of leng-term funding. The banking group’s rathe of deposits b net [sans was 54 0'per cent a1 end-De cember 2017,
up from E3.4 per cent & year sarfier. The ratio of deposits 1o net loans in DNE Bank ASA was 130.9 per cenl af end-December 2017,

The short-lerm funding markets were genarally sound throughowt the year. Hew reguiatony reforms for US money marcet funds were infroduced,
and the short-demm funding market normalised during 2017 compared with 2016, Due to an increase in shor-term inberest rates, prices rose
somewhat duning (he yeas, which resuited in slightly higher short-tesn funding costs for banks. As the markels stabilised, investors regarded an
Increasing number of banks as attractive. ONE had ampée access to short-term funding throughest 2017

The markets for long-temm funding proved b be betler than many assumed al the start of 2017 The first quarier of the year showed the highest
level of activity in the markel. o5 mest lsswers wanted 1o enter the marke! before the paitical ebections in Europs, However, the long-term
funding markel genedally funclioned well throughout 2017, The market for covered bonds was still dominated by the European Central Bank's,
ECE, assed purchase programme, In Novernber, the ECB anncunced a gradual reduction in its assed purchases, which wiis well recerved in ihe
market, as many had feared o more aggressive de-escatalion plan beforehand Tolal ssue valumes of covered and senior bonds were some-
what lower in 2017 than in 2018, In particular he latler have largely been replaced by so-called non-prefesred seniof bonds in order 1o adapt to
the coming MREL regulations {minimum requirement of own funds and eligible labiities). There was a considerably higher level of aclivity inthe
marke! for subcrdnated loans than in 2016 partly due 10 regalatory requirements and pastly due to favourable pnces for the issuers. DHNE had
geod nccess to long-term funching in 2017, and funding costs on covered bonds and ordiniry senéor debl were further reduced during the year

The short-term liquidity requirement, Liguidily Coverage Ratic (LCR), rempined siable at above 100 per cenl theoughout the year, A% end
Decernber, the total LOR was 117 per cent, with an LCR of 181 per cenl for EUR, 137 per cend for USD and 53 per cent for HOK,

Thie average refmaming term [omsturity for the porfolio of Senior bond debt and coversd bonds was 4.0 years af end-December 2017, up from
3.8 a year earber, The DHE Group aims 1o mamtain o sound and siable madunty structure for funding over the next five years
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Note 16 Liquidity risk {continued)

Residual maturity as & 31 December 2007 DMB Bank ASA
Frem Fram Fram
Upio 1 manth 3 months | yomr D Mo faed

Armunts in NOK milios 1menth te S neenti 1o 1 year te & yoars 5 paars. rrasty Tetal
Asseis

zmuh and deposis with central bamis 161 145 161 185
Dhuw Frem eradh indictions 250 408 2409 35708 216 254 a1ie3 SR D4
Laant o CLlomes 200 050 65 845 44 g0 207852 214 8BS [ 0E) Ta1 528
Commeréial papar ard bonch o Tasr valos B2 254 T 288 17288 153 603 HOTT 61838
Commarcial paper and bonds. held to msturty £ & e 813
Shainhokiiags 130459 130459
Dby psits 204z i1 2083
Tistal 853 ga7 157 689 88 BEO sTR 174 351 485 138 382 1967 S8
Liabilities

Due o crecht insStutions 178 Ta2 50 02 0 3 0808 32003
Dipotity from suslonsc 954 493 5203
Dbt sbruttss musd TEE4E 4B B85 £ 040 133 802 7o0am 2OETE
Ottwr Babiltios sic ang I83% Lk 447t
Subordnated loan captal 26 458 8 abs
Total 1215 681 112561 118 543 160570 36538 163 R

Financial derivatives
Frnncial denvathes gross setfement

Incoming cash Sows 662 188 300 TeT 280 387 574 143 A 822 2220338
Quitgeing eavh bows &80 D03 300 407 244 379 504 B30 3 188 2258 THT
Fimangial darivatnogd, net sefiemint T 1023 866} 3407 (107} 3824
Total brmncial derivathes 2483 403 14 848} (18 194} (8 453} [0 28]
Residual maturity as at 31 Dacember 2016 " OB Bank ASA
From From Fram
Up i 1 manth 3 monting 1 yoar Crvar N ke
A in HOK o 1menth 163 manin a1 ywar 1o & phars 5 ymary masariy Taasl
Assls
Canh snd depoaity with ceniral bamis 207 @2y 1" 207 834
Due from sredd inslfutions 203 111 M3 1838 240115 T Gl 0za
Lanns ba fuslamast 158962 a1 Bs 61 872 189850 189 683 2 797} Lol
Commercial paper and bondy o N valay & Jay 10 100 36 184 182 10 21 03 23ITET
Commarcisl pspar asd bonda, held to maturity am 1160 12 T80
Lhamhcidngs 124 408 14 S0
Cilar axiaty a7 T
Letal ST AR 174 418 118 515 3113 I A1E 13t 619 1811 806
Liabilities
Dup to credt nstutions o tral L1 gers ] 41 Bo0 24 402 2 3 708
Depouts fram custonwrs B0 557 920 557
Darbt sseuritan. itued G103 53 652 64 251 121 802 18499 128 388
Othar labilties ot 1 BT J602 b baan
Subordnated loan captal 10 E88 17 267 738 28102
Total 1206 a3 127 417 106 318 18377 10 X 1623172
Financial derivatives
Fimangial denvalnet, grind. sememsn
Incoming cavh Sows 477 BBO e ] 280 353 574781 342 803 1913083
Dutgeng carh By 4T3 016 TR 285 182 508 500 358 109 1H33 000
Fi& | dirtvthidl Hak Lsllaman 187 1474 @i} 4 180 EOE 5745
Total Bnancal B 3861 733 3180 (7 553 (13 101} (14 173)

T Wermnal fufure ileoeaf payrmeds imexcess of sosrued nfene s dre ool ingiuded o e belace 3! cate

Credit fnes, commitments and documsentary crodit OB Bank AG&
3 e 31 D
Amnunts in NOK mifice 2017 2018
Unutiised credit ines stz under 1 year 317 488 a2IET
Uinutdived coad Enag sle. ovie | ypar B8 0TS 57 495
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MNote 16 Liquidity risk (continued)
Residual maturity as st 31 December 2017 DR Bank Group
] From Figen
Upto 1 monkh 3 months 1 year Creur Mo fwed
Arnenats in WOK mlen 1 i Ba 3 manths 1 1 yar b 5 ymare & it by Tetal
Assats
Cash and deposity wih central banks 165 553 B S
Do Broom crach imStutiony 99 05 TEOTE 35 440 17548 TEM AT
LOans 0 tu ity 265454 TE T3 55070 74 350 BE5 855 (3157 1 532 208
Comenaical paper and bondy at s valus B4 831 Toe8 13- 157433 s R TER 004
Commecial paper and bonds, held to masariy = o 458 BE13
Sharshokdngs 18470 184TH
Oar ety 2042 1 2053
Taka {12 =] 160 051 113508 445454 BSE 158 156 373 2 790 T
Liabilitios
Duae to credt invtiutons. 78437 ) A 8308 14 T Ay
Dopriity bom cuttomen AR0 342 a0 M2
Dbt securities lssusd 58491 TiEes TT s 418121 95 778 TEZ 230
Crthar linbies olc. 458 418 185 i T
Subordnated loan capial 3454 28 458
Totsl 11857 138 754 S TST 433 B iFekes] 1959 4
Financlal declvatives
Financisl derivatives. gross satiismant
ncarmeng cash Mows LLSE L e T Fal il H 30T 3472 1 B2 8
Cutgeing cath Ao 851 310 TR 008 I wim HITes 1 BAT S48
Finangial cert g L AL P 3305 15652 W77 IS
Tatal Anancial derhathoes 2 637 813 {1 B2E) 5501 8471 0 854
Residual matusity as at 31 Decombor 2096 " DB Bank Group
From From From
Upto 1 manih 3 months 1 yaar Cremr Ho e
A in NOK milion imenth w3 h ba 1 year WS s 5 peary ity Tatal
Assets
Cash and deposits with cenbral banks 208 M2 1" e B ]
Duw from crecit msstubons 12001 AT A gxmo T LECR
Linanid 1o duiseenin 160074 &2 M3 TRENN 3 28 B34 518 (8481} 1453 151
Comemucal papss and bends al fair valys 53725 goay o7 151 159 meETe 8 57
Commairal papss and bonds, hald o matsrty b LRt 12 780
Sharsholdngs aTm 8T
e staty EFil Ll
o B13563 w7031 MieeMs 450508 RSTOM 5799 T1ION0
Liabilitlos
D bo credit instictons. 157 018 a4 g rrs - ) b1 8-
Deposits bom customm. a5 car a5 Sar
Dbt sacurities issued 73813 &Y TES 104 188 40 B9 59232 740 815
Conar lisbiites oic, 1574 aesd 76 LR )
Suborcdirabed foan capinl 10 858 17 487 738 381m
Toted 1 158 0l £ G0 jrik. t] 447 41 b Bl 1 B2 fu
Finamcial derivatives
Finangsd deciaatives, gross sellement
Incomeng cash Aows LU a8y 247 B a0 T3 Ted 1 BAY 182
Chrgong cavh Aoes AGE G 26 58 245 6 404 353 e Lebp) 15T TR
|3 il A habivdl Ael Lt t 1074 2357 3434 o0 2 8288 ]
Tetsl Snancial decknlioss 3383 (853 7ee8 4184 3017 13 488
1 Mo uture mfevesd payments in eicees of ¢ il poeat ave ool inchaied
Credii linos, c ks and do fary credit OB Bank Group
31 Do 31 Dec.
Amounts in HOK mlion 7 2018
Urutibsed credd bnes eis. unces | ywsr 308 540 30 o

Urutiltad cracit Iret ol ovar 1 year

205 R0 216 355
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Note 17 Net interest income

CHB Bank ASA
2017 Pyl

Rocot ced Racosdad Rocoiced Rocordad

ot fair ot amorined ot fair @t amortined
Armounts in NOK millon valug coat Totsl value coal Total
Intmrest on amousts dos fom chedit instbelons 3383 1 Bal B3t 07 i IATE
I ahidl on lgant o dultonre s L1l 12 509 FERFCE ™ 2T EET I3 87
Intrast on impaired loans mnd guaesnt 4 -] Ba4 106 B2 [
Intarest on commarcisl paper and bonds ot far vt 4123 4113 4457 4 457
Intorest on commercial paper and bonds. held to maturky 15 67 173 173
Frong-end ey ots 1 Fil iy 1 %8 0
i inB1842 Nt o 11 945} 4 628 2683 [2 331} 4718 2388
Total interest income 8 263 0 743 a7 1z 4847 n 3 163
Int srest on amousts dus to oredl inshtutions [2 a2 273 3 1023 (AR} (184} (2 138
i orest on Sepotits fiom cutiomers Tam (6 388) {7 187} (87} 5 805} (6373
Inpteat on debd securities isseed (2 247) {1 546) 3 783 (1823 (1880} (3583
I eraal oA subondinabed hsan capdal (75] (374} (48} €35} [&E3) (52
Suaranive fund lavy (58} {5483 (X8} L
CHRar irteies mrpemet 2845 478} 2389 o) 51} 1 B
Todal Inerest expenses [310%) (2 504) e {1 987} (L] (11 535)
Het interesd income 1252 1158 PN F i 20 643 X 8od
DNE Bank Group

20T 28

Recorded Recomad Recomded Recorded

ot fair tl'ﬂﬂ'l-iﬂllﬂ atfaif  ab ansriaed
Armunts in NOK milicn alug foad Total vEug oot Totel
Intprest on amousts dus from oredt insiiulons: 2287 Cr ] 2712 1 106 M 1338
Irt orasl on leant by sutlomerg 2184 42851 4508 558 AT179 e
ngereat on impaired |cans and g 4 1188 1172 1 ] Bt
inteiest on commaercial paper ansd bonds st foir velos Jpas JEEs a4 408 4 &08
‘interest on commarcal paper and bonds, held to matity 157 1B7 T3 73
Frort-and feds oic. 2 I 00 5 ] e
Dtbhar irterest incore {1 ey 2073 1033 krid] 3358 L
Total Interest income o 516 A7 881 34 299 4 Tat a7 11 32 847
interest on amoonts due B0 credl nstfutions 2212 e 2 1 [ 4Bh} AR+ (183} 1 08
It erest on Seponits from custamen (TR BT T 571 (5T {6 135) (8 7o)
Intmrest on debd wecuins inseed [3 75 7M1 RLIRE )] A 502y L F k] (12 385
Intargit on subcrdnabed foan capdal (75 @7y 4531 £a5; [40) 53
Guaranise furd levy YT =7y [es) 3]
oﬂilfﬂm'Mr" I8T33 () 3778 + B [AEAN] p e
Tostal inderest @xp (eI [15515) {15 485) {1753} (18 616) (18 360
et interest income 13548 a2 088 a5 a4 3042 20 424 M7

1 Incledes hedged dems.

2 Cther inferes! pupenses include intenect ate egesioaests nasuling oo et fale svaps Dedfvadivis ave neconcid of fair vo e
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Note 18 Interest rates on selected balance sheet items
IDHEB Bank ASA
Auprage infemesd rate Awprage volumie
in parcent ™ in HOK million
217 2016 FieLk g
Assels
Cuss from cracit msSlutions [iL} 042 L qu] o g o]
Loans to cushomen 344 348 Ti 648 =ik ]
[ ial papat and Bonds 152 204 215 0=8 217 §0e
Liabilitles
Dot bo credit nstiutons (=11} 05 W TeE h-ri ]
Depotity Bom cuttomen. am 054 1007 871 S5 050
Dhebd aaeunitieg s 195 096 330 518 3 150
OB Bank Orowp
Aversge wierest rate Areragm vokame
in por cont ™ in NOK milligen
17 2018 a7 2016
Assals
Do femm erechl insstubions [=L1] 023 Ed1 520 E7E 804
Loans 1o ousiomens B0 am 1 619 ais 1 614 39
Commercial papar and bonds 1.5 204 200 358 a6 aiT
Liatiflitlas
D [0 Eriedfl matistont. k-] 0% W|O02 I8 g
Daperits bom cushormsn ors a8 1033618 ¥ 04 18
bt secunitios issued 145 148 TIO TS A

T Average inferest rele i per cenf is srlculsted a5 fobel inferest @1 NOK for the speatic prodvcts ir refation o the sppuensnt mveege captal

Note 19 Met commission and fee income

OB Barik ASA OME Bank Group
2098 2017 Amourds & VOK mellon ik i pranp -]
348 aAT7I8 Masiny BanL R 380 ™
a2 ATE Astet mansgemant services 21 e
ERE] 3T Custodal vervices e B
573 688 Ewzuntieg brching ) &18
575 612 Corperals Mance #0 TaT

A 18 ndawbank fass 18 =
Al L] Cdd broking &5 L]
In 86 Salet alsnurenos produtts 418 =T
Rool eitabs broking 1150 112

LES T Otfer commatees and fses - o) Tar
6rm T o Total commission and fee income L ke ] e
11 754 (20T Money Fanshes (210 {1 TE5)
18 [} Fa] Mz aed Managarman] weraced {125 LRl
{170 [eEd Custodal senaces ey 1"y
LR [ Szurition becking 160y {178y
TH Lk Comperate fance Lk %
&7} {485 b bank fads {483 4EM
(87} iy Craid brolting 511 ir ]
{1tay LR LA) ‘Fale of msw ance producty 116 114y
(L1 AH] 1] Other commepsions and fees 5T {587}
2oy {3795 Todal commission and fee ex) {32:44) {2004
AETS 4 o4 Het commilssion and fee income 5 g8 b %
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Note 20 Net gains on financial instruments at fair value
IDNEB Bank ABA DHB Bank Group
HHE Firlkd Amonts in WOK milfon 2T Faiil ]
8238 g3 Fedmign exchasgs and fnancial derdvtioes. 3288 e
(1113 (i k1 Cormmarcial papsr and bonds 4 i1 188}
40 L] Shareroddngs g2 a0
B2 (ki) Chher Enancis assats iy 65
a7 Pl Finangisl habite 1682 mn
7688 ] Mt geins oa Bnanecisl inarurranty treding 308 ]
Ta ) Loans at fair valus 11 (R
iEEE) ey Cormmercial papes and bonds [38) 2
a1 (] Sharshoddngn o] ]
38 L] i L] BEtdrta 53 532
30:_2 :z_m Mk gains on fnancisl nsfrumants, desipnated as al fair valus (!'BJ (1123
[2 FBEy (3 4TE) Financisl derbratives, haogng 8 D) [ 248}
o Q Firancisl swyets. hedged lem (31 i1}
2965 3353 Finansisl ke hadged it 10 148 3 BT
168 {7 Hok o h eerns 17 a5t el
5ea B84 Finaneisi gusrantess L] 58
14 T4 Dividencs ki) 133
28 M7 Mg gains on 1al inser at fair value 4513 6508
T With meapect fo hedged Rddfies: (e fecped nak i recorded of e valve, while e rest of the .3 at cost. Dematives weed for
hediging are mcorced af (e velve. Changes i sl vaiue arizing froen hedped risk ave p 1 unchar [ faf dorvathos. Radoing Nef pakrs o hedged
fiepncial labifies nckode amodission of laf vales or dissontinued bedbing mdsdiansihp
21 The DNE Grup wied hecpe acooanlmg e lang-fesm B P i Tanmigrt y it DNE Bolgirec® and ONE Bank ASA Lodny ans haciged 1.1 thoogh
el confracis whene o 2 9 b & e, infieceal e Rowaard Mae hesiping indruemet A it e Ik s ane iz Miaviels
eovatsinrs wiether o sefied i & Rk b tean for Fhe redovent e Based an the Gréug’s farsin Sumandy padiions s he undaring /e rle
avgnazur For Bl ko

Note 21 Salaries and other personnel expenses

OB Bank ASA DHE Bank Groug
Faii]] FirL s Amoets in NOK mlflon 27 aiil ]
(6138} o6 2 Salwies T2 (¥ E22)
fielt: [R5 ] Emplores'y nabional Conhtutine i1 £28) i1 180
@y i1 208 Penuion sspanses (R 11:]] [yl
[0 iMEy Beshortunng Bspsm e CEEE) Lk
(6148 £B12) Chor padponnel evpeniet [T15} (733}
(9 24E] {9 630} Tota salaries and other personnel exf [11 581) {11 208
5 208} 5350 T Ofwhich Oeivary selanse 5 105} (& 1870
s )] Foviormmtinoe-baaed pay iT 235 i1 275
DONE Bark ASA Humber of employeesTull-time positions DNE Bank Group
2016 2007 27 2048 "
Taia T4adf Marber of smplcyees as 81 31 Decembar aas (k]
Eo W - o which number of sergdoyvesd abroad 1396 3206
7am TN Mursiber of smployess eaiculsied on a Lll-tma basis as ot 31 Decambae B 544 10 368
880 L r] « ol wihich rusnbar ol eenployest cafculated on & LElme basn abrosd 1378 3168
TaT4 Taga i g memiber of sm ploy r2ve 0 783
7354 T8 A e nummbet of empiopees calculated on o AdHtime basn G048 10372
11 788 evnpioyees i tbe Balics who wons inciuded in the fpures ot ¥ g 2000 vl fi o Lurminge dhuiog the South querfer of 2007
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Note 22 Other expenses

D#E Bank ASA DOFE Bank Growp
ikl 2T Amourts iy NOK million T pail] ]
{1 474) (LR it} Fawn ! (AT {1 875)
FLE:: 5] - 0T exponcay 21183 {2087
17E s Postege and telecommsnications B [rrars]
Fat] & Offioe supplion ] 74)
1587 1564) Maskotog and puble relalions 79§ L]
7Y (g b Travsl Gupemies Fharg] {228
{iea [y Reimbumement to Marway Post for s cions aceouted [y (e
145y L] Training expensen {83y (L]
{11 i 0T Dpecabng evpantes on propeities mdprrnrln: 1261 41 288
(B3 &1y Op g e on machinery, vehithes and oz pauiprres {B1) 82
{381 [ Oihar operatng eupenses (837 {BA5)
{8 11§ |6 0d) Todal cthd sxponiis T 394} {7 205

1 Syshems deeninpment Tees folled MOK 1 390 mlon o DNE Eank ASA amd NOK T 288 milion for fe DNE Bani Group in 2017 companed wil NOK T 038
mllion and MOK 1037 milion, respectivedy, in 2078

& Costs edating lo eemsd prevces wene NOK 543 milion and NOK 1 012 milfon mespectively for DVE Baok ASA and the ONE Bank Group in 2017, compared
willy WO 833 milfon ang' WOW 1| G20 oo i 2016

Note 23 Depreciation and impairment of fixed and intangible assets

DME Bank ARA DME Bank Group
2018 217 Amounts it NOK million 7 2018

{1 24T inazn Dispeacinteon of mackinary, wehictes and offcs squipmant (L LK Fy ]
13355 13348 Dther dap altangble and gl antely {17y ATy

i e L of eapialaed Lydlom develgmen 4% L]

B4 Teparmant loses oy gaodedl | {545y 15

{288) 11 Other impament of Kxed.and intangivle s1sels = (140

12 04 [FEAL] Tedal cinfion and of fixed snd i [WEET ] {2 480§ {2 10R

1 (erparmen losses for goochil of NOK 502 millon redaling fo Cresco weve aosied i 20417,

Sew nole 27 Intangible assels and note 38 Fixed assels
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Note 24 Pensions

Description of the pension schemes
The DHB Group has a defsned-contnbilion pension schame for aif employess in Norway, wilh the exceplion of areund 330 employees from the
Torrer Posthankan who are covenad b‘,' & -:Imedwoup pEnsson plan in lhe nglun Public Serdce Pension Fund

The coniribution rates ae:

+  Salary representing 0-7 1 times (he Hational Insurance basic amour, G0 7 per cent

i Salary representing 7 1-12 times G 15 par sent

*  The Group has no defined-conlributien pension scheme for sadaries exceedng 126 (span from the closed scheme)

The employees who 'wede enrolled in the former defined-benefil occupational pension schemes (lerminaled bebaeen 2015 and 2017 ) are alio
covered by o compensation scheme (hat is struclured as a supplementary, contritugion-based direct pension scherme

Basad on the terms and conditions approved & the time of conversion, the samangs plan in the compensation schame aims to gve the ndhidusl
employes & [otal pension capiial when reaching the age of 67 corresponding to whial he or she would have received if the defined-benefi
pension scheme had been retained, Both the pension entiliements and ihe retum on the pension funds are funded through cperations

The DHE Group has a disabilty pension scheme for all employees in Norway, The disabiity pension represents

¢ 3 percent of pensiohinble income up 1o 126G

2 per centof G, maximum B per cent of pensionable income, uwp to 126G

* &6 per cent of pensionabde mcome n the mlerval bebwoen &G and 12G

The Horwegian companies in the Group ane pest of Ehe contrachul pension (CPA) scheme for the privabe sector. In addiion, the Group has an
agresment on contrachual pensions acconding to pubiie sector rubes. for employess who are members of the Public Serdce Pension Fund,

The private CPA scheme will be funded by an annual premium representing 8 percentage of salares betwesn 1 and 716,
Empicyer's confnitulions are imcluded in pension axpanses and commitments.

Subsidianes and branches oulside Norway have seperafe schemes for iheir employess, mainly in the form of defined-contribution schemes.
Pension expenses for employees culside Norway represented NOK 170 million
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Note 24 Pensions (continued)

Econcmec assumptions appied in calculating pension expenses and commibments are in sccordance with the guidsnce from Me Nonwegian
Ascounting Standards Board par 31 Des ember 2017

Ponsion expanses DHB Bank ABA
Aoty in NOK mdffon 047 Fuill]
Pst prosinnt valys of pansion entitlemanty 453 (a1
Intarel EpEnEAS O DN DTt [R50 ] {1
Calodsted retunn on pensicn funde [ (2]
Crtaimant (L1 218
Adminisirative sxpenses {5 L
Tots cedned beweft pesion sch (Ban 255
2 ! peensions. new sch (L] B
Rizi cowemge pramism [LFi] A
Dfingd contribution pen s h 54 05
it paenion spanses t 206) L1
Panslon exponses OfB Bank Group
Aoty in NOK mlion 2047 HE
Hebt s twlus of p L1 il HER 433
IDBreRE Sapansas ON DOnwon Commdrments AL {14
Calodsted returm on panss: funds -2 -]
Crurtaiment (L1 Firi]
Adminisiratve sxpshies (L] L]
Tobsi chefned baeefit o h {655 (2658
c PN, nEw sch -] {88
Ftink Cower @b prRmim iy %)
Dafinad coniribution pention wch 160 580
Ht peertion sspanses L1 23 R
DB Bank ASA Penslon commitmenis OME Bank Growp
zo018 27 Amounts i MOk Mo amr 2016
4 BBl &a%8 Opaning balance AR} S0T4
19 &532 Accurmilabed pentson enttemeniy Lk 4xz
135 116 MBS BEpELEL 118 141
208 m Aetuarial losseugaing), net 1"z 218
2 Changes in the pensson schemas = i3
3 af Craraidmm i e L]
{238 27T% Femunn paymenis 277 {243
{155) 13 Exchange nate differences 18 (157)
& o5 L1 ] Cimuing balence 7.2 & 118
Pension funds
2018 T Amsunis b NOK milliag T ois
oyl 2504 COpaning balance 2 600 FFi-]
-} aL Expacisd remsmn 13 &
4 1% Actugrial gainsPosies), net [ {8
N Craftaimends 7 i124)
-] {35 Excess panwon funds hat cannot be ¢ arisd fonwerd 36 [l =]
-] TE Promim ga B0 1a
{114y 31y Panuion paymenis 1y g
L] mn Adninisbralies sxpantes [A}] (1]
(106 48 Exchange rabe differences 47 (105)
58 2830 Caing bal 2847 2 5
A5 2806 Fit dafined banaf ohigation P 2518
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Nate 24 Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity analyses for pension calculations
The folicawing ealimales sre basad on facls and conditions prevailing on 31 Decamber 2097 assurming that all ofher parameders ane constant

Actieal resulls may deviate significantly from thess eslimales

DNE Bank Group
Anmualrine

in salasies’ Apnual Fise
Dingoamns il hatic amsunt in pensiant Lids paipbctancy
_ Choangs i pavcantage painte +1% A% +1% 1% #1% 0% rag. +1 ymar 1 yoar

Parcartags changs in pentces

Peesion cormmEmants 818 1517 534 2827 1011 5B 2 ]
Pt panyaon espemses for Bue period 1020 s 35 i 1011 5-8 2 4
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Note 25 Taxes

D#B Barik ASA Tax eponse on predax operating profi OB Bank Growp
2018 2017 Anmurds by WOK millon 2T frail] ]
1695 1 - uc] Currerd ek 5 By [ e ]

H_'!»__!ﬂ G!l?_& Changes in delred laxes =" 4 443
pan oo Tax expense woo  @osy

Reconciliation of 1ax expense agalnst naminal tax rate
it i WO el
22 Pl | Prevta operatng profit T8 21874
45 00 %276 ‘Estimatod iy axpense 81 nominal b s 34 par o (3% per onnt i 2016) (L= o6 468
(H21) Tax affect of Inencial tx in Harway {Hdd

Tazx effiect of diffeent tax rates in ol countring 1165 0

5T 48 Tax affeci of debt interest i | branch 748 Ly
10y 1450 Tz wifoct of tax-seempt income from shareholdngs [T L5 -]
451 160 Tax affect of offer & o and deductible mp ' 172 a2
Tox allact of tax bibses carmind hoowand not recogrissd in the Bahanss shiet = fFeH] 3

i Tax afect of chenged tix 1abs for eferred tas re2ognised in T bal shaat () 18

15 {245 Ewtdrs s proviaion prisdous year {72 13
1521% {3 0y T eap {8 003y {1964)
28% % B v Es FERD 20 18%

Ineoma Lax on olher compreheis]ve come

Amgunts iy NOK mdkan
48 I Paraions = &2
Hedges af net imeitments m {1adm
1 I Total Income tax on oiher comprehensive income w2 (137)
1 i Nevsdy & cOmpamy’'s moome (ram Shers Mugenaets 3 nonvs dy soampd fom e A5 & fuis, i speding Mo Mes ments i oo died it Fhp
ELYEEA The faw sxsmplion apples fa balh dhddencs amd gune/ [foaseel upan resleation. Hovwever 3 par cond of dhadends from is il g plrmpet

i3 inckated & faide oame

& Cdered thadg e bu-giedioct by afferencdd (madnly Dases sdvmidl fonmard) in scbsalaind &ne M Acogmused it e Dalnce S unies [Tk Grosg S prave
IRl thase fan postioms will be UfBsed 7 (he fufue

Tax effect of different tax rates In other countries
The Group his aperations in a aumber of counines whose tax rales are different from that in Morway (24 per cenl).

Tax effect of debt interest distribution with international branches
Astanding 1o Morwegion tay legalation. edsmal interes! axpenses shall be deiribuled proporbonally amang oferations in Nofway and
Intemalional branches based on (e respecive units' lolal assels. This coubd result in Bdddions o deductons from ncome in Nmy

Expectations regarding the effective tax rate

The nominal tax ke in Norway was 24 per cent in 2017, Business cpembions culside Norway are subject 1o locel fax rates in thelr country of
oparation, and nominal tax rates range from 12 to 45 per cent. The effoctive texation of cperations cutside Norway depends on both local tax
rules and on whether it |s possibie to aveld doubde 1acabion. Tax-exempt income from share investmenls contnbules to 8 lower expected tax rate
than 24 per cenl in some pedods, tax lesses camed forward thet are rot recognised in the balance sheet have caused variations in the
effectve 1ax rabe. in perods when such assets have nol been recognised, the effective t8x rate has teen higher than the long-tem expectation,
whereas it has been lower in penods when tax losses nol recognised as assets have been ublised
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Note 25 Taxes (continued)

DN Bank AR Deforrod tax asgele/dolerred faxes) DNB Bank Group
e 207 Amexets in NOE milfon 2047 e
The year's changes in deferred tax assetsfhefemed taves)
] BB Dudpmed by wsseind deferred Eaves) o5 ot 1 Janusry eesd) Erall
{4 528} 1= Cranges recoided sgand profits w7 4447
a7 ) Cranges reconesd sgans comp " FEome [} 4
{1 {18y Curnensy translstion differsnces on defarred axey 8 (38}
Transered 1o axseis bl for sale 139}
1038 &3 Dot baw wsmptel daberred Eanes) as ot 31 Docembar il cErin
‘Deferrad lax assels and deferred laxes in the balance sheat DHE Bank ASA
refates to the following temporary differences Defered tox assels Delerted layes
M Dee. o Dee 1 D o Dwe
Amounts in NOK milon 2T Fazil ] 207 il
Fimed stants and imtanghls ansels (88D 1B T2 B4
Commarcial paper and bonds (1T} 2 By 2
Dbt phcuritasd inund 1404 1068
Fempncial danvathoes BITE 3
Bl pension lmbikties TG 2]
Hut cthar tax-dechichabile tamporary difivences {1ady (245 2
Tux iovson wnd tny erodty caried forward &74 =2
L —— B415 1 g8z EL) ]
Duirferrod tax assels and deferred taxes in the balance sheol DHB Bank Group
relales 10 the followdng temporary differances Defemred tax asseis Deferoed laxes
3 Dec 3t Dec. 3 Dt 31 Dec
Armunts in NOK millen 27 ot 2017 e
Fiomd arvats and intsnibie S5ty & W Firrd B3
ommarcial paper and bonds e 2 B
Dbl secatitay. itund 15 0 15 837)
Frmancial danvahes 113 [ 1] 4400 5804
Bt pension i beities 23 @4 mn (588}
Bl othee tax-deductible lemporary diffwencis an B 187 e
Tax kostes and tax credts camied fomwind 444 LLrd (£6T} {13m
Tobal daferad b aviets TET Tse T 2382
1 A sigrficant share of the fingncial insfruments are carmed ot fair value in the accoonfs, whils for i purpeses, Bhe fame indlruments se ecorded on 80 eccruad
Basly in e weith the reail orinopls. s ghees naw fo brpe diffsreoces betwewn peoiits stehed iv the scoounts and profts computed for dan
purpeses Yor the individua! accounting yedvs. expecia iy in yeas with sgnificant flectustions i interes! rele levels end sachenge nifes These dfeences are
offwet in tins longer ferm
2 O to large exchangs rale Roctostions in 2017 and 2078, heve wenp sigrel k in dred gaine and lesses on fimanca) indfromint s wied in

mranagng i bavhing grous's curmeacy and mhevas! ale fek Financkal melrumedd s o recovdled ir acoavdancs Wil [ ma fzaban prncipds. whilld ine eurand
rate method i3 weed for moavalies and labiifier ia fonsgn cummncy. Thess diferences ave expeched ko Be reverssd withio @ shor penod of lime

Cvarviow ower lax assots from tax losses and tax crodils carrod forward DHB Bank ASA
¥ Dot 3017 11 Dopsmasr 2000
Tt e Ol ity Tk 1m O winif i

Amnynts & NOX mans Wk T i b Feogvsd  lonkss camed Deaiss o Ratgren bl
T hon ol e forward S fof bax anasds e azaen Porward drti wll o e
irgapae a0 0 13 217 gy L
Tostal oftaz leitng and lay sy SE0 e 113 17 BT 3
oz condits carvied Tonward | L 138
Todal of deferred tax asseis from tax losses and tax credits camed foraand a4 T

1) AR sveals carme ianviny dblited ho M paydes it el
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Note 25 Taxes (continued)

Oyerwlew over deferred Lax assels from lax losses and lax credils carrlod forward OB Bank Group
3§ Duscimbide 04T 3t Dotwrmber 3318
Tirlal L it Pl tan Of mtnch gm

demiay i 1 NI e a5 o 5 b Senogveed  Leies cmned i o oo
T b b 2 i Bcreanl bidredi]  of o g [ el gl st N i
Meorvay 0 20 5

Sinpapors L] 60 113 817 7 i
Cenmark e ] 1481 28 2311 1877 i
Totnd of b lodded dnd baw aviely 2 BRS 217 AT 2028 2 (e 42
Tou eracis camigd dorward | 51 136
Talal of defeined tax avsels from (ax losses and Las cradits carried forward '!I ﬂ'll_

15 AR tax crools eavnnd forvand aialas o Wi Dapeva i NonEy

Recognition of deferred tax

Delered 1ax assels are capilaised bo the axbent & IS probable that the DNE Bank Group will have laxable incofme agamst whish bemporany
diiferences can be utisad. Het delemed taxes on temporany differences within the same tax group are sssessed and enbered ned in the
Booounts
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Note 26 Classification of financial instruments

Ag ol 31 Decornber 2007 D#B Bank ASA
Frrusnaa Fngnod

Femntial iflfanects ol bir defratiiin Trrfatly Fahzs

i Bogugh prodt end loes e T el ety

Do rad i i W P Caatg 1T ikl 1
A g in NOE milies Srming = bar v e ek o numiry Tola
Cash mﬂmmmhﬂlﬂ'&l 143463 3954 443 1481 147
Due from credi instisations 360 540 4 B8 22T Baz Bag ety
Laant Lo cudamaedn 55 @S 1232 862 822 TM) TEY
Commerzial paper and bonds 8 Tt valos 169 639 W5 2491 9%
ERarahoiiags 5 608 :red &30
Financial derivatives 138 Ja8 B0s 85
Commercial paper and bonds, hald fo madunty F813 war3
[ in awsesinted sampans 9007 0T
renabreanty in vobaidiaies 115 442 115 142
Ottwr nusets 22 b 2082
Total brancal mviefs BET 384 A ER B0 1080 e 813 2038 ME
Due o crecht insslubions 2B|EMT 4657 42 3la BATHE
Dipiiaty Fron Sualomass 41 682 14090 800 744 958525
Financial derivathas 178324 120 1ra63a
Dmbt werortas nsuad 150003 @78 151 127 R
Hrar habilties 6214 a4 i B 503
‘Euhardnalog loan caplal 2873 ik 2 59
Toskal Irﬂﬂl-_!;*_t_ﬂ_lﬂ &70 ::.3_‘ M ,&‘h 120 1132 H‘_ﬁ 1 875 GAS

I Incdudies Reciped fahdfiag,
4 Contrasfuel chlqations of fa [l bideps desg o ag @l ar value dalled NOK 20 230 mllon

Asg af 31 Decornbar 2018 O#B Bank ASA
Fansm Fagog

Funafinl il o e Qe vl el Fafiia

walan Brrnah proft and ke gl ared of rois rrdy

Cmsssra ot o - ARG wortisd hatd b
_Ampunts in NOK milles Trpging o mrvaie e Tty oped ! ngyrty Tl
Cuzh and deposes with central basis. 187 462 16824 4 B4y 207 80
‘Due From cradd i Butions 350 T35 4 Bof 200 450 B8 083
Loans bo customen A7 974 s 631 034 A0 080
Coammarcial paper and bond & e valos 150 165 3iW 223 380
Eraehoidingy £287 B=l 5178
Financial derivathes 168 622 10 TES 1TonT
Commercial paper and bondy, held to maturity 12780 2 Te0
liraasts ina iated L G 45
Imepstmants in gubmidisties 118 233 118 233
Oifwr 8yssis 13452 13 452
Total finencial nusets BE6 15 1140 855 10 788 BT 82 12780 1881 382
Dus to cred nuutions 200432 #1949 38 104 358 734
Dapoity from eunlonmees 43N0 11 699 B85 B55 066
Firmancial darnvathes 180 605 1 166 181 764
Dubt secantes issued 153 484 k- 170 834 334 g4
Ot Bakiltion gig nBnyr bl
Subordnialed lpan Erpeal 1254 29008 28 347
_Total Snantial habiitien 7 877 247 28,975 1188 1125860 1831 371

1 Inddodies Povioed fahdte:
B Conlrectval ctdpetions of fmancial fabillies desgnaled a s al far value sotalled NOK 25 362 malfen
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MNote 26 Classification of financial instruments (continued)
A% & 31 Docemnber 2017 DME Bank Group
Fogwid Farsisl
Frruanciol s, rracdy o2 las (TN e Franas
st Fepasgh prodi e g e e [r L] FEinaTEts
Eleiarad i i ey ] Fabled fis
Amcuris I.H_h_?ﬂ_.Eﬂ T gk LT TRl ﬂ:.'ﬂ" ety Tols
Cath snd deposity wih central banks 143 40y A 4 i LR
Duae from credt insbiutions 1BS T a3 61 257 g
Linria 1o du it £5 9 ELATI 1420133 TEM ME
Cormenicial papar andg bonds ot lai valus 165 059 a7 @70 57 s
Sharshobdngy 30 o] T30
Financial derrativies 106 318 2% 3 132 848
Conemancial papar and Bendi hald 1o materky Q813 hEy
Cmer wssels 7 E8g 758
Tetsi fnancial axsets BB 371 147 583 DA taTi4my BEIY AN
Duss toy el institusons, 182 348 a4 85T A% 508 el o} |
Dwpouits fom customms. LI = i (e o B R ] S0 5T
Financisd derabivee 108 7ES 35 142 00
Dbk securibien issued 158 B2 83 703 B35 731 e azT
Omisr | isbdas 64 13081 18 304
Subordinated loan capinl rd- 1] Fid ] 2858
Toeal § il akdbas ~ 487 858 105 323 3 1 534 SaA T 145 B

17 inchains hecped Fabdiing
& Codmctuel shlgetions of feancil labdlies designated a3 at e value fotalied NOR 103 318 milion

As at 11 Decomber 2048 OME Bank Group
Frwrenam Firaraan

Fagnooa mEiumerty of far eranfeey iy frame

vatlis Benaph phol wd lote SeteFaad [ELN | FRELTETTE

B el o o m hadgng Tt e i
Armcorats in NOK malios T s i v FEinmEnty gaaf ! e Tods
Cath and depotily with contral banky 18T 462 S & 977 108 263
D feom crecit insstutions 160 828 45 14 (35 174 D0l
Loans 1o cusiomen 42 574 BE 442 1 ATe Eh2 1 452 8
Commeicial paper and bonds ot fakr value sail G =3 287 Y
Sharshobd@ngy 5158 13 6200
Finaneis! deratives 134 616 s 167 67
Commedcal papsr and bonds, held (e massriy 12 7ed 12 T
Crhar sty o5 8258
Tets fnancal aviets g 358 188 315 Hnus 1407 119 12 7&0 & 3TE 48T
D 1o enpdl inaliafony 178 047 1188 37353 291 508
Depaiits Bom cugtemng 43 210 19 580 BSO8R B4E 54
Financis derhatives 129 T 21098 130 S8
Dbt secuntios ivtued 153 455 BT 402 S0 TET TS0
O |inbadves 58 15285 157
_Suburdirated ican capanl 1254 2083 LR
Totsl Snancial lsbdiies Bl O 108 451 2188 1 aE8 4T 2100 188

1F inckatas hedoed Babdiioa
& Confmciusl oblgatons of fmancial ks bdtor dengnated as af falr value fofaded MOR 95 258 million.
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Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments at amortised cost
O#B Bank ASA
3 Decambae 317 31 December 2316
Cwrying Camyrg
Arrmurfs o NOK milics arnpunt Far vakos arresnt Fuir valyg
Cawh and dapodls with 2anirel Basis. 4434 444 4849 4648
Dun From erad imslaationg =T a2 T ER 034 M3asn
Laais be Suidamad eE2822 EEN 545 B3 0M BT
Commersial papar and bond, held to malurity #8113 e L) 12408
Tiatal & | @iiali B0 180 95 02 851 B BE5 075
Due i cred invsutions 42 %34 42 324 28 104 38104
Diepadrs from 2uatomads 200 744 BOO T4 BES 55 B&5 BEE
Satiate dud 187 727 180 827 170 531 173788
Subarantad laan eapRsl 76 568 26378 8093 28065
Tatal Eranciml babdtieg 1 137 450 1130773 1 103 583 1105812
DHE Bank Group
W Desarrbsr 2017 31 Dagernbor 218
Carying Camyrg
Arpunts in NOK milios msnaun Fait vakis amcunt Far valus
Cath and depeiity with Soniral basiy & BRI & Bl 4§77 4977
Dus frosm cred imdRutionn 561 28 561 B 05 14035
Loant bo customan Ba20 133 LEFERE (] 1583879
Commarcial paper and bonds. held to maturity fE13 L] 12 T 12 &0
Tatal & | Aanaey 1473 188 1474 487 1411 ey 1415097
Dus 13 cradl invuBans 35508 25 508 3238 32 383
Dapetity fram sunbomiry pee ] 924 S0 B0 EBS ‘B0 §ES
Escurtiay fsund =M T B Ol B e 33874
Suibprdnated loan captel 28 684 26 3T 28 093 0 D45
Total Bnancial Gabdbes 1 E26 487 1 B4 551 1 478 205 1 485 187
DHEB Bank A&
Valuation based Walustion baved
on quoted peiess Valusbion based  on inpuly other
" N Actve on chesrvabie  Hhan chostvable
market maet dats market dats
A an NOE milion Lovel 1" Luvel 77 Lovenl 37 Ttal
Assels as at 31 December 2017
Cath and depetit with coniral basis 4 434 443
Drue froem crad indistons Frol-rr 2T 81
Loant bo cud e BED 548 BEY B4R
_Commarcisl papar and Bonde. held i matunty @& 9581
Liabilities as at 31 December 2047
Due to credd insSiubons 42324 43828
Dieposits from customers 500 744 500 744
Bacurities nzued 1 150 L) 160827
“Swbordnated loan captal 15 B4 50 435 26 378
CHE Bank Group
Valuation bawed Walaation Babed
on quoted prices  Valustion based on nputs other
Fanetie o cheervabie  Dhas chiervabie
market markuet data market data
_Ammunts in NOK milion Lowel1 " Levei 2" Lowai 3" Totsl
Assels A% al 31 December 2017
Cath and depoiin with central banhs. 4 &8 4 gt
Duwe from <rodit indisotiony 38 561 30541
Loams bo cuklomaens b AT A 1421 i
wrcinl and bonde, held ko m: o faa
Liabilities as at 31 December 2047
Dus 12 cret inuSlutions 25 508 35508
Deposity from cunlomiey 524 583 H24 583
Securbes nuued 549 ¥55 8127 548082
Beborgnuted inan captal 11 081 15 397 28378

1 Sew oole 38 Fiaencil hetruments o far vl for o dedfindion of the el
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Note 27 Fair value of financial instruments at amortised cost (continued)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

Mosl assets and labidilies in 1he DME Bank Group’s balanoe shes &he cairied ot amorised cost. This primanly applies toloans, deposits and
borroaings in the bankng group's bekance shest, bul also nvestments i bands held lo matenty. Long-term bermroamngs in Morsegian kroner are
carmed et fair value, whils long-Lemm bomowings in olher currencies are camed &2 amotsed cost. Hedge accountng mey be applied.

Reconding balance sheel lems at amaoised cost imples thal the onginally agreed cash flows ane used, possibly sdusted fior impairment. Such
waluations will not ahvays ghe values which are consisbent with markel assessments of the same instrumants. Discrepancies may be due to
dverging Wews on macro-ecenomic prospects, marked conditions, isk aspects and relumn requirements. as well 85 varying access bo accurate
infoernation. The abdse Labe shows astirnaled Fair values of Rems camed &1 amortis s oosl.

Valuations are based an the mdbadual instruments’ chamacterslics and valised on the balanes sheet dabe. However, ade valuss donol include
Ihe total valwe of customer relationships, market sccess, brands, organisational Bspects, smployees and sbructural capdal. Consequently, such
Intengible assels are generally nol reconded in the accounts. In addlion. most transaclions with customers are assessed and priced collacively
for several products, and products recorded in the balance sheet are considered along with ciher products and sendces used by the customer.
Indnddunt assets and kabilites recorded in the balance sheet thes give no adequate reflection of the total value of the Bank Group's operabions.

Due from credit institutions and loans to customers

When valung loans, the kean pertfclio has been dhaded inlo the folowing categories: personal customers, smiall and medaim-stzed enterpnses,
Nerdic corporates, intemational coporates, shipping. offshore and togistics and energy. In addtion, separale calculations have been made for
D@ Finans and Poland

The vilualions are based on average marging in December, considened refalive tothe business units’ best estimate of the potenlial mangin
requinement ol yoar-end 2016 il the loans had been extended al that time, Differentiated margn requirements have been calcutated for each
calagory. &s specified above, based on estimated costs refated 1o lending. The margen requirement includes costs covering nomalised losses,
which, as epposed (o impairment recorded in the annual accounts, represent @ long-term assessment of loss bevels

Retai loans camed at amotised cost are maindy loans with Nioaling interest rate. The far value of the retad keans has Deen sef ot amotised
cosl.

Wilh respect to impaired lcans, an essessment has been mode of pofential cash Sows for the loans discounled by the effective rate of intere st
adusbed for changes in market condilions for comesponding non-impaired koans. Loan rades prior bo provisions being made reflect the increased
eredit risk of the commilmant. Geaen the ganeral uncerainty in fair value measurements, i Is evatoated hel the impaired value ghues a Qood
reflection of the fair vakue of hess loans

Customers will often use koan progucts which ane camed pastly st amortised cost and parly ol fair value. The profitabilty of & customer
relalicnship is considered on an apgregete basis, and prices are set based on an overall evaluabion. Comespondingly. 8 possible reduction in
Ihe custommer relalionship value s based on an overall assessment of all products. Any decline in value apart from prce changes on specific
products s included in the cverall assessment of credis in the retevant customer refaticnship. Any reduction in the tolel customer relationship
value is measured on the basis of emodisad cost and repoted under impairment on lcans.

Commercial paper and bonds, held to maturity

The vakuation in bevel 2 is prmarily based on cbservable marke! data in the form of infterest mle curves, sxchange reles and credil margins
related o e indradual credid and the charactenstics of the bond or commercial paper, For papers ciassified as level 3 1he valualion is based
on medeis, Ses nole 33 Commercial paper and bonds, held to maturity for more information.

Due to credit institutions and deposits from customers
The estimated fair value equals the balance sheel value for creddt inslitutions. \With resped o deposits from customers, fair value Is assessed to
equal amadised cost

Securities issued and subordinated loan capital
The valualion in fevel 2 is based on observable marke! data in the form of intevest rabe curves and credit margins when availabbe. Secunties and
subordinaled loan capdal in levet 3 are valued based on models. The items consist mainty of funding in foreign currency
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value
OB Bank ASA
WValkuntion
Waliatee Eaed on
o o Wahation nputs other
guched based on tham
h'_“tﬂil'll-ﬂ kriarsakie obaatvable
nctve market markel deta marksd daia
Apmunts in NOH milian Ll 1 Ll 2 Lievel 3 Tieul
Assels as al 31 Docomber 2017
‘Depowts with central barks 146 Tra 1 T
Cuw from credit insfutions 363 4kt 63 ab
‘Loans b0 costomen &6 B3 e rrd o161
Commarcial paper and bonds o et valos 4440 215128 3 21004
Shprehekdngs S5¥ 254 v LA
Faandiat darvathes i3 184 753 2 0en 144 053
Liabilities a8 at 31 Decambor 2017
Due 1o cre<it inSutons 2 aTe H0aTa
Dapouks from cutlomers S5 TEZ 55 7BZ
Dbt shtrand iausd 168 444 168 244
Subordnaied loan capial 2873 2873
Fimancial darvatnes 150 17T 6% 1748 178534
Difar ial babidies ' CREE] :1] #2314
Assels as al M December 2016
Depouts with central barks 20 20w 203 208
Duw from credi indiations 4B G423 5643
Loans Lo cuslomins 42074 162 Lp0Me
Commerdial paper and bonds of e velor S0e 172092 s 223 360
Shaeholdings 4140 ] e S
Fimencial dervetres L] 168 Bag 1318 1Ty
Llabilities as at 31 Decembaer 2016
Due bo credd insSlusions 300420 e
Deposuty from sustorws 54 809 54 809
Dbl sburtnd aund 188 410 g8 410
Sumardnated loan captal 1284 1254
Fraancidl dofvathed a 180732 1082 117
Ditar Ennninl babidins " L] 1] B8

1l Shod postions. treding edadies
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value {continued)
DME Bank Group
‘Waluatien
Waluation bazed an
tred an Valugtion ingeaity, ot
qeoied Ewed on fhan
PR i BN oty Nbke abaarsakia
wctive mark sl maiiet data mmiket data
Asmowats in WK midion Lawiad 1 Lewval 2 Lawel 3 Total
Aggals a9 At 31 Decembsar 2017
Dporiity vath cantral Banky B48 T4 148 714
D om cridit ineStubions 199 198 1§ 26
Loant to cutiomans 55 038 5373 e
Conemarncial papar and Bende at fair valus £33 03 3 ik 2ET Oz
Sharshokdngs & 421 i) [--4] k-]
Financisl dariations 131 130as0 2048 132 By
Liabilitles as a2 31 Decembar 2017
Do 1 eredlit nstittions, B 893 15 Sy
Dozt Bom cusioenp 55 782 55 TaR
Dopbet qpcurilies itusd b ] 47 TG
Subordinabed loan capitsl TETS LETS
Financid der it 150 M1 1748 1202
ot Anansisl katibbas 81853 A B214
Asuets o% at 31 Decembor 2016
Dwpouits with central banks 23 1eG il ]
Do from credt mustutiony 150 BTy 1M ETY
Loans 1o outtomens Crd-ril 6 sa2 M2 418
Commecial paper and bonds at fair value EEg- L] 182 824 AT 297 087
Sharsholdings & 008 b B & 20
Financisd dirhativiet ji] 156 837 1 ate 157 857
Liabilitles as s 31 Decembar 2016
Dunb (0 crndlil inutiuton. iTH 243 178 43
Dapsrile kom cutamet 54 Bl = ol
Dbt pcuirition ivtued 240 BET 240 BT
Subgrdnated loan capital i 125
Financisl deriniiioes o 129 hz8 1062 130 g0
s Anansisl badiiey 518 ] 515
I Shorf posliang, frading aciivlies.
The levels

Financial instruments are calegonsed within différent levels based on the guality of the marked data for the indhidual instrements, Wih respect
te financinl imsiruments categorised as level 2, the quasty of mirked dafe may vary depending on whether the relevant instiument has been
Iraded. Thiis, 8 will be natural thet $ome instruments are moved between leval 2 and lével 3. This applies priruarly 1o commercial papar ahd
bends.

Level 1: Valuation based on quoted prices In an active markel
Clessified os level 1 are financiad instruments valued by using quoled prces in actve markets for idantical assets of lishililies,

Inspruments in (his category include IHied shares and mutual funds, Treasury bils and commerdinl paper traded in aclive markes,

Level 2: Valuation based on abservable market data

Classified s level 3 are financial instruments which are valued by using inpuls cther than quated prices. bul where prices are directly or
Indirecily cbsanvable faf the assets of Habilies, including quoled prices in non-aclive markets for idenbical as$els of linbilites

Included in this category are, among alhers, inlermank defivatives such a3 inlerest rals swaps, currency swaps and forward confracls with prices
gquoded on Reubers or Bloomibarg, basis swaps between (he cumandes NOK. EUR; USD and GEP and cross-tummency inlenest rale denvalives
wilh eustamers wilk insignificant erect rangns. Evehange-traded aolions are dasafied as bevel 2 i |s possitle 1o sean of nlerpolatel
exirapotate implicil volatility based on obsarable prices.
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value (continued)

Level 3: Valuation based on other than observable market data

Ciataified &8 sl 3 ane financial insbruments which cannol be valied based on direcdly cbdsrvable poices. Fof theds instroments atber valuation
techniques are used, such as valualion of assats and labildies in companies, estimaled cash flows and olher models where key paramslers are
Nt based on observable market data,

included in this category are Ioans o customers and mstruments where credi marging constitube & major pan of adusimants to market value.

Gains or losses, thal oocur when the estmated fair value s differant from the transaction price (day-one gan Soss) has nol had significan
impact o the inancial stalemnent reither for 2017 or 2016

The instruments in the different levels

Due from credit instilutions (level 2)
‘The ibem is prircanky relevant for Mardcets. The valuabion of loans 1o and deposits with credt institutions is mainly based on agreed inferest rabe
temns measured against 8 swap cunve, The fed-rate pencd |5 relatively short

Laans te custamers [laval 3)

Leans consist primarily of fied-rate boans in MNorsegan kroner and pans of the portfclio of margin lsans n Norwegian krener. The value of
fixed-rate ioans is determined by decounting agreed cash fows owver the tenm of the lcan, using a discount facter sdusbed for margin
requiremipnbs. A margin requirement is calculated for margin loans, and the difference betwesn the margan reguirernant snd thie agreed marngin
ks discounted over the average expecied Bme to the repricing of the loan

Commereial paper and bonds (levels 2 and 3)

The valuation in level 2 is primanty based on coservable market data in the foem of interest rale corves, exchangs rates and credil margns
related loihe indhvidual credt and the characteristics of the bond or commarcial paper. For paper classified as level 3. the valuefion is based
on indcative prices from third parties or comparable paper

Equilties including mutual fund holdings (levels 2 and 3)

Equities in fevel 2 comprise mubual fund hotdings where the underdyng invesiments are guoted equithes, as well a5 a small valume of other
mutual funds. Instruments which are classified a5 level 3 essentally comprise property funds. Bmited patnership unils. private aquity inarst-
ments and investments in uguoted equities.

Financlal derivatives {levels 2 and 3)

Financial dertvobves classified as level 2 are primenly cumency foraard conlracts and interest rabe and cumency eaps. The valustion s based
on $Wwap curves, and credit marging constitule & mingr part of the value. In eddilion, the Lem comprises derfvalives redabed to commodites and
forward rabe agreements. These are valued based on chservabie markel prices. Derivatives classifad as level 2 also comprise equity
dervatives used in Markets' markeb-making activities. Maost of these derivalives are relaled lo the most traded equities on Oslo Bers, andthe
waluntion i based on the price development of the relevanlundertying equity and chsenmble of estimated volatilly, Financial dérhvabives
classified as level 3 are primariy connected (o cumency options. intenest rabe options in Norwegian kroner, as wall as index demvathes. The
walugtion is bosed on indicadive prices from third parties

Due to credit institutions [level 2)
See "Due from credi! institubions” sbove.

Deposits from customers (level 2)
Deposils camied at fair value include special-tesm deposis. The valuation is primarily based on measurement in relation o 8 swap curve. and
changes in crecl margins have an insignifcant effect

Debt securities issued (level 2)

The valugtion i$ primefity based on observable morkel data in the form of inberest rale curves and credt mairging, The ibem consigls mainhy of
funding in Horwegian kroner, For foreign cumency lunding, hedge sccounling is used where hedges are enbered into. In 8l cthver respects, debl
secutilies wed are carried ol amartised cost,

Subordinated loan capital (level 2)
Subordinated loans camed al fair value conssst of one loan in Norwegian kroner, and the valuation ks based on obserable infenest rale curves
and credt manging
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value {continued)
Financlal instrumants & falr value, lovel 3 OHA Bank A%A
Fimansial
Fenanizim | musaty linksttims
Camaiersial
Loans ta peper and S Financial Financial
Armogrts in NOK mifion cuntormars bonds  heidngs  dwwatves dervats
Carrying amount & d 31 December 2015 M ERS EL ] £ 1504 1144
towt gaing recognined in the -] 4z ({1 {118 fritif] L Fars]
Agdeneiipuritmie a4 94 i) 135 w2 ™
Saley {2 686} {567} 145
Satthed (11 063y feEr-] (V8L
Translwmed from bvel 1 or levsl 2 ]
Tranufemed o devel 1 or level 2 {576
Crmar DL -] 1%
Carying amount as & 31 Decembaer 2016 18 082 s og 1118 1 iz
Mot gaans graned in the 1 13 1] fri] (T8 {85
Addtonuipurchaie Z (ki b1 &5 1422 1 348
Saley - {281} {360
Satied (4 83 1o (57E)
Teanaferred from wvel 1 o level 2 o]
Tronsfored to bovel 1 or bovel 2 (i35
Orthr ] [ 15
Camying amount as o 31 December 2007 12332 s sat bl ] 1748
Financial instruments a falr value, lowvel 3 OME Bank Group
Finencial
Funaseinl Buabe (PR
Cammencial
Lowevs tor pape and Ehare Faencial Femancial
Arnegts i NOR mallss somlgmary D hesicingy i oAt i v iy
Carying amount s a 31 Decembar 2013 T ™ 1 ¥ 1404 1144
et an s i ogni s i Ehi i b ’ (BB (BT (2 {204 (92
Andtonuipurc et (EL L e ] 154 [Lard T
Sale (5 ey {BET} {283
Satthed {24 480H Q 7h {75L)
Teanalavid om eyl 1 o level 2 (==
Transfered o level 1 or beved 2 {67
Crher (35} 38 [ 5
Carying amount as a 31 December 2016 [T 37 (11 1319 1062
bk uing recagriLed o the | dal 1 118 11 T (75 {55
Addtonupuschases & m &1 1422 1348
Salen 291 (459
Gettied (18 226 {650 {5TE
Teansfaered from wved 1 or level 2 §00
Trmnsfomed to besl 1 or bevel 2 i
CHher L {8 16
Camying % a3 Decembaer 04T 33373 g B2 ) 1748
Loans to custamers

The porifolio of loans carried at fair value consisls primarty of fixed-rale loans in Morwegian Kroner and a share of mangin bsans in Norwegian
kroner,

Fixed-rate loans

The value of fived-rate loans s defermined by dscounting agreed interest flows over the berm of the loan, using 8 dsoount faclor adjusted for
margin requirements. The discount factor used has as @ sarting point o swap male based on a duration equal to the avernge remaining bock-in
period for the relevant fixed-rale loans, The assumplions underlying the calculation of the margin requirement are based on o review of the
markel conditions on the balance sheel date and on an assassment of the deliberations made by external vestors when investing in a
carresponding portfolio. Fived-rate loans carried f fair value lofaled NOK 46 504 million al year-end 2017,
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Note 28 Financial instruments at fair value (continued)

Margin loans carried at fair value

A margin boan has an apreed inberest rale consisting of & referance imberes] rate and & margin sdd-on. Relemnce rales will normelhy be sef for 8
pencd of three manths, bul {he mangin can be delermnesd for considerably longer pariods. In times of significant inferest rale luclustions and
reduced liguidity in Ehe rrarked, 85 has been the case dunng the fnancial lurmoall, long-tem hnding costs increased, This is of significance for
Kt eBRgEN Pequiremenls wsad by the bank in s calculations. The margin requiremants are measured against agresd marpins, and discre-
pancies Bne discounted ower the average penod up until the sxpected margin adustmanl. This pesiod is based on essessments from the
banking group’s business areas, but will require signifcant judgment based on past experience The percd up wnbl the actual adjustment of the
BN fepesents the largesl slement of uncestainly in theds caleulations. Maegin boans canied al falf value tetaliad NOK 8 760 maion o year-
end 2T,

Commercial paper and bonds
Imvestments classified 85 level 3 primanty consist of corporate high-vield bonds with limited liguidity.

Equities Including mutual fund holdings

Invesiments classifed as level 3 consist of private equiy funds, imited partnershigs and unquated equilies. A common denomanalor for these
inwestmants is that there is a lag n the access 1o information from the uwits. Inimes of Bnancial rmarket lurmodl, thene may be considerable
uncenminty relaled 1o the valvation of thess investments.

Financial derlvatives, assets and liabllities
Ibems cassified as bewel 3 are privsarily curmency oplions, interest rale cpbons in Norwegean knoner and dervatives rdabed to developemients in
e consumer price (noex

DNE Bark ABA Breakdown of falr value, level 3 DHB Bank Group
M December 2007 31 December 7017
Commarcial Commarcial

Share papesr and Loans to Loans to papes and Share-
holdmgy bonds St Al I_W-I Ay NOF, rellen LGN [ hﬁmﬁ
a2 55 12241 Pringipal arguntipiechase pice &4 502 355 415
158 2N &0 Fair value adustment ' 64 [2n 208
N Ascrned ntenat o
527 E x| 12322 Camying smount £5 373 3 a2
1l Changes in the fair vafue of cusfomer foans mainty nesul from changes o swap redes. A g ey i) s made in ihe fair vaiue of financial
s waed far o hpaging
DNB Bank ABA Breakdown of shareholdings, level 3 DHE Bank Group
Private Frvale
Equity (FE)  Liegiated Unguoled  Eguity (PE}
Total Char hinds egeSey  Amounts in MOK mlion Bt s [= a1 Total
2T 12 Far H3  Corying emount s sl 31 December 2017 307 FAlrd 12 i
DNB Bank ABA Sansithity analysis, lewval 3 DHBE Bank Group
ERect ol reasonakbly Carryimg Carying Effeet o reasonably
potible abernatice amagynd il posrwbls alléimative
Emsumptions 30 Oee 3017 Amownfy in MOK milion 31 Dee. 217 asAETEES
{2y 12 Loans o cushomers 5373 [§Fira]
i 328 Cemmercal papas and bends kR (3]
537 Shamhoidngs 21
320 Financial derivalves ned ki)

In order 1o show the sarsivity of the loan portfolo, Ehe discount rate on fived-rate loans snd he margin requiremant on masgin-baced loans
have bean increased by 10 basis pants.

Leved 3 bonds mainty represend invesimants in Horwegian industies. offshare and power companies. A 10basis paind increase in he discoun
rabe has had insignitizant effects.
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Note 29 Uﬂsetting

Thie tabie Bedow presents the pelentisl efacts of the banking group's netling amengements on financial assets and financial labiibes. See
mote 1 Assounting prinsples i mone nlamation.

DOHB Bank A5
Amomnti
offust in Ampuny
bl airanl aftaf
Gaoss of fnandal Carnpng Mwiting Oither possibie
Apneints in NOK mlios peraitis 1 agr ts  colateesl | nemag
Amnets as 81 31 Decembser 2017
Dot ram crecit mastutions 2 oy w2 TT 182 o7
Loans 1o cutsomers 54 430 £6 430 50 430
Finane i) derioatroes | 145 553 148 953 3 787 73 830 48 776
Liabilities as o 31 December 7017
Do b credit insutions ” 57 = 57 2 L
Depouits Bom customens ™ 1 652 1853 1862
Financial derhratroes 176 53 1795 23 THT §i oo B 538
DB Bank ASA
Amounty
affust in e Amourdy
sHalement aftar
Deeds  alfasncial Cartying Hetting Dther porsible
Amcunts in NOK miion amount position amourd  agresments  colatersl nefing
Azuets an ot 31 December 2016
Duss feom cracit inssitutions © 153 538 153 538 163 538
Loans io cuskomers ! A3 asg &3 dal &3 a6
Financis! dertrathves " 1T MY romT S 500 pi s ] a5 407
Liabilities as a 31 December 7016
Duss bo Creds inybdons &0 018 hina shms
Ciepouits bom customerns 1 1Es 1185
Einancisd derhaathees 18t T 18 T £4 280 5 BEG B
DB Bank Group
Remounts
offest in Ba Amounts
LT ] aftar
Geoss of financial Carmpng Mefting ﬁﬂ'u_n- possibie
Aot o WOF mallan [Tt poraition [ . winl ' i
Arets a5 1 31 December 2017
Dhar from checl insstutions * w2y L e 102707
Loans fo cusssenar ! £6.430 56 430 56 430
Financiad dachatives 132 B48 132 848 23797 B3 35537
Linbiliges ac of 37 December Jo17
Dot 1o crodit insbtstont 20 232 0w 302
Dopcraity o cusieenan ¥ E82 1552 1852
Finaneisl dechathves " 112 030 142050 3787 72537 15 &0
DMB Bank Group
Aemaunty
offust o B Arnounts
habaren aftar
Geoss of fnancial Camyng Huetting Gm;nr povsible
Aty in NOR milloa A peririen Al agresmanty eolwieral Ll B
Ansets a5 af 31 December 2010
Do from cracit insttutons * 153 538 183 908 183 238
Loans o tussomet ' FLYT 43 495 43 48
Finaneis! darrationy | IST 857 157 857 54 &3 70 258 33 088
Liabilifies a5 o 31 December 70186
Duas ho Credd mstdatons 0 375 AT 20575
Cwpoukts Som customers ™ 1185 1185 1185
Firaneisd dechations 130 G50 130 G k] 8 =07 A8 157
1 inchades cash colatarsd amd tips reopcemad s i frryia paties and securfips receandiplried o collifers | in depastones in Clasrfeem o
Eurcciear.
I ik e e andl wourch 0 i, ding bovrowing svod vading hansechions.
¥ Gross amourda represen ihe manket value of e decvebives suibjed fo master meiting agreements or codaterafred by cenh or secwriies under Credd Support

Anrex
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Note 30 Sharehuldings

Investments in shares, mutual funds and equity cerificates

CNE Bank ABA DNE Bank Group
31 Dee. 31 Do M Dee 3 D,
201E 2017 Ameiats in NOE malfion 2007 2018
5178 B 314 Total nts bn shares, matusl funds and eguity cetilloales T 303 B 200
T} Equly codis reprasent h in s Barmks
Note 31 Transferred assets or assets with other restrictions
DNB Bank AEA Transferrod assets slill recognised In the balance shoot DONE Bank Group
31 Dee. 3 Do 31 Dee 31 Dt
8 2017 Ameuets in NOK mifen 00 s
Repurchase agresments
L] [ ] Cormmercial papes and bondy ] 11 oTe
Derivalives
A48 4655 Cormmarcial papst and bonds 2658 3 B4B
Securities lending
Fil] 1Ta Shares | 2i
14 G 14 550 Tetal rapurchass acresmantsy and secs et landng 5 SE4 14 5af
ONE Bank A5 Liabilities asuoc! sl od vith Uhe stsols DOME Bank Group
31 Bec 3 Dc M Dec 31 Dwc.
HHE T Amownts in WOK mdfon 207 W1E
Rapurchase agrasmants
10 e R T (o gt mabtutang T 0d 104G
1S BT Deprids bom cusiament BT 1185
3648 4598 Derlvatives 2898 3848
frrad 187 Securilies lending 187 e
15 B0 14 S43 Totel Bnhitles BA7O 16 508
Restricted assets

Local statutory capiial requitements might resirk? the abily of the banking group (o access of tansler assets freely bo or from olher enlities.

within the banidng greup and to seitle Rabilties wighin the banking grouwp

Restrictions aflecling the DNE Bank Group's abilky to use assels

*  The DNB Bank Group has pledged assels to collateralise s obSgaticns [pledged securlles) and Issued covered bonds (cover pool), see
ncte 48 Off-balance sheel ransactions and contingencies for further informalion

* The DHE Bank Group has pledged collatersl in connsclion with darhalive instruments, Ses nobe 15 Financisl derivalives fo fusther
Infemation
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Note 32 Securities received which can be sold or repledged

D#E Bank ASA Securithes recelved OB Bank Growp
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dwc. 31 Bec.
2008 a7 Amaurts it NOK millon 7 2018
Reverso repufchass agreoments
190 DY 24amao Commarcial paper and bondy 24300 150 083
Securities borrowing
31 1M 45 B Shares 45 B 3142
Frilr. ] A Total secuntios receked s A Frilre. ]
Of which secuntey recesed and' subsoquantly soid or replsopsa’
o 203 41 20 Commemal paper and bonds LA -] 4 333
ragad 202 Sharey 199 1008

Note 33 Commercial paper and bonds, held to maturity

DME Barik ASA DNE Bank Group
#1 Doc 1 Dee, 3 Dec 1 Dot
2018 2017 Amaurds i NOK mllien 017 016

12 760 9813 intesmational bond peetfobe 2813 12780

12 T80 9612 Commarcisl paper and bonas, held o maturty se13 12 780

As part of ongaing liquidily manegement, DNE Bank has irvesled in a patioho of secwities. The porfaio can be used o regulate the Buidity
requiumant &Rl 55 8 DA WTI.I'I'\T!F#‘IH collalerg] far cparalions if VARDUS Sounines, ﬂi‘ﬂﬂ'lu alher Iﬂh'lni. EheE SeEurflies Serd a8 collaberal far
ahewt mnd lang-term beerowing in & number of cenlral Banks and as & basis fof Dquidity buflers lo meel reguislary reguirerents. WED sffect frem
1 July 2008, the intemalicnal bond partiolio was reclassified from he category "air value through prof of loss” to "held-tomaturity
investmenta®, In the period following the redissfication some addilicnal immesiments were classified as heldo-matunty, Podfelios in this
category are recorded Bl smonised cosl and wiitten down if there is objective svidence of & decraase in value

Effects of the reclassifications of the international bond portfolio

By mensuring the porfolio at amerised cost. the value of the porfolio s ot 31 December 2017 wis HOK 36 milkon higher than if the previcus
vatualion principle had been retained, On the reciasssfication date, the carrying amaunt of the perticlio wis NOK 85,0 billien, compared with
HOK 8.7 billion at end-December 2017, The average lemm bo matunity of ihe portiolio was 4 9 years, and the change in valus resuling from a
crecit spread adusiment of one basis point wis NOK 4.1 milkon 81 snd-Decernbar 2017

Effects on profits of the reclassification OMB Bank Group
Asrserets in NOK milics amT ol ]
Adcorded amonarbes alfacd ] &l
Hiat gin, [ yatoed ot s valie a5 a8
Effects ol reciasuicston on _'__I! [ra k)] M
Effects od the balanse sheal of the reclassific atlon OME Baik Group

31 Dec 31 Dec,
Asnowints in WOK mallon ekl 2016
Rwcorded unmalsed fowves =0 £l
Urrantad loves, il walusd at fair vakie =8 565
Effgcty of rnclaguifieation an e balancs shest ) 347
Devalopment in the portfollo after ihe reclassification DOME Bardk Grouwp

3 Dec. 31 Dec,
Amouvts in NOK mallon T il
A lwusifad portfolio. carnying smount B 10414
Raclawwled portfclio. @ valued of fair valos B EN 10 &7
Effacie of rpciagaiieston an the bal e teai] ] uy
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Note 34 Investment properties

Amounts included in the income stalamant DNB Bank Group:
Armounts in NOK milfen Fiks e
Rantal it oms fom Frortines) poperte 135 138
Disoct sxponveas (ncledeg repain and misnbenancae) mlaied 16 imesiment peoperties geneniing reeisl income &5) (-2 ]
Deroct snpeness (ng sepain and masnbsnance) ielaied o invesime ot abing rental income (i1 (ﬂ
Total 84 47

Investment properbes are madnhy related to acquined compan|es and are classidfied al level 3 in the valuation hierarchy,

Changes in the value of Invesiment praperties DONE Bank Group

Arrounts in NOK mition ' LR
Carrying amourd as &t 3 December 3013 +333

Addbions. purchazes of new propaties B

Addtions, capitabted imnzmenty %

Addtiont. acigared companirk 163

el gaing [35)

‘Disposals 3113

Exchangs rate movements 0851
Carrying amourd &% o1 31 December 3018 11753

AAdions, purch ol new propaities ]

Addtions, capitained investments o

Addfions. acgared (ompanies

Pt paing i

Drapasali [

Exchange rate movsmans i3
Carrying amolr as 8 31 Decomber 2017 wo

Contrachml commEments misted to the scgevtion o corsiruction of nvestment properties. not capialised a3 st 31 Decenber 3017 1+
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Note 35 Investments accounted for by the equity method

DMEB Bank Group
Aencorids in NOK miion T frai] ]
Carryng amount as @ 1 January 3510 4 o
Share of gerofiis mher tax (BETY ™
impaimeent of the ownership interest in Ekspostinans AS T
Share of other comprehansve intoms '.' 178 (Bady
At idrpmaly 8018 {557
_Carmying amount as ot 31 December ” 11178 1570
DME Bank Croup
Cwmenihin Carrying Carrypng
Angale Lisbdtiay anEne () [ L0 [
31 Diec 34 Dee ] Profy 31 Do, 31 D, 3 D,
Aoty in NOK milan 217" 2017 " 7" 2097 ® w17 207 208
Luminor Sroup A8 148 855 EHERS ] 2] o 44 7aar
Ekspertfinany AZ Frge 1650 (ZRd) (264} 44 am Ide
Viggs AS ] 125 15 {EM 2 525
riam Monge 443 e
Ot ssnociated companias 100 LB
Totad 1178 35T
DNE Bank ASA
Cwnarship Carrgng Camryfirg
R (%) [ v
31 Dee 31 Dee, 31 Dee.
Amourts in MO milon 2017 i o) ]
Luminor Group AR ad T4
Ekspentfinan A5 40 e E1k]
Vigps A5 a2 o]
Crhar sssociated companias BE 1B
Ttk 9 7 s
T DNE hes indrecl swnership infevests i Vias Ewepe hrough s havihip i Viss @y, bn cow with e of the holdings i Visa Europe
ax e H March 2008 an scoumulsied gain of NOK 855 mallan was grire i ofher hnaiae inooess. Lipon e comyslslion of ihe soquintion of Viss

Euw-nyUukwmm-umm‘mdhﬂr\ﬂ‘lﬂmuami—dmnﬂamﬂ-mﬂphdm 1 128 mibon was moognized a5 “Froff from
vestmets accownied for by the equly method™ in the income Hatement
hcmﬁihndnxpmim-andwun}pmrmtrihﬂdnﬁnwumm

Valung im lhe a0l & Profminary amd v bowv waed.
mwmmmmnEm;m-numummommwmmmaanhmmwamn ONEE
ewnevehip inferest & Luminer Group AB @ apeoximebely 44 per et Lumioor Groop AR is i an DVE g o the egudy Froed

ity 1t Bioiref uarty of 2017, Vipps AT wias ecfebinbed #2 & sipanahe company and DNE antaned infd & ag dwilfy 105 ot Npraegean Banks DG will
v an cwriizhp rfevedt ia [h sew Pagal aally (Wi AS) of cloie fo 57 pev cavd Howaeir, due Po the levms dad coadiians &b the shambolder agreemant. §
P B chpcicled to cefine Vipps AS a8 an arsocialed camparny. DVE S anly vole Sar 49,9 per cont of ihe Gavenl Meshing and faz anly Mes of teven
Bcandd mamiers, Vigps AS i dictaled i OWE relinegr o e iy’ el

L Hab
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Note 36 Investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017

O%B Bank ASA
Cremeanihip

Amounts i 1000 L 5T Hurmip P oeTnnal shans n Caryping
Wk i WO urlpss cibrse idiciled captal of shared vy por cunt amgunt
Fodeigr subshiares
O#dE invest Denmark O a7 ATe arFaTe Ay DKE BT BTG fod 10 FTR a0
DHE Bank Poitka ] 1257 200 1 257 200000 PLN 1257 200 L] 1773582
DHE Axia ' ush 1 500 D0¢ 150 000 000 ust 1 600 GO0 oG 12276800
OB Agis " 500 20 000 30000 DOO porin) 20000 10a 100788
OB Brasil BRL ] L59 GRG BRL ] 100 2EaZ
DHE Capital ~ 100 18676 160
DNE Lsembourg EUR 70 000 0000 EUR 70000 1] 68 203
DB Marksty Ing usdp 1 1000 use 1 Lre] 3004
OME Sweden SEX 100 006G 150 000 600 SEX 100 000 100 142e68T
8. (UK} Liméed Gan 1168 206 1 154 200000 GBP 1154 300 i0a 12 TE 838
Doenestic subsidianes
Akije- oy Eiendomanved 10e 100 000 0 100 il
Beypgetotget Holding 3260 2500 3355 160 B3 230
[E Bolighredit 4 157 000 41§70 000 4 157 000 100 56 304 000
LB Eiendom 10 0% 100 033 10 06 [r] 158 241
DNE Eiendomsutiking pANeH 91000 000 Ll L] =3
OHE Gaeandtadmaire yon 1000 e 3000 iog 1000
OB 1D Solutions 300 3 004 00 ] 16 033
DB invest Holding 100 000 200 000 100 000 {rr] 172 000
DB Hoingriredet 550 00¢ 550 000 550 000 ] 240 BaT
DB Hesringhmeging 1000 10000 1000 1oa 4 000
OB Polich Propeties 12006 1 200 . ] 100 3613
Godfsils #1030 B 040 B 000 1od T ED
Gaodforden 1 Do 10000 1 000 1] T2 000
105 Tubidar Mandgmisn 00 = w0 lr] 41 300
Kenmpberg indatnaisn o 00 190 10 i 0000
Todal investments in subsidiares 195 M3 207

1l DS Asis Lad hee pad of B3 shave caple) denominated i SG0 (@ o focad reguirernental and @ parf of 13 shere capdal denominaled in S0,
2 DNE Captal LLC, & lrsted ity compary, has pasd s chpdal of US0 2.2 kllon,

Hedging of investments in subsidiaries

In DMNE Bank ASA, cumancy sk associabed wilh foreign cumency imsestnsents @ subsidaries s subject to fair value hedging. The hedging
Instrumaents used are mainly debt securities issusd Changes in the value of the investments and hedging nstruments resulting from exchangs
rabe mowements ane recorded in the mcome stabement. Al group bevel, net invesiments in subsidisnes are hadged through cash fow hedges for
an amount correspondng 1o DNE Bank's imvesiments. Changes i the value of investments and hedging nstruments are recordsd in the
comprehenstve mcome statement. ineMectivenass in the hedging reletionship is recognised in Me Income siatement. The weakening of (he
Monwegian Krone through 2017 increased the value of investments in subsidianas by NOK 6537 milion, which was offsel by & carmesponding
reduction in the value of hedging contracts, adjusted for 1ax efects. in 2016, there was & decrease & the value of invesiments in subskdares by
HOE 5 755 million
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Note 37 intangihle assets

O#B Bank ASA OMB Bank Growg
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Doc. 31 Dec.
ﬁ!ﬂ a7 M ] NIJWM s I E‘E‘I__ﬂ_
283 2404 Goodwil 2684 3057
571 1040 Cuptal ved wywieme developmient 1058 24
108 71 ﬂﬂuwam 118 100
3 56k 3515 Total intangible assets 3758 3 &8
DHE Bank ABA
Gapitaksed Char
wysberrn ntanghie
- 3 in NOE mallion ch'-l ﬁ-wt By Tobal
Coengt a3 &l 1 January 2015 36T 1488 |25 -3
Additions 266 323 &8
Addices rom the acquistion/sshablishmant of other compan {50} 138
Increasairedustion in o price 1} )
Dipotai @k 106 457 348
Emhﬂrlhrrmm ':.-!!-‘i-l' [#4] {4y {71}
Cont a4 ot 31 Ducember 218 3543 1 857 &81 & 0
Tetal clepepciation and impaimest a3 o 1 Jessary 2016 ®85) @75 &3 Fny
Dupeiciation (130 4% {183
mpakent (B 1] *
Dispotai a [18E) 138 7
Exchange rabs movamants 3 2 11 15
Tk iation and impasi 8% 9131 Decamber 2018 822} 11 208 (575) (2482
Lyt amtoont s st 1 DeChiter JHY 4! £ 108 L
Cont as at 1 January 2017 3543 1857 &1 & ol
AcdEiont. 633 14 L5
hddiors rem the acquisitonts stebiissment of cther companis
Increasaireduction in cost price
Canposals' (88T} (3 ] {74ty
Excharge rale mevements o) 1 12 =
Comt an ot 31 Decenbes 2017 2ET 2448 o8 L]
Tetal ceprecintion and impasrment &5 @ 1 January 2017 7] 11 28 575 (2483
Dapraciation {158 [l:-] (218
Impaimen
Ditpriale ' 155 43 0 183
h ra tﬂ (4] [LLY] {18
Tetnl EE Ban and IHEHIIH E3 8131 Decamber 2047 (HET} {1 4@ {ﬂ [F1 5}&_
Carrying amount as ol 31 December 2617 2404 1 040 7 3515
ok ni fosses for goodvell in 2017 of NOK 502 milion was related fo Cresco
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Note 37 Intangible assets {continued)
OHB Bank Group
Captsiued Cthar
wysinms Irtmngsnbe
Arnunts i NOK milion st iy Bl B [Eit Tooml
Cost mn ok 1 Jarsary 2060 4 655 3388 e 8038
Addtion 18 265 Bl w2
Addtions from B soguwh Iish of other 1 (1]
Inersavaiecuction m coul price {4ty 1w 41}
Dispoals fh | (367 (] 1%
_El__eh:nu rate movenass LE ’_E_E; e i1 g_
Cost o ot 31 December 2016 4 GBS 3341 -k 4668
Total depreciation and imparment & af 1 Janyary 2018 [0 261H L o] {4 BEY)
Daprecintion =1 3 (284
I pasTant 5 ] 1]
Digposals 20 85 52 388
Exchange rate movemanty n & = 112
Total daprecintion and imparmant a1 ak 31 December 7015 {1 538 247 T4t} (4 585
Carrying amoun! a5 8 31 December 2016 A 057 M 100 dadn
Cout o al | Jessary 2047 d 55 I [ 4] Eili ]
Addtions 45 455 = 51
Additions fom the mogu feulablish af ether > i i F
Iner sasei e hon o Cow price 1] 1]
Disponats ! (7o ey m (Taif)
Exchange rate fovements 22 147 i) 283
Cadt i ok 31 D b 21T 39 38N ks #8714
Total depre:istion and mparmant s st 1 January 2017 1 B3 R by a1y (4 685)
Depre<iation (188 o [
Ispasment = T (8}
Diggotaly ! 180 43 0 i)
Ex 2hali g PR Mg s sy 7 1130 LE: {161
Total depreciation and impaimant a3 32 31 December 2017 {4 24 (2 78 (a4l 4 968
Carrying mmour o 8 31 Decomber 2017 2 5B 1058 118 1758

10 of inages for goodwdl i 2017 of WO 502 mitkes wel rdlilen 1o Cassa

Goodwill

‘The risk-free interest rabe ks set al 3 per cent. the market risk premium is set at 5 per cent. and the long-term growih tactor ks sel at 2.5 per cen
o all cash-generaling uniis. Beta values are estimated separately for each cash-generatng unil. Required rate of retumn is before tax. For a
detalled descriplion of methods and assumplions used in the caloutation of the recoverable amoun! for goodwill, see nole 1 Accounling
principles.
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Note 37 Intangible assets (continued)

OHE Bank ASA Goodwill per unll as a1 31 Decomber 2017 DME Bank Group
Ratuired Rsuired
Aecorded  rabe of retum  Gartwvih fnector Growth fctor  rabe of petum Rwcorded
(D i) ipaf canty (pat cant) fpet ear) pot eant) (RO rdlon)
aa2 118 258 Parsons cudomers 25 18 =i
48y 1148 25 Sl Bnd madum seed sapnoss 24 18 4y
T 118 25 @ Finans « car Enancing 25 118 T
148 1148 25 CHar 25 s r- ]
2404 Total goodes 28t
O#B Bank ASA Goodwill per unil as al 31 Decomber 2018 OMB Bank Group
Flequired Recuired
Recorded b of ietumn  Gemath fsetor Growth factor b of Petum Rucordsd
(0K rmllen) {per canky ipar cent) (et corr) (per cpnty  (MOE erllkon)
BE2 124 25 Pernonisl cULDeTL 25 124 aEz
48 124 -1 1 Sl mnd msdum e snbeipn s 25 124 453
bi ] 124 b LB Finans - gar fnancing 28 124 ™
85 124 25 Hhai 25 124 i)
2920 Total goodeill 3 057
Borsonal cystomers — parent bank

This uni? encompasses bonking operalions (loans and depcsits) for personal customers in the regional network in Narway, and recorded good-
wil mainly slams from the mergésr bebween DnB and Gjensidige NOR and the scquisition of Nordlandsbanken, in addiion, some goodwil
rernains from previously acquired offices In Giensigige NOR. Key assumplions for cash fiows during the plan peried are developments in
manging, welumes and mpaiment of [oans.

1] m - L]
This uni# encompasses banking operalions (loans and daposits) for corporabe: customers in the regional network in Norway, and reconded
goodeidl mainly stemd from the merger bl DnB and Gj dige HOR, Key assumplions for cash iows during the plan period are develop-
ments in marging, volumes and impairment of loans.

DB Finnna - car financing

The unit encompiises DNB'S car financing operations in Norwey and Sweden, and poodwill $1ems from DHEB'S scquisiton of Skandisbanken's
it fribheing operalions with effisd frem 2008, Critical addumplions far cash fows dufing the pian period are car sales figures and DNE Finans'
ahility 10 retmin custorner relalions wilh importand car dealers, Along with long-term margin devatopments and the level of impairment of loans.
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Note 38 Fixed assets

OMB Bank AEA
Bank
buildngs  Machinery,  Fieed asssts
and cthes  aguipmant oparating  Other Eued
L]

Arnunts it NOK milorn proparties  aed vehides innsen Tomi
Accumudated cost on ot 3 December 2015 200 L] i fai 6 11 488
RetiasuSod fired astele 7 T
Addbons B 1as 2338 1 2504
Drspoaniy 1) (242} 2 857} 5 2 944
Exchange rate movenents \E] Ak ] [0y i [eib]
Cowt o at 31 Decormnbar 2018 17z 3 oe? goig 11 11 208
Toml deprecistion and rparmant 81 et 31 December 2015 (3} 15233 2927 [ 14 484}
Dispesals o 188 1583 o iz
Dmpreciation i) (08} {0 282 i (1 &7
Exchange rate movermnants 3 3 103 o 1680
Total deprecistion and enpakment a4 sk 31 Decambaer 3016 (35 1 S 2 453) ) 4 175}
_Camying amsunt as 84 31 Decembar 2018 133 t 357 5525 5 7034
Accumulsted cost ax at 31 December 2018 LEFS kg =r Aot It " 2
Addtiony 3 a7 2883 2 3350
Dispersaly 1 (53p Z 272 i3 2 3%
_Eschange rate movemanis 4 o Fri:] o P
Lot o ot X1 Decembas 2017 1687 338 A BST i 12 352
Tital depreciation and mparmant iy ot 31 Decorier 2018 (3} (1840 (2 483 (] 4175
DHepenale 8 0o 805
Dupreintion [ 287} (853 @ i1 181)
Eschange rate movenents K] 2 (1-kN] ] L
Teotal deprecistion and erpairmant oy o8 37 Decpmber 2017 (49 o1 978} = 528 () M
Caimying k31 Dacaimbar 2047 e 380 832% ] 7 a2
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MNote 38 Fixed assets {continued)

DNE Bark Group
Bani,
buldings  Machinery, Fooed sssein
whe athar e el oparaling s Resad

Armcarts in NOK milon propecties  and vehkcles Imases assets Totsl
Auzuredabid cost st et 31 Dwesmbar 2015 e 380 BEda 174 131z
Réclizwled lxed ataats T i
AdEoas 19 33 2333 o z813
Fived mssets. reclassified as held for cale 41 £200% (Rl ] {TEE)
Covpanaiz L] 208 (2 B&T) L&) @ Tm
Exchargs rale mowdmants £35) {24y 1396 i) 383
Gt a3 at 31 Dueamis 2016 173 3138 B0 &7 18364
Totsl depreciation and impaimmest as ol 31 Gecember 2046 irils ] AR ~31] (=8 1 iy o DE3
Fioed assats, roclossified as beld for sale 113 Fid ] &7 TH
Cinponals Ta e i] 1 G o0 12
Dapreciation 2 (245 11253 12 i1 831)
Impalmment (411 18y
Exsharge rabe movemeni iz 14 03 -] 153
Totsl cepruciation and impeairrsect as at 31 Decombar 2018 a0y i M8 (2408 o1 2T
_Carrgng mmount a4 ol 31 Degamber 2018 133 1431 5535 -} 7117
Accurulated cost ox o1 31 December 2018 LEe ] LR E ] 208 &7 LAk
Raclyvsfed fxed nusats [Firi] [rri]
Addriond 3 -] TS 3 3178
Diuposaln (11} L8 (23Th ) (2 348
Excharge rale movements ) L] Fr: ] |- dd
Cost oy ot 31 Docomber 21T 168 5471 B BT 80 12 545
Totsl clap Hen and impal o a3 O bar 2016 3 i1 T8} (et <H 3 i 2Tl
Duupriaie 10 500 i ]
Cepraciation & (M {B5% 1 {1177
Rwversal of previous impairment lowses a z ]
Exchange rate masamants. (L] 15} (1K) Lk L)
Total ceperieiation and impaimmant a3 ¢ 31 D bar 3017 £58p e (2 538 LEXH] 5 B34
_Carryeng amount as i 31 Decamber 2017 118 5451 8329 12 7ot
1 Based o cosf ekt ey resica) velie, Gifver so5eds are sulged ta dragit-bne deprecistDn guer theer expedied vl My vahin the Glowng bmis
Teciromal et allafrs 12 yeavs
Hifa finary 210 yoars
Filurs ard fftings 510 yoars
EompUlar et 2.8 pears
Mauna of franspod 57 pears

Thie DNE Bank ASA has not placed any collateral for loansfunding of fxed assels. incledng propeny.
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Note 39 Lea sing

ONE Bank ABA Fimamncial leases (a5 lessor) ONE Bank Group
31 Dar 31 D 3 Do 3 D
20iE 2017 Amoeets in WMOF rallen 2017 218
Groax nvestment in the loase
12 165 12439 Dos within 1 year 12500 13472
31 ME 3 BRT D in 25 vy 32515 35624
31276 3 B50 Dot in mern than & years 3 5D 3335
46 TR a8 118 Totnl gross mvestment in Ehe sese 48 BBA B2 431
Pretant value of minisum lests payments.
1 TeE 12053 D within T yoar 12113 12 880
B Ns 5630 Duss In 15 ybatn BT 683
217 ki3] Dwe in more than & years 2563 rir]
30 195 A0 Totel prosent valus of lais payments &0 392 & 098
7584 7 68 Ursmasnmd Bnancial ingome Ba73 8383
B T2 Urgammnbased rasbgdual vlums B2 cruing bo b lessor T2 85
185 2100 Ancummdated loarvioss provisions 2100 1 gl
&1 <5 WVatmbls |sais payments recoghiied 81 income duling the pensd =3 T
DNB Bark ASR Oporaticn loases (3% lessor) DNE Bank Group
31 Dee 31 D M Dee 4 Dt
Faril] a7 Amownts in WOK mallon P 2018
Futuw g Iy pay undar por linbie mases
Mz o7 Dot twithin 1 yoar 2ET et
1708 02 Duas ini 85 yhain 2133 1723
33 15 Dus in more than & years 1 .13
2 0ay 238 Toted fubure minimum lease payrects undei non-tancefiatis lmates 2408 2 0o&
DNB Bank AG& Oyperational leases (as lessea) DNE Bank Group
31 Do, 31 D M D 31 Dec
e 2017 Amwxents i NOK milfon 2017 He
Minimusm future ave payments under non-canceBable loawes
B 40 Dos withini 1 ymar 52 32
iz Eho] Duow in 15 ymrn gl 446
B a7 550 D in more than & years =] HE
fi 380 & 277 Toted minimum future isaso Dryments under non-cancefishis lnauos 382 fi37e
Totsll i future wubd paymrienty sxpected to be receved under non-cancelable
478 B4z LoblbBsEy 365 m|T
IDNE Bank ABA DHE Bank Group
2B o7 Assieurg it WOE s 01T e
Laates recognived ot an expirie duosing the pencd
B&T BaT Minimwem iease paymenty Bs2 22
13 Virinble sase payrents 13
BT B4 Totol loases recognited oy an experie curmg e peded 85 [
1] Ay Impaimedd of eases o [
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Note 40 Other assets

D#E Bank ASA DNE Bank Group
31 Dec 31 Dec. 39 Diec. 31 Dec
2018 2017 Amaurts it NOK millon A7 2018

T 52 Acorued sapenses and propeid revenues - 51

180 1734 Amdgftt Sfttandng on documentary crediin and cher pupmen! tanicet 1743 1§ =]

1060 IETT LingsiSad conlract molos 2877 (-

@ BEL 17 218 Othar iml'l.n.lmﬂﬂlt' 2 o4 4 408

13 4637 FrRr Tl ity assets ™ TEE & 355

1r  DWE Bank A58 had ool st moing group contnibub tofmly MOR 15 160 millhon a1 af 31 Decewmnber 2017,
2 Other ety sre geneally of § shor-term neture.

MNote 41 Deposits from customers for principal customer groups

DB Bank ASA DME Bank Graug
31 Dec 31 [ec 51 Dec: 31 Dec.
2008 a7 Ammuris iy NOH mlllen 17 08
344 437 A8 Previts inghadualy 361 958 1B %3
51347 A BEE Trandpartuion by taa and paslines st il truied 48 558 51 M7
47T &2 8ED Runl #xtabe 48 [R5 43 307
BT T4 57 280 Manute ctuiring 3 pE &8 T
125 54 141 45T Saracan W2 ETE LT
T ET2 X2 M2 Trade X3 R0E T 408
27 268 110 il amd gas M 110 27 28T
50 265 48 B Transportation anvd communication &0 7D 52 BED
28074 &2 148 Buslding and sanelruetion ZEs 43
W03 15 738 Prawer and water wupply 16 527 19 dEg
bl ) 8445 Eaaten B 445 s )
3071 3078 Hotaly and restauranty 3078 3071
2day 2358 Agricufture and foresiry 4] 2 4
57 108 54 652 Contral and lcol govemnmant 55114 T TS
&0 742 B2 AT Fimante &3 &7 75 08
P20 4M #5350 Tital depouty o cutlomery, HOMING Amaun SE0 095 5 34
230 175 MAdustmanty ] e
e e hoe ETr] Depotits from cusiomirs 0 3T 5 0

The breakdown into principal customer groups cormesponds to the EURs standard industrial classificalion, MACE Rev.2
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Note 42 Debt securities issued

Changes in dabt securities issuad O#B Bank ASA
Balance Eschange
shast Maturnd! e Catet
I Ces. hsued rodoumed  movements  aduilmiects 3 Do
Ampunts in NOK milion M7 2017 27 7 27 ME
Commarcial paper isswed. nomine emount 158 675 1T AT 4 TET 362 151 153416
Bend dubt, nominal amount 158 536 17T 308 13T 306 6168 173 368
Adustmants 1881 2 187 10 18
Tidal debl fecusiBeg el F28 171 V1EERTE (1 B0 SEE) T a1 2 187} 16 g
Maturily of debt securilies issued recorded at amorised cosl as at 31 December 2097 "% D#B Bank ASA
Ferieg
_Ammunts in NOK milicn Pl cumrsncy Totsd
201 16 148 16 840
2019 13T 13
2020 48 782 48 T2
o el 43T 437
2022 18840 B B0
2023 #425 426
20124 and Istst B 544 G844
Total bond cebt recoided ot amartised cost nominel amount 160 Mg 150 280
Maturity of debt securilies issusd recorded at fair value as af 31 December 2017 DB Bank ASA
Fersign
Jmmhm@ PO currency 'I'ug__'
H1E 7 168 458 168 67
250 = e strr Ao 7 158858 158 875
HE 2410 2410
2018 172 7
2020 1 531 160
20 3453 3453
2022
023
2024 and Iater 138 138
Total bond debt, nomira! armound 9155 #2656
Total bl tseurites itiund racerdad ot faie vilus, Remnal ameunt 5273 158 658 167 930
Adustmants 485 Ta7h b=
‘Dbt secertes nyued & T PALERE] d26 171
T Mwus v bonds.

3 Includes hadped e
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MNote 42 Debt securities issued (continued)
Changes In debt securities lssued DR Bank Groug
Ealanee Exsharge
shesd Matured’ rate Other
31 Dise, awwd  iedearesd  mevemenit  asusiments 31 Dee.
Arrourts in NOK miicn 017 017 w7 2017 w7 2006
Connateisl papee Haued, neminal smount ISBETE  TTTIIT1 (1 767 36D 1451 153 415
Bend ekt pominat amsurt | 566 207 77 858 (B9 DAY 27 906 551 44T
gl 2520 (7 638, 32838
Tolal debd astuiities maued TH2 13T 1849030 (18563TY 78357 {7 63y 787 Ta0
Matusrity of debt securitles [sswed recorded o smortised cost 45 31 3 Decomber 2017 "5 DMB Bank Groug
Ferwign
Aoty i WOK malion NOK TRy Tolal
0E T4 813 74913
a8 o5 174 B85 174
2020 EY B4 i
0 08T 55 087
033 CEET BT B8
2023 873 ME
2024 and kaber 301 3019
_Totsl bemd det, recordid ot Bmertnad cost naminal aentunt 5t8 777 E46 777
Maburity of debt securities issued rocardad af falr value as at 31 Decomber 2047 " DMB Bank Group
Farpign
Armeseds in NOE mallesn HOK y qul.
e 17 168 58 18 &8
Totsl commancinl paper istod. nominel ot 17 156 658 158 675
2018 BEED BEED
018 18085 18 085
2036 20400 20 400
2021 19557 19 557
023 12197 42407
Furec ) =T =57
2024 and later zoe0 2368
Totad b o, nominal smount B1425 B1425
Total delbd securitios mawed mcordid of fak vabus. nomine amcusd 31 A4y 168 450 240 108
Agutmibnty Z287 ey 25280
Fibiies | E 710 EJ 17 M

1 Minus g Boadds. Momina! avmcunt of god ending sovpred bonds o ONE Balghaedd! fofaled NOK 430 4 bfan a2 @ 31 Decedsitar 2017 The sover pool

maarkel vaiue reproseeded NOW 6178 bilhon,
B leekadfng Madkpnd famd
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Note 43 Subordinated loan capital and perpetual subordinated loan capital securities

Changes in subordinated loan capltal and perpetual subordinated loan capital securilies DNB Bank Group
Enance Eschangs Bslance
shawl Masuwrad! ialg LRt shuel
31 Dwc: tesund rodoamad  movements  adouiments 3 Dec
Arunta in NOK milios 2T 207 M7 T 007 e
Tarrn sasbeoe bonn capdtsl, I t 2387 1 106 1% 812} 1189 18418
Perpatual cubcrdinabid |oan capital mominad smbunt 5381 (241} 5002
Perpatual subordinalid lean copital wguritien,
DT ] Al % T3 o
Adustments 00 [k ]
Tedal suibcndinated loan capital and
_perpetual subordinated Ioan capital securities 20803 10106 (10.44) 3 (219 muUr
DNB Bank Group
Cmrying
Carrying smaunt (=] it
Your restod i foheicn 3 Irdeas Fate Maiuriy e i e
T skt dinmed loan ¢aesd
2 EUR Thi 100 pon 202 2018 TATE
Fan b} HOK 1 280 Fmonth HIBOR « 1. 7% 202 2018 1260
Fis 13 SER 100G L% pa 2025 2020 0
ME EER 3000 enonih STIBOR » 1.80% 2025 2020 2987
Far) 1.4 Jy 10 000 100% 2026 200 )
ey JPY 11 600 1.04% pa 2027 2022 :al:]
T HOK 1400 Femorth NIBOR + 1.75% 2027 2022 1400
oy MOK L 306N pa 2027 a1 g 17
v g SEX THO Semonth STIBOR + 1. 70% 2T 200 a8
2y SEX 100G 185% pa 2027 ry il d a8
T EUR 650 1.35% poa 20TT 20 638t
Takal, 0ol e 3 Ba7
Pespatual subordinated loan capitsi
=13 uso 26 Frmonih LBOR « 028% 1 763
1584 uEn 160 femonth LIBOR = 015% 1230
L98e usn 00 E-month LIBOR = 013% 1840
1509 Jy 10 0og 451% pa 0% r'i
Tatal | meniount 5 361

The subcrdinated foan capilal and perpetual subordnated loan capdal secusities are issued by DNE Bank ASA
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Note 44 Other liabilities

D#E Bank ASA OB Bank Growp
31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dwc. 31 Bec.
2008 an7 AMAEHNMW a7 m"“l_.ﬂ_
1474 458 Short:beem funding 450 15674
516 5214 Sheert peaitions tading B4 518
A50 3836 Agcrusd Sapanses ARG propaid SVEALES 41938 3880
810 20332 (o Ay Sty Shaguns Gl SIET DEyTESnT WIriced ZOE3 280
2008 2828 Unsetfed contract notes 26824 284
pRL X2 B Grop contiutionidridends
e 1202 Ascounts payable 1224 1015
248 Ma Qanaral dmplayes Barus e ]
1748 1420 Other knbdtiss 2013 2765
pa ks 51 063 Tl ottved Baksiiibes " 1% 15 T

1r - Otbar kebilbies ave generaly of & shod-derm nafure

Note 45 Equity

Share capital

D#E Bark ASA s whally cwned subsidiery of DMNE ASA, which is 8 Norweglen public limited company Isled on the Oslo Stotk Exchange (Oslo
Bers), The share capiai of DMNE Bark ASA at 31 December 2017 was NOK 18 255 548 000 dhvided inlo 182 556 480 shares. each with &
nemingd value of ROK 100, A 31 December 2016 the shavte capiiad was 18 314 371 000 divided into 163 143 110 shares, each with a nominal
value of NOK 100. The share capital was neduced wilh NOK 58 65 000 dnided into 585 530 shares following the demerger of Vipps in third
cuarer of 2017

Fund for unrealised gains
The restricied share of refained eamings (Aund for unrealised gains) in DNB Bank ASA tolalled HOK 2 177 milion a1 31 December 2017 and
MNOK 1 888 milien ot 31 December 2016,

Additional Tier 1 capital
The addtional Tier 1 capital |5 issued by ONE Bank ASA

Changes In additional Tier 1 capital OPME Bank Group
Aalnnge Exchange falam e

shest Inberest Inberest rate shest

31 Det LAtE ] i mEtield  movementy 21 Dee,

Aoty in NOK mdllion 2047 1T a7 1T T Fuitl]
Acdegeal Taer 1 caplal, nominal ameynt 16 574 15574
AT g [2a e () s
Aiditional Tier 1 capital 18 138 [Eri]] k)] [Ei) 15 85
ONB Bank Group

Camying

Carying mmsount Amount
Tar i It Bty Gipriitay iyt 3 pROE
2015 MoK 2180 3-month HIBOR + 3.26% 2150
2018 ED RO Ei6%pa .30
e O, L[] Fmonth NIEDR + 5.25% 1400
2018 U0 750 B50% pa 8130

Tetal merrinal ameurt

15 E74
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Note 46 Remunerations etc.

Pursuant to Section 6-16a of the Norwegian Public Limited C nies Act, the Board of Directors will
present the following statement on remunerations to the Annual General l-fnetlng for voting:

“Information about DNB"s remuneration scheme

Pursuant 1o ke Financial Instilutions Regulations adopbed by the Norsegian Minlstry of Financs oh 8 December 2016, companies ane feguinsd
to publish infermation aboul the main principles for determining remunenations, criberia for the stipulation of any vanksble remunerabens and
quanbiative nformation on remunedalion (o sentor execitives, The information inthis note, including the Board of Drectors' stabement on the
stpulation of salaries and ciher remunerations bo senkor execulives below, represents such informaltion, as stiputaled inthe Financlal instilutions
Reguabons.

The standard for remuneration inihe ONE Goop appies to fve lotal remuneration to all permanent smglayess in the DNB Group and has been
Bpproed by the Boand of Dirsctors. The standard cofmpeises lota! remuneration (foed salary, shoet @nd long-term incentives) and smployes
benetts (pensions, employer's kabilty insurance and ciher employes benefis). Acconding to the standard, telal remuneration is to be based en
& 1otal evaluation of the perfomance of the Group, as wedl as the unit’s and esach indhaduals conmbutions o value crealion. Tofal remuneration
should e struchixed to ensure thal it dees not expoese the Group be urwanled risk. The remuneration should be compelitree. but also cost-
affective for the Group

Furthermers, the tolal remuneration shall consist of fiwed salary, any supplementary pay related tothe relevant posiion and a vanable pan
whera s (s appropeiate. Fived salary should be a compensation for the responsibilities and requirements assigned to each position. as wel as
its complexty, while vaniabie remisneration should encourage strong performance snd desired conduct

‘Varfable remuneration

The group standards shall ensune that vanable remuneration |s granted in accordance with the provisions inthe Finencial Institutions
Regulalions and the circular from Finansiisynet on remuneration schemas in fnansal institutions, investmant Srms and managemaent
companies for mutusl funds, ONB hes kad separabe group standards for variable remuneration since 2011, ncludng spectal rules for vanable
remuneration to senior executives, emphpyees with responsibiliies which are of great importance 1o the company's risk exposure | ‘risk takers™)
and employess who are responsible for independent contral unctions.

The puepase of variable remuneration is te reward conduct and develop a comonate culture which ansures long-tesm value genenaticn

‘\fariable remuneration is based on an overall assessment of the results achieved within defined target areas for the Group, the unit and the
individugd, as well a5 compliance with the Group's purpose, values, Code of Conduct and leadership principbes. Thie variable remuneralion
should e pefomance-based withoul expesing the Group to wwanted sk, Fulthermore. | should counteract sxcasshve sk taking and
promicie scund and sfective sk management in ONE. Yarable remunenalion (bonus) cannot excesd 50 per cent of flaed salary for senjor
eneculives and 100 per cenl for cther risk takers

DHE's vanable remuneration scheme appbes gobally. theugh nan-Horweglan branches and subsidiasies will alse Be required e comply with
Tocal legsiathon, reguiations and guidelines. Thera may be challenges of a lagal nature in cases where he Norwegian regulations de nol corme-
spond o loecal legislation and tocal rubes conceming remunerations in financanl institutions. In such cases, the Group will seek advce from the
ralevant aulhontles and intemational expers 1o ensure thal the Greup's practices are in compliance with bolh Norwegian and local regulations.

The Beard of Directors' statement on the stipulation of salarles and other remunerations to senlor executives

DHB's standard for determining remunerabions te the group chief execulive and cther members of the group management leam should, at afl
times, suppor prevading sirategy and values, white confributing to the attainment of the Group's targets. The remunerabion should inspire con-
drict b buitd the desined corparate culture wilth respect 1o perfoemance and profit onentation. No changes have been made in the principles for
the stipulation of varatde remunerations compared with the statement for the previcus year

Decislon-making process

The Board of Directors in DXE ASA has esiabished a compensation commitbes consisting of faur members: the chaéman of the Board, the
wice-chaimnan, ene board member and cne board member slected by the employees.

The Compensation Committes prepares matters for the Beard of Direcicrs and has the following main responsitsities:

*  Annually evalusle ond presen] £5 recomemendations regarding the folal remuneration awarded o the group chief executiee

*  Annuslty prepare recommended [argets for ihe group cheel sxeculive

+  Bassd on sugpestions from the group chief executive. decide the remunerstion and othar key benefits awarded o the group exsculive voe
president, Group Audt and ihe group eoecidbae vice president, Group Risk Management

+  Acl in an advisory capacity 1o the group ehisf sxecubive regarding remunstalions snd slher key benefis. fof merbers of the group
rranagement 1eam and, when appicable, for olhers who repan bothe group chisf execitive

*  Consider olher maliers s decided by the Boand of Directors nndior {he Compensalion Commities
«  Evalvale other personnel-relabed issues which can be assumed 16 enfal greal sk (o the Group's repuiation
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Note 46 Remunerations etc. (continued)

A Standards for the coming accounting year

Bemuneration to the group chief execulive

The tolsd rernuneration lolhe group chief execulie consists of Boed salary (main slerment), beneBts in Rind, vanabie remunerabon, and pension
and insurance schermes. The tolal remuneration is determined based on @ tolal evalustion, and the varatle part of (e remuneration ks primarky
based on the Group's financial fargels. I additon o lhe inancial targels, strategic targets have been sstablished, whereby developments in the
Group's compebence. innovative power and corporate responsibility are assessed. in addtion, the total evaluation will reflect compliance with
the Group's purpose, values, Code of Condwct and lsadership principles

The fixed salary i€ subject 10 &n annusl svabuation and is deteemined based on salary levels in the labour maet in general and in the financial
Insdfunsiry in particular, and on remsheration levels for comparatle positions.

Wariable salary to (he greap chiel sosculive is determened based on an overall assesament of the resulls achisved within defined target seas,
‘Variabie salary cannol excesd 50 per cent of fond salary. The group chiel execulive |3 not awarded perfermance-based peyments other (han
thie stated vanable remuneration.

In addition bovariable remuneralion. the group chiel execulive can be granted benefits in kind such as company car, newspapers/periodicals
and telephone/ cther communicabion. Benefils i kind should be relevant 1o the group chied executive's function or in Bne with marked proctice,
and should not be sighifcant melalive (o the groep chief seculive’s Tied sakary

Thie group chbel execulive 5 & member of the defined-condribulion pansion scheme pursuant o the Norwegian Defined-conlribubon Pension Act
I #ne with all slher employees in Noreey

As of 1 Janweary 2017, the group chief execulive also has o defined-contnibution drect pension agresment. In connecticn wilh the comaershon
frem a defined-benefit Lo a defn ed-contribution drect pension scheme, the group chiel execulive was ensured entilements which, calculated
on the conversion date, were estimaied fo comespond 1o the techndcal insurance value of the former defined-benefit agresment. Based on the
calculation assemptions. this egreerment will heve ihe same value a5 the former defined-benef agresment would have had 8t retrement ags,
which is 60 years. After the age of 60, no further contributions will be samed under the direct pension agresment.

According fo the agreemend, the group chief mxecutive is entRled to & terminalion payment for lao years if employment is terminated pricr to the
age of 60 If. during this pericd, the group chiel execulive receives income from other empleyment. the termination payment will be reduced by
an amaunt comesponding to the salany received from this employment. Benefts in kind will be mainiained for 8 period of three menths.

EBemunerston | senier exmculives
Thie graup chisl execulive detemnes the remunerations (o senbor execubives in agresmend with the chairman of the Board of Directers. The
Board of Directors will honour exisling binding agresmenls.

The tolad remuneration o senlor sxecutives consists of fooed salary (main element), benefils in kind, variable salary, and pension and msurance
sehemes. The tetal remuneration ts detenined besed an the need [ offer compelitive berms in the various Business areas. The remunaralions
sheuld promote the Group's competilivenass in the relevan] labour marked, a5 well 85 the Group's profitabiity, mcluding 1he desired trend in
Incorme and costs. The tofal remunaeration sheuld take DNB's reputalion into consideration and ensure that OHE atiracts and retains senbor
execubives with the desined skills and experience.

The fixed salary ks subject o an annual evaluation and is determined based on salary levels in the fasbour markel in general and in the financial
Inechstry in pardicudar

Thie vartabis remuneration to senior execulives s detarmined based on an dverall assessment of the resulls achieved within defined target
areas. Varabie sabary cannct ecceed 50 per cenl of fued salary,

Benefils in knd may be offered Lo senior execulives lolhe exlent the Denedils have a rebevant connecton lo the employee’s function in the
Group o afe in line wilh marke! practice. The benefis shouid nat be signifcant relative to the employee's fixed salary,

Jargel stnchure 3015

The Compensation Commitles approves principal criterta. pinciples and lemits for variable remuneration. Thie Board of Directors has decided
that the Group's refum on equity. nsk-adwsied relurn en equity and costincome mmtlo will constifule the financial target figures for 2018, In
addition to the finpncial targets, stralegic targets have been established, whereby develapments in the Group's competence, innovakiee power
and corporate responsibility are assessed The Group's financial targed figures have been broken down inlo relevant targets for the various
busaness areas and staff and suppor units.

The pbove largets will be key slements when calculating and paying out the variable remunesation for 2018, Al tarpets have been defined and
communicated tothe relevant business areas and staff and suppert units 85 parl of the work with and foilow-up of the tangets for 2018,
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'n'm variable mmunmnn far Iﬂmmu e cefesmnined by rmeans of an ovensll assesament of parformance, based on & combination of quanti.
tative attainment of pre-set perioemancs targets and quabtative assessments of how he targels were schieved.

The Board of Direclors will determing 8 maosmum Bmil for lolad bonuses Tof he Group, exthuding DHNB Markeds, DME Eiendom and mvesiment
managers in DHE Asset Managemen!, based on the attanment of group targets over the fast two years, combined with a general assessmeni of
cther importan! parameters and the Group's financial capacity. The total limil will be altocated o the arganisation based on the indhadual units’
target altainment and contribulions: to e Group’s perfarmance. With respect to DNB Markels and imestment managers in DNB Assel
Management, spacial Emils will be delermined for vanable remunaration based on the profits schieved by Ihe unil and an overall Essessment,
which is dn fine wilh market practes for these types of operations. Corespondingly, the remuneration model in DNE Elendom &5 consistent with
ket practics, wih & high share of variable rernuneration based on indnddual perfamance

ﬂHB has mm and nwlunmd special rulrs Tor mmfnm nrsi: takers. employess reiw:slbll for nnupmumt control funclions and senior
epsculives, harsinaler called fisk takers. The special rules supplemen] tve general group stendards for remuneration and have been fomulated
in complisnce wilh the Financkal insbtutions Regulatians and the resated cireular from Finanstilsynet,

In acconcance with prevailing requirements. DNB has sunayed the enlire orgenisstion to identify risk takers based on the crilerin resulling from
e circubar and the EL repuistion.

For risk takers, the following main principles apply 1o vaniable remuneration:

+  The remunercalion is asmed over & period of lwe years

v Warable remuneration cannel excesd the agreed fived remunematan

*  Senior executives in independent control functions will recehne no varlable remuneration as from the 2018 income year

There will be a defered and conditional payment of minimwm 50 per cent of the earned varisble remunesation in the form of DNE shanes. The
remnuneration paid in the form of shares will be divided into three, subject to minimum halding periods (defemed and conditional], with one-third
each year over a pafiod of three years. The deferred and condibonal payments will be in campliance wilh the slipufations in the Financial
Institutions Regulations.

Pansions elc.

Pension schemas and any apresments on Lerminabon paymenls eic. Should be considered ralative [0 olher remeEnarabhon and should ensure
cafpedilive eims. The vadious ﬂﬁ'l'lpd'.lH'IB I prafsion LEhames And Sovaiance pay, Either abane of lbﬂdhﬂl‘. il fol Be Sueh ihat H'I-ty'bd.llﬂ
poss a threal 1o DNE's repulalion

All employees in Norway ore members of the defined-contnbution pension scheme pursuant 1o the Norsegian Defined-contnbulion Pension Act,
Up 1o 31 Dezember 2016, mos! senior edecuthes in the Greup had agreements enfiting them 1o a defined-benefil pansion ol the age of 85,
autject to eartnin adaplalions, which af all limes hawe been in accordence wilh government guidelines far remunerations o senior exscutives.
Pamsicn entitlements were nol o excasd 70 per cent of Swed salary and should constitute madmiem 12 times the National [nsurance biss
amount, Hewsver, the DNE Group has honouted edsling agreements. As of 1 January 2017, these agreements have bean replaced by defined-
contributicn direct pension agreamants based on the same calcudation assumplions and principles as those used in connection with the
comersion of fhe Group's define d-benefit occupational pension scheme i J016 pursuant to the Morwegian Oocupation al Pension Act

The pensson shtilarments of the senior execulives, calewlabed on the conversion date, are eslimated I6 comespond to tha tachmical value of the
Tarmer definad-benefl schame. Fulune capial enliflemanis now comprise annuasl conlnbutions and 1he relurm on the enhiiements samed The
annual condribulions ane calculated imcnddually 1o ensure thiel, based on the caloulation assumplicns, the defined-contribulion deec pension
seheme will have the same value as the former defined-benefl agreament wolld have had at the agreed relirement age.

A5 8 main rule, no lerminabion payment agreaments will be sipned However, the Group will honour existing agresments.
"Wihen enbering inbo new agreements. the group standarnds generaiy spply and comprise af senior execulives.
See labie of remunerations for senior execulives below

B. Binding standards for sharea, subscription rights, sptions ete. far the earming accounting year

An amount somespendng 1o 50 per cent of the eamed vakable remuneration of the group chisf execulive, senior execulhees and other risk
hakeds is irvested in shares in DNB ASA. The minimuim hodsing periods are one year for one-thisd of the shares, bao years fof ore-third of the
shares and three years for the final one-ining of the shanes.

Mo adoioned shares, subscrplion dghts, ophions of other forms of remuneration enty linked Lo shares of anly 1o develapments in e share
price of the company of olhar companies withn the Group, will be swanded bo the group chisf execudive o Senior executives, The group chief
aveculiva and senial eveculives are, howeser, given [he opporfunity 1o partspate in & shore subscripbion scheme on the same tarms &35 other
amployees in the DNB Group

€. Statement on the senlor executive salary policy In the previous account year
The group standards detesmined in 2011, including changes effachive a3 from 2015, hve been folowed.
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Note 46 Remunerations etc. (continued)

0.  Statement on the effects for the company and the shareholders of remuneration agreements awarding shares,
subseription rights, aptions ete.

An amaunt camesponding to 50 per cent of the gross varable remunenation eamed by the group chiefl executive, senior soeculives and omer

risk takers in 2017 s invested in shares in DNB ASA. The Board of Directors beleves thal the awardng of shares 1o senlor-egecutives, in view

of the tolal nember of shares in fhe company, will have no negalive conseguences for the company or ihe sharehclders ™

Terms for the chairman of the Board of Directors
Anne Canne Tanum recebved & remuneration of NOK 450 000 in 2017 as chaiman of the Board of Direclors of DB Bank ASA, compared with

HOK 437 000 In 2016, In addtion, she recefved NOK 555 000 a5 chairman of the Board of Dwectors of DNB ASA, compared with NOK 548 D00
In 2016,

Terms for the group chief executive

Rune Bjerke received an ordinary salary of HOK 5 857 000 in 2017, compared with NOK & T84 000 n 20HE. The Board of Directors of DNB
ASA stipulated the group chief executive's variable remuneration for 2017 8t NOK 2 272 000, compared wilth MOQK 2 010 000 in 2016 The
vanable remuneration for 2017 will be pald in 2078, There wil be a deferred and condilional pasyament of 50 per cent of the samed varable
remuneration in the form of DNE shares. The remuneration paid in the form of shares will be dvided into three, subject 1o minimum holding
periods of up tolhree years. Bonodts in kind were estimaled of NOK 201 000, compared wilh NOK 322 000 in 2016

Cosis in connection with the group chiel executive’s pension scheme of NOK 5 105 000 were recordad 1o the 2017 accounting year, compared
wilh MOK 3 871 000 in 2616, Costs are divided between DHE ASA and DNE Bank ASA. The costs recorded in the 2016 accounts consisled of
two elements: pension entitements eamed during the year (NOF 4 389 000) and o deduction for the effect of the corversion of the pension
scheme for salaries in excess of 126 (HOK 1 118 000)
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Note 46 Remunerations etc. (continued)

The table has been construcied bo show rights samed during the pemod

Ramunef atlons el in 2017 DNE Bank Group
Benafity Spedally
Fimed @nnual Varabie in kind Total syood  Scousd
ssfary Hamonsi- Pad  ramunses-  asd otsr  emenwa-  Loans as retire  pangon
sial Dac. bonsoed  edlwies Bcasmined  bendlte oo seieed | 231 Duc. mant  expennes
Armrpunts in NOK 1 200 2007 i BAFT m20i7 Y in 247 " In 3017 in 2017 207" age " in2n 7Y
Board of Directors of DNE Bank ASA
e Carine Tanum (chalmman) 1000 1 003
Gro Bakelad {vice-chaiman, kom 25 04.17) ey ] 3
Jarle Bargo (umtl 250417 253 1 )
Likan HaTrm & v (1 =2 35 1023 3185 T4
Kirm Wakl 327 Ay 4k
Group management
Rune Blerke, CEQ Lk 5857 xIn m 253 2520 a0 5105
Bjawn Erik Mowss, CFO funbil 51.03.17) 2048 0 1308 L A7 18
Kjaredin Bragifen, CFO (Boe 01 031T) 4000 ER UL 1532 Eild Ll 12 a5 o
Trged Bantpansen, group EVP 320 3875 1382 e 5300 LRE 85 Bt
Dras Eireid group EVP g0 418 3832 38 13478 el a2 el
Benadole 5. Fwsne, group EVP 2640 R 1122 270 450 Lt e th]]
Rawmus Sage Figenschou,
group EVP [kom 119217 2340 2130 847 153 2840 11 865 Lhl-3
Line Fiksclahl, group EVP {until 11.12.9T) 3300 37 R 45 4014 1113 a2 135
Rune Garborg grossp EVP duntl 010017y 2930 218 850 214 I 401 LE:]
Satveig Helebuil group EVP 3300 2883 1022 I3 3850 i) L 400
ide Larever, groap EVP (e 111247 % Y- 2162 1477 za78 S5015
Bange Claw Lund, geoup EVP
e O D5 1T bl 11,1247 Z8E0 3732 1072 ] 4583 L L1 1]
Thermas Midieide, grewp EVP 2500 2568 1032 =1 I 2188 a5 o
Kl Dirned Mown, group EVP funtil 111217 2830 1o 1 60a -t 4 285 =3 a2 1a4
Al Otterstad, group EWP {from 11,9217 Ll 2o 1 654 Lred Ll 2438 3124 118
Tom Rathke. group EVP [wntd 04.05.97) 3480 ITe5 ar2 a5 4012 adare 62 a5
Hang Clav Rasningen.
group EVP (hom 110217} 1650 1714 .l 180 *Te 4 BB Fae ]
Harald Sacck-Hantien, group EVP 4175 4368 1422 =8 g04a ERE 85 17
Tere Tumes, group EVP junil 11.12.17) 4 010 4143 Eg2 42 4 957 | F e
Loans to oiher smployees 18 2M 018
1l .Fmdmunruuryimhmmmmumhﬁdm‘ummmmmmm
2 Includes Awed Trovm @Y compames webhie the ONE Group for sensoe on Boaros of Déectors and commibiees. For those wio bave receted

mwravabon for mors lan one position in 20 7, the foloving amouns ans medsleg 1o e boan’ poslions in GV Bank A58
Anne Carioe Tanae WOK 250 000
e Eprgo. AOH 108 000
Some persons s membors of more han one body.
dvarm foranky parts of the yeer.
4l Waviable rermerilion samsed exciuding holday pay
1 Losna to shiehcddernalpcd reptaneniathns ane pudsacied o ardindry customes herme. Loans fo OWE evnplorees ane gudiagied on spacil lams, wiizh ane
ehedn ba erclimary SUlovnin fahm.

£)  Punsion nghts saned durkg the yesr (SO0), The cakulsbion of ponsian srfblssens i based on the same A detinra) Y T—
i rote 24 Pangions
71 The agrood selimmant age iz Epecilind whev & Speciel ageoement hax baen entansd info which incluties redaled cefimed-confribulion pension entlisment,

oty from stipualan s &1 Rhe CoMmpiy T panant Sandamis
& m:wummruwmmmmymumma et toarm &n 11 December 2017, she was head of ONE
CEMEA in London, afso on am o w with DNE s infernatonel sszpament podoy, she has sssgnment.rased
mmmm-pmmmamm Bath hir selivy and banofils oF ind ane provadsd 335 mad anf Fementy. The Smouns e
basn grossed o with Nonasian feass by Bn aulerned Seivice penacey A5 she @ not o mambey of B Nonssgian Nebons! insuranos Schams, 0o Socis! Security
. v baer 1 i the gross irr tpr new rofe o5 beed of ar independent controd funcison, ol Lemer wif receds no wivisble
memuneration as from the 2018 ncome year.
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Note 46 Remunerations etc. (continued)

The lable has been consiructed o show nghts earned during the pened.

Remunerations etc. [n 2018 OB Bank Group
Senafity
Fiwed annual ‘Wariabie m kind Total Arcrsed
RETAEE- Paki  ramUness- B oAl IS S Lesng 58 Py
aeaf 31 Des.  Bon eamed waladies  Bon eamed tonalts  tomeamed  ab 31 Dwc. Fpante
Amownts in NOK 1 060 2016 " n20ET  m2018% 20t " in 2018 in 3018 il in 2006
Baoard of Difeciors of DNE Bank ASA
Anne Carisie Tanurs {charmany Bag 2 -y
Jurle Beiga o -] 7
Lilise Hamtireew {frorm 1 danumrg 20083 4] a Ba7 par} ') oy 3257 Ta
Kien Wshl g na 51

Group management

Bune Bjers, CEO 555G 5 7E4 200 ] ] BE4S 'y ]
Bjam Eri Nasws, GFO (until 01,0317 3880 4071 1520 4 Y- ] =g 5224
Ejentn Branthen, £FO (from H.03.17) L1 1180 1184 7 ] 483 a0 #18
Teend Benteituen, group EVP 3580 a4 1390 E ATEY 83 e
Omar Ertrad, group EVP 8820 B206 3800 b 13240 n vl
Senedicte 5. Fasmaer, group EVP

(kom 280016} 2850 238 i} o] 3as8 TaTe 13
Ui Filtadahl, group EVP 0s0 ERE ] 1110 43 4544 12 1014
Run+ Garborg, group EVP (from 26.08.18) 2850 2423 1420 o] 4072 BEM a2
Saiveig Hallebust. grewp EVP 2450 281 it} vl A7E 3 ara
Thommas Micteide, group EVP 2500 20 = = BF 1 4482 258
Kaii Chrod Mesn, group EVP 280 2945 1o ] 4 197 18 13m0
Tom Rathke, group EVP 1400 araa 1020 e &g B2 2813
Bangt Clav Lund, EVE " 2810 1882 i 240 ol FTPL] T8 13
Harsld SescieHanssen, group EV# & 080 4278 1400 a2 3= 1 B3r2 1004
Terje Turmes, group EVP 3030 LRAL] S0 o 4 55 &8
Laane o ot Smpitd. 117008

v Frond amtval zplary of year-and far amployisd who wemn bavet of the oard of Direclors o the groug o # BT SURG e rbar,

Ik o, o o alf covrpamas wilhin the DVE Group for sendes on Eoards of Dirschors svd cormvniTods. For ltode wiho five necaied

reerinanaivos for mang thin ane: pealbice? i J018, the lowing amounts are naled fo Pheyr toard posdons v DNE Benk ASA,
A Caving Teaume WOR 437 000
Jarls Bmrgo’ NOK 318 000

Eovmg pavhons &0o mamdev: of mans fen one bodly

¥ inclsdes safary payments for the entine year and hodday pay on b Some Smpioyees v by of ther Ecard of Dimclors or Ehe group manapement
team for enly paris of ihe year.

& Bonus samed sociuding holiday pay

S Loans lo sherebolér-slecied representalives are 7 o oy torns. Lowrs o OME empfoyees s erfended on special lerme. which ame
ciose ho ordingry Cusiomer fewms.

& Pereion rights earmed during the year (SCC) The calrwlation of person entitiments (s based on e same and ek I ¥l 28 thope weed
i nol I Pections, Peanion rights edrned during e yedd exciude it afec! of e plasion sobeme Samanion, s habde i i 7015 sanual repend

T Adting bead of Weall Manegersot sinoe May 2008 Ficed falavy inchadad schng pay.
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Nate 46 Remunerations etc. (continued)

Changes in the group management team

Biorn Erik Neess refired an 1 March 2017 and thus left the groap managemsnt team. Tom Rathke |l the group management team on 1 May
W7, but is 2l employed in DNE with olher responsibililies, As of the same dale, Bengt Olav Lund became a parmanent member of the group
MBAagamant team

In eonnection with the estabiishment of Vipos a5 a separate limited comparny, Rune Garborg lefl the group managerment team &5 of
1 Seplember 201 7. His employment relationship in DNE was transfermed o Vipps AS in connection with the demenger.

The new group siniclure effeclive on 11 December 2017 resulled in changes in the compesiticn of the group management team. Ida Lemer
and Inglerd Blekell Spiten (as of 9 January 2018) became new permanent members. In addiion. Rasmus Aage Figenschau and A Qftersiad
Bacame acding members of the group managerent leam. Bengl Olaw Lund, Liv Fiksdahd and Tee Tumes [ the group managemend team, but
arm sl empleyed in ONE with olher respon sibilties. Kart Olrud Moen chose te terminate her empicyment in DNE paraliel lo lsaving the greup
managament leam and was granted 8 12-maonth severance agresment. The ciher group sxeculive vice preskdents remained mambers of the
group managemant leam. some of wham were given other responsibilties.

Qther information on pension agreements
The pensian schemes of all senior execulives were changed as of 1 January 2017, as dascribed in the annual report for 2016 Changes in the
pension agresments did not entad any changes in previously agreed age limds,

Biern Erk Heess' pension agreement enbled him be 8 pensicn represanting 70 per cent of pensionakde income from the age of 62. When

ha reached the agreed age. it was decided to sxtend his period of empleyment up until 1 Manch 2017, In the same way &6 for other senicr
eneculives, his pension agreement was also converled with effect from 31 December 2016, wilh 8 caplal value comesponding to the technical
Insurance resenves on the oniginal relirement dale. Mo contributions were paid under the drect penson scheme in the pericd up to his fnal
relirement on 1 barch 2017

See the annual repor for 2016 for 8 specifcation of the pension sxpenses reccrded in the accounts in 2016,

Subscription rights programme for employees
There was no subscrption rights programmie for employeess in the DNE Bank Group at year-end 2017

DNE Bank ABA Remuneration to the statutory auditor DME Bank Group
2016 2017 Amounta in NOK 1 D00 suelading VAT 2017 B

{10 £85) R e Statutory sudt [21 156) 23 62
{1016 (1 13 Cther cotficston services 2 308} (1731
(12880 8 Tath Tarsalated achice ” (11 &56) (2 ez

[3 476} [ 555 SXhet ypcviees 5 975) (3 5T4}

(27 R} (a2 T} Tatil reminaration 1o the statutory audiar {48 #93) 410N

1 Inctodes fadd for il audll and audlfang fasd: Massged By DiVE.
3| Mainty refBrE to lax-related adioe o amplayess on infernalaaal
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OHE Bank ASA 15 100 per cenl caned by ONE ASA. The langest owner of (he DNE Group i the Narsegian governiment, reprasented by the
Mintstry of Trade and Industry, which owns and controls 34 per cent of the shares in the garent company DNE ABA

Alairge rumber of bank transactons are entamad inko with refated parties a5 part of ordinary business ransactions, comprsing loans, deposis
and foresgn exchange transactions. These ansaclions ene based on market tems, The table below shows lransackons with releted paries,
Inchuding balance sheets & year-end and raaled axpendes and income for the year. Relaled companies in the 1abie are associalad companies
pus DME Savings Bank Foundation. See nobe 35 for o specificalion of associsted companies. Loans 1o board members and thair spouses/
partners and under-age children are extended on ordingry cusiomer ierms. Loans to group managermenl. e joans bo olher group employees,
are axtersed on special terms, which are close lo ardnany cusiomer lerms. Transactions with other ONE Bank Group companies ane shown bn

B separate (sbis

Transactions with rélaled partles

OfB Bank Growp

G managEmen] anc Bgand of Draces Feated companiey

Aoty in KNOK mllion 3011 pip [ T A
Loants ae el 1 Jenuary &0 44 1125 E1ES
N Roarrirepayments dusing the year & % [LH an
_Changes in relabed parting 2 34 24 258 249
Loans 4% al 31 December L] L] Frk it 1125
Interes! incoma 2 1 ] 2
ooty s ut 1 Janary .5 ] ] e oz
Depositsiwithdmwaly dunng the yoear at 14 B3] T
Changes in related paries 1] U 354 1
Deposits as al 11 December 4% 52 14 T#1
Interest expenses L] ] 7 3

1 . . 3543 5951

ip  ONE Bank ARA hes issued guerandses for other lpans in Edsporifinana. The lotel gusrantes commiment & included 1o the fabis above

Ko impairments werne made on loans 1o relabed parlies in 2016 and 2017, Refenence is made 1o nole 46 for informalion on foens to group
management members and drectors. Transactions with deputy members of the Bcard of Directors are not includied in the table above, In
geneml, DNB employes Ioans should be paid by automadic debil in monihly instaiments in arrear. Employes [0ans are within the berm Imis
applying 1o general customer relationships. Secunly is fumished for empioyee loans in sccondance with legal requirements,

DHE Bank ABA Transaclions with other BNB Group companies " OME Bank Growp
316 it Amounts iy NOK million i 3018
S A 126 15T boans as at 31 Decsmnber 5 E0 g
250 &3 M2 CHhar recehopaties as 9 31 Dwcamber S T
143450 1marT Deposts an al 3 Decomba Qa7 0 mes
[ 182 327 Other labdities #u st 31 Decembaer 1788 L
5307 4506 Irberwal moome &ra £
12°89T) (2055 e 947 EapenLey 48y 158)
5508 Bead Mol olhes operabng ncome = 1884
{132 (187 Dperating expantes {185 (108
For DWE Bank ASA Hhe fable inchoes f chioms with 5, Sister comg wnd ONE ASA. For the tanking group, the tabd inclodes transectans

will sater oompanies and ONE 450 (maeslrments i bormols issusg! by redated pedias e desoriad heiw and 8ne il inCArec it e fakde,
Othar moadablos snd ofbor Apbilt s v ONE Baok ASA a5 of 31 December 2006 and 2017 vore mainyy fingnoal danval bs contrects with DVE Bolgimalt a5

courterpay Snd' group comnbuliong.

DNE Bank ASA recorded NOK 2 884 milon and NOK 1 551 millon n group

wng from in 2017 and 2018, respectively;
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Note 47 Information on related parties (continued)
Major transactions and agreements with related parties

DNE Boligkreditt A3

DHB Bolighredtt (Bollgkredilt) is 100 par cont owned by DNE Bark ASA A part of sedinary business ransactions, 8 large number of Barking
transaciions are enlered into between Boligkreditl and the bank. includng loans, deposts and financial derivabives used i currency and inferest
rabe risk manaspement. Transactions are cambed out on marked Berms and are regulated in the "Agresmeant relating to transier of loan portfolio
babween DNB Bank ASA and DNE Boligkredit AS” (the transfer agreemaent) and the “Contract betwsan ONE Bank ASA and ONE Boligkreditt
AS conceming purchase of management sendces” (the maagement agreement),

The transfer agresment requlates the transfer of loan porifolios qualfying as collateral for the [s5ue of coversd bonds . During 2017, porfolics of
ROK 12,0 billicn (0K 1808 billlon in 2016} were ransfermed from Be bank to Ealighredt!

Pursuant 1o the manapemenl agresment, Bolighredft purchases sendees from the bank, includng administration, bank production, datibulion,
customer contact, IT operations and financial and hgwidty management. Bolighreditl pays an annual management fee for these sendces based
on the lending velume ynder management end the achbaved lending spreads. The management fes paid in 2077 lolaBed NOK 1.2 bilkon (MNOK
2.3 billien in 2018).

Al end-Decernber 2017 the bank had invested MOK 12,1 billion (HOK 5.0 billion in 2016) In covered bonds issued by Boligredit.

In the fewth quaer of 2013, Boligkredilt sntered mbo & “Revohang Credit Fadity Agreamenl (RCF )" with DNB Bank ASA. Subject lolhe lams
of this RCF, DME Bank mekes available bo Bobghredit & revolving credi faciity at all Bmes aqual o Boligireddt's. payment cbligations in NOK
for the med 12 monihs in respect of issued Covered Bonds and relabed darivalive hedge agreements. Bobghredit shall apply all ameunts.
bomowed by it under the RCF towards payments under Covered Bonds and refaled derivalive conlracts entered into for hedgng purposes for
those Covernd Bonds.

Bolighredt may not make use of the RCF for the fulfiliment of payment cbgations. refated fo the ordinary (re-Jpurchase of Coversd Bonds (if
any], or to derivalive agreements related to such Covered Bonds. The cblipations of DNB Bank towsrds Bobghkredil under the RCF do nel
constitute a guarantes in respect of amounts dse and payabie under the Covered Bonds. The agreament was cancelled on Boligkreditt's
inilistive in the second quarter of 2016

in 2016 Boligkredit entered into reverse repurchasing agreements freverse repos) wilh the bank as counlenparty. The value of the repos
amonted to ROK 26.0 billion at end-December 2017 (NOK 262 billon in 20161

Bolighredt! has 8 long-berm gverdraft facdity m DNE Bank ASA wilh a Bmil of NOK 130 Billion

DONE Nerngskreditt A5
DHB Neeringsiored (Neerngskreditt) is 100 per cent oamed by DNEB Bank ASA. The mortgage institubion was established Lo issus covered
bonds secured by 8 cover pool comprising commercial proparty.

The transfer agresment regulates the transfer of loan portfolios qualifing as cotalerl for issue of covered bonds. During 2017, portfcios of
HOK 1.9 bllion (NMOK 7.2 bélicn in 2016) werae transfered from the Dani to Nesringskredtl. All ransactions are carried ouf on markel berms.

Like Bobghredtt, Renngskeedtt purchases managermeant and adminstratve senices from the bank. Inadotion, adminstrabve sardoes relating
toihe company's operations are purchased from Bolgkreditt. The fee paid to the bank and Bolighredtt for 2017 amounting to NOK 88,1 milkcn
and NOK 3.5 million respecthvety

At end-Decernber 2017, the bank had nvested NOK 0.8 billlon (ROK 0.9 billicn in 2016) in covered bonds issued by Neeringskredt

In 2017 Mewingsiredet entered into reverse repurchasing agreements (revers repos) with the bank as counterparty. The value of the repos.
ameunted to HOK 1083 million and end-December 2047 (NOK 1116 millon in 2006). The company ttas a long-berm cuerdral faciy in DNE
Banx ASA with 8 limit of MOK 30 billion.

DHE Livsiorsikring AS
As part of the company's crdinary investment activity, DNB Livsiorsikring has subscribed for coversd bonds issued by DNE Bolighredtt,
Al yepr-end 2017, DNB Livsforsikring's holding of listed DMB Bolghredtt bonds was valued ot BOK 1.9 bBillon (MOK 1.9 bifton in 2018},

i Meneemiber 2016, & portfolo of home mortgages armoentng to appeocim ately NOK S biflion was seid from DNE Boligireditt AS to
DNB Livsforsiiming AS.

in the Tourth quaster of 2016, porifoilos of commercial mortgages amaunting to NOK 2.6 bdlion and NGOK 4.5 billion respecteesty, were sold from
DMB Mesringkreditt and DNE Bank 1o DB Livsforsikring

Luminar Group AB

DHB and Norden combined their operations in Eslonta, Lalvia and Lithuania into the new company Luminer Group AB i the fourlh quarter of
2047 DNE's ownership interes! in Luminor Group AB is appronimately 44 per cent. Al end-December 2017 ONE Bank ASA's funding of
Luminer Group AB totalled MOK 210 biilicn

Vipps AS

In the third guader of 3017 Vipps AS was eslablished a5 a $epamte company and DNE enlefed intd an agreement wilh 105 other Norwegian
Banks. DNE has an cwnership interest in the new legal entity (Vipps A5) of close 1o 52 per cenl, However, due bothe lemms and conditions i
the shareholder agreement. it has been decided to define Vipps A5 a5 an associsbed company. and the company is consolidated accordng to
the equity melhod. DNE can vole for 489 percent of the Geneml Meeting. and hes {hree of seven board members,
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Note 48 Off-balance sheet transactions and uuntingencies
Off-balance sheet transactions and additional information

DB Bank ASA OMB Bank Group
M Dee 31 Das. 31 Dee, 3 Dee.
i [ 2017 Amount's kv NOK milion a7 [
o) &7 Tl Perfarmance guasentees o B 30 Bl
AT Xnane Payiriant gusranlii meE2 34472
177 17 825 Loan guaranises TS TR
535 L f=- Guararisst for ausy sle, B3 6557
2213 2348 Cithar guarartes commitments 3 153 2714
&0 205 B3 TR Telal guararies & denmilmiaedt BT M2 97 541
Suppon agresmants 10 735 L]

Ba0s 879 Total guarantes commiments stc mory_ saes
AT a2 A B4 Uniglized cred lines and loan offers el a2y a0 122
F061 4103 D y bl 4170 J5E
CHhar commibments k1

4EL 55 453045 Total s 63 TH3 BAD 107
o] 578 Bl Total guarantes snd off-balance commitmants & 871 Tl Tha

#az 12778 Fladged securfties
"I O which countenguaranteed by inencial instutions 25 L]

O#E Bank ASA s o member and shareholder of the setilement system Continuous Linked Sedtiement (CLS). As n sharehoider, DNE Bank A54,
hns an cbligation io contribule bo cover any deficll in CLES Bank's central seftiement account for member banks, even iihe defoult is caused by
enasther member bank, Initinily, such deficll will be Sought covered by olher member banks based on bansactions he respedlive banks have
hid with the member bank which has caused ihe deficst in CLS Bank. Should there remmin an uncovered defich in CLS Bank, this will be
covered pro rola by the member banks in CLS. sccording to Article 9 "Loss Aliccations® of CLS Bank's intemational Rules. According tothe
sgreements between CLS and the membed banks, the prorata payment cbligations relaled to such covernge of any remaining deficit are limited
bo LISD 30 milkon per member bank, Al the end of 2017, DHB had not recorded any obligations in relabion lo CLS

DNB Baligkreditt AS (Bolighkreditt)
A end-December 2017, Bolighredilt had issved covered bonds with 8 nominal walue of NOK 450 bilken, Inthe event of beankruplcy, the bond-
hoiders have preferentind righls bo the company’s cover pool

Covered bonds OB Bollghredit
3 Dec. 31 Dec.
Asmcorrs in NOK mallos FTIT pai]-]
Totsl lrsbed eowered bonds T8 6 56
Totsl prvvale placemants under fus bond programma mez £8 858
Adpuestmaent
Arcrised ot 3003 3sm
LWIHHEHMI. 14 JEI 8 T
WFREFI A58 T3 A% T
Cover posl DM B Bodighnedit
31 Dee 31 Do
Armounts in NOK mallion a7 unt] ]
Pool ol wigible laany T T e
Warksl vakis of gersathves [y i ] 3| L7
_Supplemantary sissts
Totsl coflaberalned azasts L-Tin):x7 ] g 108
Dopist wacuiiitind isaued, 2ariyimg valus 468 235 43|07z
hrl mksle 15 chal iini Fi L1 i W Hﬂ 11E
Dok wacurition issmed. wakisd sconding o regulston 487 111 438 880
Crvar.collaberalantion (pee 2o 1434 145 4
15 Thedebl securbed wiued are Bods wilh ook ngtd it the ppurt, cover potl T campoabon and sakulstion of valued in the cover poal dve
vafined in Secticms 114 and 11-17 of ihe Finencial institutions Acl with appudenant megulstions
Contingencies

Due 1o #s extensive operations in Mooy and abroad, the DNE banking group will regulardy be party 10 a number of legal actions, None of the
current disputes ane expecied 1o hawe pny material impact on the banking group's finencial postion

The DNE banking group is subject to a number of compleints and disputes relaling to struciured products and alher investment products,
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Note 49 Transition to IFRS 9

In Juty 2094, the IASE issued the new standard for financial instrements IFRS 3 Finoncial Instruments, which replaces the current 185 38, The
néw sandard infroduces & business modsl ofjented approach for classsfication of inoncial pssels, an expected lods model Tor impairment and &
fignw general hedge accounting modsl. 1ASE (s stil working on & new requinrement reiabed 1o macno hedge accounting. This work hes been
edlablished a3 & Separate proppel and |3 axpedad 16 be finalised af & later poird in s

IFRS 8 is effective from 1 January 2018, The standard was endorsed by the EU in November 2018,

Subsequently IFRS 9 transtion disciosures will be presented in the following order: Accounting principles, Transition disciosures for
Chassification and Measuremen! as well as krpaiment. Methodology used for expecied credit loss measurement andfastly the impact on
reguiatory copdal

References (o line Berms refer fo the financial stalements under IFRS §

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IFRS 8

Classification and presentation

Financial assets are classified in one of the following measurement calegories:
' amaotised cost

*  fair value through obher compeshensise income (P0G

. fair value through profit of loss (FWTPL)

The ciassdfication of financial assets depends on lwo faciors:
¢ the business model of the portfolio Lo which the fnancial asset belongs
v the contraclusd cash flow characteristics of the fnancial assel

When determining the business model, the banking group assesses al partfiolio level how the business (s managed, sales aclivities. risk
minnagement and how information is provided [0 executive management. The business model assessment has besn perfamed Tor each bush
neds aren, The porfolics befonging 1o ihe customer areas are feld within & Butiness model whods objectee is to hold the assels and collect the
conlraciusl cash fows, while these are several different business models for the poifdics belonging tolhe product sree Markets. For inslance,
the business model for the liquidity portfolio in Markets i 19 both hold the #ssels o coBect the contractual cash fows and 1o sell the assets.
However, the portfolio is designabed ot fair walue through profit or loss in onder to reduce an accounting mismatch

A conbractual cash Acw characteristics test is performed on iniial recognition of fnancial assels, Financial asseds with cash flows thad are solely
paymenis of principal and inleres! pass the et if the inberest only compensates for the lime value of money, credd risk, liquidity risk, sendcing
and admirasirallve costs and & poofit mangin.

Financial Babilities are classified at amernised coat, sxcept for financisl lisbilities hat are required o be measured at fsir value ihreugh profi er
less of designaied Bt fair valus thiough prost o loss.

Financial assats may irrevocably be designated ol fair value through prodt o loss on initial recognition if the following crberon is met:

*  the clagsfcation eliminales or significanily reduces measurement ar recognaion inconsstency ihat otherwise would arise from measuring
financial astets of recognising the gaind and kesses on them on dfferent bases,

Fnancial kabidities may also imevecably be designated ot faic value through prof o loss on iniial recognition i the crilenion above &5 halfiled o

one of the fdiowing:

*  the financial instruments are par of o portfalio that is managed and evaluated on & fair value basis, in accordance with a documented sk
management o invesiment stralegy

*  the hosl conbract contains ane or more embedded dervatives.

Financial assetls measured af amortised cost

Imvesiments in debl insbruments, which are not designated al fair value through proft o loss, are medsured at amodised cost if both of the
falgwing condiions are mel:

*  the assets are held within a business model whose chjective is lo hold the asset and collect the contractual cash fiows

v the conlraciual cash fNows reprasent solaty payment of prncipal and inMerest.

Debt instrurvents are milially recognised at fair value pdus any dreclly altrbutabie Iransaction costs. Subsequent measurement Solows he
wffective interest method, less impainment. Impairment losses and reversals are measured based on a three-siape expecied credd loss madel.
This moged is described under Expected credit loss measuremant

A change in value based cn an expected credit loss allowance for debt nstruments measured of emorised cost on the balance sheet date is
presented undar “Impairment of Snanceal instruments” in the income stalement.

Interest income on financial instrumenis classfied in this category is presented under “Interes] income, amortised cost® using the efective
Interesl mothod.
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 9 {continued)
This Mﬂmmh‘l‘f COMprSes loans (o customers. cash and deposts, IMN'Hﬂ!S. reverse repurchass Bﬂ'ol‘m!l‘ﬂi and bond nvesbtmenbs.

Financial llabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial Habilties measured al amoiised cost are initially recognised at fair value minus any drectly aitribuable transaction costs. Inbenest
EX[RMGES O SLER inSinumants are prasentsd under "Inberest expense, amotised cost” using the sffective intersst method.

This category includes deposids from customers and credd instibution s, repurchase agresments, ssued commercial paper and bonds,
subordinated loan capital and perpetusl suberdnpled loan captal securities.

Financial assets measured at fair value throwgh other comprehensive income
Irvestrends in debt instrumends. which are not designated s fair value threugh profil or bess. are measured af fair valse through other
comprehanshie income o bokh of the following conditions are met:

*  ihe assets are held wilthin 8 business model whose objective is bo both hold the asset 1o cobect the contractual cash Sows and |o sell the
assed

L] e contractual cash fows raprasent Solely paymant of principal and inlene-o

Al indliad recognition, debt instruments are recognased al far value plus any directly atinbutable irsnsachion costs. Subseguen! measwement is
tair value throwgh olher compiehsninie moame. Changes in fair vadus are recognied in other comprahensive ihoofe and asdumilaled withs &
separale component of equily. Impairment [osses of reversals interest income aRd foreign exchange geins of losses ans recognised in proft of
lerss. WWhen the financiel assel s derecognisad, e cumulative gain of foss recognised in ather comprefensive income, (S recycied over profit or
loss and recognised in *Het gains on financla instruments at fai value®. impaément losses and reversals ane measieed based on a three-stage
expeched crodt loss model, which is described under Expecied cred® loss messunement,

This category comprises matgage loans wilh variable interest rates in DNB Bank ASA. Since these loans are regulary soid to DNB Bobgloedst
AS the buisiness model B hald to callect and Sall.

Financlal instruments measurad at fair value through profit or loss
The falicwing instruments are recognised in this category

& gerpatived

* Equily instuments

*  finnnclal insdruments held for ireding

+ finoncial assets mannged at fair value

* finoncial instruments designaled af fair value through profit o loss on initial recognition

*  gdebd instrumients wilh conlraclual cash fiows that do not represent sclely payment of prncipal and nteres!

Insbruments in this category are intially recognised af falr value, 'with Iransaction costs recognised n proft of loss as they eccur, Subs equent
measurement ks fair value wilh gains end losses recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of the fnancial nsirements ame presented under “Het cains on financial instruments at fasr vaiue® in the income
statement, Financipl derivalives are presented 05 an assel if the fair value is positive and as & liability f the fair value is negative:

Interes ingame and interest expenses from inferest-bearing finangial instruments including financial dertvatrves are presented under “Net
Indevest incoma”, except For inflerest income and interes! expensés from financial instruments belonging 10 the trading portiofio

Thie ireding portfolio conssts of instruments, which are acguired primarily for the purpose of selling or repurchasing i the neas berm. This
Inchudes fnancial dervalives and bond potiolios interest income and inlerest expense from finencial instruments belonging to the trading
portiolio s presented as "Net gaing on financial inslruments a2 fair value®

Financial assels designaled al fair value through profit or boss on initisl recognition, mainly consist of bonds and foed-rale mortgags loans n
Morwegian kroner, Financind abilities designaled af fair value through profit or loss on initial recognétion mainty consist of fied-rate securities
Issued in Morwegian kroner

For financial liabilties designated a fadr value through profit o loss. the change in fair value related to changes in DNE Bani's credt risk s
caloulated using refevant crodit spread curves from Nondic Biond Pricing. The changes in ¢redit spreads on fxed-rabe securifies issued in
Horwegian kroner donet create or enlarge an accounting mismatch and are therefore separated and recognised in other comprehensive
Income

Hsued financls guarantees
Contracts resulting in the banking group having to reimburse the hoider for a loss incurred because a specific deblor falls to make payments
when due, are classified as iswied financiasd guaraniees,

On initisd recognition, ssued financial guarantess are recognised al the consideration recehved for the guarenies. 1ssued financial guarantess
e fubsequently measured ol the higher of the amount of loss aliowance and the amount mitially recognised less the curnulative amount of any
rewenus recognised in the income stalement,
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MNote 49 Transition to IFRS 8 (continued)

‘When lssung Enancial guarantees, Ihe considerabion for the guaranbes is presenbed under the lne bem “Provsions” inthe balance sheet,
Incomse from isswed fnancial guarantees and expenses from bought financial guarardees, are amoiised e the duralion of the mstruments
and presented as “Commission and fee Income” of “Commission and fee expenss”.

Changs in expected credil [055 5 recognised undss ihe line dam “Impairrent of Tinancisl nstrumans” in ihe income stalerment.

Lean commitments
An erpecied credi loss is caloulaled for loan commiiments and presented under the line lbem “Provsions® in the balence sheet. Any change in
the expected credit loss aliowance is recognised under the Ene tem ‘Impalmment of financial instruments” in the income statemenl.

For instuments comaining both & drawn and an undrawn component, ihe expected cradt loss will be split pro rala between the o3 allewance
and previstons based on lhe relative pars of the exposure.

Financial Instruments with the characteristics of aquity

lssued nddtonal Tier 1 capilal instruments are instruments where ONE has a unilateral right not to repay infevest o the principal to the
inwestors. As B consequence of these terms. the instruments do not meel (he requirements for a llability and are therefore presented on the line
*Additional Teer 1 Caplai® within the banking growep's equity. Transaction sxpenses and accried infenest are presented &s a reduction in “Other
wquity”, while the edvaniape of the ax deductcon for the interest will give an increase in "Other aquity”

Equéty in foreign cumency shall be converled o Morwegian keoner based on the exchange rabe on the ransaction dabe and & not subject to
subsequend revaluation

Reclassifications
Debt instruments are only reclassified when there Is a significant change in the business model for those assets. Such changes are expecled to
b very infrecuent, Financial lisbdities are not reclassified

Initial recegnition

Financial assets are recognised in the balance sheet efthor on the trade date of the settiement dale, Trade dale accountng is applied for
financial assets measured ol fair value through profit or loss, while setflement dabe accounling is appled for finincial assels measured al
amortised cosl

Funancaal Babilities are recognised in the balance sheet on the date when the banking group becomes a pary loihe contractual provisions of e
Instrurment.

Derecognition

D oonilion of Srnpnihal gadels

Financial assets are derecognised when the right 1o recerve and retain cash fiows from ihe asset has expired or been transferred, and afso if
modifications lead to derscogntion. The banking group enters info cerain fransacions where it transfers assels recognised on its balance shieet,
bul retains efthver all or parls of the rdsks and rewards of the transferred assel. If o or substandiaity all of the risks and rewards are retained, the
translemred financial nsset is nol de-recognised from the balance sheet, bul reclassiied Lo separate a&seds or linbilities reflecting the rights and
obligations created or retained in the transfer, Such ransactions could entall Ihe lrensfer of a loan portidio where lhe banking group retains the
risks and relums associated with the ransfemred portiolio by guaraniesing for all risks inihe portfclio or entenng info & tolal retem swap.

Derecognition of ngncisl lianilties
Financial Enbililies are de-recognised when the contractual obligations have been dschanged, cancelled of have expred

ModHlcations
An assessment of whelher or not a modification of 8 financiad asset at amorised cost leads to de-recognition and recognition of new asset s
based on the following considerations

*  [Differentiafion between changes in the cash Sows o olher terms wilhin the original comract and modifications of the contract

*  An assessment of whether o not 8 modification |s substantial. A substantial modification is defined as 8 full credd process. 8 pricing
decision and the signing of a new contracl

*  An assessmeni of whether the modification is caused by distress or made on commencenl ferms.

Expected credit loss measurement (ECL)
The IFRS 9 expected credt loss model repiaces the incumed loss moded from 1AS 358, The ECL model estmates mpaimment cn the Tollowing
instrurmants that are not measured ol fasr value through profit and loss:

*  financial assets thal are debl insiruments
v |ease receivabies

+  financial guarantes conlracls issued

. |san cormimibments.

A amplified model will be used for messuring edpacied credl loss on trade recehables.
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 2 (continued)

Thie baniking group measures ECL al mach reporling date Tor these insbruments. reflecting
s an unbEasad and probabilty-wesghtad armount thal ks determined by swaluating B range of possibile outcomes
s fhe time valus of money

*  peasonable and supporable information thaf is avallable withoul undue cost of effor at the reporfing dabe about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions

The banking group measuras & loss allowance ol &n amount relleding Betirme ECL for ol mstruments hal hine been subject 1 a signaficant
Inrads s in credit i, nstruments for which thare has baen no sigraficant change in risk, a 12-manth expacied credt loss (4 racognised

Hedge accounting
The banking group has chesen Lo contiue (o apply the hedge pccounting requirements of LAS 30 on adoption of IFRS 9
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Transition to [FRS 3 (continued)

The application of the egcounting policles under IFRS 9 has resulted in the reclassificabions sef out in the ebles befow upon transien tothe

new standard.

In ihe labde Bedads, the ofigenal Measlnement calagonas i accordance wilth L1AS 36 and (he new ideasuremen! cabegories under IFRS 9 for DNE

‘Bank's fingncal assels are shown as at 1 January 2018

Oooooooa

Flnanclal assets as at 1 January 2018 ONB Bank A5A
Ciriggiroal Heow
amng caring

Ovagnal maasureme Mo rraasuremant amount amount

Arpunts in NOK milkoe Zategary under A5 38 catmgery undar IFRS 8 45 9 IFRS 9

Cash and depoalts with contral baris, FYTPL thald for trading) Amoriced ot JERTL ] a3 4

FVTPL jcesigratad) Amnofived el 33 3

Amorised cost Amodised cost 4434 443

‘Dus freen erad inslRutlsng FVTFL {haid for Erading) Agmanised eoul 5 ESE ME 564
FVTPL {dasignated) Amorived cost 4 B8 A B

Aenodived cosl Aemarived cont T ER HTET

Laant to cumomen FYTPL {haid for wading) Amprived cont S5E3D 5 |7
FUTFL (desigraind) Aenotived eost 123 B 020

FVTPL {designated) B24a

BAerodived cowl FaCt A8k g2 T EM

Asnarived gl 564 847

Cominsreial phpal and bons FUTPL (hahd Rt e aifing) FTRL {hald For e 189629 187 414
FUTPL {dasignated) 27

FYTPL {davigruted) FVTPL {designated) fr ] o ]

Held-te-malunty FWTFL fhald Tor tradeg) WEY 9581

‘Emmighiingy FUTPL (hald for trading) FYTPL {mandatery) 5508 SEM
FVTPL (dasignated) FVTPL mangaory) 8oz =0z

Fimanciat derivathes FYTPL thald for trading) FWTPL thaid for trading) 138 a8 138 346
FVTPL {hadging desvatives)  FVTPL {mandatory) B 08 B a0s

O axtdty Amnortived cowl Amadived cout 12 082 Fdi
_Todal 1 005 353 1 909 538

Financial Nabilities as at 1 January 2018 CHB Bank ABA
Cirigeraal Plarwy
eamying emrying

Orgnal messsemant Fre maasurement mmant mmor

A fe in NQH millhes ealdgery unde A5 39 calwgery undar FRE 9 WS 35 IFRE§

Duw b credit inyRutions FTPL (haid for trmding) Armyort ned Coal 285817 285822

FUTPL (deugnated) Ao e coad 4 BET 4887

Arorived cod Amorined <o 42 54 a2 324

Disprititi Fronfn Suibomaen FUTPL (hald Rt trading) Ao rioged <ot 41897 Wy
FUTPL (designated 1885

FUTPL dasignated] AseTred et 14 080 102

FUTPL (dusignated 1387

Arvertited codl Amortived cont 000 T4 B T4

Fimancial danvetives FWTPL (hald for irading) FYTPL (hald for ireding) 178324 178324
FUTRL (hodigeng deratves)  FUTRL imandaloey) 120 1310

Dobt seourtes nsusd FUTPL fhald for radengi FuTFL wid for treding) 168 653 (1
Amaortived coul 158 08

FUTPL (dosgnated) FUTPL idesignated 875 9751

Sromiwdeest  Ametived cout ISTT2T 15777

Oifar habides FUTPL (hald for tradeng) FuTPL held for tredangi &4 G214
Amorined oo Amortred cosl & o G

Sibanknaied loan eapial FUTPL (designated) FUTPL (designated 1873 2873
Prepengdiont  Seodined £ 18858 26.968
Tiotal 18INBSS 17800
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 9 (continued)

Financlal assofs as ol 1 January HHE OB Bank Group
Original M
carpng carping

Cviginal reairamant PR ) L T WA A

Apmexinfs in NOK malfen emisgary undss (A5 35 Enisgary under IFRS 8 a5 38 IFRS

Cash and depotits with central banks FUTRL {heid for trading) Amotaed cost 143 i 143 i1

FYTPL {designated) Amottund cot 3251 328

Armorsad cost Amersted cost 4 a1 2881

Do from erachl insilubons FUTPL (Rl for trading) Amoitand coxt 198 288 188 277
Amortued cost Amotsed oot 3 561 38 558

Loans fo customerns FYTPL {heeld for tracingl Amortsnd cost 55 b 55037
PYTPL {dignated) Amoriaed cou EC e 876

FYTPL {daugnabed) 44 555

Amaoried codt Amomsed cogt 1420 133 1419920
Comtmancial papar and bonds. FYTPL {hald for tradingi FVTPL {kaid for trading) 160 G5 168 5
FYTPL [designatadh 220+
FWTPL [datighatadi FUTPL {dedignated BT 970 BI85
Amontaed cost 7168

Hald-to-maturiy FVTPL {rald for trading) S813 6
Sharehoidngs FYTPL (ke for trading) FYTPL Faid ko rading) LR 5508
FYTPL {mandatony) 795

FWTPL {deaigratadg FYTPL [rumredninny) Ged “lﬂ.
Financis! deriatives FUTRL {haid for trading) FVTPL {kaid for trading) 108 318 108 318
FUTPL (hedging desvatives)  FVTPL (masdatan 8 331 26331

Crtar antats Amorited cod Amoriaed coxt 7 Gii T i

Total T XI5 T 7 3M 884

Financlal lkabiities as at 1 Jamuary 2018 OB Bark Groug
Oniginal Hiw
earryng eamyrg

Crignal meswrempnt Hew mpassremant amoant ot

A i WOR e category under IAS 36 catbgory under IFRS § 1A% 38 IFRS 9

D b crncht inatfsstons. FWTPL (heid for erading) Amortived cost 182 338 182 M8

FWTPL (deigrated) Aemerted eoul 4857 4 887
Amortiwed cost Amortised cost 5 608 35 508
Duoporiity Fim cuntdmsg. FWTPL dhald for tradkng) A d gorl At e e
FYTPL {dasigantad; 188
FWTPL {deaigrated) Amatbd cael 4 0= e
FVTPL {dasigrutad) 13 8a7
Amortived cogt Amortived codt G4 543 ]
Financisd derrativiey FWTRL {hald for Rrading) FVTPL {hald for ading) 06 755 08 7S
FUTPL fhestsing carivalnan  FVTRL imanctory) 3385 3ze5
Dot sacuribies ixsued FWTPL (hald for trading) FUTPL {hald for wading) 168 893 na
Amortived cost 158 T
FWTPL {devigrated) FVTPL {designated: L] B T
Aenoigedeed  Amorived cod 59731 507
Ominr | inbday FWTPL {hald for tradings FUTPL {hald for rading} &4 a214
Amortined cost Amortised cost 13 081 13 el
Subordnalid lodn eapdal FWTRL {deaigratad) FVTPL {datagratvdy 2673 2873
penortuedeod Ao eont kil 26686
_Tatal FRTEETY 2188 274

Based on the business model asdesimant, cerlain portfollos in Marets have been reclassifiad from tair valus through proft snd hoss to
amerirsed cost. This includes portlohos presented as cash and depesis wilh central banks and reversa repurchase agreamenls presenied as
due fom credd inslitulions and loans 1o customers, The assessment of the busness moded under IFRS 9 has been made in connedion with the
masegarment of the new regulations following the Fundamental Review of the Trading Book (FRTE) intraduced by ihe Basel Commiftes. Under
IAS 349, the instruments, which are of & very shoif-lerm nalure, have been presanied a5 hedd for trading and measured & fair value, Bated on
the analysis made of he instruments in the banking book, the business madel will be hold to colled gang forwand a5 the instrumeants bypacally
are held to colleel cash iows al maturty and not managed an 8 fair vabue bagis.
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Note 49 Transition to IFRS 9 (continued)

Furthermore, a5 a resull of the business model assessment of the bond portlobos in Markels some reclassifications have been made. Part of the
lquidity porticlho classifed as held for trading under [AS 39 has beon reciassified as designated at fair value through prodt and Foss. since Tair
value measuremaent significantiy reduces an sccoonting mésmatch, The bond portfolio classiled as held-to-matunty under LAS 35 has been
reclassified 1o fair value Bhrough proft of loss due toa I'Iuldfu'!l‘aﬁnp Buissmess madel

A porifolic of mangin loans thal was designated 8l fair valee using the fairvalue eption under A5 35 ks been reclassifed Lo amonmised cost
under IFRS # since fair value measurenent does ot significantly reduce an accounting mismatch.

Shasehocidings are mandatonly msasured & fair valee throwgh prefl and loss under IFRS 8

As & consequence of the reclassifications of financial assels. certam Anancial llabiMies have also besn reclassdied in order bo prevent
Accounting inconsistencies. The reclassified financial liabities include cash, deposils and repurchase agresments presented a5 due 10 credit
Iinstfutions and deposts from customaers. Furthermore, & porifolio of commaercial paper Babdities in Markets has been reclassified from fak value
through profl or loss (held for rading) Lo amortised cost based on an assessment of the sales acthalies in the porifolie.

in (e tabie below, 1he messurement categones. in accordance with (A5 38 and IFRS 9 for DNE Bank's financial lisb&ties are shown 85 at
1 January 2018

in the labie Delow, reconciliabon of carmAng amaounts under 1AS 39 to camying amounts under IFRS 9 upon ranstion s shoan,

Financial assels OME Bk ATA
A5 30 catrying IFRS 9 carfying
L) armgint
.qmm“m"rw 31 Dwe, 2007 Reclasuleabion  Romeasuissmsd i Jﬂ. a2
Amortlsed cost
favh and deposis wih central baris opening balance &
From FVTPL T2
Closing balance 151 148
Duw from cradit insfutions, opsning balamce 207 B33 (151
_From FYTPL 53418
Lhosing balance 580 48
Loans to cuslomen. aopning balnoe B2 62T {2am)
To FWOCH 187 53T
From FYTPL 1847 [
“losing balsnce Lo ]
Commarcial paper and bonds. heid-loematwity, opening balancs BEtY
T ial paper and bonds, FVTPL B EE
Closing balange Q
i puels 22 0ag Fegsrd
Teaal amormised cosl LriNir A5 BTY (245 1 380 967
Fair valua through profit and loss [FYTPL)
Cash and deposin with coninal by, opening balancs 1458 714
_To maniued o {146 743) 2
Clening bal =]
Drue freem crad inglitiens, opefing Balics 353451
Tasmediptd cosd L3 dis L]
astaming bl 2
Loans bo cuslomess. opening balises B2 185
Joamonised ccol {51 €8) {15
Clesing bal B3%8
Commertial paper and bondh, opening balance 1 9
Fmﬂmidﬂm wnd Bonds, held-to-matuniby 8813 133
Cloaing balans 271875
Ehatehoidngs a0 B340
Fimancial dervaires 146 853 BB
_Todal FUTPL GE3 540 352 4 [1:4}] 431 057
=
Loans bo dulomedi. aowhing balints
_‘F._mm it eagt E:‘ 531
Ciouing balunce g7 &
Tedal FYOCH a7 531 o &40
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 9 (continued)

Financial lkabHities ONE Bank A5&
185 38 camrying RS 0 camying
oyt arnounl
Asmeonts in NOK madon 3 Dec. 2017 Reclatuilcaton  Femesuo amant 1 Jen. 2018
Amonised cost
Duaw 1o credit institstons, opening balance 42 324
_From FuTRL a0 480
Closing balarce &332 803
Dwposits Som customens, opaning balance 900 Tl
From FVTPL 40019
Closing balance Bl T
Dwbt securities issued, opening balsnce 157 727
From FVTRL 158 T
Chaung belance EALEH-N
Crther lintilites dbd BER i B
Subondnated lcan capital o6 GG 21 Gl
Tatal WElfpd Cosl 1172 340 Af0 100 1861 49
Fair valua through profit and loss (FYTPL)
Dol 2 eredd invtRatant, cpening balance 290474
Tay merigrtied] gorat (8 B0y ]
Closing helarss 2]
Depcriity Bom cuttoment, opening balance 55782
To d emat 0 0163 an
_Cloging baisece 15352
Copbst wacuiitios issued. posning balenes 1EE a4
To snoetised cost l;ﬂil oy i)
Closing balance h: ki
Oher lishdites 6214 a214
Subordnated loas capaal 2873 2HTD
Financial dechathoes 178 534 176534
Tatal FYTPL T xeg [ ] n LR LR
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Note 49 Transition to IFRS 9 (continued)

Financlal asssts DHE Bark Group
V&S 3 cmrying IFRS @ canrying

e amsunt

Ammunts in NOK milios 31 Dec. 2017 Aeclessileation  Remeasonsmst 1 Jan. 2018

Amortlsed cost

Cash and deposis with ceniral baris. opaning balance & 881

_From FYTRL 148712

Cigsing halance 1571 8
Duw from credi inditutions, opsning balanoe 30 8 i

From FVTPL 188 277

Clpsng balance ENT B
‘Loans to customans. opening balancs 1420133 [RTEH

From FYTREL 4 601 (e}

balance 1402 421

Commuercial paper and bonds. opening balanos 1]

From FVTPL 7158 15

Cipsing balance 7166
Commarcial paper and bonds. haid v of bai HE13

To Cormrcial papet and bonds, FVTPL B ELY)

Eloing balance =]
iy nusty T haa 7 i5a
Tedal d eosl 14€1 078 408 134 (3209 1 B3 339
Fair value through proft and loss (FYTPL)

Cuh 8nd Gepoaky with caniral Basis, opening balance 146 714

Tos Brvsrtines coal {145 712) ()

Cleing balance 5]
Dun from credt indeatisng, cpenng balasse &0 288

Ta d cont (199 277 [t

Seng be'snee ]
iLoans bo tuslomerns. ppenisg Dalnte 12z

Tor amsrtinad coat {54 801)
Ciosing balance 46,565
Commareial paper and bandy spening balance 257 028

T aretiged cost 7 155)
From Commaneial paper and bonds, heid-to-maturity HE1S
Cligsing balance 265448
ErmraheHEng TaR 7308
Fimancial darivatives 132 648 137 648
_Todal FVTPL #54 103 {803 134) UL 43 594

E=
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 9 (continued)

Financial lkabHities DHB Bank Group
185 38 camrying PRS0 camying
oyt arnounl
Asmeonts in NOK madon 3 Dec. 2017 Reclatuilcaton  Femesuo amant 1 Jen. 2018
Amaoriised cost
Duaw 1o credit institstons, opening balance 2 ED8
_From FuTRL 168 874
Closing balarce 222
Dwposits Som customens, opaning balance B 5B
From FVTPL 40019
Closing balance ot 612
Dwbt securities issued, opening balsnce 838 Ta1
From FVTRL 158 T
Chaung belance L] EH
Crther lintilites 13081 13081
Subondnated lcan capital 26 B 21 Gl
Tatal WElfpd Cosl 1 550 588 15 6 1925 383
Fair valua through profit and loss (FYTPL)
Dol 2 eredd invtRatant, cpening balance 185 983
T mnortiseed eeat (188 974) (1)
Closing balanze 19
Depcriity Bom cuttoment, opening balance 55782
To d emat 0 0163 an
_Cloting balares 15792
Copbst wacuiitios issued. posning balenes 242 354
To snoetised cost l;ﬂil oy i)
Closing balance =50
Oher lishdites 6214 a214
Subordnated loas capaal 2873 2ETD
Financial dechathoes 192 070 112020
Tatal FYTPL [ LTty 5 B0 F i 220 546
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Note 49 Transition to [FRS 3 (continued)

In e table beéow, the classification of inancial instruments under IFRS 5 ks shown

As at 1 January 2018 Mandatorly st FVTRL DHE Bank ASA
Detignatad Carrying
s at Arehad amount
Armunts i NOK milion Trading Ottee ' PYTPL FuacH con * IFRS &
Caih and depotki wih cantral Baska 151 tdE 151 148
Du freem crodd imsiutions 580 B35 E80 BA5E
Loans bo euslamess 6265 87 54 a8 T34
‘Commertial papar and bonds 176 886 B4 579 71 576
Erataheiding 5508 Ba2 B30
Fimancial dorivatnes 138 MHE G606 148 853
Difsr ausaty 22642 s - nd
Total Snuncml st 320851 F400 100 836 BT 53 1380 907 1008 536
Dus to cradt ineSutient 33T A0E 32803
Daposts fom cuthonmey 16 752 B4D THY 56 555
Fimancial denvathes 17H 324 1 210 175534
‘Dbt secantas issued (4] 8T JIGam A6 16T
Othar hatilties g2t &4 883 B4 204
‘Subordnted loan capis Fd: Th) 1 BoS 0 B8
Total Snancial kabdbes 184 626 5a 111 HLE 1 66T 845 1876 700
As af 1 January 28 Mandatonly st FVTPL ONE Bank Group
Dwrignaled Cairypng
Axat 1 January 2018 ahat Mg arounl
_Ammunts in NOK miicn Tracding Cthaer ' FaTEL” cot* IFRS B
Cash and cepgats wih central banis 15t 693 151 583
D freen eracy inButieny 237 B3z 7 BT
Loang bo cudomess 46 556 1484421 1531 047
Commareial papar and bond 176 418 B2 D30 T1i58 66802
Shashoidings B 08 17584 T a0
Frnncial dervatves 106 M8 Ham h k]
Other ausats TBER 7888
Total nancal avtets 288 243 115 129 8 1 BEA G55 2354 BE4
Dus 2 eredl inytlutony 222482 2482
Deposits from custores 16 e i 12 P aba
Financial derivathes 108 7568 3 28 112020
Dbt sscortey issusd (4] 83 T shi Al M
Other abilties BN 13081 T8 30
Eubordnates loan cephal e 16 B85 p-- 4.5
Total Bnancial Babities 114 656 31285 102 368 1826 382 2 145871

1l Inciding devaatives resd a3 hedging insfrumants.
2 For Gaidities designaten s af FYTPL, changes in falr value dus fo-copdd nisk grremn v ofher v
3 Inclading Pedped Eabilies

DHB Bank"s long-term borrowings in Norwegian kroner are designabed al fair value through profit or loss using the fair value cpbion. The
presentation of changes in credt rsk in olher compr shensive income neither creabes nor enfarges an accounting mismaitch
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 2 (continued)

In the table below financial assels and financial liabiities [hat are no longer designabed at Tair value are shown.
ONB Bank ASA
A5 0 carrying
Clavmication Clansifcation Rwanon for L]
i i NOK million unger 145 30 untr IFRS 8 reclannifeation 31 D 31T
Cash and deposits with cenbral banks Fair value option Amortized cost Requined by iIFRS & A
Dot from crecit insStubons Fair value option Amortned cont Ebpcted bo rochendy o B
Loans 1o cuslomen Faii value oplion Amortised oot Ehsctud bo roclassily [0 ]
Sharshoisngs Fair value option FYTPL Reguired by IFRS § [
Total finsncial sses 14908
Duae to credit instiutons: Fair value option Amortised cost Elected to reclrssily & B57
Opoaits bom customsns Fair valus option Amorticed cost Ebectad bo rechysaidy a2
Total financial Rabilities 4830
DME Bardk Group
IAS 39 carrying
Classilcation Clawsibeabion Reason for [
Armconts in NOK mallion undar 43 3 under IFRS 9 meciansifcation 31 D 01T
Canh and deposits with central banks Fair value optien Amortied cost Rucuined by iFRS 8 k|
Loans 1o cutiomert Fait walue option Aungitrted oot Electad bo eachitity 8T
Commescial papsre and bonds Fair walus option Amortised oot Electwd to recianuty T ss
Sharshaokdngs Fair value option PYTPL Raquined try IFRS @ biic]
Tolal finencial asseis 301
D [0 cromifl mititont. Fair walue eption Funenirvind cost Ebtod o maglagudy 4 85T
Dapoaits bom custemsn Fair valus option Amnoirsed eost Eleer b b rwclasaily 162
Talal finencial Rabiliies LE ]

Accumulated impairments

In the tables beiow, the effect of reclassificalion and remeasument of accurnulated impaimment following the implementation of IFRS Sis

Oooooooa

presented.
DB Bonk A%A
as af 3% O T as 8 1 January 2 S
Lilssime ECL  Lilatima ECL
BAS 38 and fodavse  Remeasae T 2megntih mot credl ermd
Asrcurts in NOK milion BE 37 Scation mere IFRS 8 ECL  impaired  impained
Aezurestaled impaimmant dus bom
erac instbutions i i
Axurmstated impairmant loars b cusiomer B 5 [+ 241y (8 0 (104} (213 1862
and gramnizes - iy S i1 808} (137 it 184} 15081
Tetal sscurrmilstod mpsrmants B 854 in i1 144y U TG i338) {3300 T
DHE Bank Group
Balance s af 1 December 2017 Balance s af 1 January 2018
Wit ECL  Lifsses ECL
A5 38 mnd Redesss  Remsasun 1 2emeoein LT EaT ermdit
Amcants in NOK milfion a5 37 femtion i IFRS 8 ECL  ivpeited  impwired
Aursstated bnpaiirant dus bom
crac institutions ) ] ]
Accumsdated impaimmaent loans bo cusiomen a1 BT 1" L] T A O G e
and guamnisen . o (815 1t 881) (2830 7 {2128 frs
Tatal asoummlsted mparmands {12 783, 11 220 {1 W7y 1558 15 200 aEm
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Note 49 Transition to [FRS 3 (continued)

Accumulated im palrments customer 54 ments
In the labie bedow, the effec on each business segment of recdlassiication snd remeasurment of the bolal accumulated impaiment following the
implementation of IFRS 9 & presented

DME Bank Croup
Balance as 88 M December 2017 Balance as o 1 January 2013
Ufstima ECL  Lidsbme ECL
Reclass-  Remeswre 1&-manth gt credd credt
Armounts kn NOK millon 185 3 Beation et IFRS & ECL impaked Impained
Perianal custpmaeny Fim {22n (BESh AL ] 1561}
Ll Bnied el e SRS 2607 L] 280 (2 34} [azy {118 (2187}
Lage corporates and intematonsl customars 3000 13 2T (AN H Ty ol w24y [ rli=i}
Tradtional pensicn peoduds
Dtfir operasonasleminations | (A6 450
Tistal gediadaled ragdliaag
cuhinmar fagments 12 TR 11 209 (14 BETY (55 5 M (el
1 Provisions on guarsntoes, which awe nof par of bans that are indwidwally impaied. whane mol aliocaled io seg FEFE b 200 7T bud bhave beon

aliccaded oz & 1 Jenuary 2018,

Expected credit loss (ECL)

'DHE opplies a three-siapge approach when assessing ECL on koans 10 customers, lsan commibments, Snancial guarantess and cifer fnancial
instruments subject to the IFRS B impaimen rules

*  Afinancial instrument thad s nol purchased or originated credit impaired s dassified as stage 1 wilh 12-month ECL

v If & significant intrease (n credit nsk since initial recognilion i denlified the finencial instrument (s moved 1o sisge 2 wilh lifatims ECL
LEasEEment

*  An incresse in credit risk reflects both customer-specific circumstances and dewslopments in relevant macre nsk divers for the segment
where the cuslomer belongs, The assessment of whal /4 considered (o be 8 signfican! increase in credt risk i based on & cornbination af
guantitative and qualistive indicalors and backstops.

s I erech risk deteriorates furlhes and the financial instrumen @ essessed to be credil impaired, the Anancial instrurment 5 moved o stage 3
with Efatime ECL measurement As opposed o stage 1 and 2, the effectve interest mate 5 caloulsted on amortised cost instead of the

o84 carrying amount

The loan loss mesasuréman i3 basad on the folowing prencples:

. 12-month ECL is measured 8t an armaunt sgual bo the porthan of ielims ECL (hat results from posssble defaull evants withen the neat 12
meriths

s Theloss presasion fof financial asssts in stage 1 and stage 2 is calculated as the present value of sxpesure at defaull (EAD) mulliplied ty
the probability of defaull (PD) multipked by laes given defaull (LGD). PD. LGD and EAD use the IRB framewoek &5 & starting poind, bul are
o verted inbe baing point in tire and forsard-laoking a s opposed to thaugh the cyele Bnd tonsenatie.

*  Pasl, present and forward-looking information is used (o eslimate ECL. For this purpose, DNE'S loan portlolio is $pil into 22 segments
based on geography and industry. All customers wilhin & sepment are exposed 1o ihe same ik divers.

*  Forslage 3 indvidual assessments ane performed for credit mpaired financial instruments..

For stage 1 and 2. & model 5 used 1o cakculate ECL. The model Tollows five steps. Segmentation, delerminalion of macro scenarios,
delefmination of credt cycls index, calculation of ECL and staging

Ins the Splloraing eoch wlap will be descrilbed in more delail

Segmentation, macro scenarios and credit cycle index

The assessrment of significant increass in credt rsk and the calculation of ECL intorporate parst, present and fonward-locking information, in
order Lo reflect (he effect of macro drivers in a reasonable and supportable manner DNB's portfolio has been divided inba 22 sepmeris with
shared crédi risk characlerstics. The segmentation 1S based on industry and gecgraphical location. but atout half of the ndustry segrments are
wapesed 1o global markets and will primanty be influsnced by global ek dehers

Based on o datistical regression analysis key risk drivers impacting PD, LGD and EAD are identified for the different segments. Relevant macro
drivers and their impact on ECL will wary by financial instrument, Forecasis of each of Bhe relevant risk drivers (Ihe base economic scenano) are
primagily provided by DHNE Markets on o quarery basis and provide the besl eslimale of developments in the risk divers for the forecast pesiod,
DHB Markets bases bs forecast on a range of informalion sources, primadity external market information, bul alse inlenal sowces. The lafecast
period varies between hree and four yesrs.
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 2 (continued)

Thie macrs forecasds are incororaled in the credit cycle index (S The CCI shows tha relationship between the historically cbserved defaults
and redevant mecro factors established from statistical regression analysis. The posion on the index indcates whether the curent state of the
scongeny for @ given segment s belter of worse than nomal, and the forecasts are used bo project the development of the index in the forecast
period. Afler the forecast periad, (e CCI S assumed Lo be mean reverting. This means thal (he credf Sycie fof each segmenl returns bo e
leng-tearn mean of & nemad state,

The CCI ks further used to generate 8 basa line PD cunve for each nstrumant that follows the development of the CCEL Bihe CCmoves 1owards
betier times, the PO will everyihing else equal be reduced and vice versa.

Multipie scenarios

IFRS 3 recuires the wse of mullipls scenarios in delsmining a significant increase in credil risk and measuring ECL in ofder Lo caplure the non-
linear relationship betaeen negative credit sk develcpment and ECL. For DMB this has been schved using the base scenaricfor each sk
driver as & slamting point and deriving OC1 and PD curses as described above. AlRernative scenarios ane ramsiated into alemative paths of a
probability fan arcund the baseline. This method means: that esch scenadio represents one percentile on B probabilty fan with each percentile
representing 8 possible development in credt risk depending on the macroeconomic developmaent

The width of the fan is defermined by the pas! voialility in the comedation bebaeen developments in the risk drivers and developments in credit
risk and ECL. This resultsin & comelathon where the higher the velalility in 8 segnent resulling form changes inihe risk drivers, the larger the
gap betwean the baseine and the outer percenldes of the fan

Calculation of expected credit loss

The determination of a signifcant increase in creck risk and the measurement of ECL s based on paramelers already used in credd risk
managemend and for capital adequacy calcufations: PD, LGD and EAD The parameters hinve been adusled in order (o give an unbiased
estimate of ECL.

Probability of default (PD)

OHE spplies & range of diferent models 1o delermine 8 cusiomer's PO. The choice of model depends on whether i 15 8 personal or corporate
customér and an which indusitny the customer cperates in. PD models are o key component bolh in caleulating the ECL and in assessing
whether @ significan! increase in credd risk has cocwurred since Inltial recognition, Therefore, there is & need 1o generate a PD which is forward-
Iocking and reflects all available relevant data. This is necessary in order bo fulll 1he IFRS 9 reqguirement bo provide an unbiased probability-
weighfed eslimate of ECL. DNEB has been granied permission to use inlemal ratings based spproach, IRBA. modeds for defermining PD in
capidal adequasy calculabions. These models are consenvative and only reflect a imited degres of cyclicalty. In crder 19 apply thess PDs for
IFRE 5. four medifications: have been mads:

* incorporalicn of MacIoecoNomic SCenanas.

*  conversion toan unbased, forward-looking PD

L canversiaon of 12 monlh PD 1o Metime PD

. remnadal of Frargin ol eorservatism inthe PD eslimate

These miodifications emply that the PD used for IFRS § refiects mansgenent's current view of expecied cyclical changes and thal all PO
eslimates are unbigdad.

Basad on the converled PDs and reflecting the forwand losking credil eycle index bwo types of PDs are generaled and used in the ECL

caltutalion:

= AMZ-month PO s ihe probabéity of defaull accumng within the next 12 months (o over Ihe remaining life of the financial mstrument if thal
1% less than 12 months). This is used to calculale the 12-month ECL

L] A lifetime PD & the snnualised probabslity of & defsull oocuiting ower the remmining life of the financial nstrument. This is used o evalusie
irthere has besn B gnificant incresse in credt i ince inital recognition and to calculabe Hetime ECL

Pigase refer o nole 5 Credd nsk for o description of the DNE's sk dassification,

Loss given default (LGD)
LGD represents the percentage of EAD which the Banking group expects 0o bose if the customer fails (o meel hes obligations, takeng he
caollateral provided by the cusiormer, fulire cash Sows and olbar ralevan] faslors inlo comiaderalion

Sirnilar to PDs, DB uses IRBA LGDs for capilal sdequacy calculations. In onder to convedt the IRB LGDs o IFRS LGOS four modifications have
bean mode:
*  incorparalion of Mssroasanamile Seenafios
s use of the effactioe intarest rate o discoun) fdure estimated cash Sows
*  removal of the mangin of consendatsm lo prodece unbiased projections rather than dewntum projections, and o exciude regulatory
foars
*  removal of (he estimated indirect costs of realising collateral

These modifications mply that the LG0s uted for IFRS 9 should reflect manapement’s curment view of the eyclical changes and that all LGD
estimates are unbinsed
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Note 49 Transition to [FRS 3 (continued)

Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD is the share of the approved credt that is expected bo be drawn el the time of any future default. The EAD s adusied 1o reflect contractual
payments of principal and interesi and esbimated early repayment. The propartion of undrawn commitments expected 1o have been drasm at the
tere of defaull ks reflected in the credl canversion factor

Significant increase in credit risk
The assessment of a sipnificant increase in credit risk is based on 8 combination of quaniilative and qualitative indcators and back stops. A
significant increase in credt nsk has cccemed when one of more of the criteria below are met

Quaniitative criteria

A significant increase in credi sk s delermined by comparing the remaining etime B0 for an instrement at the repoding date. s expected el
initial recognition, with the actual Wetime PD at the reporing date. 1 1he actual Wetime PD i higher than what # was expecled tobe, an
assessment is made of whether the iIncrease is significant

An increase in lifetime PO wih a factor of 2.5 or more from inibiel recognition is assessed o be 8 significant increase in credit risk. This threshold
is based on an assessment of the increase m crodi risk that would lead to closer customer follow-up in order (o ensure thal proper credit risk
manasgement and business decisions anme made.

Further, the change in FD must be a menimum of 3.6 percentage points for the detericration in credi fsk to be considered (o be significant. in
the high end of the risk scale a changs of 7.5 percentage points or more is considersd to be 8 significant deberioration in cred® risk even Ifthis is
Iess than a change of 2.5 times Ketime PD. These Bmits reflect the high sensitivity to change in the low end of the risk scade and the low
sensihaty bo change in the high end of the scale.

DHE applies a risk scale where all cusiomers and instruments are rabed on a coherent scale meaning that a risk grade has the same
explanalory power independent of segment, geography and product DNB {herefore uses a commeon threshold fior o financial instruments wilh
respedd towhal constiule a significan! increase in credt risk. For more on DNEBs risk scale and ciassification see note 5

Qualitative criteria
Qualitatres formation is normally reflected in the respective PO models for each group of customers

Back stop
Bachk sleps are used and a significant increase in credit risk has coourmed if
*  the customer's contraciual payments are 10 doys past due

*  fhe customer hes been granted fofbearance measures due 1o fnancal dsiress, though il nol severs enough for Ihe financal instrument to
b classifed as credt impaired

Definition of default and credit impaired in stage 3
The definition of cradi impaired is Rilty aligned with he reguiatory definition of defaul,

Acommitrment &5 defined to be in default if & ciaim 15 more than 50 days overdue. the cverdue amount sxceeds RO 2 000 and the default is not
due to delays or accidental circumstances on the part of the debiber.

A commibment i5 also defined bo be in defaull 7 the bank:

v significanthy writes down thie commitment as 8 resull of 8 weakening of the debtor's creditworthiness

*  ggrees fo changes in the terms and conditions because the debber |s having problems meeting payment cbligations, and this is assumedfo
significantly reduce e value of the cash Now

+  sells the dabt for an ssmount that is significantly (ower than the noming] value 65 & resull of an impairnent of the debler's craditwonhiness

*  has grounds for essuming that the delblor will be subject to debt satiiement or banknupdcyfnvoluntary liquidation proceedings. o be placed
in recehesship

+  has dher grounds for assuming that the payment oblsgation will not be mel (anticipaled defaut),

A commitment is defined (o represent anticipated defaull f & is considered kcely that the customer, besed on s reguiar business acivibies, does
ngt have debt payment abdlby for s fotad obligabons (wnlkelness o pay)

The principles and estmalion techniques fof credt mpadred Enancial inslruments are not affected by IFRS 5. Please refer 1o the descnplion of
indhvidual impairment in the accounting principles of inancinl instrements and Impordant sccounting esiimales, judgements and pesumptions for
e detall
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Note 43 Transition to IFRS 2 (continued)

Expert credit judgement

Thie new rules require. fo 8 lasger extent than before. thed signsficant prolessional jedgmend ts applied 1o many of the inpul paremeters in the
ECL-measuremenl. The assessment of the macre prognoses and the impadt tothe forecasled credt cycle index is key judgments and DB has
estabiished an advisany foum for the Group's Chief Financial Officer to address this. The forum's purpose (s o assess if Ihe predicted Credt
Cycle Index for each segment reflect the managerment's view on the sxpected future sconamic development.

IFRS 8 impact on regulatory capital

The snplementation effect of IFRS 9 is NOR 2 bilion afber tax and is recognised a5 8 reduclion in "Ceher equity”. This includes the impact of
Investments sccounled for by the equity method. IFRS 5 will affect the copital adequacy ratics through s reduction in equity which to a large
exienk will be neutralised by cancelling a deduction relabed o the bevel of impasment losses. Therefore, the CET1 capdal is only marngnally
changed. Howewer, risk-welghted assels wil mcrease due (o lhe Norsegean Basel 1 oo, which is effective for the GHB Bank Group. The
deduction referred Lo abxove has reduced, and the canceilation will thus increase risk-weighted assels. The foled effects of IFRS & reduce the
common equity Tier 1 capital ratio by 28 basis poinks

For OMNE Bank ASA_ the implementation effect s NOK 1 billion after tax, which Is recognised os a reduction i *Ciher equity”. The CET1 capital
Is almost unchanged due to the cancedlation of the deduckion related to impaement [osses. As DNE Bank ASA 5 not affected by the Basel 1
foor requirement. IFRS & has no impact on the commen equity Tier 1 capital ratia

OB does nal inbend to use the transitional niles infroduced by Finanstlsynet for capitel adequacy purposes.
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¢
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
17.75 17.46 16.31 14.02 14.39
15.54 15.66 13.80 11.81 12.61
16.62 16.80 15.03 12.94 13.58
17.18 16.17 13.84 13.54 13.70
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
¢
2017 12 2018 1 2018 2 2018 3 2018 4 2018 5
13.72 14.18 14.33 13.78 13.85 13.79
13.46 13.81 13.62 13.49 13.41 13.07
13.58 14.04 13.81 13.65 13.72 13.56
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
13.55 (2018 6 22 )
UFJ 1990 (http://www._murc-kawasesouba. jp/fx/past__3month.php)
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2017 12 31
2017 12 31
[
[
2017 12 31
° EU 2017 12 31
ISAs
2017
1,531,345 65
730,782 36
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Annual Shareholders' Meeting of DNB Bank ASA

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DNB Bank ASA comprising the financial statements of the parent
company and the Group. The financial statements of the parent company comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2017, the income statement, statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The consolidated financial statements comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the income statement,
statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion,

e the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the law and regulations;

e the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the parent company
as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally accepted
in Norway;

e the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices generally
accepted in Norway, including International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Norway, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities as
required by law and regulations. We have also complied with our other ethical obligations in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for 2017. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Impairment of loans

Loans to customers represent NOK 1 531 345 million (65 % per cent) of total assets for the Group. Corresponding
figures for the parent company are NOK 730 782 million (36 % per cent) of total assets for the parent company.
Impairment of loans are calculated individually, for individually significant loans where objective evidence of
impairment is identified, or collectively for groups of loans which are not assessed individually, and for which
objective evidence of impairment is identified on a portfolio basis. The identification and calculation of impairment
are processes involving judgement about various assumptions and factors including the financial condition of the
counter party, expected future cash flows, observable market prices and expected net selling prices. The use of
different modelling techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of impairment of
loans. The oilfield services, offshore and oil & gas sectors are still subject to uncertainty due to the effects of a
reduced oil price and a general downturn in related markets over the past years. Since the related impairments of
loans are material, and subject to estimation uncertainty, we have assessed impairment of loans as a key audit
matter.

We have assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over individual and
collective impairments of loans. For individually significant loans our procedures included assessing the
identification of loss events and testing of assumptions used in the models, including the forecasted future cash
flows and the estimated value of underlying collaterals. We also tested the mathematical accuracy of the models.
For impairment of loans calculated on a collective basis, we evaluated the key input variables and assumptions to
the models, and where relevant, compared data and assumptions to external benchmarks. We also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the models.

See note 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 in the consolidated financial statements for further information.

Vauation of Financia Instruments

Unlisted or illiquid financial instruments measured at fair value are valued based on models that use assumptions
that are not observable in the market place. The valuation of these instruments therefore have a higher risk of
errors. Such instruments comprise assets of NOK 58 391 million and liabilities of NOK 1 749 million measured at
fair value in the consolidated balance sheet and classified as level 3 instruments within the fair value hierarchy.
Corresponding figures for the parent company are assets of NOK 15 246 million and liabilities of NOK 1 749 million.
Due to the materiality of the unlisted or illiquid instruments, and the increased risk of errors, we considered the
valuation of these instruments a key audit matter.

We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation process
including management's determination and approval of assumptions and methodologies used in model-based
calculations as well as management's review of valuations provided by internal experts. We also assessed pricing
model methodologies against industry practice and valuation guidelines. We performed independent valuations for
selected instruments and used external source data where available. We compared results of our valuations to the
Group’s valuations.

Level 3 instruments which are presented at fair value on the balance sheet are disclosed in note 28 in the
consolidated financial statements.

Hedge accounting - Interest rate risk on long-term debt securities issued

Derivative instruments are used to manage exposure to interest rate risk related to long-term debt securities issued
in foreign currencies. Derivatives and borrowings designated at initial recognition as hedging relationships, are
accounted for as fair value hedges. The effectiveness of the hedging relationships are assessed at the beginning
and end of the relevant period. The application of hedge accounting and ensuring hedge effectiveness can be
judgmental and requires close monitoring from

Independent auditor's report - DNB Bank ASA
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management. Due to the materiality of the hedging relationships, we considered hedge accounting of interest rate
risk on long-term debt securities issued a key audit matter.

We assessed the design and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the designation and
ongoing management of hedge accounting relationships, including testing of hedge effectiveness. We examined
hedge documentation to assess whether the documentation complied with the requirements of the accounting
standards. We tested reconciliations between underlying source systems and documents used to manage and
document hedging relationships, including testing the mathematical accuracy and calculation of hedge
effectiveness.

See note 20 in the consolidated financial statements for further information.

Other information

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board of Directors and Group Chief Executive Officer
(management) are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally accepted in Norway for the
financial statements of the parent company and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
for the financial statements of the Group, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with law, regulations and generally accepted auditing principles in Norway,
including ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Independent auditor's report - DNB Bank ASA
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identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the Board of Directors’ report and on the statements on corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, it is our opinion that the information presented
in the Board of Directors’ report and in the statements on corporate governance and corporate social responsibility
concerning the financial statements, the going concern assumption and proposal for the allocation of the result is
consistent with the financial statements and complies with the law and regulations.

Independent auditor's report - DNB Bank ASA
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Opinion on registration and documentation

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, and control procedures we have considered
necessary in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000, «Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, it is our opinion that management
has fulfilled its duty to ensure that the Company's accounting information is properly recorded and documented as
required by law and bookkeeping standards and practices accepted in Norway.

Oslo, 7 March 2018
Ernst & Young AS

Anders Ggbel
State Authorised Public Accountant (Norway)

Independent auditor's report - DNB Bank ASA
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